
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
AUGUST 15, 2005 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
 
 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

August 15, 2005 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Dennis Wegner - Troy Church of 
the Nazarene 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Recognition of the City of Troy’s 50th Anniversary of Council-Manager 
Government by the ICMA – International City/Council Management 
Association ........................................................................................................... 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Parking Variance – 701-705 Minnesota 1 

C-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 212) – Articles IV, XXV, XXVI and 
XXVII – Freestanding Restaurants, Banks and Daycare Facilities in the R-C, O-M 
and O-S-C Districts 3 

C-3 Rezoning Application (Z 705) – West Side of Rochester Road, North of Creston, 
Between Long Lake and Trinway, Section 10 – R-1C to R-1T 3 



POSTPONED ITEMS:  No Postponed Items 3 

CONSENT AGENDA: 4 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 4 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 4 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 4 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation 4 

a) Proclamation Celebrating 85 Years – American Legion Charles Edwards Post 
14 – Birmingham/Troy .......................................................................................... 4 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 4 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Tee Shirt 
Contract ................................................................................................................ 4 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 6: Grant Approval and Authorization to 
Expend City Funds – Safer Star Software and Associated Equipment................. 5 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to 
Expend Funds for Troy City Council Members’ Travel Expenses – Michigan 
Municipal League 107th Annual Convention ......................................................... 5 

E-5 Application to Transfer Location of a Class C Liquor License – TGI Friday’s, Inc. 
(TGI Friday’s Restaurant) 6 

E-6 Fireworks Permit – Troy Daze 6 

E-7 Private Agreement for Hidden Creek Site Condominiums – Project No. 03.909.3 6 

E-8 Request for Approval of Increased Interest Differential Payment and Closing Cost 
Payment – Emad and Niran Youno, 2955 Thames, Sidwell #88-20-25-229-005 – 
Big Beaver, Rochester to Dequindre Road Project #01.105.5 7 

E-9 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from the Kimberly 
Anne Gillary Foundation for the Purpose of Obtaining a Charitable Gaming 
License 7 

E-10 Gerback et. al v. City of Troy 7 

E-11 Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement 7 



PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 8 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 8 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Cable Advisory 
Committee; Ethnic Community Issues Advisory Committee; Historic District 
Commission; Historical Commission; Liquor Committee; and Traffic Committee 8 

F-2 Local Match for a Michigan Economic Growth Authority (MEGA) Retention 
Incentive Package 13 

F-3 Traffic Committee Recommendations – July 20, 2005 14 

F-4 2006 City Calendar Contract Extension 15 

F-5 Authority to Initiate Lawsuit to Abate Public Nuisance – 2766 Rhodes 15 

F-6 Bid Waiver – Troy Daze Large Tents 15 

F-7 Resolution Supporting the Legislative Correction of the WPW v. Troy Taxable 
Value Inequity 16 

F-8 Authority to Initiate Lawsuit to Abate Public Nuisance – 5165 Prentis 17 

F-9 Proposed Revision of Troy’s Sign Ordinances 17 

F-10 Public Benefit Requirement to Satisfy Preliminary Approval of Planned Unit 
Development (PUD-004) – The Monarch Private Residences 19 

F-11 Intergovernmental  Cable Communications Authority (ICCA) Contract with 
Community Media Network (CMN) 19 

F-12 Bid Waiver – Authorization to Purchase an Enterprise Content Management 
System 19 

F-13 Proposed Revisions to Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service – Elimination of 
Connection Requirement 20 

F-14 Replacement of November 2005 Ballot Proposals 20 



MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 27 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 27 

a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2239 East Maple Road – September 12, 2005... 27 
b) Rezoning Application – South Side of Long Lake Road, West of Calvert Drive, 

Section 14 – R-1C to CR-1 (Z 706) – September 12, 2005 ................................ 27 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 27 

a) Options for Remnant Parcel – Site for Troy’s First Volunteer Fire Station.......... 27 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 27 

H-1  No Council Referrals 27 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 27 

I-1  No Council Comments 27 

REPORTS: 27 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 27 

a) Troy Historic District Study Committee/Final – June 7, 2005.............................. 27 
b) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – July 6, 2005......................................... 27 
c) Planning Commission Regular/Draft – July 12, 2005 ......................................... 27 
d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – July 13, 2005 .......... 27 
e) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust Minutes/Draft – July 13, 2005.......... 27 
f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – July 26, 2005 ................................ 27 

J-2 Department Reports: 27 

a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of July, 2005.............. 27 
b) Police Department – 2005 Year-to-Date Crime and Calls for Service Report .... 27 
c) Planning Department – Zoning Ordinance Test Amendment  (ZOTA 214) – 

Article XXVIII – Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A Through R-1E Districts .... 27 
d) Purchasing Department – Auction (Off Site and On-line) – Vehicle Sale in 

Port Huron, Michigan and an On-Line Auction for a Diamond Bracelet on 
BidNet................................................................................................................. 27 

e) Building Department – Additional Information on Examples of Allowable 
Accessory Structures Based Upon Final Action – ZOTA 215A........................... 27 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 28 

a) Letter of Thanks to Mayor Schilling from Paul Marcus, Barton Malow 
Company, Thanking Gary Bowers, Rick Kessler, Doug Smith, Ron Figlan, 



Bob Matlick, Mark Stimac, Bill Jawlik, Pat Pettito, Gary Streight, the Entire 
Inspection Staff, and the Very Kind Administrators in the Building Department 
for Their Cooperation with Planning and Construction of Automation Alley’s 
Technology Center ............................................................................................. 28 

b) Letter of Thanks to John Szerlag from Harriet Barnard, Thanking Brian 
Murphy for City Staff’s Quick Response ............................................................. 28 

c) Letter of Thanks to Carol Anderson from Stacy Pilut, Thanking Her for the 
Nursery School Olympics ................................................................................... 28 

d) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Clive D. Mattice, Jr., Thanking Officer 
Melissa Baroky for Her Assistance on I-75......................................................... 28 

e) Letter of Thanks to Carol Anderson from Lynn and Brian Coury, Thanking 
Ron Hynd for His Prompt Service, Attention and Courtesy ................................ 28 

f) Letter to Chief Nelson from Vicki Barnett, Mayor, and Richard Marinucci, Fire 
Chief, of Farmington Hills, Thanking Chief Nelson and the Troy Fire 
Department for Participating in FARMEX II. ....................................................... 28 

g) Letter to Troy Fire Department from Mothers & More, in Appreciation of the 
Demonstration at Their Annual Family Picnic. .................................................... 28 

h) Letter of Appreciation to Steve Vandette from Richard Bury for His 
Assistance. ......................................................................................................... 28 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 28 

a) Resolution from the City of Ferndale Extending Appreciation to the Mayors of 
Hiroshima and Nagasaki for their Leadership in Working for the Elimination of 
Nuclear Weapons. .............................................................................................. 28 

b) Resolution from Charter Township of White Lake Regarding Local Control of 
Liquor Licenses .................................................................................................. 28 

c) Resolution from the City of Ferndale – I-75 Final Environment Impact 
Statement – M-102 to M-59 Proposed Expansion .............................................. 28 

J-5  Calendar 28 

J-6  Standard & Poor’s Annual Review of “AAA” United States Municipalities 28 

J-7  Municipal Sign Regulations v. the First Amendment 28 

J-8  Cable Franchise Lawsuit Against the City of Troy 28 

J-9  Memo from the Friends of the Troy Public Library Book Shop Management 
Committee 28 

STUDY ITEMS: 28 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 28 



PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 28 

CLOSED SESSION: 29 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 29 

RECESSED 29 

RECONVENED 29 

ADJOURNMENT 29 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 30 

Monday, September 12, 2005 Regular City Council ............................................. 30 
Monday, September 19, 2005 Regular City Council ............................................. 30 
Monday, September 26, 2005 Regular City Council ............................................. 30 
Monday, October 3, 2005 Regular City Council .................................................... 30 
Monday, October 17, 2005 Regular City Council .................................................. 30 
Monday, October 24, 2005 Regular City Council .................................................. 30 
Monday, November 14, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 30 
Monday, November 21, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 30 
Monday, November 28, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 30 
Monday, December 5, 2005 Regular City Council ................................................ 30 
Monday, December 19, 2005 Regular City Council .............................................. 30 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Dennis Wegner - Troy 
Church of the Nazarene  

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:   

a) Recognition of the City of Troy’s 50th Anniversary of Council-Manager Government by 
the ICMA – International City/Council Management Association 

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Parking Variance – 701-705 Minnesota  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
Proposed Resolution A (For Approval) 
 
WHEREAS, Articles XLIII and XLIV (43.00.00 and 44.00.00) of the Zoning Ordinance provide 
that the City Council may grant variances from the off-street parking requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance upon general findings that: 
 
1. The variance would not be contrary to public interest or general purpose and intent of the 

Zoning Ordinance. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

2. The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use as a principal use 
within a zoning district. 

 
3. The variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate vicinity or 

zoning district. 
 
4. The variance relates only to property described in the application for variance; and 
 
WHEREAS, Article XLIII (43.00.00) requires that in granting, the City Council shall find that the 
practical difficulties justifying the variances are: 
 
A. That absent a variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property; or 
 
B. That absent a variance, a significant natural feature would be negatively affected or 

destroyed; or 
 
C. That absent a variance, public health, safety and welfare would be negatively affected; or 
 
D. That literal enforcement of the Zoning Ordinance precludes full enjoyment of the 

permitted use and makes conforming unnecessarily burdensome. In this regard, the City 
Council shall find that a lesser variance does not give substantial relief, and that the relief 
requested can be granted within the spirit of the Ordinance, and within the interests of 
public safety and welfare; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds the above-stated general conditions to be present and finds 
the practical difficulty stated above to be operative in the appeal; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Raj Patel for waiver of 6 
additional parking spaces at the development at 701 – 705 Minnesota be APPROVED. 
 
Or Proposed Resolution B (For Denial) 
 
WHEREAS, Articles XLIII and XLIV (43.00.00 and 44.00.00) of the Zoning Ordinance provide 
that the City Council may grant variances from the off-street parking requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance upon general findings that: 
 
1. The variance would not be contrary to public interest or general purpose and intent of the 

Zoning Ordinance. 
 
2. The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use as a principal use 

within a zoning district. 
 
3. The variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate vicinity or 

zoning district. 
 
4. The variance relates only to property described in the application for variance; and 
 
WHEREAS, Article XLIII (43.00.00) requires that in granting, the City Council shall find that 
there are practical difficulties justifying the variances; and  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

WHEREAS, City Council has not found that the requirements of Articles XLIII and XLIV 
(43.00.00 and 44.00.00) of the Zoning Ordinance have been met; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Raj Patel for waiver of 6 
additional parking spaces at the development at 701 – 705 Minnesota be DENIED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 212) – Articles IV, XXV, XXVI and XXVII 

– Freestanding Restaurants, Banks and Daycare Facilities in the R-C, O-M and O-
S-C Districts 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
RESOLVED, That Article IV (DEFINITIONS), Articles  XXV (O-M OFFICE MID-RISE 
DISTRICT), XXVI (O-S-C OFFICE–SERVICE-COMMERCIAL DISTRICT), and XXVII (R-C 
RESEARCH CENTER DISTRICT) of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, be AMENDED to read 
as written in the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 212), dated June 21, 
2005, as recommended by the Planning Commission and City Management. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-3 Rezoning Application (Z 705) – West Side of Rochester Road, North of Creston, 

Between Long Lake and Trinway, Section 10 – R-1C to R-1T   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the west side of Rochester 
Road, north of Creston, between Long Lake and Trinway, Section 10, being 29,040 square feet 
in size, is hereby GRANTED, as recommended by City Management and the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  No Postponed Items 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of August 1, 2005 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 

a) Proclamation Celebrating 85 Years – American Legion Charles Edwards Post 14 – 
Birmingham/Troy 

 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Tee Shirt Contract 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

 
WHEREAS, On October 18, 2004, a one year contract with an option to renew for one 
additional year for Tee Shirts was awarded to the low bidder, Kel Graphics of Cadillac, Michigan 
(Resolution #2004-10-546-E-17);  
 
WHEREAS, Kel Graphics has agreed to exercise the one-year option to renew the contract 
under the same pricing, terms and conditions. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is hereby 
EXERCISED with Kel Graphics to provide Tee Shirts under the same prices, terms, and 
conditions for one year at an estimated total cost of $27,153.00, to expire September 30, 2006. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 6: Grant Approval and Authorization to Expend 

City Funds – Safer Star Software and Associated Equipment 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby AUTHORIZE the Troy Fire Department to 
receive a State of Michigan Homeland Security Critical Infrastructure Grant and EXPEND funds 
for the purchase of Safer Star Software from Safer Systems, LLC, of Camarillo, CA, the sole 
source provider of proprietary software, at an estimated cost of $300,000.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Fire Department Operations equipment budget is 
hereby AMENDED due to the grant award in the amount of $300,000.00. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds for Troy City Council Members’ Travel Expenses – Michigan Municipal 
League 107th Annual Convention 

 
(1)  Resolution Authorizing Attendance of Mayor and City Council Members 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That pursuant to the Rules of Procedure of the City Council of the City of Troy, the 
City Council hereby APPROVES the payment and use of City funds for transportation, 
registration, pre-conference workshops, food, and lodging for the Mayor and City Council 
Members to attend the Michigan Municipal League Annual Conference to be held in Grand 
Rapids, Michigan, September 20 through 23, 2005, all in accordance with the accounting 
procedures of the City of Troy. 
 
(2)  Resolution for Designation of Voting Delegates at Annual Meeting 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That ________________________ is hereby DESIGNATED as Voting Delegate 
and ____________________________ is hereby DESIGNATED as the Alternate Voting 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

Delegate to cast the vote of the City of Troy at the Annual Meeting of the Michigan Municipal 
League to be held September 20 through September 23, 2005 in Grand Rapids, Michigan. 
 
E-5 Application to Transfer Location of a Class C Liquor License – TGI Friday’s, Inc. 

(TGI Friday’s Restaurant) 
 
(a) License Transfer 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from TGI FRIDAY’S INC. (A NEW YORK CORPORATION), to 
transfer the location of a 2005 Class C licensed business (in escrow), with official permit (food), 
and outdoor service (1 area), from 911 Wilshire, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, to 591 W. 
Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, be CONSIDERED for APPROVAL. 
 
It is the consensus of this legislative body that the application BE RECOMMENDED “above all 
others” for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with TGI FRIDAY’S INC. (A NEW YORK CORPORATION), to 
transfer location of a 2005 Class C licensed business (in escrow), with official permit (food), and 
outdoor service (1 area), from 911 Wilshire, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, to 591 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to 
execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting.  
 
E-6 Fireworks Permit – Troy Daze  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That a fireworks permit be ISSUED to Mad Bomber Fireworks Productions, of 
Kingsbury, IN for the display of fireworks at the conclusion of the 2005 Troy Daze Festival. 
  
E-7 Private Agreement for Hidden Creek Site Condominiums – Project No. 03.909.3  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and GFA Development Company is hereby APPROVED 
for the installation of sanitary sewer, storm sewer, detention, water main, soil erosion, 
sidewalks, landscaping and paving on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor 
and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Request for Approval of Increased Interest Differential Payment and Closing Cost 

Payment – Emad and Niran Youno, 2955 Thames, Sidwell #88-20-25-229-005 – Big 
Beaver, Rochester to Dequindre Road Project #01.105.5  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, an Increased 
Interest Differential payment of $8,215.49 and reimbursable closing costs payment of $5,431.04 
are hereby APPROVED to be paid to Emad and Niran Youno as part of the relocation 
payments for relocating from 2955 Thames, having Sidwell #88-20-25-229-005, which was 
acquired by the City of Troy for the Big Beaver to Dequindre Road improvement project. 
 
E-9 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from the Kimberly 

Anne Gillary Foundation for the Purpose of Obtaining a Charitable Gaming 
License  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from the Kimberly Anne Gillary Foundation, asking that they be 
recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the community for the purpose of obtaining 
a charitable gaming license be APPROVED as recommended by City Management. 
 
E-10 Gerback et. al v. City of Troy  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in the matter of James Gerback, et al v City of Troy and to pay all expenses and to 
retain any necessary expert witnesses to adequately represent the City.  
 
E-11 Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That Municipal Credit Funds and Community Credit Funds in the amount of 
$76,084.00 and $93,916.00 respectively, for a total of $170,000.00 are hereby TRANSFERRED 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

to Troy Medi-Go Plus for transportation services of senior citizens and persons with disabilities; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City is AUTHORIZED to retain Community Credit 
Funds in the amount of $4,518.00 to purchase discount tickets for Smart Dial-A-Ride; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Council are AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE 
the master agreement from SMART for the 2005/2006 fiscal year, and a copy shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Cable Advisory 
Committee; Ethnic Community Issues Advisory Committee; Historic District 
Commission; Historical Commission; Liquor Committee; and Traffic Committee 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

 
(b)  City Council Appointments   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council  (9 Regular Members; 3 Alternates) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 
 Unexpired Term 11/01/05 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Leonard G. Bertin – Resigned 11/01/05 
Cynthia Buchanan 11/01/07 
Susan Burt 11/01/06 
Angela J. Done 11/01/05 
Adam Fuhrman (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Kul B. Gauri 11/01/05 
Theodora House 11/01/06 
Nancy Johnson (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Pauline Manetta 11/01/06 
Dorothy Ann Pietron 11/01/07 
Mark Pritzlaff (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Susan Werpetinski 11/01/07 
Anbereen Wigar (Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Margaret Apte 01/19/05 01/24/05 
Kathleen Ann Connor 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
O. Carlene Geier 08/10/05 08/15/05 
Peggy Hammond 08/01/05 08/15/05 
M.K. Laudicina 07/20/04-07/2006 08/09/04 
Renee Uitto 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
James Berar 04/30/07 
Burdette L. Black, Jr. (Bud) 04/30/07 
Merrill W. Dixon (Sr Rep for Parks & Rec Board) 04/30/06 
Marie Hoag 04/30/06 
Pauline Y. Noce 04/30/07 
David S. Ogg 04/30/08 
Josephine Rhoads 04/30/08 
JoAnn Thompson 04/30/06 
William Weisgerber (Does not seek reappointment) 04/30/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Cynthia Buchanan 06/07/00 06/07/00 
Susan Burt 09/24/01 10/01/01 
Kathleen Ann Connor 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
Mary E. Freliga 11/25/02-11/2004 12/02/02 
Victor P. Freliga 04/19/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Victoria Lang 06/16/03-06/2005 07/07/03 
Dorothy A. Pietron 12/21/98-07/10/01 07/23/01 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shiva Shakara K. Sastry 07/20/04-07/2006 08/23/04 
Donald E. Schafer 06/08/04-06/2006 06/21/04 
Remedios Solarte 09/15/04 09/20/04 
Nancy Wheeler 03/108/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Cable Advisory Committee (CAC)  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06  (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Jerry L. Bixby 02/28/06 
Shazad Butt 11/30/05 
Richard Hughes 02/28/06 
Penny Marinos 02/28/07 
Alan Manzon 09/30/06 
Fan Lin (Student) 07/01/05 
W. Kent Voigt 02/28/07 
Bryan H. Wehrung 02/28/08 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Ethnic Community Issues Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06  (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Anju C. Brodbine 09/30/05 
Amin Hashmi 09/30/05 
Kara Huang (Student) 07/01/05 
Yul Woong (Jeff) Hyun 09/30/05 
Tom Kaszubski 09/30/05 
Padma Kuppa 09/30/05 
Oniell Shah 09/30/05 
Flora M. Tan 09/30/05 
Charles Yuan 09/30/05 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
  
Historic District Commission One member must be an architect. 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years Two members-Historical Society recommendations. 
 One member – Historical Commission recommendation. 
 
  Term expires 03/01/08 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06  (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Marjorie A. Biglin 03/01/07 
Wilson Deane Blythe (Does not request reappointment) 03/01/05 
Barbara Chambers (Historical Commission) 03/01/08 
Robert Hudson 05/15/06 
Paul C. Lin (Architect) 05/15/06 
Ann Partlan (Historical Society) 03/01/08 
Muriel Rounds 05/15/06 
Vilin Zhang (Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

Kerry S. Krivoshein 08/12/99-06/14/01-05/2003 07/09/01 
Al Petrulis 02/11/03-07/31/03-07/2005 02/17/03-08/18/03 
Nancy Wheeler 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Historical Commission  
Appointed by Council – (7) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 07/31/08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Edward J. Bortner (Does not request reappointment) 07/31/05 
Rayma Gopal (Student) 07/01/06 
Roger Kaniarz  07/31/08 
Rosemary Kornacki  07/31/08 
Kevin Lindsey 07/31/06 
Terry Navratil 07/31/06 
Vera Milz 07/31/07 
Brian Wattles 07/31/07 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Margaret Apte 01/19/05 01/24/05 
Wilson Deane Blythe 03/06/02-03/2004 03/18/02 
Barbara Chambers 02/24/03 03/03/03 
Robert A. Hudson 01/17/05 01/24/05 
Kerry S. Krivoshein 08/12/99-06/14/01-05/2003 07/09/01 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Remedios Solarte 09/15/04 09/20/04 
Renee Uitto 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
Nancy Wheeler 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Liquor Committee  
Appointed by Council - (7) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Henry W. Allemon 01/31/06 
Alex Bennett 01/31/06 
Max K. Ehlert 01/31/06 
W.S. Godlewski 01/31/08 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

Patrick C. Hall 01/31/06 
James R. Peard 01/31/06 
Bohdan L. Ukrainec 01/31/08 
Emily Polet (Student) 07/01/05 
Capt. Gary Mayer (Ex-officio) 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Traffic Committee  
Appointed by Council  (7) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
John Diefenbaker 01/31/06 
Lawrence Halsey 01/31/06 
Jan L. Hubbell 01/31/08 
Richard D. Kilmer 01/31/08 
Richard D. Minnick II 01/31/06 
Charles Solis 01/31/06 
Grace Yau (Student) 07/01/05 
Peter F. Ziegenfelder 01/31/08 
John Abraham (Ex-officio) 
Charles Craft (Ex-officio) 
William Nelson (Ex-officio) 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Local Match for a Michigan Economic Growth Authority (MEGA) Retention 

Incentive Package 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVE the commitment of daily and/or annual 
Aquatic Center passes (limited to 15 annual passes per year for 3 years) at a value not to 
exceed $7,000 as part of the local match for a MEGA incentive package to retain ASTI in Troy. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Traffic Committee Recommendations – July 20, 2005 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
a) No Changes be Made to the Intersection on Berwyck at Hampshire 
 
RESOLVED, That NO CHANGES be made to the intersection on Berwyck at Hampshire. 
 
b) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones at 1650 Research Drive 
 
RESOLVED, That fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch BE ESTABLISHED 
at 1650 Research Drive. 
 
c) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones at 1775 Research Drive 
 
RESOLVED, That fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch BE ESTABLISHED 
at 1775 Research Drive. 
 
d) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones at 1850 Research Drive 
 
RESOLVED, That fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch BE ESTABLISHED 
at 1850 Research Drive. 
 
e) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones at 1875 Research Drive 
 
RESOLVED, That fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch BE ESTABLISHED 
at 1875 Research Drive. 
 
f) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones at 1960 Research Drive 
 
RESOLVED, That fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch BE ESTABLISHED 
at 1960 Research Drive. 
 
g) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones at 1965 Research Drive 
 
RESOLVED, That fire lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch BE ESTABLISHED 
at 1965 Research Drive. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

F-4 2006 City Calendar Contract Extension 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract be AWARDED to University Lithoprinters to print 40,000 copies of 
the 2006 City Calendar including an 8-page spread for the Popular Annual Financial Report 
(PAFR) and an 8-page spread for advertising at an estimated cost of $38,650.00 with the 
Community Affairs Department to sell approximately $15,775.00 in advertising resulting in an 
estimated net cost to the City of Troy of approximately $22,875.00.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 Authority to Initiate Lawsuit to Abate Public Nuisance – 2766 Rhodes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is AUTHORIZED to initiate a nuisance abatement lawsuit 
against the owners of the home located at 2766 Rhodes, and to expend the necessary funds 
expedient for the litigation of such proceedings. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-6 Bid Waiver – Troy Daze Large Tents 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Daze Festival requires tents to house various community, cultural, and 
entertainment activities for their annual event; 
 
WHEREAS, No companies submitted a bid during the formal bid process on the two large tents; 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has been able to locate a company, Dial Tent and Awning, of Saginaw, MI 
who does have the sizes of the two large tents and can make them available for the event. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bid procedures be hereby WAIVED and a 
contract be APPROVED to rent two large tents from Dial Tent and Awning, of Saginaw, MI for 
the estimated total cost of $11,000.00 CONTINGENT upon submission of required insurance 
certificates.  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 16 - 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-7 Resolution Supporting the Legislative Correction of the WPW v. Troy Taxable 

Value Inequity 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The Michigan Supreme court issued a decision in the WPW Acquisitions v City of 
Troy case concerning the assessment of property taxes on commercial properties; 
 
WHEREAS, The Supreme Court’s decision has resulted in inequities as it relates to property 
assessments whose value is based on occupancy rates;  
 
WHEREAS, The WPW decision declared the “additions” language for increase in occupancy is 
unconstitutional but did not address the offsetting “loss” language, which has a large impact on 
many properties in the State; 
 
WHEREAS, Prior to this decision, a commercial/industrial property owner could work with their 
local assessor for assessment relief if the property’s occupancy rated dropped (loss), and 
subsequently, when the occupancy rate improved, the assessment would return to a stabilized 
level when the occupancy recovered (addition); 
  
WHEREAS, This was a fair and reasonable way to help property owners who were struggling 
with a particular property, and the “addition” and “loss” sections of the statute worked in 
harmony, providing temporary relief for decrease in occupancy; 
 
WHEREAS, Since the “addition” section of the statute has been ruled unconstitutional, 
commercial property owners can now manipulate the system by decreasing their occupancy 
level to achieve a permanent reduction in their Taxable Value and then lock in non-market 
property taxes at a reduced level; 
 
WHEREAS, The decision unintentionally rewards those commercial property owners who 
operate inefficiently and maintain high vacancy rates while penalizing those property managers 
who offer competitive lease rates;  
 
WHEREAS, The decision is unfair to residential taxpayers as the resulting effect will shift the 
property tax burden to residential taxpayers over time since, theoretically, property taxes 
collected from commercial properties as a percentage of total tax revenues will decrease; 
 
WHEREAS, The potential loss in property tax revenue within the City of Troy as a result of the 
Supreme Court decision is significant. Such potential revenue loss will not only impact the City 
of Troy, but also the County of Oakland and the Local and Intermediate school district(s), the 
State of Michigan Education Tax, etc.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 17 - 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy STRONGLY URGES its State 
Legislators to establish tax equity and correct the impact of the WPW Acquisitions v City of Troy 
decision by supporting legislation to remove both the additions and losses sections of the 
General Property Tax Act (MCL 211.34d(1)(b)(vii) and 211.34d(1)(h)(iii); and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That copies of this resolution be SENT to Governor Granholm, 
State Senator Shirley Johnson, Representative Robert Gosselin and the MML State and 
Federal Affairs Division. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
  
F-8 Authority to Initiate Lawsuit to Abate Public Nuisance – 5165 Prentis 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is AUTHORIZED to initiate a nuisance abatement lawsuit 
against the owners of the home located at 5165 Prentis, and to EXPEND the necessary funds 
expedient for the litigation of such proceedings. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
  
F-9 Proposed Revision of Troy’s Sign Ordinances 
 
City Management requests a 5-minute presentation regarding this item. 
 
 
a) Proposed Revision of Sign Ordinance – Enact Chapter 85 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That an ordinance to enact Chapter 85 – Signs, is hereby ADOPTED as 
recommended by the City Administration.  A copy of this ordinance shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
b) Proposed Revision of Sign Ordinance – Amendment to Chapter 60 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 18 - 

Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That an ordinance amendment to Chapter 60, Section 60.03, is hereby 
ADOPTED as recommended by the City Administration.  A copy of this ordinance shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
c) Proposed Revision of Sign Ordinance – Amendment to Chapter 3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That an ordinance amendment to Chapter 3, Section 1.141(6), is hereby 
ADOPTED as recommended by the City Administration.  A copy of this ordinance shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
d) Proposed Revision of Sign Ordinance – Chapter 78 Repealed 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Chapter 78 – Signs, of the Troy City Code, is hereby REPEALED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
e) Proposed Revision of Sign Ordinance – Chapter 85-A Repealed 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Chapter 85-A – Political Signs, of the Troy City Code, is hereby REPEALED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 19 - 

F-10 Public Benefit Requirement to Satisfy Preliminary Approval of Planned Unit 
Development (PUD-004) – The Monarch Private Residences 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council granted conditional preliminary planned unit development 
approval PUD-004, the Monarch private residences on July 18, 2005, Resolution # 2005-07-
357; 
 
WHEREAS, The resolution contains a condition related to the appropriate public benefit, which 
was either the purchase of the two properties to the north or a donation to the City to implement 
the results of the Big Beaver corridor study; 
 
WHEREAS, The petitioner, property owners of 3128 Alpine (Sidwell #88-20-20-402-016) and 
3141 McClure (Sidwell #88-20-20-402-030) and the Troy City Management signed a Letter of 
Understanding dated August 9, 2005 and is attached to this resolution. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That City Council ACCEPTS the attached Letter of 
Understanding dated August 9, 2005 as the appropriate public benefit for preliminary approval 
of PUD-004. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
  
F-11 Intergovernmental  Cable Communications Authority (ICCA) Contract with 

Community Media Network (CMN) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES the proposed contract and bylaws 
between the Intergovernmental Cable Communications Authority (ICCA) and Community Media 
Network (CMN) as presented for a three-year contract which will expire on December 31, 2007 
for the purpose of Public Access Television Services.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
  
F-12 Bid Waiver – Authorization to Purchase an Enterprise Content Management 

System 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 20 - 

Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED and a contract to purchase 
an Enterprise-wide Content Management (ECM) System from Liberty Information Management 
Systems and Ricoh Business Systems is hereby APPROVED at an estimated cost of 
$542,000.00, plus an estimated $59,000.00 per year for maintenance and support, in 
accordance with Appendix A, Detailed Pricing; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Those contracts to purchase the necessary hardware, software, 
and back file conversion services from REMC and State of Michigan contracts are hereby 
APPROVED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
  
F-13 Proposed Revisions to Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service – Elimination of 

Connection Requirement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Sections 19.01, 19.02, 19.03 and 19.05 of Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer 
Service, of the Troy City Code be REVISED in accordance with the proposal prepared by City 
Management, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of the meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
  
F-14 Replacement of November 2005 Ballot Proposals 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
Proposed Resolution #1 
 
RESOLVED, That Resolution #2005-07-346, Resolution #2005-08-382, and Resolution  
#2005-08-383 are hereby RESCINDED by the Troy City Council.    
 
Proposed Resolution #2  
 
1. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 1 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 1 at that election:    

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 21 - 

Charter Amendment Proposal 1 
 
AMENDMENT OF SECTIONS 3.4 (TERMS OF OFFICE) and 7.5 (ELECTIVE 
OFFICERS AND TERMS OF OFFICE) OF THE TROY CITY CHARTER TO REFLECT 
THE CURRENT FOUR-YEAR TERMS OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
MEMBERS  

 
Shall Sections 3.4 (Terms of Office) and 7.5 (Elective Officers and Terms of Office) of 
the Troy City Charter be amended by deleting section 7.5 and incorporating the former 
section 7.5 as the first sentence of section 3.4 with the terms of the Mayor and the 
Council Members being four years to reflect the change from three years to four years on 
account of the 2004 election consolidation legislation and providing that these terms 
expire at 7:30 pm (rather than 8 pm) on the first Monday following the regular City 
election in the fourth year of these terms?  

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 1 Passes) 

 
Section 3.4- Elective Officers and Terms of Office: 
The elective officers of the City shall be the six (6) members of council and the Mayor all 
of whom shall be nominated and elected from the city at large for the terms provided 
herein.  City Council Members and the Mayor shall be elected for terms of four (4) years 
and shall serve until 7:30 PM on the first Monday following the regular election of the 
fourth year of their term. 

 
2. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 2 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 2 at that election: 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 2 

 
AMENDMENT TO RE-NUMBER SECTION 7.5.5 OF THE TROY CITY CHARTER AS 
SECTION 3.4.1, ADD A TITLE TO THE SECTION, AND CHANGE THE SECTION’S 
DEFINITION OF “TERM” IN ITS THIRD SENTENCE  

 
Shall Section 7.5.5 of the Troy City Charter be re-numbered as section 3.4.1 to state as 
follows:   

 
“3.4.1- Elective Officers Term Limitations  
Any elected member of the City Council shall not serve more than three terms as 
Councilperson.  The Mayor shall not serve more than two terms as Mayor.  Any service 
greater than two (2) years plus one (1) month shall constitute a term.  This amendment 
shall apply only to terms starting after passage of this amendment” ?  

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 2 Passes) 

 
Section 3.4.1- Elective Officers Term Limitations 
An elected member of the City Council shall not serve more than three terms as 
Councilperson.  The Mayor shall not serve more than two terms as Mayor.  Any service 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 22 - 

greater than two (2) years plus one (1) month shall constitute a term.  This amendment 
shall apply only to terms starting after passage of this amendment.  

 
3. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 3 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 3 at that election: 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 3 

  
PROPOSAL FOR A NEW SECTION 3.4.2 (STAGGERING TERMS OF OFFICE) OF 
THE TROY CITY CHARTER TO PROVIDE FOR THREE COUNCIL MEMBERS TO BE 
ELECTED TO FOUR-YEAR TERMS EVERY TWO YEARS  

 
In lieu of the current provision under the 2004 election consolidation legislation for four 
council members and the Mayor to be elected in 2007 and every four years thereafter 
and two council members to be elected in 2009 and every four years thereafter, shall 
section 3.4.2 be added to the Troy City Charter to provide for a two-year transitional term 
(2007-2009) for one council member, so that the Mayor and three members of the 
council will be elected in 2007 and every four years thereafter and three members will be 
elected in 2009 and every four years thereafter?  

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 3 Passes) 

 
Section 3.4.2- Staggering Terms of Office:  
City Council Members with terms expiring April 2006 shall have their terms extended 
until November 2007; City Council Members with terms expiring April 2007 shall have 
their terms extended until November 2007.  The Mayor’s term, expiring April 2007, shall 
be extended until November 2007.  The staggering of terms shall be established as 
follows:  

 
November 8, 2005- Two (2) Council Members shall be elected for four (4) year terms 
with the terms expiring on November 9, 2009;  
November 6, 2007- One (1) Council Member shall be elected for a two (2) year term with 
the term expiring on November 9, 2009;  
November 6, 2007- Three (3) Council Members shall be elected for four (4) year terms 
with the terms expiring on November 14, 2011;  
November 6, 2007- Mayor shall be elected for a four (4) year term with the term expiring 
November 14, 2011.  

 
4. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 4 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 4 at that election: 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 4 

  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 23 - 

AMENDMENT OF SECTION 7.3 (ELECTION DATE) OF THE TROY CITY CHARTER 
TO REFLECT THE CURRENT REQUIREMENT FOR REGULAR ELECTIONS IN 
NOVEMBER OF EACH ODD- NUMBERED YEAR 

 
Shall Section 7.3 (Election Date) be amended to provide for regular City elections in 
November of each odd-numbered year to reflect the current requirements of the 2004 
election consolidation legislation? 

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 4 Passes) 

 
Section 7.3- Election Date:  
A regular City election shall be held on the first Tuesday after the first Monday of every 
odd year November.  

 
5. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 5 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 5 at that election: 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 5 

 
PROPOSAL TO RE-STATE SECTION 7.6 (SPECIAL ELECTION) OF THE TROY CITY 
CHARTER 

 
Shall Section 7.6 of the Troy City Charter be re-stated by providing: “Special City 
elections shall be called in the manner and time as provided by State Statute” and 
eliminating “Special City elections shall be held when called by resolution of the Council 
at least 40 days in advance of such election, or when required by this charter or statute.  
Any resolution calling a special election shall set forth the purpose of such election.  No 
more special city elections shall be called in any one year than the number permitted by 
statute”?   

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 5 Passes) 

 
Section 7.6- Special Election:  
Special City Elections shall be called in the manner and time as provided by State 
Statute.    

 
6. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 6 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 6 at that election: 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 6 

  
PROPOSAL TO AMEND SECTION 7.9 (NOMINATIONS) OF THE TROY CITY 
CHARTER TO DELETE A PROVISION THAT IS INCONSISTENT WITH MICHIGAN 
ELECTION LAW 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 24 - 

Shall the second and third sentences of Section 7.9 (Nominations) of the Troy City 
Charter, rejecting any signatures on nominating petitions where a voter has signed more 
nominating petitions for candidates for any city office than there are persons to be 
elected to that office, be deleted to reflect that the counting of some of these signatures 
is permitted under the provisions of section 547(a) of the Michigan Election Code [(MCL 
168.547(a)]? 

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 6 Passes) 

 
Section 7.9- Nominations:  
The method of nomination of all candidates at city elections shall be by petition.  Each 
petition may comprise one or more pages.  The petition for each candidate must be 
signed by not less than sixty registered electors of the City.   

 
Nomination petitions for candidates for regular city elections are to be filed with the Clerk 
on or before 4 o’clock p.m. of the one hundredth (100th) day preceding the City election 
for each election year.  

 
The Clerk shall, prior to every election, publish notice of the last day permitted for filing 
nomination petitions and of the number of persons to be elected to each office, at least 
one week and not more than three weeks before such day. 

 
7. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 7 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 7 at that election: 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 7 

  
PROPOSAL TO AMEND SECTION 7.10 (FORM OF PETITIONS) OF THE TROY CITY 
CHARTER TO DELETE A PROVISION THAT IS INCONSISTENT WITH MICHIGAN 
LAW 

 
Shall the first sentence of Section 7.10 of the Troy City Charter be re-stated by striking 
“The Council shall approve a form of nominating petition with spaces thereon for address 
and date of signing for each signer, an affidavit form for the circulator to sign affirming 
that he and the petitioners are registered electors and a summary of the qualifications 
required of candidates and the regulations governing the petition” and substituting 
“Nominating petitions shall be in a form as provided by Michigan Election Law”?   

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 7 Passes) 

 
Section 7.10- Form of Petitions:  
Nominating Petitions shall be in a form as provided by State Statue.  A supply of official 
petition forms shall be provided and maintained by the Clerk.  

 
8. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 8 for the November 8, 2005 City General 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 25 - 

Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 8 at that election: 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 8 

 
PROPOSAL TO AMEND SECTION 5.13 (SUBMISSION OF INITIATORY AND 
REFERENDARY ORDINANCES TO ELECTORS) OF THE TROY CITY CHARTER, 
REGARDING ITS REQUIREMENTS FOR SPECIAL ELECTIONS FOR INITIATIVE 
PROPOSALS  

 
Shall section 5.13 of the Troy City Charter be amended to delete the 60 day deadline for 
the City Council to call a special election for an initiative proposal, where the Council 
declines to enact the proposal as an ordinance and no election is to be held in the City 
for any other purpose within 150 days from the date the proposal is presented to the 
Council, to provide that these special elections shall be scheduled in accordance with 
Michigan election law and to specify that Council decisions under this section shall be by 
affirmative vote of the members elect? 

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 8 Passes) 

 
Section 5.13- Submission of Initiatory and Referendary Ordinances to Electors:  
Should the Council, by an affirmative vote of the members elect, decide to submit the 
proposal to the electors, it shall be submitted at the next election held in the City for any 
other purpose, or, in the discretion of the Council, at a special election called for that 
specific purpose in accordance with State Election Law.  In the case of any initiatory 
petition, if no election is to be held in the City for any other purpose within one hundred 
fifty days from the time the petition is presented to the Council and the Council does not 
enact the ordinance, then the Council shall call a special election in accordance with 
State Election Law.  The result of all elections held under the provisions of this section 
shall be determined by a majority vote of the electors voting thereon, except in cases 
where otherwise required by Statute or the Constitution. 

 
9. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 9 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 9 at that election: 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 9 

 
A PROPOSAL TO ADD TO THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 7.9.5 (COUNCIL 
INITIATED BALLOT QUESTIONS) TO THE TROY CITY CHARTER TO ALLOW CITY 
COUNCIL TO PLACE ADVISORY QUESTION ON REGULAR CITY ELECTIONS 
BALLOTS 

 
Shall Section 7.9.5 (Council Initiated Ballot Questions) of the Troy City Charter be added 
to provide a mechanism for the City Council to place advisory ballot questions on the 
Regular City Election Ballot, by an affirmative majority vote of the members elect? 

  
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 9 Passes) 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 26 - 

 
Section 7.9.5- Submission of Council Initiated Advisory Ballot Questions to 
Electors:  
Should the Council, by an affirmative vote of the members elect, decide to submit an 
advisory ballot question to the electors, it shall be submitted at the next Regular City 
Election.  The results of all elections held under the provisions of this section shall be 
determined by a majority vote of the electors voting thereon except in cases where 
otherwise required by Statue or the Constitution.  

 
10. RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES AS TO FORM the following 

proposed Charter Amendment Proposal 10 for the November 8, 2005 City General 
Election, and the revised Charter language, should the voters approve Charter 
Amendment Proposal 10 at that election: 

 
Charter Amendment Proposal 10 

 
PROPOSAL TO AMEND SECTION 12.3 (RESTRICTIONS ON POWERS TO LEASE 
PROPERTY) OF THE TROY CHARTER TO SUBJECT LONG TERM USE 
AGREEMENTS TO THE RESTRICTIONS ON LEASING AND RENTING CITY 
PROPERTY SET FORTH IN THAT SECTION  

 
Shall Section 12.3 of the Troy City Charter be amended to subject long-term (more than 
3 years) use agreements to the restrictions in this section for the leasing or renting of 
City property, including the requirements for fair consideration as determined by the city 
council and the provision for referendum petitions for such agreements? 

 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal 10 Passes) 

 
Section 12.3- Restriction on Powers to Lease Property:  
Any agreement or contract for the renting or leasing or long term use of public property 
to any person for a period longer than three years shall be subject to the same 
referendum procedure as is provided in the case of ordinances passed by the Council, 
but any petition for such referendum must be filed within thirty days after publication of 
the proceedings of the meeting of the Council at which such agreement or contract is 
authorized.  

 
The transfer or assignment of any agreement or contract for such renting or leasing or 
long-term agreements exceeding three years for public property may be made only upon 
approval of the Council, but approval of such transfer shall not be subject to referendum.  

 
Rentals, leases, long-term use agreements exceeding three years, and renewals thereof 
shall be for a fair consideration, as determined by the Council.   

 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 27 - 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2239 East Maple Road – September 12, 2005  
b) Rezoning Application – South Side of Long Lake Road, West of Calvert Drive, Section 

14 – R-1C to CR-1 (Z 706) – September 12, 2005 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) Options for Remnant Parcel – Site for Troy’s First Volunteer Fire Station 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  No Council Referrals 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Troy Historic District Study Committee/Final – June 7, 2005 
b) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – July 6, 2005 
c) Planning Commission Regular/Draft – July 12, 2005 
d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – July 13, 2005  
e) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust Minutes/Draft – July 13, 2005 
f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – July 26, 2005  
 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of July, 2005  
b) Police Department – 2005 Year-to-Date Crime and Calls for Service Report 
c) Planning Department – Zoning Ordinance Test Amendment  (ZOTA 214) – Article XXVIII 

– Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A Through R-1E Districts  
d) Purchasing Department – Auction (Off Site and On-line) – Vehicle Sale in Port Huron, 

Michigan and an On-Line Auction for a Diamond Bracelet on BidNet  
e) Building Department – Additional Information on Examples of Allowable Accessory 

Structures Based Upon Final Action – ZOTA 215A 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 28 - 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:   
a) Letter of Thanks to Mayor Schilling from Paul Marcus, Barton Malow Company, 

Thanking Gary Bowers, Rick Kessler, Doug Smith, Ron Figlan, Bob Matlick, Mark 
Stimac, Bill Jawlik, Pat Pettito, Gary Streight, the Entire Inspection Staff, and the Very 
Kind Administrators in the Building Department for Their Cooperation with Planning and 
Construction of Automation Alley’s Technology Center  

b) Letter of Thanks to John Szerlag from Harriet Barnard, Thanking Brian Murphy for City 
Staff’s Quick Response  

c) Letter of Thanks to Carol Anderson from Stacy Pilut, Thanking Her for the Nursery 
School Olympics  

d) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Clive D. Mattice, Jr., Thanking Officer Melissa 
Baroky for Her Assistance on I-75  

e) Letter of Thanks to Carol Anderson from Lynn and Brian Coury, Thanking Ron Hynd for 
His Prompt Service, Attention and Courtesy  

f) Letter to Chief Nelson from Vicki Barnett, Mayor, and Richard Marinucci, Fire Chief, of 
Farmington Hills, Thanking Chief Nelson and the Troy Fire Department for Participating 
in FARMEX II. 

g) Letter to Troy Fire Department from Mothers & More, in Appreciation of the 
Demonstration at Their Annual Family Picnic. 

h) Letter of Appreciation to Steve Vandette from Richard Bury for His Assistance. 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  
a) Resolution from the City of Ferndale Extending Appreciation to the Mayors of Hiroshima 

and Nagasaki for their Leadership in Working for the Elimination of Nuclear Weapons. 
b) Resolution from Charter Township of White Lake Regarding Local Control of Liquor 

Licenses  
c) Resolution from the City of Ferndale – I-75 Final Environment Impact Statement – M-102 

to M-59 Proposed Expansion 
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Standard & Poor’s Annual Review of “AAA” United States Municipalities 
 
J-7  Municipal Sign Regulations v. the First Amendment 
 
J-8  Cable Franchise Lawsuit Against the City of Troy 
 
J-9  Memo from the Friends of the Troy Public Library Book Shop Management 

Committee 
 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 29 - 

Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 
 
 
RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 15, 2005 
 

- 30 - 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, September 12, 2005 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 19, 2005 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 26, 2005 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 3, 2005 .......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 17, 2005 ........................................................Regular City Council 
Monday, October 24, 2005 ........................................................Regular City Council 
Monday, November 14, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 21, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 28, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 5, 2005 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 19, 2005 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 
 
 



campbellld
Text Box
A-01



 
 
DATE:   July 20, 2005 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item – Announcement of Public Hearing 
   Parking Variance, 701 – 705 Minnesota 
 
 
 
 
We have received a permit application from Raj Patel, the owner of the existing multi-
tenant industrial building at 701 – 705 Minnesota to construct a number of mezzanines 
within the existing building.  When we include the area of these mezzanines in the area 
of the building we come up with a gross floor area for this building of 18,680 square 
feet.  A total of 42 parking spaces would be required for the building based upon the 
requirements of Section 40.21.81 of the Zoning Ordinance.  The existing development 
has only 36 parking spaces available. 
 
In light of this 6 parking space deficiency the plans for the construction of the 
mezzanines has been denied.  In response to our denial, the petitioners have filed an 
appeal asking for a variance on the parking requirement.  In accordance with Section 
44.01.00 a public hearing on the request has been scheduled for your meeting of 
August 15, 2005. 
 
We have included copies of the appeal request as well as the supporting documentation 
for your information. 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



 



 



 



 



 
 



Date: August 4, 2005 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
Subject: AGENDA ITEM – PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT 

AMENDMENT (ZOTA 212) – Articles IV, XXV, XXVI and XXVII, 
Freestanding Restaurants, Banks and Daycare Facilities in the R-C, O-M 
and O-S-C Districts. 

 
The intent of this amendment is to permit restaurants, daycare facilities, banks, and 
financial institutions in the R-C, O-M and O-S-C Districts, subject to special use 
approval.  The uses could sit on separate parcels created from the office property 
and would generally be located closer to the street than the existing office buildings.  
This will have the effect of strengthening the relationship between the street and the 
buildings on the site, and also improving marketability for existing office properties.  
 
Presently daycare facilities, banks and financial institutions are not permitted in the 
R-C district; daycare facilities are not permitted in the O-M and O-S-C districts.  
Restaurants are permitted as accessory uses in the R-C, O-M and O-S-C district, 
provided the restaurant is “designed so as to provide a logical extension of the floor 
plan of the principal structure”.  This requirement has contributed to the creation of 
large off-street parking areas surrounding large office/restaurant buildings.  Generally 
these buildings are set back a considerable distance from the street with little 
relationship to the street.   
 
New definitions for “fast food restaurant”, “financial institution” and “full service 
restaurant” were provided.  Note that fast food restaurants will not be permitted uses in 
the O-M, O-S-C and R-C districts. 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on ZOTA 212 at the June 14, 2005 
Regular Meeting, and recommended approval of the proposed text amendment.  City 
Management recommends approval of ZOTA 212. 
 
A Public Hearing will be held on this item at the August 15, 2005 City Council Meeting. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. ZOTA 212, dated 6/21/05 
2. Minutes from June 14, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 

 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 212 Freestanding Restaurants in RC\CC Public Hearing Memo 08 15 05.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



1 

PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
(ZOTA 212) 

6/21/05 
Text Amendment for Freestanding Restaurants, Banks, Bank Branches and 

Financial Institutions, and Nursery schools, day nurseries and child care centers  
in the R-C, OM and O-S-C Zoning Districts 

 
CITY OF TROY 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Amendment to Chapter 39 
 
Chapter 39 of the City of Troy Code is amended by the re-numbering of section 
04.20.59 to 04.20.60, and by the addition of new sections 04.20.57 to 04.20.60 to read 
as follows: 
 
 
04.00.00 ARTICLE IV DEFINITIONS 
 
04.20.00 DEFINITIONS   
 
04.20.55 EXCAVATION: any breaking of ground, except common household 

gardening and ground care. 
 
04.20.569 FAMILY:  One or two persons or parents, with their direct lineal descendents 

and adopted children (and including the domestic employees thereof) 
together with not more than two persons not so related, living together in the 
whole or part of a dwelling comprising a single housekeeping unit.  Every 
additional group of two or less persons living on such housekeeping unit 
shall be considered a separate family for the purposes of this Chapter. 

 
04.20.5760 FAMILY DAY CARE HOME:  A private residence in which one (1) to six (6) 

children under the age of eighteen (18) are received for care and 
supervision from other than a parent or legal guardian for periods of less 
than twenty-four (24) hours a day, in addition to children related to an adult 
member of the family by blood, marriage or adoption.  Family Day Care 
Home includes a home that gives care to such unrelated children for more 
than a total of thirty (30) days during a calendar year. 

 
04.20.58 FAST FOOD RESTAURANT: An establishment that provides food and 

beverages to patrons that is primarily designed for over-the-counter sale 
of ready-to-eat foods and/or beverages from a limited, standardized menu, 



2 

and which does not have waiter/waitress service at dining tables; and 
where the food is typically paid for prior to eating. Such facilities may also 
sell food and beverages through a drive-up or drive-through service 
window.  

 
04.20.59 FINANCIAL INSTITUTION: A savings and loan, credit union, mortgage 

office, or similar institution, including automated teller machines.   
 
04.20.60 FULL SERVICE RESTAURANT: An establishment that provides food and 

beverages to patrons who order and are served while seated (i.e. 
waiter/waitress service) and typically pay after eating, and that may also 
provide this type of service in combination with alcoholic beverages 
prepared, served and consumed on the premises, takeout services, 
limited outdoor seating/dining, or live non-theatrical entertainment. 

 
Chapter 39 of the City of Troy Code is amended by the addition of text to section 
25.10.00 and the addition of new section 25.30.05, 25.30.06 and 25.30.07 to read as 
follows: 
 
 
25.00.00 ARTICLE XXV    O-M MID-RISE OFFICE DISTRICT 
 
25.10.00 INTENT:  
  The O-M, Office Mid-Rise, District is intended to accommodate office 

buildings and restricted related retail and service establishments on large 
land parcels in proximity to areas of major commercial or civic development.  
Civic development shall mean Civic Center building. Such Districts are 
intended to provide transition between these areas and major thoroughfares, 
and areas of less intense development. Because of the large land area 
involved, it is felt that greater flexibility as to building height and related uses 
is warranted, as compared to the O-1 (Office Building) District. Because of 
this flexibility, great care must be taken as to planning of such areas and the 
development which is to occur within them.  Site plan approval of each 
development is thus a necessity in order to assure that such Districts are 
fully compatible with adjacent areas. The O-M District is intended to 
encourage the development of uses and services that will support and 
enhance the marketability of office buildings in the O-M District, and to 
preserve the economic vitality of the area through the development of 
uses and services for the benefit of tenants and local residents.   

 
 
25.30.05 Free-standing, full service restaurants situated on “pad-sites” or individual 

out-parcels subject to the following conditions:  
 

A. Fast foot restaurants and restaurants with drive-up windows or service 
facilities shall be prohibited. 



3 

 
B. Minimum gross floor area of the building shall be 3500 square feet. 
 
C. Individual parcels may be subdivided from existing developed parcels 

provided that the newly created lots shall comply with the density, area 
and bulk requirements for the zone. 

 
D. Tables and seating for outdoor dining are permitted provided that the 

maximum seating area does not exceed 25% of the gross floor area of 
the building and provided that such outdoor areas are situated on a 
patio surface composed of concrete, pavers, or other similar materials. 
Such outdoor dining areas shall be partially screened by the use of 
planters, hedges, walls, fences, landscaping materials or any 
combination thereof to a minimum height of 36 inches, the design of 
such screening to be approved by the Planning Commission. 

 
E. No portion of any outdoor seating area shall be located closer than 300 

feet from any residential district. Live or recorded music is prohibited in 
outdoor seating areas. 

 
F. Restaurants and food service establishments selling or serving 

alcoholic beverages shall further be subject to the requirements of the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 

 
G. The site shall be designed to ensure a safe and convenient pedestrian 

connection between the restaurant and the office building.  
 
 
25.30.06 Banks, bank branches and financial institutions, subject to the following:  
 

A. Individual parcels may be subdivided from existing developed parcels 
provided that the newly created lots shall comply with the density, area 
and bulk requirements for the zone. 

 
B. Ingress and egress shall be provided so as not to conflict with adjacent 

uses or adversely affect traffic flow on adjacent thoroughfares 
 

C. Drive-up windows or service facilities shall include the provision of 
back-up or waiting space, physically separated from off-street parking 
areas and drives, at the rate of four (4) car spaces for each service 
window or facility, in addition to the space at the service window or 
facility. Drives providing such waiting spaces shall have a minimum 
clear width of thirteen (13) feet. 

 
D. The site shall be designed to ensure a safe and convenient pedestrian 

connection between the bank and the office building.  



4 

25.30.07 Nursery schools, day nurseries and child care centers (not including 
dormitories), subject to the following:  

 
A. Individual parcels may be subdivided from existing developed parcels 

provided that the newly created lots shall comply with all zone 
requirements for lot area, building setbacks, and parking 

 
B. The site shall be designed to ensure a safe and convenient pedestrian 

connection between the facility and the office building.  
 
C. The facility shall be licensed with the Family Independence Agency or 

the appropriate licensing agency, should the licensing duties be provided 
by another organization. 

 
Chapter 39 of the City of Troy Code is amended by the addition of text to section 
26.10.00 and the addition of new section 26.30.05, 26.30.06 and 26.30.07 to read as 
follows: 
 
 
26.00.00 ARTICLE XXVI O-S-C OFFICE-SERVICE-COMMERCIAL DISTRICT 
 
26.10.00 INTENT: 
  The O-S-C (Office-Service-Commercial) District is designed and intended to 

accommodate large office buildings and restricted retail and service 
establishments which serve large numbers of people.  A major purpose of 
this District is to provide limited areas for buildings of greater height and 
more intensive land use activity in an otherwise low-density community. 
Because of the greater building height, intensity of land use, and associated 
high volumes of vehicular and pedestrian traffic, this District is not 
compatible in conjunction with low-density residential areas. It is therefore 
intended that this District be located only in proximity to areas of major 
commercial or civic development, and to major thoroughfares or freeways. 
The O-S-C District is intended to encourage the development of uses and 
services that will support and enhance the marketability of office buildings 
in the O-S-C District, and to preserve the economic vitality of the area 
through the development of uses and services for the benefit of tenants 
and local residents.  Further, because of the intensity of use and the 
potential diversification of land uses in such a District, great care must be 
taken as to the planning of such areas and the development which is to 
occur within them. Site plan approval of each development is thus an 
absolute necessity to assure a compatible arrangement of the varied land 
uses which are permitted to be established. 

 
 
 
 



5 

26.30.00  USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL 
 
26.30.05 Free-standing, full service restaurants situated on “pad-sites” or individual 

out-parcels subject to the following conditions:  
 

A. Fast foot restaurants and restaurants with drive-up windows or service 
facilities shall be prohibited. 

 
B. Minimum gross floor area of the building shall be 3500 square feet 

 
C. Individual parcels may be subdivided from existing developed parcels 

provided that the newly created lots shall comply with the density, area 
and bulk requirements for the zone. 

  
D. Tables and seating for outdoor dining are permitted provided that the 

maximum seating area does not exceed 25% of the gross floor area of 
the building and provided that such outdoor areas are situated on a 
patio surface composed of concrete, pavers, or other similar materials. 
Such outdoor dining areas shall be partially screened by the use of 
planters, hedges, walls, fences, landscaping materials or any 
combination thereof to a minimum height of 36 inches, the design of 
such screening to be approved by the Planning Commission. 

 
E. No portion of any outdoor seating area shall be located closer than 300 

feet from any residential district. Live or recorded music is prohibited in 
outdoor seating areas. 

 
F. Restaurants and food service establishments selling or serving 

alcoholic beverages shall further be subject to the requirements of the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 

 
G. The site shall be designed to ensure a safe and convenient pedestrian 

connection between the restaurant and the office building.  
 
 
26.30.06  Banks, bank branches and financial institutions, subject to the following:  
 

A. Individual parcels may be subdivided from existing developed parcels 
provided that the newly created lots shall comply with the density, area 
and bulk requirements for the zone. 

 
B. Ingress and egress shall be provided so as not to conflict with adjacent 

uses or adversely affect traffic flow on adjacent thoroughfares 
 

C. Drive-up windows or service facilities shall include the provision of 
back-up or waiting space, physically separated from off-street parking 



6 

areas and drives, at the rate of four (4) car spaces for each service 
window or facility, in addition to the space at the service window or 
facility. Drives providing such waiting spaces shall have a minimum 
clear width of thirteen (13) feet. 

 
D. The site shall be designed to ensure a safe and convenient pedestrian 

connection between the bank and the office building.  
 

 
26.30.07 Nursery schools, day nurseries and child care centers (not including 

dormitories), subject to the following: 
 

A. Individual parcels may be subdivided from existing developed parcels 
provided that the newly created lots shall comply with all zone 
requirements for lot area, building setbacks, and parking 

 
B. The site shall be designed to ensure a safe and convenient pedestrian 

connection between the facility and the office building.  
 
C. The facility shall be licensed with the Family Independence Agency or 

the appropriate licensing agency, should the licensing duties be provided 
by another organization. 

 
Chapter 39 of the City of Troy Code is amended by the addition of text to section 
27.10.00 and the addition of new section 27.30.04, 27.30.04 and 27.30.05 to read as 
follows: 
 
 
27.00.00 ARTICLE XXVII R-C RESEARCH CENTER DISTRICT 
 
27.10.00 INTENT: 
  The R-C (Research Center) District is designed to provide for industrial-

research and office uses in planned developments. Such districts are to be 
located and developed so as to complement the significant light industrial 
character of the community, while at the same time providing for the 
necessary related non-manufacturing uses such as corporate office and 
research facilities. The R-C District is intended to encourage the 
development of uses and services that will support and enhance the 
marketability of office buildings in the R-C District, and to preserve the 
economic vitality of the area through the development of uses and 
services for the benefit of tenants and local residents.  Further, the 
Research Center District is intended to provide for those major industrial-
research, and office, and training uses which require proximity to major non-
residential areas, rather than for smaller local-serving uses such as medical 
offices, real estate offices, etc., which could reasonably be located in local 
commercial and service areas elsewhere in the community. 



7 

27.10.00 INTENT 
 

To encourage the development of uses and services that will support and 
enhance the marketability of office buildings in the R-C District. 
 
To preserve the economic vitality of the area through the development of 
uses and services for the benefit of tenants and local residents. 

 
27.30.00  USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL 
 
27.30.03 Free-standing, full service restaurants situated on “pad-sites” or individual 

out-parcels subject to the following conditions:  
 

A. Fast foot restaurants and restaurants with drive-up windows or service 
facilities shall be prohibited. 

 
B. Minimum gross floor area of the building shall be 3500 square feet. 
 
C. Individual parcels may be subdivided from existing developed parcels 

provided that the newly created lots shall comply with the density, area 
and bulk requirements for the zone. 

  
D. Tables and seating for outdoor dining are permitted provided that the 

maximum seating area does not exceed 25% of the gross floor area of 
the building and provided that such outdoor areas are situated on a 
patio surface composed of concrete, pavers, or other similar materials. 
Such outdoor dining areas shall be partially screened by the use of 
planters, hedges, walls, fences, landscaping materials or any 
combination thereof to a minimum height of 36 inches, the design of 
such screening to be approved by the Planning Commission. 

 
E. No portion of any outdoor seating area shall be located closer than 300 

feet from any residential district.  Live or recorded music is prohibited 
in outdoor seating areas. 

 
F. Restaurants and food service establishments selling or serving 

alcoholic beverages shall further be subject to the requirements of the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 

 
G. The site shall be designed to ensure a safe and convenient pedestrian 

connection between the restaurant and the office building.  
 
 
 
 
 



8 

27.30.04 Banks, bank branches and financial institutions, subject to the following: 
  

A. Individual parcels may be subdivided from existing developed parcels 
provided that the newly created lots shall comply with the density, area 
and bulk requirements for the zone. 

 
B. Ingress and egress shall be provided so as not to conflict with adjacent 

uses or adversely affect traffic flow on adjacent thoroughfares 
 

C. Drive-up windows or service facilities shall include the provision of 
back-up or waiting space, physically separated from off-street parking 
areas and drives, at the rate of four (4) car spaces for each service 
window or facility, in addition to the space at the service window or 
facility. Drives providing such waiting spaces shall have a minimum 
clear width of thirteen (13) feet. 

 
D. The site shall be designed to ensure a safe and convenient pedestrian 

connection between the bank and the office building.  
 

 
27.30.05 Nursery schools, day nurseries and child care centers (not including 

dormitories), subject to the following: 
 

A. Individual parcels may be subdivided from existing developed parcels 
provided that the newly created lots shall comply with all zone 
requirements for lot area, building setbacks, and parking 

 
B. The site shall be designed to ensure a safe and convenient pedestrian 

connection between the facility and the office building.  
 

C. The facility shall be licensed with the Family Independence Agency or 
the appropriate licensing agency, should the licensing duties be provided 
by another organization. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9 

Section 2.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, 
at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on 
the ____ day of ________________, 2005. 
 
 
 
______________________ 
Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
______________________ 
Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 212 Freestanding Restaurants in RC\Draft 6 21 05.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 

 
ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 

 
11. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 212) – 

Articles XXV, XXVI, and XXVII – Freestanding Restaurants, Banks and Daycare 
Facilities in the O-M (Mid-Rise Office), O-S-C (Office-Service-Commercial) and 
R-C (Research Center) Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment.  He reviewed the latest three revisions that were incorporated in the 
proposed text.  Mr. Savidant reported that City Management concurs with the 
proposed text amendment.   
 
Items briefly discussed were the size of the play area with respect to State and 
City requirements, and the minimum height of a fence for outdoor dining with 
respect to requirements of the Michigan Liquor Control Commission.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-06-104 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles IV, XXV, XXVI and XXVII, pertaining to Freestanding 
Restaurants, Banks and Daycare Facilities in the O-M, O-S-C and R-C Zoning 
Districts, and related additional definitions, be amended as printed on the 
Proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That any reference to the requirement of the City 
ordinance for square footage of a play area be altered to match the requirements 
by State law. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said daycare facilities do not belong in parking lots and she 
expressed concern for the safety of children.  She said the accessory uses would 
reduce the value of the buildings, affect leasing opportunities and generate litter.  



 1

DATE:  August 4, 2005 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 

705) – West side of Rochester Road, North of Creston, between Long 
Lake and Trinway, Section 10 – R-1C to R-1T 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The proposed rezoning is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan and the proposed 
zoning district is compatible with abutting uses and zoning districts.  The Planning 
Commission recommended approval of the rezoning request at the June 14, 2005 
Regular Meeting.  City Management recommends approval of the rezoning request. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner is Delores Khatami.  The applicant is Fadi Nassar.  
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the west side of Rochester Road and north side of Creston, 
between Long Lake and Trinway, in section 10. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 29,040 square feet in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
A single family home presently sits on the property. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1C One Family Residential District. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
R-1T One Family Attached District. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to construct a 5-unit condominium development on the property. 

campbellld
Text Box
C-03



 2

Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Vacant. 
South: Office and retail. 
East: Single family residential. 
West: Single family residential.  
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1C One Family Residential. 
South: B-2 Community Business. 
East: R-1C One Family Residential. 
West: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed R-1T Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
 All principal uses permitted and as regulated in the nearest R-1A through R-1E One 

Family Residential Districts. 
 
 Two family dwellings developed in accordance with the provisions of the 

Condominium Act, MCL 559.1, et seq. 
 
 One family attached dwellings as defined in sub-Section 04.20.44 developed in 

accordance with the provisions of the Condominium Act, MCL 559.1, et seq. 
 

  Accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental to the above principal uses. 
 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 
 Churches and other facilities normally incidental thereto. 
   
 Schools. 
 
 Child care centers. 
 
 Utility and public service buildings and uses. 
 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on Creston Avenue and Rochester Road, a major thoroughfare. The 
units will front on Creston and will face the back of a restaurant and an office building, 
including dumpsters.  This may affect marketability.    



 3

Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will be required to provide on-site storm water detention.  
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there is a drain located on the property.  It will need 
to be determined during the site plan review process whether there are any wetlands on 
the property.   
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The Future Land Use Plan classifies the Rochester Road frontage in this area as 
Medium Density Residential.  The Medium Density Residential classification correlates 
with the R-1T Zoning District in the Plan.  The exact depth of the Medium Density 
Residential classification cannot be determined from the Future Land Use Plan because 
it is conceptual in nature.  Creston appears to be the demarcation line between 
Community Service Area and Medium Density Residential.  The subject parcel falls 
within the area designated as Medium Density Residential.  The parcel is relatively 
small in area, however the applicant has provided a site plan that indicates it can be 
developed as an attached condominium development.  The rezoning application is 
consistent with the Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Compliance with Location Standards: 
 
Article 12.40.01 states that the R-1T (One-family Attached Residential) District may be 
applied to property when one or more of the following conditions prevail: 
 
 (A) When the application of such a classification is consistent with the intent of the 

Master Land Use Plan, and therefore involves areas indicated as medium density 
or high density residential. 

 
 (B) When the application of such a classification would be an integral part of a 

planned residential development approach, such as a planned neighborhood 
development (34.50.00), wherein the overall density is consistent with the intent of 
the Master Land Use Plan. 

 
The application meets the standard of (A) above and therefore meets the Location 
Standards of the R-1T District. 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Applicant Statement of Request. 
3. Proposed Troy Condominium Development (conceptual site plan) 
4. Minutes from the June 14, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
 
PREPARED BY RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 705) 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-705 Robin's Nest Sec 10\CC Public Hearing Robins Nest 08 15 05.doc 



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1C TO R-1T



E LONG LAKE

TRINWAY

CRESTON

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

ASHLEY

A
B

IN
G

TO
N

MAYBERRY

B
E

V

BABBIT

±0 100 200 300 40050
Feet

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED ROBIN'S NEST CONDOMINIUM
FROM R-1C TO R-1T
NW CORNER OF ROCHESTER & CRESTON
SEC.  10  (Z-705)

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1C TO R-1T







z 705 robins nest condo.dgn  6/8/2005 3:09:41 PM







PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JUNE 14, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 17 - 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 705) – Proposed Robin’s Nest 
Condominium, North side of Creston, West side of Rochester, Section 10 – From R-
1C to R-1T 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning application.   
 
The petitioner, Fadi Nassar of 930 Smith Avenue, Birmingham, was present.  Mr. 
Nassar said the proposed high-end development would complement the area and 
act as a nice buffer.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-06-102 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the north side of 
Creston and west side of Rochester, within Section 10, being approximately 0.67 
acres in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 1, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, August 1, 2005, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Pro Tem Beltramini called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 

Mr. Chad Lewis from Troy Christian Chapel gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to 
the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling (Absent) 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine  

Vote on Resolution to Excuse Mayor Schilling 
 
Resolution #2005-08-370 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Mayor Schilling’s absence at the Regular City Council meeting of Monday, 
August 1, 2005 is EXCUSED due to illness.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Rezoning Application – 600 Stephenson Highway, East Side of Stephenson 
Highway, North of Fourteen Mile Road, Section 35 – R-C to O-1 (Z-703)  

 
Resolution #2005-08-371 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Stine  
 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 1, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

RESOLVED, That the R-C to O-1 rezoning request, located on the east side of Stephenson 
Highway, north of Fourteen Mile Road, Section 35, being 1.74 acres in size, is hereby 
GRANTED, as recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling 
 
C-2 Rezoning Application – Proposed Binson’s Home Health Care Center, Northwest 

Corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – R-1B to B-1 (Z 180-B)  
  
Resolution  
Moved by Stine   
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That the R-C to O-1 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of 
Rochester and Marengo, section 3, being 39,000 square feet in size, is hereby DENIED for the 
following reasons, as recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission: 
 

1. The application does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan.   
2. Making a recommendation that is contrary to the Future Land Use Plan would 

weaken the validity of the Plan and make it more difficult to defend future zoning 
decisions.   

3. Rezoning this parcel to B-1 would result in the enlargement of an undesirable 
commercial “spot zone” along an area along the Rochester Road corridor that is 
planned for medium density use.   

4. Approval of the rezoning request could open the door for further commercial 
rezoning applications along the Rochester Road corridor. 

 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-08-372 
Moved by Beltramini    
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution for Rezoning Application for Proposed Binson’s Home Health 
Care Center, Northwest Corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – R-1B to B-1 (Z180-B) 
be AMENDED by INSERTING “BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby 
DIRECTS the Planning Commission to consider amending the Future Land Use Plan in the 
Rochester Road Corridor between Square Lake and South Boulevard before the first City 
Council Meeting scheduled for March 2006.  
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Lambert, Stine, Beltramini  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Schilling 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 1, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

Vote on Resolution Postpone 
 
Resolution #2005-08-373 
Moved by Eisenbacher     
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the Rezoning Application for Proposed Binson’s Home Health Care Center, 
Northwest Corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – R-1B to B-1 (Z180-B) be 
POSTPONED until the first Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for March 2006.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling 
 
C-3 Rezoning Application – Proposed Dunkin Donuts, South Side of Vanderpool, West 

of Rochester Road and East of Ellenboro, Section 22 – R-1E to B-2 (Z-704)  
 
Resolution #2005-08-374 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Stine   
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1E to B-2 rezoning request, located on the south side of Vanderpool, 
west of Rochester Road and east of Ellenboro, Section 22, being 0.5 acres in size, is hereby 
DENIED. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Lambert, Stine, Broomfield  
No: Beltramini, Eisenbacher  
Absent: Schilling 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:22 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:32 PM. 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  No Postponed Items 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2005-08-375 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item E-7 which  was withdrawn by City Management. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 1, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2005-08-375-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of July 18, 2005 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: No Proclamations Proposed 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Two-Year Renewal Option – Janitorial 

Services 
 
Resolution #2005-08-375-E-4a 
 
WHEREAS, A two-year contract to provide Janitorial Services with an option to renew for two 
additional years was awarded to the low bidders for each Group on October 20, 2003 
(Resolution 2003-10-533);  
 
WHEREAS, All awarded contractors have agreed to exercise the option to renew the contract 
under the same terms and conditions as the 2003 contract that included a provision to increase 
contract prices in relation to lowest Consumer Price Index. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is hereby 
EXERCISED under the same contract terms and conditions for two additional years expiring 
October 30, 2007 to the following vendors: 
 

 Estimated Total 
Annual Cost 

Group 1: Road Runr Maintenance Inc. $498,889.39 
Group 2: Elite Maintenance $  17,984.78 
Group 4: Elite Maintenance $  26,936.66 
Group 3: American Cleaning $  30,479.51 
Group 5: This is It!  $  10,117.34 

 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Major Street Pavement 

Marking 
 
Resolution #2005-08-375-E-4b 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 1, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

RESOLVED, That a two-year contract with an option to renew for one additional year to provide 
Major Street Pavement Marking is hereby AWARDED to the low bidder, P.K.  Contracting, Inc., 
at an estimated total cost of $63,179.00 for the first year and $66,435.00 for the second year at 
unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened July 8, 2005, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is contingent upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements; and if changes in the quantity of work are required either additive 
or deductive, such changes are authorized in an amount not to exceed 25% of the total project 
cost each year. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 05-7 – Section 10 

Bituminous Overlay 
 
Resolution #2005-08-375-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That Contract No. 05-7, Section 10 Bituminous Overlay, be AWARDED to 
Cadillac Asphalt, 4751 White Lake Road, Clarkston, MI 48346 at an estimated total cost of 
$174,680.25; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is contingent upon submission of proper contract 
and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified requirements, and 
if additional work is required such additional work is authorized in an amount not to exceed 10% 
of the total project cost. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Portable Radio 

Maintenance and Repair 
 
Resolution #2005-08-375-E-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That a (3) three-year contract to maintain and repair portable radio transceivers, 
with an option to renew for one additional year, is hereby AWARDED to the low bidder, 
Cynergy Wireless of Troy, MI, for an estimated total three-year cost of $26,550.00, or $8,850.00 
annually plus parts with discounts of 10%, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 
July 11, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting with 
a contract expiration date of July 31, 2008; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is contingent upon contractor submission of 
proper contract and bid documents including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.  
 
E-5 Acceptance of Permanent Storm Sewer Easement – Permanent Sanitary Sewer 

Easement – Permanent Non-Access Greenbelt Easement – Timbercrest Estates 
Site Condominium – Sidwell #88-20-24-201-002, 003 

 
Resolution #2005-08-375-E-5 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 1, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

RESOLVED, That the Permanent Storm Sewer Easement, Permanent Sanitary Sewer 
Easement, and the Permanent Non-Access Greenbelt Easement, all being part of the 
Timbercrest Estates Condominium project, are hereby ACCEPTED; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-6 Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Watermain, Tepel Land, L.L.C. – Sidwell 

#88-20-26-479-040, 039 & 038 
 
Resolution #2005-08-375-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That the permanent easement for watermain from Tepel Land, L.L.C., owner of 
property having Sidwell #88-20-26-479-040, 039 & 038 is hereby ACCEPTED for the operation, 
maintenance and repair or replacement of watermain; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
document with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 Sale of Rochester Road Remnant Parcel, Sidwell #20-22-426-057, Section 22 – Part 

of Lots 42, 43 and 45 of Supervisors Plat #17 – Withdrawn by City Management 
 
E-8 Private Agreement for Kilmer Property Splits – Project No. 05.905.3 
 
Resolution #2005-08-375-E-8 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and GFA Development, is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of sanitary sewer, detention and soil erosion controls on the site and in the adjacent 
right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-9 Private Agreement for Morton’s Restaurant – Project No. 05.908.3 
 
Resolution #2005-08-375-E-9 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Redico, is hereby APPROVED for the installation of 
water main, sanitary sewer, sidewalks, paving and soil erosion controls on the site and in the 
adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the 
documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-10 Payment for Installation of a Portion of McCulloch Drain as Part of the Hidden 

Forest Site Condominium Development – Project No. 04.908.3 
 
Resolution #2005-08-375-E-10 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 1, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

RESOLVED, That reimbursement to GFA Development / Michigan Home Builders for the 
installation of approximately 900 feet of 36” storm sewer and related work as part of the 
McCulloch Drain within the Hidden Forest Site Condominium development in the amount of 
$120,720.00 is hereby APPROVED upon completion of construction and final approval by the 
Engineering Department.    
 
E-11 Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Watermain, 888 West Big Beaver, L.L.C. – 

Sidwell #88-20-21-351-013 
 
Resolution #2005-08-375-E-11 
 
RESOLVED, That the permanent easement for watermain from 888 West Big Beaver, L.L.C., 
owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-21-351-013 is hereby ACCEPTED for the operation, 
maintenance and repair or replacement of watermain; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
document with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-12 Bid Waiver – Purchase of Thirteen Treadmills for the Troy Community Center 
 
Resolution #2005-08-375-E-12 
 
WHEREAS, On January 10, 2005, a contract to purchase and install new physical fitness 
equipment at the Community Center was awarded to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, 
All Pro Exercise, Inc. of Farmington Hills, MI (Resolution #2005-01-023-E4); 
 
WHEREAS, All Pro Exercise, Inc. has agreed to extend the pricing for thirteen (13) additional 
Precor treadmills at original bid prices of $4,495.00 with three-year service agreements of 
$225.00 each, and allow $800.00 for each trade-in;  
 
WHEREAS, All Pro Exercise, Inc. is the only authorized Precor dealer in the State of Michigan. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED 
and a contract to purchase thirteen (13) Precor treadmills less thirteen (13) trade-ins are hereby 
AWARDED to All Pro Exercise, Inc. of Farmington Hills, MI for an estimated net cost of 
$50,960.00. 
 
E-13 Approval to Pay Closing Costs – Saoud Jamo and Nidhal Jamo, 2907 Thames, 

Sidwell #88-20-25-229-001 – Big Beaver, Rochester to Dequindre Road Project 
#01.105.5 

 
Resolution #2005-08-375-E-13 
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the reasonable 
closing costs not to exceed the amount of $6,647.50 are hereby APPROVED to be paid to 
Saoud Jamo and Nidhal Jamo as part of the relocation payments for relocating from 2907 
Thames, having Sidwell # 88-20-25-229-001, which is being acquired by the City of Troy for the 
Big Beaver to Dequindre Road improvement project. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 1, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

 
E-14 Adoption of the Oakland County Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 
Resolution #2005-08-375-E-14 
 
WHEREAS, The mission of the City of Troy includes the charge to protect the health, safety, 
and general welfare of the people of Troy;  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy, Michigan is subject to flooding, tornadoes, winter storms, and 
other natural, technological, and human hazards;  
 
WHEREAS, The Oakland County Local Emergency Planning Committee, comprised of 
representatives from the County, municipalities, and stakeholder organizations, has prepared a 
recommended Hazard Mitigation Plan that reviews the options to protect people and reduce 
damage from these hazards;  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has participated in the planning process for the development of 
this Plan, providing information specific to local hazard priorities, encouraging public 
participation, identifying desired hazard mitigation strategies, and reviewing the draft Plan;  
 
WHEREAS, On February 17, 2005, the Oakland County Board of Commissioners passed 
resolution No.05-022 adopting the Oakland County Hazard Mitigation Plan as an official 
document of the County and established the County Hazard Mitigation Coordinating 
Committee, pursuant to the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (PL-106-390) and associated 
regulation (44 CFR 210.6);  
 
WHEREAS, The Plan has been widely circulated for review by the County’s residents, 
municipal officials, and state, federal and local review agencies and has been revised to reflect 
their concerns.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That:  
 

1. The Oakland County Hazard Mitigation Plan and sections of the Plan specific to the 
affected community is hereby ADOPTED as an official plan of the City of Troy.  

 
2. The City Manager is CHARGED with supervising the implementation of the Plan’s 

recommendations, as they pertain to the City of Troy City and within the funding 
limitations as provided by the City of Troy City Council or other sources.   

 
3. The City Manager shall give special attention to the following action items recommended 

in portions of the plan specific to the City of Troy:  
 

a) 5.2.56 City of Troy 
Tornadoes, winter weather hazards, fires in one of the many high rises in Troy, 
and a chemical spill or release from one of many commercial trucks that carry 
hazardous materials are just a few concerns for the citizens of Troy. Secondarily, 
with the many corporate headquarters and high profile business, the threat of 
terrorism is always a concern.  

b) 6.3.1.56 Mitigation Strategies 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 1, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

1. Visit other municipalities who have had critical incidents and have 
activated their Emergency Operations Centers to learn and update our 
current EOC.  

2. Continue educational and planning programs in the area of severe 
weather, terrorism planning and fire education to the citizens and 
businesses of Troy ensure safety amongst all.      

 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments: Historical Commission; 
Library Advisory Board and Parks and Recreation Board 

 
(a) Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled 
 
(b) City Council Appointments   
 
Resolution #2005-08-376 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Historical Commission  
Appointed by Council – (7) – 3 years 
 
Roger Kaniarz Term Expires 07/31/08 
 
Library Advisory Board 
Appointed by Council - (5) – 3 years 
 
Mary E. Shiner Unexpired Term 04/30/08 
 
Parks and Recreation Board  
Appointed by Council  (10) (1-Troy School District Rep.; 1-Senior Adv. Board; 1-Troy Daze; 
Parks & Recreation Director) – 3 years 
 
Gary Hauff (Troy School District Recommendation) Term Expires 07/31/06 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 1, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

F-2 Approval of Radio System Agreement with Oakland County 
 
Resolution #2005-08-377 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the Oakland County Radio System Agreement is APPROVED.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling 
 
F-3 Final Payment for Gibson Lake Cleanout – Cost Participation Agreement with 

Sterling Heights 
 
Resolution #2005-08-378 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Final Payment in the amount of $140,893.74 for the Gibson Lake Cleanout 
work performed under a cost participation agreement with the City of Sterling Heights is hereby 
APPROVED.    
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling 
 
F-4 DOCVIEW, L.L.C. Service Agreement 
 
Resolution #2005-08-379 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, DOCVIEW, LLC of Lansing Michigan, makes traffic crash reports available on 
TRACView, their secure website, to police departments, other government agencies, insurance 
companies and authorized individuals;  
 
WHEREAS, The agreement details the responsibilities and compensation for each party and 
will improve customer service by providing customers with another way to obtain copies of 
traffic crash reports. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy is AUTHORIZED to enter into a 
one-year service agreement with DOCVIEW, LLC, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting, renewing each successive year, unless either party notifies the 
other in writing 30 days prior to cancellation. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 1, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

F-5 Sole Source – Self-Contained Riding Greens Aerator 
 
Resolution #2005-08-380 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
WHEREAS, WF Miller Company of Novi, Michigan is the sole provider of Jacobson/Ryan 
equipment in Michigan; 
 
WHEREAS, With the addition of Sanctuary Lake Golf Course to the City of Troy’s Golf Division, 
It is necessary to purchase an additional Ryan GA-30 self-contained riding aerator. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy Parks and Recreation 
Department is AUTHORIZED to purchase a self-contained riding Ryan GA-30 greens aerator 
including attachments from WF Miller Company of Novi, Michigan at an estimated total cost of 
$17,094.00. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling 
 
F-6 Proposed Revisions to Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service Elimination of 

Connection Requirement – Withdrawn by City Management 
 
F-7 Charter Revision Committee Recommendations 
 
Vote on the Approval of Ballot Question Proposals: 
 
Resolution #2005-08-381 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher   
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES as to form the following proposed Charter 
Amendments for the November 8, 2005 City General Election: 
 

RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #10 (86 words) 
Shall Section 4.2.5,Study Meetings, be created to provide for Study meetings of 
Council with the meetings to be called by the Clerk on the written request of the 
Mayor, or any two members of the Council on at least twenty-four hours written 
notice to each member of the Council, served personally or left at his usual place 
of residence; but a study meeting may be held on shorter notice if all members of 
the Council are present or have waived notice thereof in writing? 

 
Yes: Stine, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak 
No: Beltramini, Lambert  
Absent: Schilling 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 1, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #11 (27 words) 
Shall Section 4.3.5, Business at Study Meetings, be created to limit the business 
transacted at any Study meeting of the Council to no action taken? 

 
Yes: Stine, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak 
No: Beltramini, Lambert  
Absent: Schilling 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #12 (70 words) 

Shall Section 5.13, Submission of Initiatory and Referendary Ordinance to 
Electors, be amended to implement election consolidation revisions to Michigan 
Election Law, by providing for the scheduling of the election in accordance with 
State Election Law and striking “within sixty days from such date of presentation 
for the submission of the initiative proposal” with the submittal to be made by an 
affirmative vote of the Council members elect? 

 
Yes: Stine, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak 
No: Beltramini, Lambert  
Absent: Schilling 
 
MOTION FAILED 

 
RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #14 (41 words) 

Shall Section 12.3, Restriction on Powers to Lease Property, be amended to 
include long-term use agreements as an additional type of ownership that is 
subject to the City’s same restriction on powers to lease property procedure for 
renting or leasing of public property? 

 
Yes: Stine, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak 
No: Beltramini, Lambert  
Absent: Schilling 
 
MOTION FAILED 

 
Vote on the Approval of Ballot Question Proposals #12 & #14: 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES as to form the following proposed Charter 
Amendments for the November 8, 2005 City General Election: 
 
Resolution #2005-08-382 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Broomfield    
 

RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #12 (70 words) 
Shall Section 5.13, Submission of Initiatory and Referendary Ordinance to 
Electors, be amended to implement election consolidation revisions to Michigan 
Election Law, by providing for the scheduling of the election in accordance with 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 1, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

State Election Law and striking “within sixty days from such date of presentation 
for the submission of the initiative proposal” with the submittal to be made by an 
affirmative vote of the Council members elect? 

 
RECOMMENDED CHARTER REVISION PROPOSAL #14 (41 words) 

Shall Section 12.3, Restriction on Powers to Lease Property, be amended to 
include long-term use agreements as an additional type of ownership that is 
subject to the City’s same restriction on powers to lease property procedure for 
renting or leasing of public property? 

 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling 
 
Vote on the Approval of The Ballot Question Order: 
 
Resolution #2005-08-383 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES the following ballot question order of the 
proposed Charter Amendment proposals on the November 8, 2005 City General Election: 
 
Grouping A – Election Consolidation Mandated Amendments 
 Sections 3.4 (7.5), 3.4, 7.5.5 (3.4.1), 7.5.5, 3.4.2, 7.3, 7.6, 7.9 and 7.10 
Grouping B – Advisory Questions Amendment 
 Sections 5.13 and 7.9.5 
Grouping C – Long-Term Use Agreements Amendment 
 Section 12.3 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling 
 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Parking Variance – 701-705 Minnesota – August 15, 2005  
b) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 212) – Articles IV, XXV, XXVI and XXVII, 

Freestanding Restaurants, Banks and Daycare Facilities in the R-C, O-M and O-S-C 
Districts – August 15, 2005 

c) Rezoning Application – West Side of Rochester Road, North of Creston, Between Long 
Lake and Trinway, Section 10 – R-1C to R-1T (Z 705) – August 15, 2005 

Noted and Filed 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) Bid Waiver – Authorization to Purchase an Enterprise Content Management System 

Noted and Filed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 1, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  No Council Referrals 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – June 8, 2005 
b) Planning Commission/Final – June 14, 2005  
c) Charter Revision Committee/Final – June 20, 2005 
d) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – June 21, 2005 
e) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – June 28, 2005 
f) Charter Revision Committee/Draft – July 25, 2005 

Noted and Filed 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) City Attorney’s Office – Hunciag v. City of Troy  
b) City Attorney’s Office – Williams et. al v. City of Troy 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:   
a) Letter to Chief Craft from Darlene Gist, Manager of Skate World of Troy, Thanking the 

Troy Police Department for Assistance  
b) Letter to Chief Craft from Keith Pretty, J.D., President of Walsh College, Thanking Lt. 

Pappas and the Troy Police Department for Their Assistance During Commencement 
Ceremonies  

c) Letter to Chief Craft from Wayne Wright, Thanking Officer Lenczewski for His Assistance 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  
a) Resolution from the City of Ferndale – Metro Council Declaration of Metro 

Interdependence  
b) State of Michigan Notice of Hearing for Natural Gas Customers of Consumers Energy 

Company – Case No. U-14547 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  August 1, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 
 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:36 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Robin E. Beltramini, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
 

 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 



PROCLAMATION  
CELEBRATING 85 YEARS   

THE AMERICAN LEGION CHARLES EDWARDS POST 14 – BIRMINGHAM/TROY 
 
WHEREAS, A group of veterans serving in France conceived the idea to form a national organization 
of all veterans who served their country during periods of war or conflict, and in 1919, the American 
Legion was chartered by Congress; and 
 

WHEREAS, The American Legion–Charles Edwards Post 14 was chartered on August 10, 1920, 
with the signatures of 21 World War I Veterans. Named in honor of Charles Edwards, the first 
Birmingham resident killed in action in World War I, Post 14 includes the Sons of the American Legion 
Squadron 14 (chartered September 1962); the American Legion Auxiliary Unit 14 (chartered April 
1978); and the American Legion Riders Chapter 14 (chartered February 2005); and 
 

WHEREAS, The Charles Edwards Post 14 sparked national debate in the 1960s on the practice of 
segregation in cemeteries, and eventually, laws were passed to end discrimination in public 
cemeteries; and 
 

WHEREAS, Members continue to support efforts for GI bills; benefits for Agent Orange casualties; 
rescue of MIAs; WW II, Korean and Viet Nam memorials; gifts to servicemen in Iraq, Selfridge 
Reservist families and the Troy Veterans Memorial Fund; and many other projects that benefit both 
veterans and the civilian community; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Legion’s motto “For God and Country” reflects a national heritage and an individual 
dedication to all veterans.  In the spirit of comradeship, they pledge their assistance, and even their 
lives, to their fellow veterans; and 

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED That the Troy City Council does hereby congratulate The 
American Legion CHARLES EDWARDS POST 14 – Birmingham/Troy as it celebrates its 85th 
Anniversary on August 6, 2005 and recognizes the tremendous activities of its dedicated members 
who assist fellow veterans and people in the community. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council join the citizens of this community in 
appreciation and celebration of The American Legion CHARLES EDWARDS POST 14 —
Birmingham/Troy 85th Anniversary. 
 
Presented this 6th day of August 2005. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03a



July 28, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Re: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise 

Renewal Option – Tee Shirt Contract 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On October 18, 2004, City Council approved a one-year contract to purchase Tee shirts (various 
types) with an option to renew for one additional year to the low bidder, Kel Graphics of Cadillac, 
MI (Council Resolution #2004-10-546-E-17).  City management recommends the City exercise 
the option to renew for one (1) additional year with Kel Graphics, under the same prices, terms 
and conditions to expire September 30, 2006. 
 
DESCRIPTION PRICE/EACH 
50/50 SHORT SLEEVE SHIRTS w/1-COLOR SILK SCREEN  
  Youth – Small, Medium, Large $2.55 
  Adult – Small, Medium, Large, X-Large $2.55 
  Adult – XX-Large $3.55 
  Adult – XXX-Large $3.65 
  
  Single Digit $  .35 
  Double Digits $  .35 
100% COTTON SHIRTS w/1-COLOR SILK SCREEN  
  Adult – Medium, Large, X-Large- Short Sleeve $2.75 
  Adult – XX-Large $3.65 
  Adult – Medium, Large, X-Large – Long Sleeve $4.50 
  
100% COTTON SHIRTS – NO SILK SCREENING  
  Adult –Medium, Large, X-Large $2.00 
  Adult – XX-Large $3.00 
  
50/50 SHORT SLEEVE SHIRTS w/2-COLORS FRONT &  
1-COLOR BACK 

 

  Youth – Small, Medium, Large $2.80 
  Adult – Medium, Large, X-Large $2.85 
  
100% COTTON w/2 COLORS FRONT & BACK  
  Adult – Medium, Large, X-Large $2.95 
  Adult – XX-Large $3.95 
 
MARKET SURVEY 
A market survey conducted by the Purchasing Department indicates the major change to affect 
market prices will be the increase cost of fuel and concurs with the recommendation to exercise 
the option to renew for one additional year.  
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available for the purchase of these tee shirts in the Parks and Recreation Summer and 
Winter Program Operating Supply Accounts. 
 
Prepared by:  Barb Rupas, Recreation Supervisor 

 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



 
 

   June 30, 2005 
 

TO:      Jeanette Bennett 
      Purchasing Director 
 
FROM:    Linda N. Bockstanz 
      Associate Buyer 
 
RE:      MARKET SURVEY – T-SHIRTS  
 
CREATIVE AWARDS– Joe                                                                                 (586) 739-4999 
Joe has indicated that T-Shirts will be the same in price and will have no changes in the 
near future. 
 
MACKELLAR ASSOICATE, INC.– Brian                                                          (248) 852-7526 
According to Brian, all prices will be the same for T-Shirt – for at least three to six months.  
Their Company buys T-Shirts ahead of time in big quantities so shipping is free.  There is 
no freight cost either.  
 
RAINBOW SPORTS- Brian                                                                                   (989) 777-2428 
Brian believes there will be an increase of $2.00 to $4.00 on Hanes T-Shirts, because of the 
increase in price for Oil and Fuel. (Transportation and freight costs.) Secondly, would be the 
Trade Agreement that the US has with China. 
 
CREATIVE DESIGN & EMBROIDERY– Michelle                                            (248) 373-1300 
Michelle told me that the only increase in price for T-Shirts would be .15 to .20 cents per 
shirt for Fruit of the Loom products.  Fruit of the Loom has a shortage of T-Shirts this year.   
As far as she knows Hanes is going to be the same in price. 
 
SIGNATURE SPORTS & PRO – Ken                                                                  (586) 360-0222 
Ken has indicated to me that because of fuel costs that are high, T-Shirts will increase 
anywhere from $2.00 to $4.00, because of transportation costs and shipping, which will be 
passed onto the consumer.   
 
WORK’N GEAR –                                                                                                   (734) 284-0763 
Called 4 times – left 4 messages – no response  
 
Based upon the above comments, I respectfully recommend that the City accept the offer to 
renew the contract for T-Shirts with the current vendor based on the fact costs will increase 
in price for some manufacturers due to transportation costs, fuel, and inventory shortages.   
 
CC: Susan Leirstien 
 







October 12, 2004 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager  
 
 
FROM:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 

 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award To Low Bidder –  

Tee Shirt Contract 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On Friday, October 8, 2004, bids were opened for one (1) year requirements of Tee Shirts 
(various types) with an option to renew for one additional year. City management recommends 
awarding the contract to the low bidder, Kel Graphics of Cadillac, MI at an estimated total cost 
of $27,153.00, at unit prices contained in the attached bid tabulation.  The contract shall 
commence on the date of award and expire September 30, 2005. 
 
 
SUMMARY 
Seven companies submitted competitive bids.  The bid was awarded to the low total bidder in 
each Item category – Kel Graphics.  
 
Tee shirts are purchased for various camp programs and as youth sport uniforms, and included 
with the registration fee.  Part time, seasonal staff, camp counselors, and team awards for adult 
league programs receive shirts as well. 
 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available in the various Parks and Recreation Program Accounts. 
 
 
 
 
   113 Vendors Notified on MITN System 
       7 Bid Responses Rec’d 

     9 No Bids: (5) Companies not interested at this time 
(1) Company cannot meet specifications 
(1) Company does not handle product specified 
(1) Company cannot be competitive    

  (1) Company found out too late to respond 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Barb Rupas, Recreation Supervisor 
 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-48
Opening Date -- 10-8-04 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 4
Date Prepared -- 10/12/04 COTTON & 50/50 TEE SHIRTS

VENDOR NAME: * KEL GRAPHICS CREATIVE MAC KELLAR RAINBOW
AWARDS ASSOC INC SPORTS &

TROPHIES
CHECK # ON FILE 6514010 372896034 53194164034
CHECK AMOUNT $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
QTY DESCRIPTION EACH EACH EACH EACH

ITEM #1-- 50/50 Short Sleeve Shirts
(50% Cotton & 50% Polyester w/One Color Imprint)

2500 Youth - Small, Med,Large 2.55$               2.80$              2.59$               2.59$                     
2700 Adult -  Small,Med,Large,Xlarge 2.55$               2.85$              2.57$               3.99$                     

80 Adult -  XXLarge 3.55$               3.95$              3.88$               4.05$                     
20 Adult - XXXLarge 3.65$               4.95$              4.07$               5.05$                     

2000 Single Digit 0.35$               0.26$              0.29$               0.23$                     
400 Double Digit 0.35$               0.26$              0.58$               0.46$                     

QUOTING ON STYLE: 50/50 G-800 G8000/G8000B G8000  50/50 G8000/G8000B
MANUFACTURED BY: GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 24 30 24 ADULT 19 YOUTH 21 / 19

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#1): 14,457.00$    15,734.00$    14,617.80$     18,317.00$          

ITEM #2 -- 100% Cotton - Short and Long Sleeve  
One (1) Color Imprint on Front 

240 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge-Short Sleeve 2.75$               3.00$              2.81$               3.38$                     
35 Adult - XXLarge-Short Sleeve 3.65$               4.00$              4.04$               3.88$                     

100 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge-Long Sleeve 4.50$               4.49$              4.70$               5.10$                     

QUOTING ON STYLE: G-240  G-500 G2000/G2400 G2400 / G2000 G2000/G2400
MANUFACTURED BY: GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 24 48 / 20 24+ 48 / 20

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#2): 1,237.75$      1,309.00$      1,285.80$       1,457.00$            

ITEM #3 -- 100% Cotton - Short Sleeve Shirts  (No Imprinting)
800 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge 2.00$               2.39$              2.31$               2.40$                     
200 Adult - XXLarge 3.00$               3.59$              3.41$               3.49$                     

QUOTING ON STYLE: G-500 G2000 G2000 G2000
MANUFACTURED BY: GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 24 48 24+ 48

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#3): 2,200.00$      2,630.00$      2,530.00$       2,618.00$            

ITEM #4 -- 50% Cotton/50% Polyester Blend 
Short Sleeve Shirts w/Two Colors & 1 Color Back

1000 Youth -Small, Medium, Large 2.80$               2.80$              3.45$               3.34$                     
1700 Adult - Medium, Large, X-Large 2.85$               2.85$              3.40$               3.39$                     

QUOTING ON STYLE: G-200 G8000B/G8000 G2000 G8000/G8000B
MANUFACTURED BY: GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 24 30 24+ 21 / 19

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#4): 7,645.00$      7,645.00$      9,230.00$       9,103.00$            



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-48
Opening Date -- 10-8-04 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 4
Date Prepared -- 10/12/04 COTTON & 50/50 TEE SHIRTS

VENDOR NAME: * KEL GRAPHICS CREATIVE MAC KELLAR RAINBOW
AWARDS ASSOC INC SPORTS &

TROPHIES

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
QTY DESCRIPTION EACH EACH EACH EACH

ITEM #5 -- 100% Cotton - Two Color Imprint - Front & Back
Short Sleeve Shirts

500 Adult-Medium, Large, X-Large 2.95$               3.05$              4.15$               3.90$                     
35 Adult - XX-Large 3.95$               4.35$              5.45$               4.40$                     

QUOTING ON STYLE: G-500 G2000 G2000 G2000
MANUFACTURED BY: GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 24 48 24+ 48

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#5): 1,613.25$      1,677.25$      2,265.75$       2,104.00$            

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL ALL ITEMS 27,153.00$    28,995.25$    29,929.35$     33,599.00$          

SAMPLES INCLUDED           Y or N NO NO NO NO

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Op 8-5 9-6 8-5 M-FRI 9-5:30
Phone # (800)331-5251 (586)549-4004 (248)320-4525 (989)777-2428

(231)775-6870
TERMS NET 30 NET 30 NET 30 NET 30

DELIVERY AS NEEDED 10 WORKING DAYS INCLUDED 30 DAYS ARO
DEFECTIVE REPLACE AS NEEDED

WARRANTY BLANK BLANK GOODS REPLACED PER INSPECTION

EXCEPTIONS BLANK BLANK "ONE LOT" N/A
PRICING

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      Y or N YES YES YES YES
NO BIDS:
  Beacon Forms & Labels
  Cadillac Overall Supply PROPOSAL -- One Year Requirements of Tee Shirts (Various Types)
  Contractors Clothing Co with an Option to Renew for One Additional Year
  Harwood Uniforms
  Libra Industries * DENOTES LOW BIDDER
  McNish Sports
  Metro Promotions
  Michigan State Industries Jeanette Bennett
  Safety & Security Int'l Purchasing Director



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-48
Opening Date -- 10-8-04 BID TABULATION Pg. 3 of 4
Date Prepared -- 10/12/04 COTTON & 50/50 TEE SHIRTS

VENDOR NAME: SIGNATURE CREATIVE WORK'N
SPORTS & DESIGN & GEAR

PROMOTION EMBROIDERY
CHECK # 009106 556852501 765429656
CHECK AMOUNT $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
QTY DESCRIPTION EACH EACH EACH EACH

ITEM #1-- 50/50 Short Sleeve Shirts
(50% Cotton & 50% Polyester w/One Color Imprint)

2500 Youth - Small, Med,Large 3.09$               3.15$              4.80$               
2700 Adult -  Small,Med,Large,Xlarge 3.09$               3.25$              4.82$               

80 Adult -  XXLarge 3.95$               4.25$              6.07$               
20 Adult - XXXLarge 4.85$               5.75$              6.07$               

2000 Single Digit 0.29$               0.45$              BLANK
400 Double Digit 0.58$               0.80$              BLANK

QUOTING ON STYLE: GILDAN GILDAN G8000B/G8000
MANUFACTURED BY: GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 26 SEE CATALOG 20 / 21

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#1): 17,293.00$    18,325.00$    25,621.00$     

ITEM #2 -- 100% Cotton - Short and Long Sleeve  
One (1) Color Imprint on Front

240 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge-Short Sleeve 3.09$               3.39$              5.82$               
35 Adult - XXLarge-Short Sleeve 3.95$               4.29$              6.35$               

100 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge-Long Sleeve 5.78$               7.95$              7.50$               

QUOTING ON STYLE: GILDAN GILDAN G2000/G2400
MANUFACTURED BY: GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 26 SEE CATALOG 45 / 15

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#2): 1,457.85$      1,758.75$      2,369.05$       

ITEM #3 -- 100% Cotton - Short Sleeve Shirts  (No Imprinting)
800 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge 2.09$               2.65$              2.52$               
200 Adult - XXLarge 2.94$               3.60$              3.64$               

QUOTING ON STYLE: GILDAN GILDAN G2000
MANUFACTURED BY: GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 26 SEE CATALOG 47

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#3): 2,260.00$      2,840.00$      2,744.00$       

ITEM #4 -- 50% Cotton/50% Polyester Blend 
Short Sleeve Shirts w/Two Colors & 1 Color Back

1000 Youth -Small, Medium, Large 4.19$               3.95$              4.80$               
1700 Adult - Medium, Large, X-Large 4.19$               3.95$              4.82$               

QUOTING ON STYLE: GILDAN GILDAN G8000B/G8000
MANUFACTURED BY: GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 10 SEE CATALOG 20 / 21

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#4): 11,313.00$    10,665.00$    12,994.00$     



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-48
Opening Date -- 10-8-04 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 4
Date Prepared -- 10/12/04 COTTON & 50/50 TEE SHIRTS

VENDOR NAME: SIGNATURE CREATIVE WORK'N
SPORTS & DESIGN & GEAR

PROMOTIONS EMBROIDERY

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
QTY DESCRIPTION EACH EACH EACH EACH

ITEM #5 -- 100% Cotton - Two Color Imprint - Front & Back
Short Sleeve Shirts

500 Adult-Medium, Large, X-Large 4.60$               3.95$              5.82$               
35 Adult - XX-Large 5.50$               3.95$              6.35$               

QUOTING ON STYLE: GILDAN GILDAN G2000
MANUFACTURED BY: GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 10 SEE CATALOG 47

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#5): 2,492.50$      2,113.25$      3,132.25$       

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL ALL ITEMS 34,816.35$    35,702.00$    46,860.30$     

SAMPLES INCLUDED           Y or N NO NO NO

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Op 7-5 8:30-5PM 8-5PM
Phone # (586)465-5900 (248)373-1300 (847)471-4052

(871)746-0158
TERMS NET 30 NET 30 NET 30

DELIVERY 2-3 WEEKS 7 DAYS FOB DESTINATION

WARRANTY 1 YEAR YES MFG

EXCEPTIONS BLANK LISTED LISTED
IN BID IN BID

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      Y or N YES YES YES

ATTEST:
  Cheryl Morrell
  Barb Rupas
  Linda Bockstanz

G\:TeeshirtsBid ITB-COT 04-48











 August 8, 2005 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager Finance/Administration 
 Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
 Gert Paraskevin, IT Director 
 William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 6: Grant Approval 

And Authorization To Expend City Funds - Safer Star Software and 
Associated Equipment  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City management recommends that the Troy City Council approve the use of 
funds received from a Homeland Security Critical Infrastructure Grant through the 
State of Michigan and authorizes the purchase of Safer Star Software from Safer 
Systems, LLC, of Camarillo, CA, the sole provider of this proprietary software, for 
an estimated cost of $300,000.00. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Troy has received a Homeland Security Critical Infrastructure Grant 
from the State of Michigan for $300,000 to purchase Safer Star Project Software 
and associated equipment.  This software, which will be used by the Special 
Response Unit, integrates air monitoring sensors, meteorological sensors, and 
GIS data to provide real-time plume modeling for chemical releases.  This 
software and hardware is in use by every major railroad in the United States and 
Canada and is also used by many petrochemical facilities.   
 
Safer Systems is the only vendor that has a real-time application capable of 
integrating the monitoring instrument data, meteorological data, and GIS data to 
provide multiple modeling modes for chemical releases.   
 
This is a 100% state funded project with no local match.   Troy has been selected 
as the first regional Response Team in the state to implement this capability. 
 
BUDGET 
 
The resolution amends the Fire department budget to receive the grant funding 
and allows it to be expended on the designated items. 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04b















campbellld
Text Box
E-04c







































 
 

July 28, 2005 
 
 
 
 
TO:   Mr. John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles Craft, Chief of Police 

Thomas Gordon, Police Sergeant 
 
 

 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Application to Transfer Location of a Class C Liquor License - 
 TGI Friday’s, Inc. (TGI Friday’s Restaurant) 
  
 
 
TGI FRIDAY’S INC. (A NEW YORK CORPORATION), requests to transfer location of a 2005 
Class C licensed business (in escrow), with official permit (food), and outdoor service (1 area), 
from 911 Wilshire, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, to 591 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, 
Oakland County. 
 
TGI Friday’s is requesting to relocate its restaurant and transfer their liquor license, which is 
currently being held in escrow.  The building currently at 591 West Big Beaver Road, formerly 
O’Grady’s, will be demolished and a new structure built for TGI Friday’s.  The building will 
closely resemble other Friday’s locations with the typical facade and interior design.  There will 
be approximately 220 seats.  The original completion date was late 2005, but the attorney for 
Friday’s, Mr. John Carlin, anticipates an extension to that date. 
 
There will be no change in ownership or operation.  The police department has no objection to 
this request.  
 
 
 
 
TJG/tjg 

bittnera
Text Box
E-05

















LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JULY 11, 2005  

 Page 1 of 3

A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, July 11, 
2005 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver 
Road.  Committee member Henry W. Allemon called the meeting to order at 7:00 
p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Henry W. Allemon 
    Alex Bennett 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    James R. Peard 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Sergeant Thomas Gordon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Ehlert and Godlewski 
 
Resolution #LC2005-07-016  
Moved by Peard 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee members Ehlert and Godlewski at the 
Liquor Advisory Committee meeting of July 11, 2005 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  None 
Absent: Ehlert, Godlewski 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of May 9, 2005 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2005-07-017 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the May 9, 2005 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  None 
Absent: Ehlert, Godlewski  



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JULY 11, 2005  

 Page 2 of 3

 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
 
1. TGI FRIDAY’S INC. (A NEW YORK CORPORATION), requests to transfer 

location of a 2005 Class C licensed business (in escrow), with official permit 
(food), and outdoor service (1 area), from 911 Wilshire, Troy, MI 48084, 
Oakland County, to 591 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County.   
[MLCC REQ ID# 309614]  Moving to former location of O’Grady’s 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was John Carlin, attorney for 
TGI Friday’s, Inc.   
 
The building currently at 591 West Big Beaver Road, formerly O’Grady’s, will be 
demolished and a new structure built for TGI Friday’s.  The building will closely 
resemble other Friday’s locations with the typical façade and interior design.  
There will be approximately 220 seats.  The original completion date was late 
2005, but Mr. Carlin anticipates an extension to that date. 
 
Resolution #LC2005-07-018 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that TGI FRIDAY’S INC. (A NEW YORK CORPORATION), be 
allowed to transfer location of a 2005 Class C licensed business (in escrow), with 
official permit (food), and outdoor service (1 area), from 911 Wilshire, Troy, MI 
48084, Oakland County, to 591 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County.    
 
Yes:  5 
No:  None 
Absent: Ehlert, Godlewski  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JULY 11, 2005  

 Page 3 of 3

 
The meeting adjourned at 7:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Henry W. Allemon 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Office Assistant II 



July 26, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager  
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  William Nelson, Fire Chief 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Fireworks Permit – Troy Daze 
 
On July 15, 2005, a permit application from Mad Bomber Fireworks, Inc. of 
Kingsbury, Indiana, was received by the City of Troy for a public fireworks display 
to be conducted at the close of this year’s Troy Daze Festival. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Michigan’s Fireworks Law requires that before anyone can conduct a fireworks 
display, a permit must be obtained from the local unit of government. The law 
states that any person or group that would like to conduct a fireworks display 
must apply to the local unit of government for a permit. The law defines local unit 
of government as the council or commission of a city or village, or the township 
board of a township. 
 
With this in mind, Mad Bomber Fireworks Productions, Inc. is requesting that City 
Council grant a permit for a public fireworks display to occur on Sunday, 
September 18, 2005 at Boulan Park. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Fire Prevention Division has reviewed the permit application and 
recommends that City Council issue a fireworks permit to Mad Bomber Fireworks 
Productions, Inc. Attached for Council’s review is the permit application along 
with the permit to be signed and issued. 

campbellld
Text Box
E-06









campbellld
Text Box
E-07













campbellld
Text Box
E-08







   Memorandum 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
From: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
Date: August 8, 2005 
Subject: Agenda Item - Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization 

Status from the Kimberly Anne Gillary Foundation for the Purpose of 
Obtaining a Charitable Gaming License 

 
 
Attached is a request from Randall J. Gillary, President of the Kimberly Anne 
Gillary Foundation, seeking recognition as a nonprofit organization status for the 
purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license to conduct a raffle and bingo on 
Labor Day weekend with proceeds to be used to purchase automated external 
defibrillators (AEDs) and training for Michigan high schools. It has been City 
Management’s practice to support the approval of such requests. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-09







TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
DATE: August 9, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: Gerback et. al v. City of Troy     
 

 
 
  
     
 
 Enclosed please find a complaint that was recently filed against the City of Troy and the Troy 
City Council by James Gerback, Successor Trustee under the Amended Robert S. Binder Trust 
Agreement.   The complaint was filed on June 17, 2005, but was not immediately served on the City.  
The lawsuit stems from City Council’s denial of a requested re-zoning of a 2.74 acre parcel of 
property located on the west side of Rochester Road, south of Trinway.  The property is owned by 
the Plaintiff trust, and is currently zoned R-1C (one family residential).  Plaintiff unsuccessfully 
sought to re-zone the property to R-1T (one family attached residential).  In its meeting of December 
14, 2004, the Troy Planning Commission recommended the re-zoning, since it was consistent with 
the Master Land Use Plan, which designated the area as medium density residential.  City 
Administration similarly recommended the re-zoning.  However, the Troy City Council voted 3-4 
against the re-zoning at the February 21, 2005 City Council meeting.  The most prevalent concern 
about the requested re-zoning was the depth of the property (approximately 570 feet).  The 
complaint alleges that the denial of the requested re-zoning was “arbitrary and capricious,” and fails 
to advance a legitimate government interest.   
 
 Count I of the complaint alleges a denial of substantive due process, and argues that the 
denial of the rezoning bears “no reasonable relationship to the health, safety and welfare of the 
public of Troy”.  Count II asserts an equal protection claim, where Plaintiff argues that it has been 
treated less favorably than other owners of “similarly situated” property, since properties of greater 
depths have received the requested R-1T zoning.  The complaint seeks an injunction that  “prevents 
the City of Troy from interfering with Plaintiff’s proposed use of the property.”        
 
 Our office will assume the defense of this case, absent objections from City Council.   
           
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-10































































July 19, 2005 

To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director  
 
Subject:  Agenda Item - Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement 
 

 
Recommendation 
It is recommended that the contract between SMART and the City for 2005-2006 be 
approved.  This agreement states that the City will transfer Municipal Credit funds in 
the amount of $76,084 and Community Credit funds in the amount of $93,916 for a 
total of $170,000 to Troy Medi-Go Plus for the operation of transportation service for 
senior citizens and persons with disabilities.  The City will retain $4,518 in Community 
Credit funds to purchase discount tickets for SMART Dial-A-Ride. 
 
Background 
Municipal credits are state-authorized funds that are divided among every city, 
township and village in Oakland, Wayne and Macomb Counties on a per capita 
basis.  Community credits are a direct result of the SMART millage that provides 
opt-in communities with additional funds.  
 
When Dial-A-Ride was restricted to Troy, we were required to give all of these 
credits to SMART.  Now that our Dial-A-Ride service crosses city boundaries into 
Birmingham and Beverly Hills, we can retain our municipal and community credit 
dollars and use them to support our community based Troy Medi-Go Plus service 
and the discount ticket program.  This allows dollars previously allocated to Medi-
Go Plus from Troy’s general fund to be used for other purposes.   
 
 
 
 
Reviewed and approved as to legality 
 
_____________________________________________________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
Prepared by Carla Vaughan, Recreation Supervisor 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-11







 
 
 
July 28, 2005 
 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
  
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM - Local Match for a Michigan Economic Growth 

Authority (MEGA) Retention Incentive Package 
 
 
Management was approached by the Michigan Economic Growth Authority 
(MEGA) and American Systems Technology, Inc. (ASTI) to provide a local 
match for a state package of incentives to retain this company in Michigan, 
and, in this case, in Troy.  State law requires that in order for MEGA to 
provide an incentive package to a company, a local contribution must be 
made.  The size and nature of that local match is negotiated between MEGA 
and the local community.  This MEGA incentive package will be considered 
by MEGA on August 16, 2005. 
 
The City and the State have been working closely with ASTI, a local 
electronic and software firm located at 888 Big Beaver in Troy, which 
employs 50 people.   ASTI is a developer of electronics for military vehicles 
and software for educational institutions.  The growth is in both military 
application and educational software development.  The company is also 
considering Huntsville, Alabama where the Army military command is located 
and wages and lease costs are lower.   
 
The company is experiencing rapid growth and expects to hire 200 people in 
the next five years at $38.00 per hour or approximately $80,000 per year.   
ASTI is currently out of space in their existing location and needs to locate 
new space to meet company growth.  They would like to remain in Troy and 
consolidate and double the space in their current multi-tenant leased building. 
 
MEGA has determined that the company is eligible for a High-Tech MEGA.  
The state has agreed to provide a package of incentives to ASTI to secure 
their commitment to expand in Troy.   
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-02



 
The total MEGA package will be negotiated next week and is expected to be 
worth several hundred thousand dollars based on job growth.  The MEGA 
package will be made up of providing a credit, for the personal income tax 
paid on wages, against the SBT liability.  Some training funds may also be 
included.  The local contribution is provided only if the company receives 
MEGA approval.  
 
After discussion between City staff and MEGA, it was determined that a 
sufficient local contribution would be in the neighborhood of $30,000.  Since 
there is no public infrastructure needs in the area, staff sought the help of 
Oakland County and the Troy Chamber of Commerce.  The result was a 
combination of local providers offering the following package: 
 
  

City of Troy: Committing in daily and/or annual Aquatic Center passes 
(limited to 15 annual passes per year for 3 years), a value not to 
exceed $7,000. (Council approval is required). 
 
Walsh College: Committing up to $7,000 in employee training, worker 
recruitment, career fair assistance and business assistance for 
company growth. 
 
Troy Chamber: Committing an executive level membership valued at 
$2,300. 
 
Oakland County: Committing 50% of a Foundation level membership 
for Automation Alley for the company valued at $7,500 and provide 
office space (50 sq.ft.) for ASTI at Automation Alley Headquarters 
valued at $3,000 annually. 
 
Butzel Long (Law firm):  Committing to conduct a trade secret/non-
compete audit of the company, along with corresponding discussion 
and counsel on these topics, a value of up to $3,000. 
 

MEGA staff has indicated this package of contributions is a sufficient local 
match.  Management would recommend City Council approve the City’s 
share of the local contribution. 
 
 
 
 
 
DOUG MISC/MEMO TO MAYOR AND CC/ASTI Memo 07-28-05 

 



campbellld
Text Box
F-03





































  August 9, 2005 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
  
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance Administration 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 

Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: 2006 City Calendar Contract Extension 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
In an effort to reduce costs again this year, City management plans to print the 2006 
City Calendar incorporating the Popular Annual Financial Report (PAFR) along with a 
minimum of 8 pages of advertising similar to the 2005 Calendar.  Advertising sales as 
well as inclusion of the PAFR will offset a portion of the printing costs. Inclusion in the 
calendar provides a better distribution of the PAFR. 
 
Attached is a letter from University Lithoprinters confirming their willingness to 
complete the design, printing and mail prep for the 2006 Calendar/Annual Report at 
the same cost as last year with the addition of $1,300.00 for paper price increases as 
noted in the RFP contract.   
 
The approximate cost to print 40,000 calendars plus 8 pages for the PAFR and 8 
pages for the advertising insert are $37,350.00 plus $1,300.00 for paper price 
increases.  If we sell the same amount of advertising as last year ($15,775.00), our 
estimated net cost will be $22,875.00.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The printing of the 2004 Calendar / Annual Report was awarded to University 
Lithoprinters as the result of a best value process (Resolution #2003-09-464).    That 
contract contained an option to renew for the 2005 and 2006 contracts.  In 2004, 
University Lithoprinters was used to print the 2005 Calendar on the basis of that Best 
Value Process (Resolution #2004-09-456).  The changes approved for this calendar 
included the PAFR and Community Affairs selling advertising to reduce final costs.  
The printing of the 2006 Calendar would be the last year the City would use 
University Lithoprinters before re-bidding the project. 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04











































TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager- Services 
Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning  
Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney  

DATE: August 8, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: Authority to initiate lawsuit to abate public nuisance- Rhodes  
 

 
 For several years, the Building Department has taken action to abate nuisances at 
2766 Rhodes.  The owner/occupant at the home has accumulated refuse, debris, 
merchandise, garbage, and cat feces, which has blocked the ingress/egress to the home and 
has also substantially limited the mobility of the home occupant to the point of endangerment.  
Foul odors emanate from the home, and have led to complaints from neighbors. Vermin have 
also been discovered on the premises.  The home is a fire hazard, due to the accumulation 
of newspapers and other flammable items.  The home is a public nuisance.  

 City Administration has unsuccessfully worked with the owner/occupant to eliminate 
the nuisance conditions. When these efforts proved unsuccessful, the City issued criminal 
misdemeanor tickets to the owner, based on the violations of the Troy building code (and 
ordinance).  The specific charge was the failure to maintain aisle ways throughout the house 
that are at least 36 inches wide.  The owner pled guilty to the charge, and was placed on one 
year of probation to allow for bi-weekly inspections of the owner’s progress.  Unfortunately, 
the only progress really made in eliminating the nuisance was made by a group of volunteers 
from Athens High School, who worked for 4 hours straight, and was able to de-clutter only 
one room of the house. The owner has subsequently refused any additional volunteer efforts 
to clean- up, and has failed to make substantial progress on his own.    

 The District Court’s imposition of one year of probation has expired.  The City could 
issue a subsequent criminal misdemeanor ticket, and continue the Court’s jurisdiction over 
the matter.  However, since this was previously unsuccessful in abating the public nuisance, 
City Administration recommends the initiation of a lawsuit in the Oakland County Circuit 
Court.  Although this option is infrequently used, the City is authorized to initiate a lawsuit to 
abate a nuisance.  The goal of this lawsuit is an order from the Circuit Court to abate the 
nuisance, or to allow the City to hire an independent contractor to complete the work, which 
would then be charged back to the owner of the property or would be a lien on the property.   

 City Administration requests the authority to initiate a nuisance abatement lawsuit 
against the owner of the home located at 2766 Rhodes.  If you have any questions 
concerning the above, please let us know.    

campbellld
Text Box
F-05



August 9, 2005  
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Bid Waiver - Troy Daze Large Tents 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends City Council waive the formal bid process and award a 
contract to provide two large tents for the 2005 Troy Daze Festival to Dial Tent 
and Awning, 5330 Davis Rd., Saginaw, MI 48604 for the estimated total amount 
of $11,000.00, contingent upon vendor’s submission of proper documents, 
including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Troy Daze Festival is held at Boulan Park every year in September. Tents 
are required as part of the set-up of the festival to house the various community, 
cultural, and entertainment activities associated with the event.  
 
On July 1, 2005, bids to provide a variety of sizes of tents for the 2005 Troy Daze 
Festival were opened. Only two vendors - Ace Canvas & Tent, and Classic Rents 
submitted bids on the tents and will split the tent order according to low price. 
However, neither company carries the two larger sized tents and their bids did 
not include those two large tents. Staff contacted the two other companies that 
have provided those large tents in the past. Neither of those vendors have the 
sizes of large tents (1 – 80’x100’ and 1 – 80’x240’) required for the festival. After 
an exhaustive search, staff located Dial Tent and Awning in Saginaw that has the 
tent sizes needed and can make them available during the festival dates. It 
should be noted that the cost for the two large tents for last year’s 2004 Troy 
Daze Festival was $11,700.00 
 
BUDGET 
Funds for the rental of tents for the Troy Daze Festival are available in the 
Community Fair Fund operating budget, account 784. 7942. 
 
 
Prepared by: Jeffrey J. Biegler, Superintendent of Parks 

campbellld
Text Box
F-06



August 10, 2005 
 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager – Finance/Administration 
 Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
Re: Agenda Item – Resolution supporting the Legislative correction of 

the WPW v. Troy Taxable Value inequity 
 
 
The Michigan Municipal League is urging all member communities to pass a 
resolution that requests that the State House and Senate pass legislation to 
correct the inequity that was created by the Supreme Court Decision in WPW v. 
City of Troy. 
 
This decision took away an Assessor’s ability to add taxable value to income 
producing properties when the occupancy of the building increased, after having 
received a reduction in taxable value because of a loss of occupancy. 
 
This inequity creates a tax advantage for income producing properties that have 
vacancy issues, over like properties that have had no vacancy problems. 
 
In addition, this inequity causes a shift in the tax burden from commercial 
properties to the residential class.  This shift forces the residential class to pay a 
larger portion of the burden of the services that the commercial class also uses. 
 
The sample resolution from the MML is attached to this memorandum.  Staff 
requests that you forward this item to City Council for their concurrence, and also 
send the passed resolution on to our local State Legislators.  
 
 
 
Nl/nl 

campbellld
Text Box
F-07



TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager- Services 
Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning  
Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney  

DATE: August 8, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: Authority to initiate lawsuit to abate public nuisance- Prentis  
 

 
  

City Administration is requesting the authority to initiate a nuisance abatement lawsuit 
against the owners of the home at 5165 Prentis. The owners/occupants at the home have 
been accumulating refuse, debris, merchandise and furniture, which is located all throughout 
the house, and blocks access to most of the rooms of the house.  The substantial 
accumulation has also blocked the ingress/ egress to the home, and has also substantially 
limited the mobility of the home occupants, to the point of endangerment.  The home is a fire 
hazard, and a public nuisance.  

 A concerned neighbor alerted City Administration to the condition of this home, which 
he reported was “not safe for anyone to live in”.  Since that time, the City has unsuccessfully 
worked with the owners/occupants (and also the relatives of the owners) to eliminate the 
nuisance conditions. When these efforts proved unsuccessful, the City issued criminal 
misdemeanor tickets to one of the owners, based on the violations of the Troy building code 
(and ordinance). The specific charges were the failure to maintain aisle ways throughout the 
house that are at least 36 inches wide, and the failure to keep the interior of the home clean 
and sanitary.  After a bench trial in the 52-4 District Court, the owner was found guilty of the 
charges.  Unfortunately, this did not lead to the abatement of the nuisance.  Due to the 
unsafe condition of the home, it was posted no occupancy in December 2004.  Although the 
owners indicate that they do not reside at the home, there has been little progress in abating 
the nuisance.       

 The City could issue a subsequent criminal misdemeanor ticket, and continue the 
District Court’s jurisdiction over the matter.  However, since this avenue was previously 
unsuccessful in abating the public nuisance, City Administration recommends the initiation of 
a lawsuit in the Oakland County Circuit Court.  Although this option is infrequently used, the 
City is authorized to initiate a lawsuit to abate a nuisance.  The goal of this lawsuit is an order 
from the Circuit Court to abate the nuisance, or to allow the City to hire an independent 
contractor to complete the work, which would then be charged back to the owner of the 
property or would be a lien on the property.   

 City Administration requests the authority to initiate a nuisance abatement lawsuit 
against the owners of the home located at 5165 Prentis. If you have any questions 
concerning the above, please let us know.    

campbellld
Text Box
F-08



TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager- Services 
Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning  
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

DATE: August 9, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: Proposed Revision of Troy’s Sign Ordinances     
 

 
 
 The City of Troy’s sign ordinance has recently been challenged in the Fehribach v. City of 
Troy lawsuit.  Since the 1970’s, Troy has one ordinance that governs political signs (Chapter 85A) 
and a second ordinance that governs all other signs (Chapter 78).   The ACLU challenged this 
separation, and argued that Troy’s ordinances were impermissible content- based regulations.  
According to the ACLU, political speech was afforded less protection than commercial speech, 
which is a violation of the First Amendment to the U.S. Constitution.   
 
 As a result of this lawsuit, City Administration has scrutinized the current sign ordinances, 
and has drafted proposed revisions for your consideration.  Since the proposed changes were 
extensive, and difficult to convey in a red line draft format, it is our recommendation that the 
regulations be incorporated into a new Chapter- Chapter 85.  This modification would also 
necessitate revisions to Chapter 3, which provides the authorization for enforcement of the sign 
ordinance.  The proposed revision also proposes to remove the fees and incorporate them into 
Chapter 60 (Fees).  In addition, Council would also need to rescind the existing Chapters 85A and 
78.   
 
 In this proposed ordinance revision, political signs are characterized as temporary signs, 
similar to garage sale signs and real estate signs.  Each parcel of property would be limited to three 
such temporary signs.  These two signs must be smaller than six square feet, and cannot be up for 
longer than 90 days.  In addition to the temporary sign modifications, this proposal also incorporates 
a re-organization of the chapter, as well as grammatical changes.  Additionally, some of the existing 
provisions have been clarified in the new proposal.   
 
 The treatment of political signs in the same manner as other temporary signs addresses the 
ACLU’s concerns that political signs receive less protection than commercial temporary signs.  It 
protects the City’s obligation to regulate signage for health, safety and welfare reasons, while 
simultaneously balancing the rights of free speech.  However, Council should be aware that the 
adoption of this proposed sign ordinance may or may not resolve the ACLU’s concerns that were 
raised in the Fehribach lawsuit.               
 
 Although it is only August, the November 2005 election is right around the corner, and the 
rules concerning political signage should be resolved at the earliest opportunity.  We would 
appreciate receiving any comments on the ordinance revision proposal at your earliest convenience, 
so that any issues can be addressed prior to the City Council meeting.   We are available to answer 
any questions concerning this matter.    

campbellld
Text Box
F-09



 1 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO ENACT 
CHAPTER 85 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Enactment 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as Chapter 85 – Signs of the Code of the City of 
Troy. 

 
CHAPTER 85 - SIGNS 

 
85.01.00   Administration 
 
85.01.01   Title and Purpose 
 
A. Short Title: This Ordinance shall be known as and may be cited as the City of Troy Sign 

Ordinance. 
 
B. Findings and Purpose:  It is hereby determined that proliferation of signs in the City is 

unduly distracting to motorists and pedestrians, creates a traffic hazard, and reduces the 
effectiveness of signs needed to direct and warn the public.  It is also determined that the 
appearance of the City is marred by proliferation of signs.  It is also determined that 
proliferation of signs restricts light and air.  It is also determined that proliferation of signs 
negatively affects property values.  It is also determined that proliferation of signs results in 
an inappropriate use of land.  The purpose of this Ordinance is to control the occurrence 
and size of signs in order to reduce the aforementioned negative effects.  It is also 
determined that the signs of least value to people within the City are those which carry 
commercial messages other than the advertisement of any product, service, event, person, 
institution or business located on the premises where the sign is located or indicates the 
sale or rental of such premises.  It is also determined that the regulations contained in this 
Ordinance are the minimum amount of regulation necessary to achieve its purposes.  It is 
also determined that restrictions in this Ordinance on the size of signs, their height and 
placement on real estate, are the minimum amount necessary to achieve its purposes. 

 
85.01.02   Enforcement:  
 
A. This Chapter shall be administered and enforced by the Building Inspector as provided for 

in Chapter 3 of the Troy City Code. 
 
B. Responsibility of Compliance: The owner of any property on which a sign is placed, and the 

person maintaining said sign are equally responsible for the condition of the sign and the 
area in the vicinity thereof. 

 
C. Removal of Signs:  Should any sign be found unsafe, insecure, improperly constructed or 

not in accordance with the requirements of this Chapter, the Sign Erector and/or Owner 
shall be required to make the sign safe, secure and otherwise in compliance with the 
requirements of this Chapter within 30 days of written notice.  If the Sign Erector or Owner 
fails to comply within the allocated 30 day period, then the Building Inspector shall remove 
the offending sign within 48 hours from the time of written notification.  However, if the 



 2 

enforcing official determines that a sign is unsafe and an immediate hazard to health or 
safety, then the sign shall be removed or repaired at the owner’s expense within 48 hours 
of written notification of such condition. 

 
85.01.03   Definitions: For the purpose of this chapter, certain terms, words and tenses used 
herein, shall be interpreted or defined as follows: 
 
Board of Appeals: Board of Appeals means the Building Code Board of Appeals. 
 
Business Development: One or more uses within a building or buildings that share common 
parking facilities. 
 
Building Inspector: The Director of Building and Zoning or his/her authorized representative. 
 
Department: The Building Department of the City of Troy, its officers, inspectors and other 
employees. 
 
Ground Sign: A freestanding sign supported by one or more uprights, braces, or pylons located in 
or upon the ground and not attached to any building. 
 
Owner: A person, firm, partnership, association or corporation and/or their legal successors. 
 
Person: Any individual firm, partnership, association or corporation and their legal successors. 
 
Political Sign: A sign whose message relates to: The election of a person to public office, or to 
a political party, or to a public issue, which shall be voted on at an election called by a public 
body. 
 
Projecting Sign: A sign which is affixed to any building or part thereof, or structure, which extends 
beyond the building wall or parts thereof, or structure, by more than twelve (12) inches. 
 
Public Property: All publicly-owned property, including streets, rights-of-way, and everything 
affixed thereto and there over.  
 
Roof line: The vertical distance measured from the established grade to the highest point of the 
roof surface for flat roofs, the deck line of mansard roofs, and the average height between eaves 
and ridge boards for gable, hip and gambrel roofs. 
 
Roof Sign: A sign that is erected, constructed or maintained upon, and projects above or beyond 
the roof or parapet. 
 
Sign: A sign means any structure or wall or other object used for the display of any message, and 
includes but is not limited to any bill, poster, placard, handbill, flyer, painting, balloon, streamer or 
other similar object in any form whatsoever which contains printed or written matter in words, 
symbols, or pictures, or in any combination thereof attached to or affixed to the ground or any 
structure. 
 
Sign Erector: Any person engaged in the business of erecting, altering, or removing signs on a 
contractual or hourly basis. 
 



 3 

Wall Sign: A sign attached to, painted on, or placed flat against the exterior wall or surface of any 
building, no portion of which projects more than 12 inches from the wall, and which may not project 
above the roof or parapet line.  
 
85.01.04   Requirements for Permits 
 
A. Permit Required: It is unlawful for any person to erect, re-erect, alter, or relocate any sign 

without obtaining a permit from the Building Inspector and paying the applicable permit fee, 
as set forth-in Chapter 60 of the City Code. 

 
 Exceptions:   
 

1. Sign Permits shall not be required for street signs, which are erected by the City, 
State or Federal Government for street direction or traffic control.   

 
2. Sign Permits shall not be required for signs located on the interior of buildings.  
 
3. Sign Permits shall not be required for signs that are not visible from any adjacent 

right-of-way which do not exceed thirty-six square feet.  
 
4. Sign Permits shall not be required for small ground signs for uses other than one 

and two family dwellings, as long as the signs are not more than two square feet in 
area. 

 
5. Sign Permits shall not be required for temporary signs, as set forth in Section 

85.03.02 of this Chapter 
 
B.   Permit Application:  Applications for sign permits shall be made upon forms provided by 

the Department and shall contain the following information: 
 

1. Name, address and telephone number of applicant. 
 
2. Name and address of the Sign Erector. 
 
3. Location of the building or structure to which the sign is to be attached or lot where 

the sign is to be erected. 
 
4. Position of the sign in relation to nearby buildings, structures, property lines, and 

existing or proposed rights-of-way.  
 
5. The zoning district of the real property where the sign is to be located.  
 
6. Two copies of the plans and specifications for the proposed sign and the method of 

construction and attachment to the building or placement in the ground. 
 
7. If deemed necessary by the Building Inspector, two copies of stress sheets and 

calculations, bearing the signature and seal of a registered professional engineer or 
architect, which show the structure as designed for dead load and wind pressure, 
and demonstrate that the proposed sign will satisfy the regulations adopted by the 
City of Troy. 

 



 4 

8. Such other information as the Building Inspector may require to demonstrate that 
the proposed sign would meet full compliance with this and other applicable laws of 
the City of Troy and the State of Michigan. 

 
C.  Contractor Registration Required:   
 

1. All Sign Erectors, as defined in Section 85.01.03 of this Chapter, shall annually 
register with the Department.  The Sign Erector registrations shall expire April 1st of 
each year.  The registration fee is as set forth in Chapter 60 of the City Code. 

 
2. Insurance Requirement: The following insurance is required before a sign permit 

will be issued:   
 

a. Insurance Certificates: Before a permit is issued for the erection of a sign, 
the installing company shall submit a Certificate of Insurance for Public 
Liability in the amount of One Hundred Thousand ($100,000) Dollars for 
injuries to one person and Three Hundred Thousand ($300,000) Dollars for 
injury to more than one person, and Property Damage insurance in the 
amount of Twenty-Five Thousand ($25,000) Dollars for damage to any 
property due to the actions of the Sign Erector or any of their agents or 
employees. This Certificate shall be submitted to the Building Department, 
and approved by the City’s Risk Manager or his/her delegate.  

 
b. Lapsing of Insurance:  Sign Erectors shall maintain the above referenced 

insurance coverage at all times in order to be eligible to obtain sign permits.  
If the insurance coverage lapses at any time, the City can automatically 
revoke the right of a Sign Erector to obtain sign permits. 

 
c. Notification of Change: A Sign Erector shall notify the Building Department 

of any change in address, or any change in ownership or management that 
differs from what is indicated on the Insurance Certificates. 

 
D.   Permit Fees:  Permit fees are as set forth-in Chapter 60 of the City Code.   
 
85.01.05   Prohibited Signs 
 
A. Signs in Right-of-Way:  No sign shall be located in, project into, or overhang a public right-

of-way or dedicated public easement, except as provided below:   
 

1. Signs established and maintained by the City, County, State, or Federal 
Governments may be located in the right of way. 

 
2.  Banners advertising civic events may be permitted on lighting poles within the 

median of Big Beaver Road, between Rochester Road and Cunningham Drive, for 
a period not to exceed thirty days, subject to the approval of the City Manager. 

 
3.  In its discretion, City Council may approve an agreement to allow residential 

development identification signs in the medians of boulevard entrance streets.  Any 
such agreement shall require continuing liability insurance and also provide 
satisfactory maintenance of the sign, as well as any other condition that is deemed 
necessary by the Troy City Council to protect the right of way.  The agreement must 
also indicate the City Council’s approval of the proposed design and materials for 



 5 

the sign. The residential development identification sign shall not exceed five feet in 
height, and shall not be more than 50 square feet in area.  The height of such signs 
shall not exceed 30” when located in the corner clearance area depicted in Figure 
85.01.05 A. 

 

 
Figure 85.01.05 A 

 
B. Corner Clearance:  Signs higher than 30 inches shall be prohibited in the triangular area 

formed at the intersection of any two street right-of-way lines (existing or proposed) by a 
straight line drawn between said right-of-way lines at a distance along each line of 25 feet 
from their point of intersection. No sign shall be located in that area, or project into, or 
overhang into the area.    

 
C. Roof Projecting Signs:  Roof signs and projecting signs are prohibited. 
 
D. Fire Escapes: No signs of any kind shall be attached to or placed upon a building in such a 

manner as to obstruct any fire escape. 
 
E. Support Location: No pole, cable or support of any nature shall be placed on any publicly 

owned property, street right-of-way, or proposed street right-of-way. 
 
F. Traffic Interference: No advertising device shall be erected or maintained which simulates 

or imitates in size, color, lettering, or design any traffic sign or signal or other word, phrase, 
symbol, or character in such a manner as to interfere with, mislead, or confuse traffic. 

 
G. Flashing Signs: Flashing or intermittent illumination of signs shall be prohibited. 
 
H. Neon Tubes: Installation of neon tubing used as borders or accent strips on the exterior of 

any building shall be prohibited. 
 
85.10.06   Inspections 
 
A. Concealed Work:  In cases where fastenings are to be installed and enclosed in such a 

manner that the Building Inspector cannot easily remove material to see the fastenings and 
material used, the Sign Erector must advise the Building Inspector so that the inspection 
may be made before concealment. 

 
B.  Compliance Certification:  All signs shall be inspected at original installation; if found to 

comply with this chapter, the sign shall be issued a certificate of compliance. 
 



 6 

C: Inspections of Existing Signs:  The Building Inspector can inspect existing signs to 
determine compliance with the provisions of this chapter. 

 
85.01.07   Non-Conforming Signs: 
 
A. Intent:  It is the intent of this Chapter to encourage eventual elimination of signs that, as a 

result of the adoption of this Chapter, become non-conforming. It is considered as much a 
subject of health, safety, and welfare as the prohibition of new signs in violation of this 
Chapter.  It is the intent, therefore, to administer this Chapter to facilitate the removal of 
illegal non-conforming signs while simultaneously avoiding any unreasonable invasion of 
established private property rights. 

 
B. Continuance:  A non-conforming sign shall be maintained in good condition.  A non-

conforming sign may be continued, but shall not be: 
 
1. Replaced by another non-conforming sign; or  
 
2. Structurally altered so as to prolong the life of the sign; or 
 
3. Expanded; or  
 
4. Re-established after damage or destruction to the sign, if the estimated expense of 

reconstruction exceeds 50% of the estimated replacement cost of the sign. 
 
85.01.08   Appeals: 
 
A. Procedure 
 

1. Any person aggrieved by any decision, ruling or order from the Building Inspector 
may appeal that decision to the Board of Appeals.  The appeal shall be made by 
filing an application for a hearing with the Department.  The application shall specify 
the grounds for the appeal.  The Building Inspector shall transmit the application 
and all other documents relating to the appeal to the Board of Appeals.  Upon 
receipt of the Appeal Application, the Building Inspector shall administratively 
establish a date of the Public Hearing.   

 
2. The Building Inspector shall notify all owners of real property within 300 feet of the 

real property that is proposed as the site of the sign subject to the appeal.  The 
notice shall be sent by U.S. Mail to the owners at the address listed with the Troy 
Assessing Department, and shall be postmarked no less than 14 days before the 
date of the Public Hearing. 

 
B. Powers of the Board of Appeals 
 

1. The Board of Appeals has the power to grant specific variances from the 
requirements of this Chapter, upon a showing of each of the following:   

 
a. The variance would not be contrary to the public interest or general purpose 

and intent of this Chapter; and  
 
b. The variance does not adversely affect properties in the immediate vicinity 

of the proposed sign; and  



 7 

 
c. The petitioner has a hardship or practical difficulty resulting from the unusual 

characteristics of the property that precludes reasonable use of the 
property. 

 
2. Duration of Variances:  The Board of Appeals shall not grant any variance for a 

period that exceeds 15 years.  All variances shall terminate at the expiration of the 
period of time set by the Board of Appeals, or upon alteration or reconstruction of 
more than 50% of the sign, whichever occurs first. 

 
85.01.09   Violations 
 
A. It shall be unlawful for any person to erect, construct, maintain, enlarge, alter, move, or 

convert any sign in the City of Troy, or cause or permit the same to be done, contrary to or 
in violation of any of the provisions of this Chapter.  Any person violating any of the 
provisions of this Chapter shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction of any 
such violation, shall be punished with a fine of between $50 and $500 and/or incarceration 
of up to 90 days.  Any sign constituting an immediate hazard to health and safety is 
deemed a nuisance and may be removed by the Building Inspector at the expense of the 
owner of the sign or other responsible party, in the discretion of the Building Inspector. 

 
B. Signs in Public Right-of-Way:  In addition to the penalties prescribed in paragraph 85.01.09 

A, any sign erected in violation of this Chapter may be removed by the Building Inspector or 
his/her authorized representative and stored in a safe location for at least 48 hours.  During 
this period of time, the owner of the sign may obtain the sign from the Building Inspector 
upon request and payment of a fee of Fifty Dollars ($50) for each sign to cover the costs of 
removal and storage.  After 48 hours, the Building Inspector may dispose of the sign. 

 
C. Public Nuisance: Signs installed after the effective date of the adoption or subsequent 

amendment of this Chapter that are in violation of this Chapter are hereby declared to be 
public nuisances, and may be abated by the City.  The City can take any legal action to 
abate the public nuisance.  The collection of removal fees from the Owner, Sign Erector, or 
other responsible person shall not preclude the City from prosecuting the responsible 
person.  

 
 
85.02.00   General Provisions 
 
85.02.01  Construction Requirements 
 
A. Material Requirement:  All signs shall be designed and constructed in conformity to the 

provisions for materials, loads, and stresses of the latest adopted edition of the Michigan 
Building Code and the requirements of this Chapter. 

 
B. Fastenings:  All signs must be erected in such a manner and with such materials to remain 

safe and secure during the period of use and all bolts, cables, and other parts of such signs 
shall be kept painted and free from corrosion.   The Sign Erector shall repair any defect that 
is the fault of the Sign Erector.   

 
C. Changeable Message Signs: The message change cycle of a changeable message sign 

shall be not less than one minute per message, except in a combined time and temperature 
sign, where the change cycle shall not be less than 30 seconds. 



 8 

 
D. Revolving Signs: Signs that revolve shall make no more than four complete revolutions per 

minute. 
 
E. Proximity to Electrical Conductors: No sign shall be erected so that any part, including 

cables, guys, etc, will be within six feet of any electrical conductor, electric light pole, street 
lamp, traffic light, or other public utility pole or standard. 

 
F. Sanitation: Property surrounding any ground sign shall be kept clean, sanitary, free from 

obnoxious and offensive substances, free from weeds, rubbish, and inflammable material. 
 
85.02.02   Illuminated Signs: 
 
A. Illumination:  Only listed electrical devices shall be used for the illumination of signs.  These 

listed electrical devices shall be installed in accordance with the requirements of the 
regulations adopted by the City of Troy.  No open spark of flame may be used for display 
purposes unless specifically approved by the Building Inspector. 

 
B. Shielding from Residential Districts:  Any lighting used to illuminate signs shall be directed 

away from and shall be shielded from any adjacent residential zoning districts and shall not 
adversely affect driver visibility on adjacent public thoroughfares. 

 
85.02.03   Identification of Sign Erector: 
 
A. Sign Erector's Imprint: Every sign, other than temporary signs herein defined, must carry 

the identification of the Sign Erector, in clearly legible letters. 
 
B. Re-hanging: In case of re-hanging or re-erection of any sign, the Sign Erector must place 

his/her identification and the date of the re-hanging on the sign. 
 
85.02.04  Measurement of Signs: 
 
A. Sign Area:  For the purpose of this Chapter, the area of the sign shall include the total area 

within any circle, triangle, rectangle or other geometric shape enclosing the extreme limits 
of writing, representation, emblem or any similar figure, together with any frame or other 
material forming an integral part of the display or used to differentiate such sign from the 
background against which it is placed, and is further calculated as follows: 

 
1. Single Face Sign:  For a single face sign, the area shall be computed as the total 

exposed exterior surface in square feet.   
 

2. Multi-faced Signs:  When the sign has two or more faces, the area of all faces shall 
be included in computing the area of the sign. 

 
 Exceptions: 
 

1. For a sign that has two or more faces placed back to back, the area shall be 
computed as one-half the total exposed exterior surface area in square feet. 

 
2. For a sign that has two or more faces so arranged that the faces are greater 

than 24 inches from one another or such sign with any two faces that form a 



 9 

"V" is greater than 15 degrees, the area shall be computed as a single face 
sign. 

 
3. Wall Signs:  When a sign consists solely of writing, representation, emblems, logos, 

or any other figure or similar character which is painted or mounted on the wall of a 
building or a self-supporting wall or fence, without distinguishing border, the area of 
such sign shall be computed as if it were framed by a border consisting of horizontal 
and vertical lines touching the outer limits of the sign and extending not more than 
one foot from smaller sign elements.  However, in no instance shall there be any line 
having a dimension of less than one foot. 

 
B. Sign Height:  The height of the sign is measured from the ground to the highest point of the 

sign from the ground. 
 
85.02.05   Allowable Signs: 
 
A. The Zoning District Regulations and Table 85.02.05 set forth the allowable signs in each 

zoning districts.  These are in addition to the signage allowed by Section 85.01.04 A 
 
B. Nothing in this Chapter shall be construed so as to prohibit ideological or non-commercial 

advertising on any sign on which commercial advertising is allowed 
 
C. Specific Zoning District Regulations 
 

1. R-1 and R-2 Districts:  Signs in single-family and two-family districts shall be 
allowed as follows: 

 
a. For Special Approval Uses listed in Chapter 39, Section 10.30.00 of the 

Troy City Code:  One sign not to exceed 100 square feet in area. 
 
b. For Subdivision Entrances:  One sign not to exceed 100 square feet in 

area. 
 
c. For Subdivisions Under Development:  One sign not to exceed 100 square 

feet in area is allowed until such time as a certificate of occupancy is issued 
for all homes. 

 
2. R-M, RI-T, CR-1 and C-F Districts:  Signs in Multiple Family Housing or Cluster 

Housing, and Community Facility Developments shall be allowed as follows: 
 

a. One sign not to exceed 100 square feet in area. 
 
b. One additional sign not to exceed 36 square feet in area. 
 
c. No sign shall be located closer than 30 feet to any property line of an 

adjacent R-1 or R-2 District. 
 

3 All O and R-C Districts:  Signs in Office and Research Center districts shall be 
allowed as follows: 

 
a. One wall sign for each building, not to exceed 10% of the area of the front 

of the structure to a maximum size of 200 square feet in area.  



 10 

 
b. One ground sign for each building in accordance with Table 85.02.05. 
 
c. One additional ground sign for each building, not to exceed thirty-six 

square feet in area, if the site fronts on a major thoroughfare. 
 
d. Each tenant on the ground floor may have one wall sign, which shall not 

exceed 20 square feet in area.  The sign must be located on the face of the 
area occupied by the tenant.   

 
e. No sign shall be located closer than 30 feet to any property line of an 

adjacent R-1 or R-2 district. 
 

4. B-1, B-2, B-3 and H-S Districts:  Signs for each business development in the 
Commercial Districts shall be allowed as follows: 

 
a. One ground sign in accordance with Table 85.02.05.   

 
b. One additional ground sign, not to exceed thirty-six square feet in area if 

the site fronts on a Major Thoroughfare. 
 
c. The required setback for ground signs from adjacent residentially zoned 

property shall be the same as for buildings within the zoning district.  
 

d. Any number of wall signs, such that the total combined area of all wall signs 
for each tenant shall not exceed 10% of the front area of the structure or 
tenant area.  Wall signs must be located on the face of the area that is 
occupied by the tenant. 

 
5. M-1 Districts:  Signs for each M-1 development shall be allowed as follows:   

 
a. One ground sign in accordance with Table 85.02.05.   
 
b. One additional ground sign, not to exceed thirty-six square feet in area, if 

the site fronts on a Major Thoroughfare. 
 
c. One wall sign for each building, not to exceed 10% of the area of the front 

of the structure, up to a maximum of 100 square feet. 
 
d. One wall sign, not to exceed 20 square feet in area, for each tenant in 

multi-tenant buildings. Tenant signs must be located on the face of the area 
that is occupied by the tenant. 

 
e.  One additional ground sign, provided it complies with all of the following: 

 
1. The sign is set back a minimum of 200 feet from any street right-of-

way. 
 
2. The sign is located at least 1,000 feet from any sign exceeding 100 

square feet in area. 
 
3. The sign does not exceed 300 square feet in area.  



 11 

 
4. The sign does not exceed 25 feet in height. 

 
f. A dealership within a Planned Auto Center shall be allowed the following 

additional signage:   
 

1. One ground sign, in accordance with Table 85.02.05. 
 
2. Two wall signs, with each sign being 20 square feet in area or less. 

 
g. No sign shall be located closer than 50 feet to any property line of an 

adjacent R-1 or R-2 district. 
 

TABLE 85.02.05 
STANDARDS FOR GROUND SIGNS 

Zoning District Minimum Setbacks* Maximum Height Maximum Area 
All R and C-F 10 ft. from Street 12 ft. See Section 

85.02.05,C,1 & 
85.02.05,C,2 

0 ft. - 20 ft. 10 ft. 50 sq. ft. 
20 ft. - 30 ft 20 ft. 100 sq. ft. 

All B, H-S, O, R-C and 
Planned Auto Centers in 
M-1 

30 ft. + 25 ft. 200 sq. ft. 
M-1 10 ft  12 ft. 100 sq. ft. Max.  

See Section 
85.02.05,C,5,e 

* Indicates setback from existing street right-of-way, or from planned right-of-way (Master 
Thoroughfare Plan), whichever is greater. 
 
85.03.00  General Exceptions 
 
85.03.01   Special Event Signs 
 
A  Signs advertising a Special Event may be allowed for events that include, but are not 

limited to, grand openings, vehicle shows/displays, craft shows, benefit rummage/bake 
sales and festivals as long as a Special Event Sign permit is issued.  The application for a 
Special Event sign permit shall be submitted to the Building Inspector, and shall include 
the following:   

 
1. Plans indicating the following: 

 
a. Site layout (building location, parking, etc.) 
 
b. Number, size and location of proposed signs, including banners, flags, cold 

air balloons, and other forms of signage. 
 

2. Documentation detailing the purpose of the event and desired dates for the 
placement of the Special Event signs.   

 
3. If the applicant for the Special Event Sign permit is not the property owner of the 

site where the signage is proposed to be located, then the written approval of 
property owner must be submitted with the application.  



 12 

 
4. The required application fee, as set forth in Chapter 60 of the Troy City Code.   

 
Exception:  All fees for a Special Event sign application shall be waived for all non-
profit applicants who provide satisfactory proof of the non-profit status to the 
Building Inspector. 
 

B A Special Event Sign permit shall be issued for not more than seven (7) consecutive days 
within any twelve (12) month period. 

 
C. No more than four off-site signs related to a Special Event may be permitted.  Such off-site 

signs shall each be limited to six (6) square feet in area.  Applicant must also submit 
written approval from the owners of properties where the off-site Special Event Signs are 
proposed to be located.  This permission must be provided prior to the issuance of a 
permit. 

 
85.03.02   Temporary Signs  
 

 
A. Temporary signs include, but are not limited to the following:    

 
1. For a single dwelling or building or vacant land: an on-site real estate sign, 

advertising the premise for sale, rent or lease.  
 
2. For a single dwelling or building or vacant land: an off-site real estate sign for the 

purpose of providing direction to another premise that is offered for sale, rent, or 
lease. 

 
3. An on-site sign advertising an on-going garage, estate or yard sale. 
 
4. An off-site sign for the purpose of providing direction to another premise that is 

having a garage, estate or yard sale, as long as the dates of the sale are clearly 
indicated on the sign. 

 
5. Non-commercial signs, which contain non-commercial informational or directional 

messages.  
 
6. Political signs 
 
7. Holiday or other seasonal signs  
 
8. Construction signs for buildings under construction.  
 
9. Flags that are attached to a structure or a standardized flagpole.   

 
B. All temporary signs must comply with all of the following regulations:   

 
1. Size of Temporary Signs: The temporary signs shall not exceed six square feet in 

area and shall not be higher than thirty-six (36) inches above average mean 
grade of the yard on which it is placed. 

 
Exceptions: 



 13 

 
1. Flags may be no larger than 3’ x 5’ 
 
2. For uses other than one and two family dwellings, signs for buildings under 

construction shall be a maximum size of 10% of the square foot area of the 
front of the structure, and not more than 10 feet in height. 

 
3. One sign advertising the sale or lease of vacant land, when the parcel 

exceeds two acres in area, shall be allowed to have a size equal to 15 
square feet of sign area per acre of land or 15 square feet of sign area 
per 100 lineal feet of thoroughfare frontage.  In no case shall the sign be 
allowed to exceed 100 square feet of sign area or be more than 10 feet in 
height. 

 
2. Number of Temporary Signs:  There shall be a maximum of three temporary 

signs on each parcel of real property at any given time. 
 

3. Location of Temporary Signs: 
 
a. Temporary signs shall not be attached to any utility pole or be located 

within any public right-of-way 
 
b. Temporary signs shall not be located closer than twenty (20) feet to the 

edge of the traveled portion of the roadway and shall not be located in a 
dedicated right-of-way.  

 
c. Temporary signs shall not be erected in such a manner that they will or 

reasonably may be expected to interfere with, obstruct, confuse or 
mislead traffic.   

 
d. Temporary signs cannot be placed or constructed so as to create a 

hazard of any kind.   
 
e. Prior to the erection or placement of a temporary sign, the permission of 

the property owner where the sign is to be located must be secured.      
 

4. Time Limitations for Temporary Signs:  Each temporary sign shall be removed 
within 90 days of placement. 

 
85.03.03   Signs on Motor Vehicles  
 
A. No person, corporation, partnership or other legal business entity shall stand or park a 

motor vehicle on public or private property in the City of Troy for the purpose of advertising 
same "for sale" or "for trade". 
 
Exceptions: 

 
1. Properly licensed auto dealerships and properly licensed used car lots. 

 
2. The owner of a motor vehicle who places a “for sale” or “for trade” sign on or within 

the vehicle provided: 
 



 14 

a. The vehicle is located only on the vehicle owner’s residential property; and; 
 

b. The owner of the vehicle displays a clearly visible sign on the vehicle 
indicating the owner’s name and address; and 

 
c. Not more than one vehicle is displayed on the residential property. 

 
3. The owner of non-residential property who places or allows to be placed a “for 

sale” or “for trade” sign on or within the vehicle provided: 
 

a. Not more than one vehicle is displayed on the nonresidential property; and 
 

b. The owner of the vehicle displays a clearly visible sign indicating the 
nonresidential property owner’s consent to the display of the vehicle. 

 
B. A displayed message containing a phone number in or on a parked motor vehicle that is 

or was visible constitutes a presumption that it is or was for the purpose of offering the 
vehicle for sale or trade. 

 
C. Proof that the vehicle described in the complaint was parked in violation of this Section, 

together with proof that the defendant named in the complaint was at the time of the cited 
parking the registered owner of the vehicle constitutes a presumption that the registered 
owner is responsible for the violation. 
 
 
 
 

Section 2.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the time this 
Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be consummated under and 
according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This 
ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent 
prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended 
by this ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date 
of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the 
effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date 
of this ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time 
of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 3.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid or 
unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 4.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, 
whichever shall later occur. 
 
 
 



 15 

 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ 
day of _____________, ____. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                      Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 

 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 60 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 60, 
Section 60.03, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 60, Section 60.03 – Fee Schedule, shall be amended by adding the 
following items: 
 
 

ITEM/SERVICE: FEE: 
Sign Permits (Chapter 85)  
Painted Wall Sign – under 100 square feet $75.00 
Painted Wall Sign – 101 – 200 square feet $100.00 
Painted Wall Sign – 201 – 300 square feet $100.00 
Attached Wall Sign – under 100 square feet $100.00 
Attached Wall Sign – 101 – 200 square feet $125.00 
Attached Wall Sign – 201 – 300 square feet $150.00 
Ground Sign – under 100 square feet $125.00 
Ground Sign – 101 – 200 square feet $150.00 
Ground Sign – 201 – 300 square feet $175.00 
Special Event Sign $30.00 
 
 
 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 



accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ____. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 3 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 3 – 
Administrative Service, Section 1.141(6), of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 3, Section 1.141(6), shall be amended as follows 
 
1.141(6) A City of Troy Building Department Inspector shall have authority to issue and 
serve upon a person an appearance ticket if he/she has reasonable cause to believe 
that the person has committed a violation of any of the following provisions of the Troy 
City Code. 
 
Chapter 2: House Numbering and Street Naming 
Chapter 16: Garbage and Rubbish 
Chapter 18: City Water Utility 
Chapter 19: City Sewer Service 
Chapter 20: Water and Sewer Rates 
Chapter 39: Zoning 
Chapter 47: House Trailers and Trailer Courts 
Chapter 48: Litter 
Chapter 64: Gasoline Stations 
Chapter 67: Dances and Dance Halls 
Chapter 68: Amusements and Recreation Places 
Chapter 69: Miscellaneous Licensed Businesses 
Chapter 70: Self Service Laundries and Dry Cleaners 
Chapter 71: Auto Wash 
Chapter 73: Drive-In Restaurant 
Chapter 79: General Building Regulations 
Chapter 79-A: One and Two Family Dwellings 
Chapter 81: Moving of Buildings 
Chapter 82: Property Maintenance Regulations 
Chapter 82-A: Rental and Dwelling Inspection and Enforcement 
Chapter 82-B: Dangerous Buildings 
Chapter 83: Fences 
Chapter 85: Signs 
Chapter 85-A. Political Signs 
Chapter 88: Nuisances 
Chapter 93: Fire and Explosives (provisions related to building codes) 
Chapter 97: Coin-Operated Amusement Devices and Arcades 
 
 
 



Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ____. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 
 



1 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL 
CHAPTER 78 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as repeal of Chapter 78 of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Repeal 
 
Chapter 78 – Signs of the Code of the City of Troy shall be repealed in its entirety. 

 
 

Chapter 78 
 

Signs 
 
1.00  Short Title 
 
  This Ordinance shall be known as and may be cited as the City of Troy Sign Ordinance. 
 
2.00  General Provisions 
 
2.01  Findings and Purpose: 
 
  It is hereby determined that proliferation of signs in the City is unduly distracting to motorists 

and pedestrians, creates a traffic hazard, and reduces the effectiveness of signs needed to 
direct and warn the public.  It is also determined that the appearance of the City is marred 
by proliferation of signs.  It is also determined that proliferation of signs restricts light and air. 
 It is also determined that proliferation of signs negatively affects property values.  It is also 
determined that proliferation of signs results in an inappropriate use of land.  The purpose of 
this Ordinance is to control the occurrence and size of signs in order to reduce the 
aforementioned negative effects.  It is also determined that the signs of least value to 
people within the City are those which carry commercial messages other than the 
advertisement of any product, service, event, person, institution or business located on the 
premises where the sign is located or indicates the sale or rental of such premises.  It is also 
determined that the regulations contained in this Ordinance are the minimum amount of 
regulation necessary to achieve its purposes.  It is also determined that restrictions in this 
Ordinance on the size of signs, their height and placement on real estate, are the minimum 
amount necessary to achieve its purposes. 

 
2.02  Definitions: For the purpose of this chapter, certain terms, words and tenses used herein, 

shall be interpreted or defined as follows: 
 
2.02.01 Sign: A sign means any structure or wall or other object used for the display of any message.  

Nothing in this ordinance shall be construed so as to prohibit ideological or noncommercial 
advertising on any sign on which commercial advertising is permitted. 

 
2.02.02 Roof Sign: A sign which is erected, constructed or maintained upon, and projects above or beyond 

the roof or parapet. 
 



2 

2.02.03 Ground Sign: A free standing sign supported by one or more uprights, braces, or pylons located in 
or upon the ground and not attached to any building. 

 
2.02.04 Projecting Sign: A sign which is affixed to any building or part thereof, or structure, which extends 

beyond the building wall or parts thereof, or  structure by more than twelve (12) inches. 
 
(Rev. 04-24-95) 
 



3 

 
2.02.05 Wall Sign: A sign attached to, painted on, or placed flat against the exterior wall or surface of any 

building, no portion of which projects more than 12 inches from the wall, and which may not 
project above the roof or parapet line. The roof line means the vertical distance measured 
from the established grade to the highest point of the roof surface for flat roofs, the deck line 
of mansard roofs, and the average height between eaves and ridge boards for gable, hip 
and gambrel roofs. 

 
2.02.06 Building Inspector: The Director of Building and Zoning or his authorized representative. 
 
  (Rev. 08-02-99) 
 
2.02.07 Department: The Building Department of the City of Troy, its officers, inspectors and other 

employees. 
 
2.02.08 Owner: A person, firm, partnership, association or corporation and/or their legal successors. 
 
2.02.09 Person: Any individual firm, partnership, association or corporation and their legal successors. 
 
2.02.10 Sign Erector: Any person engaged in the business of erecting, altering, or removing signs on a 

contractual or hourly basis. 
 
2.02.11 Board of Appeals: Board of Appeals means the Building Code Board of Appeals. 
 
  (Rev. 07-19-99) 
 
3.00  Signs Not Requiring Permits: 
 
  No erection permit shall be required for signs enumerated as follows by this paragraph.  

Such exemptions, however, shall not be construed to relieve the owner of the sign from 
responsibility for its proper location, erection, and maintenance. 

 
3.01  Small Signs: Any sign erected on a premise which is not more than two square feet in area. 
 
3.02  Sale, Rent or Lease Signs: Signs not to exceed six (6) square feet in area used to advertise 

real estate or garage sales and directional signs for such sales as further described below 
and limited to a height of 42".  Signs located in a corner clearance shall not exceed 30" in 
height. 

 
  A. A real estate sign advertising a premise for sale, rent or lease, for a single dwelling 

or building or vacant land. 
 
  B. A real estate sign for the purpose of providing direction may be located on private 

property on Sundays, Tuesdays and Saturdays with permission from the property 
owner. 

 
  C. A garage sale sign having the dates of the sale clearly indicated for the purpose of 

providing direction may be located on private property on Thursday, Friday, 
Saturday and Sundays with permission from the property owner. 

   (Rev. 06-07-99) 



4 

 
3.03  Street Signs: Signs erected by the City, County, State or Federal Government for street 

direction or traffic control. 
 
3.04  Non-commercial Signs: Signs containing non-commercial informational or directional 

messages which do not exceed six square feet in area. 
 
3.05  Interior Building Signs: Signs located on the interior of buildings. 
 
3.06  Signs Not Visible From Rights of Way: Signs not visible from any adjacent right-of-way 

which do not exceed thirty-six square feet. 
 
3.07  Corporate Flags: Not more than one corporate flag when flown in conjunction with the 

American or State flag. 
 
  (Rev. 11-27-95) 
 
4.00  Administration 
 
4.01  Enforcement: This Chapter shall be administered and enforced by the Building Inspector as 

provided for in Chapter 1 of the Troy City Code. 
 
4.02  Permit Required: It shall be unlawful for any person to erect, re-erect, alter, or relocate any 

sign unless a permit shall have been first obtained from the Building Inspector, except as 
provided in Section 03.00 and a permit fee paid in accordance with the schedule adopted by 
resolution of the City Council. 

 
4.03  Application: Applications for sign permits shall be made upon forms provided by the Building 

Department for this purpose and shall contain the following information: 
 
4.03.01 Name, address and telephone number of applicant. 
 
4.03.02 Location of the building, structure, or lot to which the sign is to be attached or erected. 
 
4.03.03 Position of the sign in relation to nearby buildings, structures, property lines, and rights-of-way 

existing or proposed. 
 
4.03.04 Two copies of the plans and specifications and method of construction and attachment to the 

building or in the ground. 
 
4.03.05 Copy of stress sheets and calculations, if deemed necessary, showing the structure as designed for 

dead load and wind pressure in accordance with the regulations adopted by the City of 
Troy. 

 
4.03.06 Name and address of the sign erector. 
 
(04-24-95) 
 
4.03.07 Insurance policy as required herein. 
 
4.03.08 Such other information as the Building Inspector may require to show full compliance with this and 

other applicable laws of the City of Troy and the State of Michigan. 



5 

 
4.03.09 When the public safety so requires, the application containing the aforesaid material shall, in 

addition, bear the certificate or seal of a registered structural or civil engineer as a condition 
to the issuance of a permit. 

 
4.03.10 Indicate the zoning district that the sign is to be located in. 
 
4.04  Insurance Requirement: Permits may be issued to sign erectors only under the following 

conditions. 
 
4.04.01 Insurance Certificates: Before a permit is issued for the erection of a sign, the installing company 

shall submit for filing with the Building Department, a Certificate of Insurance, approved by 
the City Attorney, for Public Liability in the amount of One Hundred Thousand ($100,000) 
Dollars for injuries to one person and Three Hundred Thousand ($300,000) Dollars for injury 
to more than one person, and Property Damage insurance in the amount of Twenty-Five 
Thousand ($25,000) Dollars for damage to any property due to the actions of himself or any 
of his agents or employees. 

 
4.04.02 Lapsing of Insurance:  At any time the insurance of any sign erector is permitted to lapse, his right 

to obtain permits shall automatically be revoked.  
 
4.04.03 Notification of Change: A sign erector shall notify the Building Department of any change in 

address, and if a firm or corporation, an change in ownership or management if other than 
that indicated on the Insurance Certificates. 

 
4.04.04 Registration Required:  Sign erectors shall be registered with the City of Troy; registrations shall 

expire April 1st of each year.  Registration fee shall be established by a schedule adopted 
by resolution of the City Council. 

 
5.00  Permit Fees:  Permit fees shall be determined based on size, type and height according to 

the following schedule: 
 
     WALL SIGNS     GROUND SIGNS 

  Painted on wall Structurally Attached 
AREA  
 
Under 100 sq. ft. $  75.00   $ 100.00    $125.00 
100 to 200 sq. ft.   100.00      125.00      150.00 
200 to 300 sq. ft.    100.00       150.00      175.00 
___________________________________________________________________________________  

 
  EXCEPTION:   Special Event Signs $30.00 per event. 
 
  (Rev. 10-6-97) 
 
6.00  Construction Requirements 
 
6.01  General Provisions: 
 
6.01.01 Material Requirement:  All signs shall be designed and constructed in conformity to the provisions 

for materials, loads, and stresses of the latest adopted edition of the B.O.C.A. Code and 
requirements of this Chapter. 



6 

 
6.01.02 Fastenings:  All signs must be erected in such a manner and with such materials to remain safe 

and secure during the period of use and all bolts, cables, and other parts of such signs shall 
be kept painted and free from corrosion. Any defect due to the fault of the erector shall be 
repaired by the erector. 

 
6.01.03 Fire Escapes: No signs of any kind shall be attached to or placed upon a building in such a manner 

as to obstruct any fire escape. 
 
6.01.04 Support Location: No pole, cable or support of any nature shall be placed on any publicly owned 

property, street right-of-way, or proposed street right-of-way. 
 
6.01.05 Flashing Signs: Flashing or intermittent illumination of signs shall be prohibited. 
 
6.01.06 Changeable Message Signs: The message change cycle of a changeable message sign shall be 

not less than one minute per message, except in a combined time and temperature sign 
where the change cycle shall not be less that 30 seconds. 

 
6.01.07 Revolving Signs: Signs that revolve shall make no more than four complete revolutions per minute. 
 
6.01.08 Traffic Interference: No advertising device shall be erected or maintained which simulates or 

imitates in size, color, lettering, or design any traffic sign or signal or other word, phrase, 
symbol, or character in such a manner as to interfere with, mislead, or confuse traffic. 

 
6.01.09 Rehanging: In case of rehanging or re-erection of any sign, the erector must place his identification 

and the date on the sign. 
 
6.01.10 Proximity to Electrical Conductors: No sign shall be erected so that any part including cables, guys, 

etc. will be within six feet of any electrical conductor, electric light pole, street lamp, traffic 
light, or other public utility pole or standard. 

 
6.01.11 Sanitation: Property surrounding any ground sign shall be kept clean, sanitary, free from obnoxious 

and offensive substances, free from weeds, rubbish, and inflammable material. 
 
6.01.12 Responsibility of Compliance: The owner of any property on which a sign is placed, and the person 

maintaining said sign, are equally responsible for the condition of the sign and the area in 
the vicinity thereof. 

 
6.01.13 Erector's Imprint: Signs of every class must carry the identification of the sign erector in clearly 

legible letters. 
 
6.02  Compliance Certificate Required: 
  (Rev. 04-24-95) 
 
6.02.01 Compliance Certification: All signs shall be inspected at original installation; if found to comply with 

this chapter, the sign shall be issued a certificate of compliance. 
 
6.02.02 Inspections: The Director of Building and Zoning shall cause existing signs to be inspected if 

deemed necessary by him to determine continuation of compliance with the provisions of 
this chapter. 

 
  (Rev. 7-12-99) 



7 

 
6.02.03 Concealed Work:  In cases where fastenings are to be installed and enclosed in such a manner that 

the Building Inspector cannot easily remove material to see the fastenings and material 
used, the sign erector must advise the Building Inspector so that the inspection may be 
made before concealment. 

 
6.02.04 Removal of Signs:  Should any sign be found unsafe, insecure, improperly constructed or not in 

accordance with the requirements of this Chapter, the erector and/or owner shall be 
required to make the sign safe, secure and otherwise in compliance with the requirements 
of this Chapter within 30 days of notice.  Failure to comply shall result in an order to remove 
the sign within 48 hours from the time of notification in writing. 

 
  Exception:  Existing signs determined to be unsafe and an immediate hazard to health or 

safety shall be removed or repaired at the owner's expense within 48 hours of notification. 
 
6.03  Illuminated Signs: 
 
6.03.01 Illumination:  No sign shall be illuminated by other than approved electrical devices and shall be 

installed in accordance with the requirements of the regulations adopted by the City of Troy. 
 No open spark of flame may be used for display purposes unless specifically approved by 
the Building Inspector. 

 
6.03.02 Shielding from Residential Districts:  Any lighting for the illumination of signs shall be directed away 

from and shall be shielded from any adjacent residential zoning districts and shall not 
adversely affect driver visibility on adjacent public thoroughfares. 

 
7.00  Regulations for Permitted Signs 
 
  General Provisions:  The following conditions shall apply to all signs erected or located in 

any zoning district. 
 
7.01.01 Signs in Right-of-Way:  No sign shall be located in, project into, or overhang a public right-of-way or 

dedicated public easement. 
 
  Exceptions: 
 
  A) Signs established and maintained by the City, County, State, or Federal 

Governments. 
 
  B) Banners, advertising civic events may be permitted on lighting poles within the 

median of Big Beaver Road, between Rochester Road and Cunningham Drive, for a 
period not to exceed thirty days, subject to the approval of the City Manager. 

 
   (Rev. 07-17-00) 
 
  C) Residential development identification signs not more than five feet in height and not 

more than 50 square feet in area located within the median of boulevard entrance 
streets subject to City Council approval of design and materials and further subject 
to the execution of an agreement with the City of Troy covering liability and 
maintenance of the sign. The height of such signs shall further be subject to the 
corner clearance requirements of Figure 7.01.01. 

 
   (Rev. 11-04-02) 



8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Rev. 11-05-01) 
 
7.01.02 Signs Overhanging Intersections:  No sign above a height of 30 inches shall be located within, 

project into, or overhang the triangular area formed at the intersection of any two street 
right-of-way lines (existing or proposed) by a straight line drawn between said right-of-way 
lines at a distance along each line of 25 feet from their point of intersection. 

 
7.01.03 Construction Signs:  A building under construction may have one sign on the site of construction.  

The sign may not exceed 10% of the square foot area of the front of the structure with a 
maximum size of 200 square feet. 

 
7.01.04 Roof Projecting Signs:  Roof signs and projecting signs are prohibited. 
 
  Vacant Land Signs: 
 
  (a) One sign not to exceed six square feet in area on parcels of vacant land two acres 

in size or less. 
 
  (b) Signs on parcels of vacant land exceeding two acres shall not exceed 15 square 

feet of sign per acre of land or 15 square feet of sign per 100 lineal feet of 
thoroughfare frontage, not to exceed 100 square feet of sign area.  Signs shall be 
spaced 200 feet or more apart. 

 
7.01.06 For Sale or Lease Signs:  For sale or lease signs shall be removed within 10 days of sale or lease 

or within one year of date of installation, whichever occurs first. 
 
7.01.07 Neon Tubes: Installation of neon tubing used as borders or accent strips on the exterior of any 

building shall be prohibited. 
 
  (10-19-98) 
 



9 

8.00  Measurement of Signs: 
 
8.01.00 Sign Area:  For the purpose of this Chapter, the area of the sign shall include the total area within 

any circle, triangle, rectangle or other geometric shape enclosing the extreme limits of 
writing, representation, emblem or any similar figure, together with any frame or other 
material forming an integral part of the display or used to differentiate such sign from the 
background against which it is placed. 

 
8.01.01 Single Face Sign:  For a single face sign, the area shall be computed as the total exposed exterior 

surface in square feet.   
 
8.01.02 Multi-faced Signs:  When the sign  has two or more faces, the area of all faces shall be included in 

computing the area of the sign. 
 
  Exceptions: 
 
  1. For a sign that has two or more faces placed back to back, the area shall be 

computed as one-half the total exposed exterior surface area in square feet. 
 
  2. For a sign that has two or more faces so arranged that the faces are greater than 24 

inches from one another or such sign with any two faces that form a "V" is greater 
than 15 degrees, the area shall be computed as a single face sign. 

 
8.01.03 Wall Signs:  When a sign consists solely of writing, representation, emblems, logos, or any other 

figure or similar character which is painted or mounted on the wall of a building or a self-
supporting wall or fence, without distinguishing border, the area of such sign shall be 
computed as if it were framed by a border consisting of horizontal and vertical lines touching 
the outer limits of the sign and extending not more than one foot from smaller sign 
elements.  However, in no instance shall there be any line having a dimension of less than 
one foot. 

 
  (Rev. 04-24-95) 
 
8.02  Sign Height:  The height of the sign is measured from the ground to the highest point of the 

sign from the ground. 
 
9.00  Schedule of Sign Regulations: 
 
9.01   Permitted Signs:  Except as otherwise provided herein, signs shall only be permitted 

according to the following Tables, and Zoning District Regulations. 
 



10 

STANDARDS FOR GROUND SIGNS 
 
 TABLE A - GENERAL PROVISIONS  
 
 Zoning    Minimum  Maximum   Maximum 
 District    Setbacks  Height    Area 
___________________________________________________________________________________  

 
 All R and C-F   10 ft. from  l2 ft.    See 09.02.01 & 
     Street       09.02.02 
___________________________________________________________________________________  

 
 All B, H-S, O, 
 R-C and Planned  O*   See Table B   See Table B 
 Auto Centers in 
 M-1 
___________________________________________________________________________________  

 
 M-    10 ft   12 ft.    100 sq. ft. Max. 
     from street*      See 09.02.05 
     50 ft. from 
     "R" Dist. 
___________________________________________________________________________________  

 
 
 TABLE B - HEIGHT AND AREA REQUIREMENTS IN "O"  "B", "H-S",  
 "R-C" AND PLANNED AUTO CENTER DISTRICT  
 
 Setback Range   Height Maximum   Area Maximum 
 
 O ft. - 20 ft.    10 ft.     50 sq. ft. 
 20 ft. - 30 ft    20 ft.     100 sq. ft. 
 30 ft. +     25 ft.     200 sq. ft. 
___________________________________________________________________________________  

 
  * Indicates setback from existing street right-of-way, or 
    from planned right-of-way (Master Thoroughfare Plan), 
    whichever is greater. 

 
(Rev. 04-24-95) 



11 

 
9.02  Zoning District Regulations: 
 
9.02.01 R-1 and R-2 Districts:  Signs in single-family and two-family districts shall be permitted as follows: 
 
  A. Dwelling Units:  Not more than one of each sign described in Section 3.02. 
 
  B. Special Approval Uses Listed in Chapter 39, Section 10.30.00 and Subdivision 

Entrances:  One sign not to exceed 100 square feet in area. 
 
  C. Subdivision Under Development:  Signs in a subdivision being developed shall not 

exceed 200 square feet in area, and shall be spaced a minimum of 200 feet apart. 
 
9.02.02 RM, RIT, CR-1 and CF Districts:  Signs in Multiple Family Housing or Cluster Housing, and 

Community Facility Developments shall be permitted as follows: 
 
  A. One sign not to exceed 100 square feet in area. 
 
  B. One additional sign not to exceed 36 square feet in area. 
 
  C. No sign shall be located closer than 30 feet to any property line of an adjacent R-1 

or R-2 District. 
 
9.02.03 All O and R-C Districts:  Each building shall be permitted signs as follows: 
 
  A. One wall sign for each building, not to exceed 10% of the area of the front of the 

structure to a maximum size of 200 square feet in area.  
 
  B. One ground sign in accordance with tables "A" and "B". 
 
   Exception:  No sign shall be located closer than 30 feet to any property line of 

adjacent residential district. 
 
  C. One ground sign not to exceed thirty-six square feet in area when the site fronts a 

major thoroughfare. 
 
  D. Each tenant may have one wall sign on the ground floor not to exceed 20 square 

feet in area.  The sign must be located on the face of the area occupied by the 
tenant.  Individual ground signs for each tenant within an office building  shall not 
be permitted. 

 
9.02.04 B-1, B-2, B-3 and H-S Districts:  Each business development (one or more uses within a building 

or buildings using common parking facilities) shall be permitted signs as follows: 
 
  A. Ground Sign:  One ground sign in accordance with Tables "A" and "B" above plus 

one not to exceed thirty-six square feet in area when the site fronts on a Major 
Throughfare. 

 
   Exception: The Required setback for ground signs from adjacent residentially 

zoned property shall be the same as for buildings within the zoning district. 
(Rev. 04-24-95) 



12 

 
  B. Wall Sign:  The total combined area of all  wall signs for each tenant shall not 

exceed 10% of the front area of structure or tenant area.  The signs must be 
located on the face of an area occupied by the tenant. 

 
9.02.05 M-1 Districts:  Each M-1 development shall be permitted signs as follows. 
 
  A. Ground Signs:  One ground sign in accordance with Tables "A" and "B" plus one 

not to exceed thirty-six square feet in area when the site fronts on a Major 
Thoroughfare. 

 
  B. Wall Signs:  One wall sign for each building not to exceed 10% of the area of the 

front of the structure to a maximum of 100 square feet, plus one wall sign for each 
tenant, not to exceed 20 square feet in area. Signs must be located on the face of 
an area occupied by the tenant. 

 
  C. In M-1 districts, in addition to paragraph  A. & B., an M-1 Site may be permitted an 

additional ground sign, provided: 
 
   1. The sign is set back a minimum of 200 feet from any street right-of-way. 
 
   2. The sign is located at least 1,000 feet from any sign exceeding 100 square 

feet in area. 
 
   3. The sign does not exceed 300 square feet in area.  
 
   4. The sign does not exceed 25 feet in height. 
 
  D. In M-1 Districts a dealership within a Planned Auto Center shall be permitted signs 

as follows: 
 
   1. One Ground Sign in accordance with Tables "A" and "B" above. 
 
   2. Two additional signs not to exceed 20 square feet in area each. 
 
10.00  Non-Conforming Signs: 
 
10.01  Intent:  It is the intent of this Chapter to encourage eventual elimination of signs that, as a 

result of the adoption of this Chapter, become non-conforming. It is considered as much a 
subject of health, safety, and welfare  as the prohibition of new signs in violation of this 
Chapter.  It is the intent, therefore, to administer this Chapter to realize the removal of 
illegal non-conforming signs and to avoid any unreasonable invasion of established private 
property rights. 

 
10.02  Continuance:  A non-conforming sign may be continued, and shall be maintained in good 

condition, but shall not be:  
 
10.02.01 Replaced by another non-conforming sign. 
 
10.02.02 Structurally altered so as to prolong the life of the sign. 
 
(Rev. 04-24-95) 



13 

 
10.02.03 Expanded. 
 
10.02.04 Re-established after damage or destruction if the estimated expense of reconstruction 

exceeds 50% of the estimated replacement cost. 
 
11.00.00 Signs on Motor Vehicles 
 
  (Rev. 04-19-99) 
 
11.01.00 No person, corporation, partnership or other legal business entity shall stand or park a 

motor vehicle on public or private property, in the City of Troy, for the purpose of 
advertising same "for sale" or "for trade". 

 
  (Rev. 04-19-99) 
 
11.01.01 Exceptions: 
 
  A. This section shall not apply to properly licensed auto dealerships and properly 

licensed used car lots. 
 
  B. This section shall not apply to the owner of a motor vehicle who places a “for sale” 

or “for trade” sign on or within the vehicle provided: 
 
   1. The vehicle is located only on the vehicle owner’s residential property, and; 
 
   2. The owner of the vehicle displays a clearly visible sign on the vehicle 

indicating the owner’s name and address. 
 
   3. Not more than one vehicle is displayed on the residential property. 
 
   (Rev. 08-02-99) 
 
  C. This section shall not apply to the owner of nonresidential property who places or 

allows to be placed a “for sale” or “for trade” sign on or within the vehicle provided: 
 
   1. Not more than one vehicle is displayed on the nonresidential property; and; 
 
   2. The owner of the vehicle displays a clearly visible sign indicating the 

nonresidential property owner’s consent to the display of the vehicle. 
 
  (Rev. 04-19-99) 
 
 
11.01.02 A sign containing a phone number in or on a parked motor vehicle which was visible 

constitutes a presumption that the sign was for the purpose of offering the vehicle for sale 
or trade. 

 
  (Rev. 04-19-99) 



14 

 
11.01.03 Proof that the vehicle described in the complaint was parked in violation of this Section, 

together with proof that the defendant named in the complaint was at the time of the 
parking, the registered owner of the vehicle, constitutes a presumption that the registered 
owner is responsible for the violation. 

 
  (Rev. 04-19-99) 
 
12.00  Appeals 
 
12.01  General:  Any person aggrieved by any decision, ruling or order from the Building 

Inspector, may appeal to the Building Code Board of Appeals. The Building Code Board of 
Appeals may grant a variance after a public hearing. The appeal shall be made by filing 
with the Building Department an application for hearing before the Building Code Board of 
Appeals specifying the grounds for appeal.  The Director of Building and Zoning shall 
transmit to the Building Code Board of Appeals all documents relating to the appeal. 

 
  Upon receipt of the Appeal Application from the Director of Building and Zoning, the City 

Administration shall by resolution establish a date of the Public Hearing which date shall 
respect the following requirements: 

 
  1. All owners of property within 300 feet of the property proposed to be the site of 

such sign shall be notified by U.S. Mail.  
 
  2. Said notice shall be postmarked no less than 14 days before the date of the Public 

Hearing. 
 
   (Rev. 07-19-99) 
 
12.02  Variances: The Building Code Board of Appeals has the power to grant specific variances 

from the requirements of this Chapter upon a showing that: 
 
  (Rev. 07-19-99) 
 
12.02.01 The variance would not be contrary to the public interest or general purpose and intent of 

this Chapter;  
 
12.02.02 The variance does not adversely affect properties in the immediate vicinity of the proposed 

sign; and 
 
12.02.03 The petitioner has a hardship or practical difficulty resulting from the unusual characteristics 

of the property that precludes reasonable use of the property. 
 
12.03  Duration of Variances:  No variance shall be given for a period greater than 15 years. All 

variances shall terminate upon alteration or reconstruction of more than 50% of the sign or 
at a date set by the Building Code Board of Appeals, whichever occurs first. 

 
  (Rev. 07-19-99) 
 
13.00  Penalties 

 



15 

 
13.01  General:  It shall be unlawful for any person to erect, construct, maintain, enlarge, alter, 

move, or convert any sign in the City of Troy, or cause or permit the same to be done, 
contrary to or in violation of any of the provisions of this Chapter.  Any person violating any 
of the provisions of this Chapter shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction of 
any such violation, shall be punishable with a fine of not more than $500 and not less than 
$50.  Any sign constituting an immediate hazard to health and safety is deemed a nuisance 
and may be removed by the Building Inspector at the expense of the owner of the sign. 

 
13.02  Signs in Public Right-of-Way:  In addition to the penalties prescribed in paragraph 13.01, 

any sign erected in violation of this section in a public right-of-way may be removed by the 
Building Inspector or his authorized representative and stored in a safe location for at least 
48 hours.  During this period of time the owner of the sign may obtain his sign upon request 
and payment of a fee of Fifty Dollars ($50) for each sign to cover the costs of removal and 
storage.  After 48 hours, the Building Inspector may dispose of the sign. 

 
14.00  SPECIAL EVENT SIGNS 
 
14.01  General: Special sign permit requests for events such as, but not limited to, grand 

openings, vehicle shows/displays, craft shows, benefit rummage/bake sales and festivals 
occurring on sites, which exceed the signage permitted in this Chapter, shall be eligible for 
a Special Event Sign Permit, subject to the following provisions: 

 
  1. Submittal of plans indicating the following: 
  
   a. Site layout (building location, parking, etc.) 
 
   b. Number, size and location of signs including banners, flags, cold air 

balloons, other forms of signage. 
 

  2. Provide documentation detailing the purpose of the event and desired dates, and 
written approval of property owner, if the applicant is not the owner. 

 
14.02  Special Event Sign permit shall be issued for no more than seven (7) consecutive days 

within any twelve (12) month period. 
 
14.03  No more than four off-site signs related to the event may be permitted.  Such off-site signs 

shall be limited to six (6) square feet in area.  Applicant must also submit written approval 
from the owners of properties proposed for off-site signs, prior to obtaining a permit. 

 
14.04  Any appeal from a determination of the Building Department relative to Special Event Signs 

shall be considered by the Building Code Board of Appeals, and shall be subject to the 
procedures and the fees as established by the Building Code Board of Appeals for Sign 
Variances. 

 
  Exception: All fees related to a variance requested by those submitting proof of non-profit 

status, shall be waived. 
 
  (Rev. 07-19-99) 
 
(All Section 14.00 - 10-6-97) 
 
 
 



16 

Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the time this 
Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be consummated under and according 
to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be 
construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may 
be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with the 
provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, whichever 
shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a regular 
meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of 
_____________, ____. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                      Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 



1 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL 

CHAPTER 85-A OF THE CODE 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as repeal of Chapter 85-A of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Repeal 
 
Chapter 85-A – Political Signs of the Code of the City of Troy shall be repealed in its entirety. 

 
CHAPTER 85-A 

 
POLITICAL SIGNS 

 
1. Definitions 
 
 Unless it appears from the context that a different meaning is intended, the following words shall 

have the meanings given them in this section. 
 
 (a) "Director" means the Building Official or his authorized representative of the City of Troy. 
 
 (b) "Political Sign" means a sign whose message relates to: The election of a person to public 

office, or to a political party, or to a public issue, which shall be voted on at an election called 
by a public body.  Signs relating to an  expression of opinion may be included in this 
definition providing they are not signs as defined in Chapter 78. 

 
(Rev. 9-23-96) 

 
 (c) "Public Property" means all publicly-owned property, including streets, rights-of-way, 

easements, and everything affixed thereto and thereover. 
 
 (d) "Sign" means and includes any bill, poster, placard, handbill, flyer, painting, sign or other 

similar object in any form whatsoever which contains printed or written matter in words, 
symbols, or pictures, or in any combination thereof. 

 
2.  Measurement of Sign Area  
 
 For the purpose of this Chapter, for either single face or double face signs, the area of the sign shall 

be determined by calculating the outermost dimensions of any circle, triangle, rectangle or other 
geometric shape enclosing the extreme limits of writing, representation, emblem or any similar 
figure, together with any frame or other material forming an integral part of the display or used to 
differentiate such sign from the background against which it is placed.  For a sign so arranged that 
the faces are greater than twenty-four (24) inches from one another or such sign with any two (2) 
faces that form a "V" in plan and the angle of the "V" is greater than fifteen (15) degrees, the total 
area shall be computed as a single face sign. 

 
 (Rev. 2-1-99 - Effective April 6, 1999) 
 
3. Political Sign Control 



2 

 
 (a) Political signs may be erected in addition to all other signs permitted by Chapter 78 without 

a permit if they comply with the provisions of this section.  Permission shall be obtained from 
the property owners where signs are located. 

 
  (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
  
 (b) Uses:  Political signs shall be solely for the purpose of providing information relating to the 

election of a person to public office, or relating to a political party, or relating to a matter to 
be voted upon at an election called by a public body, or any other public issue or expression 
of opinion, and shall be permitted subject to the following conditions. 

 
  (1) Maximum Area and Number:  No more than two (2) political signs shall be placed on 

any parcel of real property in one ownership and the area of each sign shall not 
exceed two and one half (2.5) square feet.  Political Signs shall not be located closer 
than twenty (20) feet to the edge of the traveled portion of the roadway and not in a 
dedicated right-of-way.  Political signs shall be ground or wall signs, no ground sign 
shall be higher than thirty-six (36) inches above average mean grade of the yard on 
which it is placed.  

 
   (Rev 2-1-99 - Effective 4-6-99) 
 
 (2) No sign shall be erected or displayed earlier than thirty (30) days before an election or event 

to which it relates, and shall be removed within ten (10) calendar days after the event or 
election.  Signs that express an opinion unrelated to an election date are limited to a period 
of display not to exceed thirty (30) days in one (1) calendar year on any parcel of real 
property in one ownership.  Signs shall not be attached to any utility pole or be located 
within any public right-of-way. 

 
 (3) Such signs shall not be erected in such a manner that they will or reasonably may be 

expected to interfere with, obstruct, confuse of mislead traffic. 
 
  (Rev. 12-19-77) 
 
4. Removal of Illegal Signs 
 
 The Director, or his authorized agents, shall remove any political campaign sign found posted within 

the corporate limits of the City which is in violation of this Chapter.  
 
 (Rev. 12-19-77) 
 
5. Authority of the Directory 
 
 For the purpose of removing political signs, the Director or his authorized agents, are empowered to 

enter upon the property where the signs are posted, and the Director is further authorized to enlist 
the aid or assistance of any other department of the City and to secure legal process to the end that 
all such signs shall be expeditiously removed from any property where posted.  

 
6. Removal Procedure 
 
 Where the Director or his agents find that a political sign has been posted in violation of this 

Chapter, he shall remove the sign and store it in a safe location.  
 



3 

 (Rev. 8-3-98) 
 
7. Storage -- Notice -- Return 
 
 If the Director or his agents remove any political sign, he shall keep a record of the location from 

which the sign was removed.  He shall store the political sign in a safe location for at least seven (7) 
days, and shall immediately notify by telephone the candidate, committee or person responsible for 
the posting of the sign, indicating the fact of removal and the location where it may be retrieved.  If 
the Director is unable to make telephone contact, he shall provide written notice, if the address of 
the candidate, committee or person is known or can be ascertained.  The Director shall return any 
political campaign sign upon the payment of a fee of Ten ($10) Dollars for each sign, to cover the 
costs of removal, notice and storage. 

 
 EXCEPTION:  Beginning seven (7) days prior to any election the storage and notification 

requirements shall not apply to those illegal signs removed by the Director or his agents. 
 
 Illegal signs removed during this time period may be disposed of as necessary. 
 
 (Rev. 9-23-96) 
 
8. Removal of Sign - Charge 
 
 The City shall be entitled to receive the sum of Ten ($10) Dollars for every political campaign sign 

removed by the Director, to cover the expense of removal, notice and storage. In cases where 
unusual effort is needed to remove a sign, such as the cutting or removal of supporting structures, 
use of aerial devices, towing of "trailer signs", or other unusual situation, the City shall collect from 
the person responsible a sum sufficient to cover the costs and hourly wages of employees so 
utilized. 

 
 (Rev. 12-19-77) 
 
9. Persons Responsible 
 In a campaign for political office, the candidate for such office shall be deemed the person 

responsible for the posting of political campaign signs, unless he first notifies the Directory or 
another person who is responsible.  In such case, the candidate shall provide the name, address, 
telephone number, and signed consent of such other responsible person.  In a campaign regarding 
a ballot measure, the president of the committee supporting or opposing such ballot measure shall 
be deemed responsible, unless he first notifies the Director or some other person responsible, in 
the manner described above.  The candidate, or in the case of a ballot measure, the committee 
president, or other responsible person if so designated, shall be liable to pay any fees or costs for 
the removal and storage of illegal signs, as set out herein. 

 
10. Illegal Signs - Public Nuisance 
 
 Political signs in violation of this Chapter are hereby declared to be public nuisances, and may be 

abated by the City.  The collection of removal fees shall not preclude the City from prosecuting the 
responsible person. 

 
 (Rev. 12-19-77) 

 
 
 
 
Section 3.  Savings 



4 

 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the time this 
Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be consummated under and according 
to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be 
construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may 
be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with the 
provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, whichever 
shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a regular 
meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of 
_____________, ____. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                      Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 



August 10, 2005 
 
 
 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Public Benefit Requirement to Satisfy Preliminary Approval 
   of Planned Unit Development (PUD) – 004; the Monarch 
   Private Residences 
 
 
 
Preliminary planned unit development approval for the above-referenced PUD was 
granted on July 18, 2005.  And the authorizing resolution contained a condition related 
to the appropriate public benefit which was either purchase of two properties to the 
north or a donation to the City to implement the results of the Big Beaver corridor study.  
As there was general concurrence that the appropriate benefit would be to have the 
developer purchase the two properties to the north and then donate these parcels to the 
City, Mr. Lamerato and I conducted a series of mediation sessions to accomplish this 
goal.   
 
The result of our discussions culminated in the attached Letter of Understanding which 
is recommend as the appropriate public benefit for preliminary approval of PUD – 004, 
the Monarch private residences.  Assuming you agree, our next step in the process is to 
have the City administration work with the developer for reason of recommending a 
proposed development agreement which will incorporate all documents required for final 
approval of this planned unit development.   Our target date to accomplish this objective 
is this fall. 
 
As always, please feel free to contact me should you have any questions. 
 
 
JS/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2005\08.15.05 – Public Benefit Requirement for the Monarch PUD 
 
c: Tom Kafkes   John K. Abraham, Transportation Engineer 

Lori G. Bluhm, City Attorney 
     Charles Craft, Police Chief 

    John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance 
     Mark Miller, Planning Director 
     Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
     William Nelson, Fire Chief 
     Douglas Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
     Mark S. Stimac, Director of Building/Zoning 
     Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-10







TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
  
FROM: John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance Administration 
   Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: ICCA Contract with CMN 
 
DATE:  August 2, 2005 
 
 
The Intergovernmental Cable Communications Authority (ICCA) member communities 
finalized the contract and bylaws with Community Media Network (CMN).  Attached is a 
copy of the resolution that was unanimously passed at the July 20, 2005 ICCA meeting 
recommending approval of the contract and bylaws by the member communities. 
 
There have been many changes to the contract as well as their bylaws based on 
lengthy discussions with ICCA members, the CMN Board as well as the City Managers 
from the ICCA communities.  The bylaws were completely rewritten to be more efficient 
and readable for the CMN Board Members and the communities as well. 
 
Our ICCA attorney Tim Currier, from Beier Howlett, has written a letter that explains all 
of the recent changes to the contract and bylaws making it easier for all parties to 
understand the contract and bylaws (see attached).   Based on discussions with the 
ICCA representatives, all communities currently funding CMN will continue their funding 
with the exception of Rochester Hills. 
 
 
 
 
CS 
 
 
Reviewed and approved as to legality:  ___________________________  
      Lori Bluhm, City Attorney

campbellld
Text Box
F-11



ICCA 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL CABLE  

COMMUNICATIONS AUTHORITY 
 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
Moved By: Tom Werth, Rochester    
Supported by: Stephanie Schlegel, Auburn Hills 
 
 
WHEREAS, the ICCA and CMN have negotiated a new Contract for Public Access 
Television Services; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the ICCA and CMN have had substantial input from its delegates and 
other officials of their communities regarding the new contract. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the ICCA recommends to its member communities, as 
follows: 
 
 1) That the Contract for Public Access Television Services between 
Intergovernmental Cable Communications Authority and Community Media Network 
be approved and the ICCA delegate for each community be authorized to approve 
said contract on its behalf. 
 
 2) The Amended Bylaws of Oakland County Cable 
Communications Corporation d/b/a Community Media Network be approved and the 
ICCA delegate for each community be authorized to approve the Amended Bylaws. 
 
 
AYES: All 
 
 
NAYES: None 
 
 
ABSENT: Ferndale 
 
 
PRESENT:  Auburn Hills, Berkley, Clawson, Huntington Woods, Oakland Twp, Pleasant 

Ridge, Rochester, Rochester Hills, Royal Oak, Troy 
 
DATE: July 20, 2005 

  



B E I E R  H O W L E T T 
P R O F E S S I O N A L  C O R P O R A T I O N  

A T T O R N E Y S  A T  L A W 
2 0 0  E A S T  L O N G  L A K E  R O A D ,  S U I T E  1 1 0 

B L O O M F I E L D  H I L L S ,  M I C H I G A N  4 8 3 0 4 - 2 3 6 1 
 
 

T E L E P H O N E :   ( 2 4 8 )  6 4 5 - 9 4 0 0  

L A W R E N C E  R .  T E R N A N  
S T E P H E N  W .  J O N E S  
F R A N K  S .  G A L G A N  
K E N N E T H  J .  S O R E N S E N  
J E F F R E Y  K .  H A Y N E S  
M A R K  W .  H A F E L I  
T I M O T H Y  J .  C U R R I E R  
J O S E P H  F .  Y A M I N  
J O H N  D .  S T A R A N  
L A U R A  M .  H A L L A H A N  
P .  D A N I E L  C H R I S T  
P A T R I C I A  E .  K E F A L A S  D U D E K  
M I C H A E L  C .  G I B B O N S  
K A T H E R I N E  B .  A L B R E C H T  
M I C H A E L  P .  S A L H A N E Y  
C .  L Y N N  G A T E S  
M A R Y  M .  K U C H A R E K  
L .  R I D E R  B R I C E ,  I I I  
J E F F R E Y  S .  K R A G T  
K E I T H  C .  J A B L O N S K I  
V I C T O R  A .  V E P R A U S K A S ,  I V  tcurrier@beierhowlett.com 

 

 
D E A N  G .  B E I E R   

( 1 9 1 7  –  2 0 0 3 )  
 

 
O F  C O U N S E L  

J A M E S  L .  H O W L E T T  
D A N I E L  C .  D E V I N E ,  S R .  

R O B E R T  G .  W A D D E L L  
P H Y L L I S  A I U T O  Z I M M E R M A N  

 

S P E C I A L  C O U N S E L  
D O N A L D  H .  G I L L I S  

 

P O N T I A C  T E L E P H O N E  
( 2 4 8 )  3 3 8 - 9 9 0 3  

 

F A C S I M I L E  
( 2 4 8 )  6 4 5 - 9 3 4 4  

 

beierhowlett.com 

 

July 26, 2005 
 
 
 
 
 
All City Managers and Board members of the ICCA 
 
 Re: Update of Executive Summary of the Contract for Public Access 

Television Services Between Intergovernmental Cable 
Communications Authority and the Community Media 
Network; Amended Bylaws of the Oakland Community County 
Cable Communications Corporation d/b/a Community Media 
Network          

 
Dear Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 This letter will serve as an update to the July 7, 2005 executive summary 
referenced above.   The ICCA has passed a Resolution recommending to its member 
communities that the Contract for Public Access Television Services Between the 
Intergovernmental Cable Communications Authority and Community Media Network be 
approved and that the Amended By-laws of the Oakland County Cable Communications 
Corporation d/b/a Community Media Network also be approved.  The ICCA did not take 
action with respect to the Amendment to the Intergovernmental CATV Agreement or the 
Amendment to By-Laws of the Intergovernmental Cable Communications Authority.  
Therefore, it is not referenced in this document.     
 
 Pursuant to the Intergovernmental Agreement, the communities delegate to 
their delegates of the ICCA the authority to approve these documents, without further 
action by the Cities’ councils, commissions or township boards.  However, a number of 



July 26, 2005 
Page 2 
 
 
 
communities have taken an interest in this particular matter because of the situation with 
CMN over the past year and a half.  In addition, several delegates have sought the input 
of their cities on how they should act with respect to this matter.  Therefore, this matter is 
being sent to you for any input you deem appropriate with respect to acting upon these 
issues and directing your delegate as to how you wish them to vote. The ICCA would 
hope to conclude the CMN contract and related matters in September and request that 
each community take action during the month of August, if they deem it appropriate, so 
that this matter can be brought to closure.    
 

Attached you will find the documents referenced above.  As you are aware, the 
ICCA has been engaged in lengthy negotiations with Community Media Network for 
purposes of entering into a new contract for public access television services.  This process 
has also been used to address several concerns that have been raised regarding the operations 
of CMN as well as its relationship to the ICCA.  In addition to the highlights that will be 
discussed herein, it is important to note that all of the member communities in the ICCA 
appointed representatives to CMN who are accountable to the municipalities.  The new fiscal 
control has been employed to monitor the manner in which funds are expended.  This is not 
necessarily reflected in these documents, but has, in fact, been implemented. CMN, on its 
own volition, has discontinued the practice of appointing members to its Board of Director 
who were “at large” and not the appointees of the individual municipalities.  Therefore, the 
control of CMN is absolutely in the hands of the member municipalities through the CMN 
representatives.   This is the single most important factor in resolving issues regarding the 
manner in which funds were being expended by CMN. 

 

Contract for Public Access Television Services 

 The contract for public access television services, which is enclosed herewith, 
though similar to past contracts, does have some major significant changes, which are as 
follows:    

 “Eligible members” The practice of CMN was to provide public access television 
services to the citizens of those communities for which contributions to CMN were 
made in the past.  However, due to fiscal constraints, many communities have 
reduced or ceased its contributions to CMN.  CMN, therefore, has not been providing 
these services to the citizens of those communities who do not provide any 
contribution to it.   CMN has raised the fact that in order to maintain the level of 
services requested in the RFP by the ICCA, it was important to receive a minimal 
level of funding on which it could budget its planned activities.  In addition, the 
minimum level of funding was also used to establish what an eligible member would 
be for purposes of having a voting member on the CMN Board of Directors as well 



July 26, 2005 
Page 3 
 
 
 

as to vote at the ICCA on CMN issues.  This new concept is introduced in Section 1 
where an eligible member is one who provides minimal funding.   Minimal funding 
is defined as a voluntary payment by CMN equal to or greater than 1/12 of the total 
revenues received by the ICCA community for the same time period. 

 “Open Meetings Act” CMN shall comply with the Open Meetings Act with respect 
to the Notice of Meetings of the Board of Directors and the holding of open meetings 
provided, however, that CMN did reserve the right to go into closed session for 
matters set forth as private, confidential, privileged or personnel matters of the 
Corporation. 

 “Termination Provisions” Upon termination of the contract with the ICCA, all 
equipment and funds received pursuant to the December 31, 1999 Agreement and 
this Agreement will be turned over to the member communities and not retained by 
any successor entity by CMN.  In addition, CMN will be spending part of its reserve 
account towards capital expenditures by reducing the sizeable reserves. It must be 
noted that these reserves have been used during the past six (6) months to pay 
operating expenditures of the entity because several communities have not been 
funding CMN until the matter was resolved.     

 “Bidding Requirement” CMN has agreed to convey the bidding provisions for all 
supplies and contractual services where this may cost equal to or exceed Three 
Thousand Dollars ($3,000).    

 “Conflicts of Interest and Nepotism” Conflicts of interest and a nepotism provision 
was added to the contract to prevent CMN from hiring or contracting directly or 
indirectly with members of the Board of Directors or the Executive Director’s 
families. 

 “CMN Records” CMN has agreed to maintain all books and records in accordance 
with the Michigan State Department of Treasury guidelines for governmental units of 
authorities. 

 “Funding from other sources” The ICCA and CMN have agreed that CMN should 
seek funding for other sources, but that any such fundraising or other activities to 
raise funds would require the prior approval of the ICCA.  This would prevent an 
adverse impact to the member communities as well as avoiding conflicts of interest  

 “Bylaws” CMN has agreed not to change its’ Bylaws with respect to adding 
members to the Board of Directors without prior approval of the ICCA.    

 “Expenditure of Funds” CMN shall submit to the ICCA for its review and approval 
fiscal control accounting procedures of CMN.  The ICCA, at anytime during the term 



July 26, 2005 
Page 4 
 
 
 

of the contract, may recommend additional methods of fiscal control accounting 
relative to CMN funds. 

Amended Bylaws 

   The Bylaws have been completely rewritten to be more efficient and readable 
for the members of the Board of Directors and the communities as well.   Certain changes 
have also taken place in this document: 

 The communities have confirmed that each community shall receive one (1) vote per 
representative on the CMN Board.  Only members of the eligible communities are 
permitted to vote, but ineligible communities are able to send 
delegates/representatives to CMN in a non-voting capacity.   

  Members of the Board of Directors must be a resident of an ICCA community, or 
they may be employed by an ICCA member community that makes the appointment.  
The Director may be a non-resident, as long as the Director is an employee of the 
ICCA member community that makes the appointment.  However, in no event shall 
the Director be 1) the City Manager or Township Supervisor of the ICCA member 
community that makes the appointment; 2) a community representative to the ICCA 
or alternate representative to the ICCA from a community; or 3) an employee of a 
school board located in an ICCA community which employee has within the scope of 
his/her employment the operation of either or both the government and/or educational 
channels in that ICCA community.    

 Amendments to the Bylaws require a 67 2/3% majority of the Board of Directors in 
order to make any change.    

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Very truly yours, 
 
BEIER HOWLETT, P.C. 
 
 
 
Timothy J. Currier 

 
TJC/jc 
 



 
CLEAN 07.07.05 Contract between ICCA & CMN.doc

CLEAN 07.07.05 Contract between ICCA & CMN.doc 

DRAFT 
 

CONTRACT FOR PUBLIC ACCESS TELEVISION SERVICES 
 

BETWEEN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL CABLE COMMUNICATIONS AUTHORITY 

AND 
COMMUNITY MEDIA NETWORK 

(“AGREEMENT”) 
 

 
This Contract is made this ______ day of ____________, 2005 by and between 
Intergovernmental Cable Communications Authority (ICCA) and Community Media 
Network (CMN), a nonprofit corporation (each sometimes individually referred to as 
“Party” and collectively referred to as the “Parties”), who agree as follows: 
 
RECITALS 
 
1. The communities of ICCA (Auburn Hills, Berkley, Clawson, Ferndale, Huntington 
Woods, Oakland Township, Pleasant Ridge, Rochester, Rochester Hills, Royal Oak and 
Troy) (hereinafter referred to as “ICCA Communities”) have granted to Comcast and 
WideOpenWest franchises to operate cable television systems within their communities.  
The purpose of ICCA is to make a recommendation on the award of cable franchises, 
monitor and enforce the franchises between the cable television operators and the 
ICCA Communities, and exercise additional powers, functions, duties and 
responsibilities, including making recommendations about public, educational, and 
government access (hereinafter referred to as PEG) programming services. 
 
2. The ICCA Communities indicated that they accepted the cable television 
operators' offer to provide PEG services and support.  The renewed franchise did not 
require the cable operators to provide public access directly but did include a provision 
whereby the operators pay 1% of their revenue annually to support PEG services (“PEG 
Funds”).  Also, the franchises provide that certain channel capacity be provided for 
PEG. 
 
3. Some of the ICCA Communities have determined that they will, from time to time, 
provide support for public access equipment, facilities and operations through the 
dedication of some or all of the revenues received from the cable operators but not in 
excess of 1/6 of the total revenues received by the ICCA Communities (“CMN Funds”).  
ICCA desires to facilitate the provision of public access services for the use of PEG 
access cable television in its territory. 
 



-2- 

4. Community Media Network, a private nonprofit corporation was organized, in 
part, to provide public access services and has indicated its interest in providing public 
access programming, services, training, promotion and facilities. 
 
5. In return for a payment of CMN Funds from the ICCA Communities, and subject 
to “Minimal Funding” requirements as set forth herein, CMN agrees to provide its public 
access facilities to the ICCA Communities, including CMN’s production studio in Troy.  
As of the date of this Agreement, the CMN facilities include two public access facilities, 
one of which is the production facility in Troy.  Providing the CMN Funds are available, it 
is the intent of both parties that these facilities be maintained by CMN and available to 
the ICCA Communities.  The specific space within the facilities to be used by the ICCA 
Communities shall be adequate to meet the needs for the ICCA Communities’ access 
users.  One ICCA facility is in Rochester Hills at Oakland University, and the other is in 
Troy, Michigan, Subject to the availability of funds provided by the ICCA Communities, it 
is the intent of the parties that these facilities be available throughout the term of this 
Agreement.  CMN agrees to maintain the two access vans provided to the ICCA at the 
end of the first franchise, provided CMN funds are available for such maintenance. 
 
 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set forth 
herein, the parties agree as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. SCOPE OF SERVICES AND FACILITIES.  In exchange for “Minimal 
Funding” (as herein defined) provided by the ICCA Communities to CMN, CMN shall 
provide the following services, equipment and facilities (to the extent that funding is 
available).  The ICCA shall collect the funds from the ICCA Communities and disburse 
the funds to CMN within five (5) business days after the close of business on the last 
day of business on each calendar month..  Provided however, in the event funding is 
not available from any one or more of the ICCA Communities or the ICCA, then any one 
or more of the following services, equipment and facilities shall be reduced or eliminated 
in accordance with CMN’s available budget and management decisions regarding 
operation of the public access services in the context of such reduced funds.  Further, in 
the event any one or more of the ICCA Communities fail to provide “Minimal Funding” 
as herein defined to CMN for the use of equipment, facilities and to enjoy the services 
provided by CMN, then the citizens of that ICCA Community are deemed to be 
“Ineligible Members” of the ICCA and the ICCA Community shall be deemed to be an 
“Ineligible Community”. , and In such case, the Ineligible Members and Ineligible 
Communities shall not be permitted to avail themselves of the services, equipment and 
facilities provided in this Contract. The residents of those ICCA Communities that 
provide “Minimal Funding”, as herein defined, to CMN are “Eligible Members” and such 
Eligible Communities and Eligible Members shall be entitled then to all of the services, 
equipment and facilities provided hereunder by CMN to the ICCA Communities. 
“Minimal Funding” is defined as the annual voluntary payment to CMN by an ICCA 



-3- 

community in an amount equal to or greater than one-twelfth (1/12) of the total revenues 
received by the ICCA community for the same time period. 
 
A. OPERATE PUBLIC ACCESS CABLE CHANNEL.  Make equipment and 
facilities available to Eligible Members for operating the public access cable channel for 
public access programming. 
 
B. OPERATE COMMUNITY MEDIA CENTERS.  Make equipment and facilities 
available to Eligible Members for operating video production facilities, which shall be 
available for use at such hours and times as are determined by CMN and reasonably 
approved by ICCA.  Access to equipment and facilities shall be open to all those who 
satisfactorily complete training classes provided by CMN. 
 
C. PROVIDE EQUAL ACCESS.  Make available to Eligible Members equipment, 
facilities, channels, and services provided hereunder on a non-discriminatory basis to all 
members of the community for non-commercial programming purposes, whether 
individuals, groups, or organizations, on a first-come, first-served non-discriminatory 
basis, pursuant to operating rules and procedures developed by CMN and reasonably 
approved by ICCA. 
 
D. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, RULES, AND REGULATIONS.  Administer the 
public access channel, equipment and facilities in compliance with applicable laws, rules 
and regulations, including the Michigan Freedom of Information Act with respect to 
receipt and use of CMN Funds only. The ICCA shall review and approve the method of 
notice of all Board of Director’s meetings of CMN, and all such meetings shall be open 
to the public, with the exception of closed sessions to cover private, confidential or 
privileged matters of the corporation and/or personnel matters.  CMN shall comply with 
the the Open Meetings Act with respect to the notice of meetings of the Board of 
Directors and the holding of open meetings, provided however, CMN reserves the right 
to go into closed sessions for the matters set forth in this paragraph, or otherwise, as 
the Board of Directors deems appropriate.   CMN shall give an operational and financial 
report to the ICCA on a monthly basis, the form of such reports to be reviewed and 
approved by the ICCA.  The ICCA may review the information regarding all financial 
books and records of the company, as well as a specific review of expenditures upon 
ICCA’s request.  As part of the monthly report to the ICCA, CMN shall provide the ICCA 
with a copy of any proposed amendment to CMN Bylaws.  The delivery of the proposed 
amendment shall be made prior to the date upon which the amendment is voted on by 
the CMN Board of Directors. 
 
E. TRAINING.  Train Eligible Members and members of non-profit organizations 
that serve the Eligible Communities, and when requested, provide technical advice for 
productions of Educational and Governmental access staff of such Eligible 
Communities. 
 
F. PLAYBACK/CABLECAST. Playback/cablecast programs on the public access 
channel, at least 90 hours of local original, replayed and outside programming per week 



-4- 

and a minimum of 360 hours per month, 80% of which is to be produced by the 
residents living within the ICCA Communities, or by nonprofit groups servicing the ICCA 
Communities.  For purposes of this programming, the message board on the public 
access channel shall not be counted to the minimum programming requirements.    
 
G. MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT.  Maintain and repair all video equipment 
purchased with monies received pursuant to this Contract and/or donated, loaned, or 
leased to CMN by ICCA, including two vans loaned to CMN by ICCA. 
 
H. PROMOTION.  Actively promote the use and benefit of the public access 
channel, equipment and facilities to cable subscribers and the public. 
 
I.  PERFORMANCE REVIEW.  CMN shall, if requested by ICCA, after eighteen 
(18) months of operation under this Contract, engage an expert in access management 
from outside the ICCA territory, the expense for which shall be equally shared by the 
ICCA and CMN and approved by ICCA, to conduct a performance review, which shall 
include an opportunity for access users and cable subscribers to provide input.  Upon 
completion, a copy of the performance review shall be submitted to ICCA.   
 
J. OTHER ACTIVITIES.  Undertake other access programming activities and 
services as deemed appropriate by CMN to be consistent with the obligation to facilitate 
and promote access programming. 
 
 
SECTION 2. CHANNEL OPEN TO PUBLIC:  CMN agrees to keep the access channel 
open to all potential users regardless of their viewpoint, subject to FCC regulations, 
federal and state law, and other relevant laws.  Neither the ICCA, the cable operators, 
nor CMN shall have the authority to control the content of programming placed on the 
public access channel as long as such programming is lawful.  Nothing herein shall 
prevent CMN, ICCA Communities or the cable operators from producing or sponsoring 
programming, prevent the ICCA or communities or the cable operators from 
underwriting programming, or prevent them from engaging in activities designed to 
promote production of certain types of programming or use by targeted groups as 
consistent with applicable law and rules for use of the channel.  CMN may promulgate 
and enforce policies and procedures approved by ICCA which are designed to promote 
local use of the channel, and make the programming accessible to the viewing public, 
consistent with such time, manner, and place regulations as are appropriate to provide 
for and promote use of access channel, equipment and facilities. 
 
SECTION 3. INDEMNIFICATION.  CMN shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the 
ICCA Communities, elected officials, its officers, board members, agents, and 
employees and volunteers from and against any and all claims, suits, actions, causes of 
action, losses, damage, or liabilities of any kind, nature or description, including, 
payment of litigation costs and attorneys’ fees, brought by any person or persons for or 
on account of any loss, damage or injury to person, property or any other interest, 
tangible or intangible, sustained by or accruing to any person or persons, howsoever 



-5- 

the same may be caused, directly or indirectly arising or resulting from any alleged acts 
or omission of the CMN , its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors arising out of 
or resulting from the performance of this Contract, except for the negligent acts of ICCA, 
its officers, agents, employees and volunteers. 
 
CMN shall indemnify and hold harmless ICCA Communities, elected officials, its 
officers, board members, agents, employees and volunteers from and against any and 
all claims or other injury, including costs of litigation and attorney's fees, arising from or 
in connection with claims or loss or damage to person or property arising out of the 
failure to comply with any applicable laws, rules, regulations or other requirements of 
local, state or federal authorities, for claims of libel, slander, invasions of privacy, or 
infringement of common law or statutory copyright, for breach of contract of other injury 
or damage in law or at equity which claims, directly or indirectly, result from CMN use of 
channel, funds, equipment, facilities or staff granted under this Contract or franchise 
agreements, except for the negligent acts of ICCA, its officers, agents, employees and 
volunteers. 
 
 
SECTION 4. COPYRIGHT CLEARANCE.  Before cablecasting video transmissions 
CMN shall require all users to execute a form document which has been approved by 
the ICCA, and is part of the policies and procedures of CMN, which shall provide that all 
users and producers must provide, take responsibility for, indemnify, defend and hold 
CMN and ICCA harmless for any infringement of any and all of the intellectual property 
rights related to all material presented for cablecast, including without limitation the 
obligation to secure clearances from broadcast stations, networks, sponsors, music 
licensing organizations’ representatives and without limitation from the foregoing, any 
and all other persons as may be necessary to transmit its or their program material over 
CMN  authorized channel.  CMN shall maintain for a period of three (3) years for ICCA's 
inspection, upon reasonable notice by ICCA, copies of all such user agreements. 
 
 
SECTION 5.  COPYRIGHT AND OWNERSHIP. CMN shall own the copyright of any 
programs, which it may choose to produce.  Copyright of programming produced by the 
public shall be held by such person who produces said programming. 
 
 
SECTION 6.  DISTRIBUTION RIGHTS. 
 
A. CMN shall require that all programs produced with funds, equipment, facilities, or 
staff granted under this Contract shall be distributed on the channel whose use is 
authorized by this Contract.  This subparagraph shall not be interpreted to restrict other 
distribution (beyond distribution on the channel authorized by this Contract), so long as 
such other distribution is consistent with the rules and procedures governing, such 
which shall be promulgated by the CMN and filed with ICCA. 
 



-6- 

B. Video programming cablecast on the channel whose use is authorized by this 
Contract shall state that opinions expressed in programming are the sole responsibility 
of the program producers and do not necessarily reflect the views of ICCA Communities 
or CMN. 
 
 
SECTION 7. EQUIPMENT AND FACILITIES. 
 
A. CMN shall be responsible to maintain all equipment and facilities owned, leased 
or loaned to it under this Contract or purchased with funds provided pursuant to this 
Contract..  Further, CMN shall upon prior approval of the ICCA, be authorized to sell or 
retire that older equipment and replace such older equipment with newer equipment as 
CMN deems appropriate in the ordinary course of business. 
 
B. ICCA shall own all equipment and facilities acquired by CMN, and purchased 
with funds received pursuant to this Agreement and the Contract for Public Access 
Television Services dated December 31, 1999, made between the parties hereto (“Prior 
Contract”) upon termination or non-renewal of this Contract. All such equipment or 
facilities shall remain the property of ICCA.  Further, all such equipment, upon 
purchase, shall be labeled as “ICCA Equipment” and said labels shall be maintained on 
the equipment for identification purposes.  In addition, a log shall be kept on a regular 
basis of all equipment that CMN owns, which equipment has been provided by ICCA 
Funds.  The potential disposition of the ICCA Equipment upon termination of this 
Contract among the ICCA Communities, is the responsibility of the ICCA, and CMN’s 
only obligation hereunder, with respect to ownership of the equipment, is to identify the 
“ICCA Equipment” and not to determine which ICCA Community own which piece of 
equipment or percentage thereof.  All other equipment in CMN’s possession which is 
not owned by the ICCA, is owned by CMN, free of any claim of any interest of the ICCA. 
 
C. Upon the dissolution of the CMN, it shall return all equipment purchased with 
funds received from this Contract and the Prior Contract together with the CMN Funds 
provided by this Agreement and the Prior Contract to the ICCA. 
 
 
SECTION 8. INSURANCE.  CMN shall maintain in full force and effect at all times 
during the term of this Contract, insurance as required by this Section.  The cost of such 
insurance shall be borne by CMN and must be included in CMN’s annual budget.  ICCA 
shall be shown as an additional insured on all policies, with an insurance carrier 
satisfactory to ICCA. 
 
A. COMPREHENSIVE LIABILITY INSURANCE. Comprehensive liability insurance 
and broad form contractual liability, property damage and personal injury coverage, and 
comprehensive automobile liability including owned, hired and non-owned automobile 
coverage.  The limits of such coverage shall be:  (1) bodily injury including death, 
$5,000,000 for each person, each occurrence and aggregate; (2) property damage, 
$1,000,000 for each occurrence and aggregate. 



-7- 

 
B. EQUIPMENT INSURANCE. Insurance shall be maintained on all equipment and 
facilities, including fixtures, funded in whole or in part under this Contract, for 
replacement cost.  The insurance shall include, at a minimum, insurance against loss or 
damage beyond the user’s control, theft, fire or natural catastrophe. 
 
C. WORKERS' COMPENSATION. Full Workers’ Compensation Insurance and 
Employer’s Liability with limits as required by State of Michigan law, shall be maintained. 
 
D. CABLECASTER’S ERRORS AND OMISSION INSURANCE. Insurance shall be 
maintained to cover the content or productions which are cablecast on the access 
channel, at minimum, in the following areas:  libel and slander, copyright or trademark 
infringement; infliction of emotional distress; invasion of privacy; plagiarism; misuse of 
musical or literary materials; an amount to be not less than $1,000,000 or as agreed to 
by counsel for the respective parties.  This policy shall not be required to cover 
individual access producers. 
 
E. DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS COVERAGE.  Directors and Officers insurance 
coverage shall be maintained on all Directors and Officers of CMN, as determined by 
the CMN Board of Directors in its sole discretion. 
 
F. ICCA ADDITIONAL INSURED.  ICCA shall be named as an additional insured 
on all aforementioned insurance coverages.  The policies shall provide that no 
cancellation, major change in coverage or expiration may be affected by the insurance 
company or CMN without first giving ICCA thirty (30) days written notice prior to the 
effective date of such cancellation or change in coverage.  Any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by ICCA, its officers, agents, employees, or volunteers shall be in 
excess of the CMN insurance and shall not contribute to it. 
 
G. NOTIFICATION OF COVERAGE.  CMN shall file with ICCA proof of insurance 
coverage. 
 
SECTION 9. NON-DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT AND SERVICE.  CMN shall 
not discriminate against any person, employee or applicant for employment or 
subcontractor on the basis of race, color, creed, religion, sex, sexual preference, marital 
status, ancestry, national origin or physical or mental handicap.  CMN will comply with 
the ICCA’s communities’ most restricted ordinance on nepotism. 
 
SECTION 10.   COMPETITIVE BIDDING REQUIREMENTS.   All supplies and 
contractual services, when the estimated costs thereof shall equal or exceed Three 
Thousand Dollars ($3,000), shall be purchased by a written contract or invoice from the 
lowest responsible bidder, it being specifically understood that CMN is not obligated to 
accept the lowest bid on any contract due to the many qualitative factors which must be 
considered by CMN and which may cause a more prudent decision to be made by the 
purchase of equipment or other services which are not determined to be the lowest 
price, but by the best value offered.   



-8- 

 
SECTION 11.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR/PRIVATE NONPROFIT 
CORPORATION.  It is understood, acknowledged and agreed that CMN is a private 
nonprofit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Michigan, and an 
independent contractor of the ICCA.  CMN has no relationship of principal/agent or 
employer/employee exists between ICCA, or any member community, and CMN.  If in 
the performance of this Contract any third persons are employed by CMN, such persons 
shall be entirely and exclusively under the control, direction and supervision of CMN. 
 
SECTION 12.   CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND NEPOTISM.   No member of the 
CMN Board or any officer of CMN or any members of their “families”, as herein defined, 
shall be interested, directly or indirectly, in any contract, franchise, job, work or service 
where there are revenues therefrom, nor shall he or she receive any compensation for 
any work or service rendered to CMN except compensation for services if the officer is 
an employee of CMN.  ”Families”, as herein defined, of the Executive Director or any 
member of the CMN Board are hereby disqualified from holding any appointed office of 
CMN or from being employed by CMN or serving on the CMN Board.  “Families”, for 
purposes of this Agreement, shall be defined as spouse, parents, children, siblings or 
in-laws at the same degree of relationship, step-children, step-parents and step-siblings.  
 
SECTION 13. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING.  Neither this Contract nor any 
interest herein shall be assigned or transferred by either party, except on the express 
prior written consent of the other party. 
 
 
SECTION 14.  ANNUAL REPORTS.  Prior to March 15 of each year, CMN shall submit 
to ICCA an annual report for the preceding calendar year (January 1 – December 31).  
This report shall contain, at a minimum, the following information: 
 
A. Statistics on programming, services and facilities provided; 
 
B. Current and complete listing of CMN Board of Directors and employees; 
 
C. Year-end financial statements audited by an independent certified public 
accountant, which shall be hired by the ICCA and paid for by CMN. 
 
D. Comparison of annual plan with actual completed projects. 
 
 
SECTION 15.  RECORDS, ANNUAL AUDIT. 
 
A. CMN shall maintain all necessary books and records, in accordance with the 
Michigan State Department of Treasury guidelines for governmental units and 
authorities. 
 



-9- 

B. Upon request from ICCA, CMN shall, at any time during normal business hours, 
make available all of its records with respect to all matters covered by this Contract.  In 
the event the ICCA requires a large volume of documents to be copied for review by the 
ICCA or its designated representatives, and such copying cannot be reasonably 
performed by CMN without great expense or interruption to the normal business 
operations of CMN, then the ICCA may hire an outside firm to copy such material, the 
cost of all such copying shall be borne by the ICCA. 
 
C. CMN shall provide a monthly list of all checks written by CMN during the prior 
month, together with an explanation of the purpose for which the check was written. 
 
D. Amendments to the CMN By-laws which affect in any way the method of electing 
or appointing members of the Board of Directors and Officers, as well as any 
amendments which affect the make up of the Board or changes the number or 
percentage vote of the members of the Board of Directors appointed by member 
communities of the ICCA, shall be subject to the prior review and reasonable approval 
of the ICCA.    
 
 
SECTION 16.  RESOURCES. 
 
A. ICCA agrees to make resources available to CMN as follows: 
 
1. Comcast and WideOpenWest have dedicated certain channel capacity to public 
access use.  ICCA agrees to permit CMN to manage that channel capacity for public 
access programming purposes. 
 
2. ICCA will provide to CMN all funds, which it receives, from ICCA Communities for 
public access on a quarterly basis after ICCA receives the funds in an amount greater 
than or equal to the “Minimal Funding”, as defined in Section 1.  Each ICCA community 
will decide for itself how much of the revenues it receives from the cable operations it 
will give to ICCA for the benefit of public access. 
 
 
 
 
SECTION 17.  ANNUAL PLAN.  On or before September 30 of each year in which this 
Contract is in effect, CMN shall provide to ICCA an Access Activities Plan and Budget 
outlining activities and programs planned for the following fiscal year with funds and 
channel received from ICCA.  Such plan shall contain:  (1) a statement of anticipated 
number of hours of local original programming; (2) training classes to be offered and 
frequency of classes; (3) other access activities planned by CMN; and (4) an operating 
and capital equipment and facilities budget. 
 
 



-10- 

SECTION 18.  EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS.  CMN shall spend funds received from 
ICCA solely for the purposes listed in its Annual Public Access Activities Plan and 
Budget and Section 1, Scope of Services of the Contract and for other activities which 
are considered in the ordinary course of business of a public broadcasting corporation.  
Funds not expended in the year covered by the Annual Budget and Activities Plan must 
be carried over to succeeding years.  Upon termination of this Contract all funds of any 
kind provided by the ICCA and not expended by CMN shall be returned to ICCA unless 
the parties agree to an extension of the Contract.  CMN shall provide for such fiscal 
control and accounting procedures, as approved by the ICCA, as are necessary to 
assure proper disbursement and accounting for funds received from ICCA.  The ICCA 
has reviewed and approved the fiscal control and accounting procedures of CMN. The 
ICCA may at any time during the term of this contract review and suggest other 
methods of fiscal control and accounting relative to CMN Funds, provided however, 
such methods of fiscal control and accounting must be reasonable, in accordance with 
responsible accounting methods, and approved by the CMN Board of Directors after 
consultation with CMN’s outside independent certified public accounting firm.   
 
 
SECTION 19.  FUNDING FROM OTHER SOURCES; ICCA REVIEW.  It is agreed and 
acknowledged by the parties that during the term of this Contract CMN may, upon prior 
written approval of the ICCA, attempt to provide its services to: (i) member communities’ 
government and/or educational access television; (ii) other communities in the State of 
Michigan; or (iii) other entities for a fee.  Provided however, CMN will advise the ICCA of 
such activity, and any such contracts shall be reviewed by the ICCA to ensure that such 
contracts do not adversely affect the services provided to the ICCA Communities 
pursuant to this Contract.  CMN shall, during the course of this Contrat, raise 
supplemental funds from other sources, including, but not limited to fundraising, user 
fees and membership fees.  CMN shall, advise ICCA of such fundraising, user fee and 
membership fee activity. 
 
 
SECTION 20.  TERM OF CONTRACT.  This Contract shall be for a period of three (3) 
years commencing January 1, 2005 and ending on December 31, 2007 unless 
terminated earlier, as provided in this Contract Section 21.  This Contract may be 
extended by mutual agreement of ICCA and CMN, in writing, in accordance with 
Section 22. 
 
 
SECTION 21.   TERMINATION OF CONTRACT: TRANSFER OF ASSETS.  
 
A. Each Party (the “Terminating Party”) shall have the right upon ninety (90) days 
written notice to the other party (the “Non-Terminating Party”) to terminate this Contract 
for (1) breach of any provision of this Contract by the other Party; (2) malfeasance, 
misfeasance, misappropriation of public funds, (3) if CMN loses its 501(c)(3) status, or 
(4) in the event the ICCA does not approve a proposed amendment to the CMN Bylaws.  
The Non-Terminating Party may avoid termination by curing any such breach within 



-11- 

ninety (90) days of notification or, if a cure cannot be completed within ninety (90) days, 
within a reasonable time frame agreed to in good faith by the Parties.  Further, in the 
case of an amendment to the Bylaws of CMN which was passed by the CMN Board 
without the approval of the ICCA, if the ICCA, within the cure period of 90 days 
approves of such Bylaw, then CMN shall be deemed to have avoided termination by 
obtaining such approval from the ICCA of the Bylaw in question. 
 
B. In the event funding from the ICCA Communities in the aggregate decreases to 
less than ___________ (___%) percent of the level of such funding existing at the 
commencement of the term of this Contract, then CMN shall have the right to terminate 
the Contract upon ninety (90) days written notice to the ICCA. 
 
C. Upon termination, CMN shall immediately transfer to ICCA or its designee assets 
and funds in accordance with section 7 C of this Contract. . 
 
 
SECTION 22.  EXTENSION OF CONTRACT.  This Contract may be renewed pursuant 
to the following process: 
 
A. If CMN seeks an extension of this Contract it shall, on or before July 1, 2007, 
submit to ICCA a letter of intent requesting extension. 
 
B. On or before October 1, 2007, ICCA shall respond to CMN’s letter of intent to 
request extension. 
 
 
SECTION 22.  TIME.  Time is of the essence in this Contract and for the performance of 
all covenants and conditions of this Contract. 
 
 
SECTION 23.  COOPERATION.  Each party agrees to execute all documents and do 
all things necessary and appropriate to carry out the provisions of this Contract. 
 
 
SECTION 24.  APPLICABLE LAW.  This Contract shall be interpreted and enforced 
under the laws of the State of Michigan. 
 
 
SECTION 25.  NOTICES.  All notices and other communications to be given by either 
party may be given in writing, depositing the same in the United States mail, postage 
prepaid and addressed to the appropriate party.  Any party may change its address by 
written notice to the other party at any time. 
 
 
SECTION 26.  ENTIRE CONTRACT.  This Contract is the entire agreement of the 
parties and supersedes all prior negotiations and agreements whether written or oral. 



-12- 

 
 
SECTION 27.  AMENDMENT.  This contract may be amended only by written 
agreement and no purported oral amendment to this Contract shall be valid. 
 
 
SECTION 28.  DISPUTE RESOLUTION.  Any claim, dispute or disagreement arising 
out of the covenant mutually agreed to herein, if not resolvable by mediation, shall be 
submitted to binding arbitration, under the then-current rules of the American Arbitration 
Association for such cases. 
 
SECTION 29.  SEVERABILITY.  If for any reason any provision of this Agreement shall 
be deemed, by an arbitrator or a court of competent jurisdiction, to be legally invalid or 
unenforceable in any jurisdiction to which it applies, the validity of the remainder of the 
Agreement shall not be affected, and that provision shall be deemed modified to the 
minimum extent necessary to make that provision consistent with applicable law and, in 
its modified form, that provision shall then be enforceable and enforced. 



-13- 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Contract as of the date written 
above. 

ICCA 

 
Adopted by the Intergovernmental Cable Communications Authority at its regular 
meeting on _______________. 
 
By Its Chairman: 
 
Date: 
 
By its Secretary: 
 
Date: 
 
CMN, a nonprofit corporation 
 
By its Chairman: 
 
Date: 
 
By Its ________: 
 
Date: 
 
By its ________: 
 
Date:  
 
 



-14- 

 
 
 

In addition to the above funding, CMN intends to use approximately the following 
amounts of its unrestricted reserve fund during the three year term of this Contract: 
 
Year 1  $160,000.00 
Year 2       60,000.00 
Year 3        60,000.00 
 
TOTAL: $280,000.00 

 



CLEAN 07.07.05 AMENDED CMN BYLAWS.doc 

 
 
 

AMENDED BYLAWS OF 
OAKLAND COUNTY CABLE COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION 

d/b/a COMMUNITY MEDIA NETWORK (“Community Media Network”) 
REVISED AND ADOPTED MARCH ____, 2005 

 
ARTICLE I 

NAME 
 

 The name of the Corporation shall be the OAKLAND COUNTY 

CABLE COMMUNICATIONSCORPORATION d/b/a COMMUNITY MEDIA 

NETWORK, and it is sometimes referred to in these By-laws as the Corporation. 

ARTICLE II 
PURPOSES 

 The purpose of the Corporation is set forth in the Articles of 

Incorporation as follows: 

  This corporation is formed for scientific, educational and charitable 
purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986 (or the corresponding provision of any future 
United States Internal Revenue Law).  Its purposes include, but are 
not limited to: 

 
 A. To advance the use, growth and development of community 

communications and community based media in the 
corporation’s service area (including, but not limited to the 
Oakland County area of the State of Michigan), and to 
establish, maintain and operate one or more Community Media 
Centers; 

 
 B. To empower individuals, organizations and institutions, on a 

non-discriminatory basis the means to disseminate information 



2 

through the use of community-based media and to develop a 
Community Media Center to further that goal; 

 
 C. To apply for and to receive, and to actively pursue 

contributions, grants, donations and loans of all types from 
individuals, organizations, profit and non-profit, public and 
private corporations, government agencies and others to support 
the purposes set forth in these by-laws; 

 
 D. To ensure that no individual is discriminated against with 

regard to membership, services, access to information or any 
activity of the corporation because of race, national origin, sex, 
age, sexual preference, religion, disability, political affiliation, 
or economic status; 

 
 E. To provide, to the best of the corporation’s ability, the means 

for any and all individuals, organizations, agencies and 
institutions, a public meeting or gathering place to hold events 
of a non-commercial nature, in the Community Media Center 
operated by the corporation; 

 
 F. To develop, formulate and administer policy and rules for the 

use of all media, equipment and services that come under 
control of the corporation; 

 
 G. Business shall be carried on by the corporation only in order to 

accomplish the purposes and objectives for which the 
corporation was established. 

 

 

ARTICLE III 
BASIC POLICIES 

 
 The following are basic policies of the Corporation: 

 1. The Corporation shall be non-commercial, non-sectarian, and 

non-partisan. 



3 

 2. The name of the Corporation and/or the names of any directors 

of the Corporation in their official capacities shall not be used in any connection 

with any partisan interest or for any purpose not appropriately related to promotion 

of the objects of the Corporation. 

 

ARTICLE IV 
OFFICE 

 
 The principal office of the Corporation is, as of the date of the 

approval of these Bylaws, in one of the eleven (11) ICCA communities, State of 

Michigan, and shall remain in one of the eleven (11) ICCA communities, State of 

Michigan unless another office or offices are approved by a majority vote of the 

Board of Directors and ICCA.   

 

ARTICLE V 
MEMBERS OF CORPORATION 

 
 This Corporation has been organized on a directorship basis, as 

permitted under the Michigan Nonprofit Corporation Act.   

 

ARTICLE VI 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
1.   Members of the Board of Directors.   The Board of Directors shall 

be composed of eleven Directors.  Each Director shall represent one member of the 



4 

Intergovernmental Cable Communications Authority communities, which include 

the City of Auburn Hills, the City of Berkley, City of Clawson, City of Ferndale, 

City of Huntington Woods, City of Pleasant Ridge, City of Rochester, City of 

Rochester Hills, City of Royal Oak, City of Troy, and the Township of Oakland, 

hereinafter referred to as “ICCA communities”.   Each of the ICCA communities 

may appoint one Director (“Director”), in accordance with the procedures, polices 

or ordinances in effect in that municipality.     Each of the eleven ICCA community 

Directors, as set forth above, shall be able to vote, in accordance with the terms as 

set forth herein.  Each Director shall hold office until his/her resignation, which 

shall require written notice to the Corporation.  Such resignation will be effective 

upon its receipt by the Corporation, or at a subsequent time, if set forth in the 

written notice of resignation.  Each Director is also subject to removal at any time 

by the appointing member community, in accordance with the member 

community’s rules and procedures.  Each Director may also be removed by an 

appointing member community, or with a majority vote of the remaining Board of 

Directors, when the Director is no longer qualified to be a Director, as set forth in 

section 3.        

 2. Vacancies of New Directors.   Any vacancies on the Board of 

Directors shall be filled in the same manner as the original appointment.   

 3. Qualifications for the ICCA members of the CMN Board of 



5 

Directors.     All Directors appointed by the ICCA member communities shall 

satisfy the following criteria: 

a)   The Director must be a resident of the ICCA member community 

that makes the appointment; or  

b)   The Director may be a non-resident, as long as the Director is 

an employee of the ICCA member community that makes the appointment.  

However, in no event shall the Director be: (1) the City Manager or Township 

Supervisor of the ICCA member community that makes the appointment; (2) a 

community representative to the ICCA, or alternate representative to the ICCA 

from a community; or (3) an employee of a school board located in an ICCA 

community which employee has within the scope of his/her employment the 

operation of the educational channel in that ICCA community; 

c)   The Director may not be a county, state, or federal elected official.  

d)   The Director may not be an agent or employee of Comcast or 

WideOpen West (or their successors) or an agent of any future franchisee. 

 4. Power to Make By-laws.  The Board of Directors may amend 

the By-laws upon a vote of a 67-2/3% majority of the Board of Directors.  The 

Board of Directors shall not be empowered to amend the By-laws or adopt new 

By-laws that permit the Corporation from engaging in any activity that would 

cause the Corporation to fail, qualify or continue to qualify as an exempt 



6 

organization under 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code 1986 (or any 

corresponding provisions of any future United States Internal Revenue Code) or as 

a nonprofit Corporation of the laws of the State of Michigan. 

 5. Quorum and Vote of Board of Directors.   Any vote of the 

Board of Directors shall be on the basis of one vote per “Eligible Director” as 

herein defined, in accordance with the provisions of the Intergovernmental 

Agreement between the ICCA member communities.  However, Directors that are 

appointed by ICCA member communities that have failed to contribute the 

“minimal funding” requirement as set forth in the contract between the ICCA and 

CMN, as the same may be amended from time to time (“ICCA/CMN Contract”) 

shall lose its vote(s) on the Board of Directors, and the number of votes on the 

Board of Directors shall be adjusted so that the total number of votes and the 

calculation of a majority vote or super majority vote shall be based upon the total 

number of votes that would be available on the Board of Directors if all Directors 

were permitted to vote, less the amount of votes allocated to those communities 

that do not provide “minimal funding” under the ICCA/CMN Contract.  Those 

Directors from communities that have fulfilled their funding requirements under 

the ICCA/CMN Contract shall be deemed “Eligible Directors”.   

 A majority of the Eligible Directors then in office constitutes a 

quorum for the transaction of business.   The vote of the majority of the ”Eligible 



7 

Directors” present at the meeting in which a quorum is present (“Majority Vote”) 

constitutes the action of the Board of Directors. 

 6.  Power to Elect Officers.   The Board of Directors shall select a 

President, Secretary and a Treasurer. 

 7. Power to Appoint Other Offices and Agents.   The Board of 

Directors shall have the power to appoint such other officers and agents as the 

Board may deem necessary for carrying out the purposes of the Corporation.  All 

officers and agents of the Corporation shall respectively have such authority and 

perform such duties in the management of the property and affairs of the 

Corporation as may be delegated to them from time to time by the Board of 

Directors, in accordance with the terms and provisions of these By-laws. 

  8. Power to Fill Vacancies.   The Board shall have power to fill 

any vacancy in any office occurring for any reason whatsoever. 

 9. Delegation of Powers.   For any reason deemed sufficient by 

the Board of Directors, whether occasioned by absence or otherwise, the Board 

may, to the extent not inconsistent with any federal, state or local law governing 

not for profit corporations, the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation, or 

these By-laws, delegate such powers and duties of any officer to any other officer 

or director. 



8 

 10. Organizational Meeting of the Board.  An annual meeting of the 

Board of Directors shall be held on such date as the Board of Directors shall 

determine, for the purpose of electing offices and transacting any other business 

properly brought before it. 

 11. Place and Notice of Meetings of the Board of Directors. 

   a) Regular or special meetings of the Board of Directors shall 

be held in the State of Michigan. 

   b) Regular or special meetings of the Board of Directors shall 

be conducted in accordance with the most recent edition of Roberts Rules of 

Procedure.      

   c) Members of the Board must be present in order to participate 

and/or vote in a meeting. This precludes the use of telephone conferencing or other 

similar communications. 

 12. Notices Regarding Board Meetings.   During the term of the 

ICCA/CMN Contract, all notices regarding special meetings of the Board shall be 

provided to the ICCA. 

 13.   Authority to Establish Financial Reserves and Refunds of 

Excessive Funds.  The Corporation has the authority, upon a majority vote of the 

Board of Directors, to establish financial reserves that are reasonable and 



9 

necessary, as well as to authorize refunds of excessive funds to the municipal 

members. 

 14. Absentee Policy.  In the event a Director has three or more 

unexcused absences in any twelve-month consecutive period, then the Board of 

Directors may, at its option, report such absences to the ICCA and the community 

from which the Director was appointed.  Further, the Board of Directors may 

request that the community appoint a replacement Director who is able to comply 

with the attendance policies of the CMN Board of Directors as set forth in these 

Bylaws. 

 

ARTICLE VII 
COMMITTEES 

 
 1.  The Board of Directors may appoint one (1) or more 

committees, upon approval of a majority vote of the Board.  Any committee or 

sub-committee shall serve in an advisory capacity only, and the Board cannot 

delegate its authority to a committee, but may delegate ministerial duties regarding 

the day-to-day operations of CMN to a committee or staff for the efficient 

operation of the Corporation in its normal course of business. 

 2. Committees are limited to exercising only such powers and 

authority that is expressly granted by the Corporation By-laws, or state, local, or 

federal law, or by a resolution adopted by the majority vote of the Board of 



10 

Directors.   However, committees and/or sub-committees are prohibited from 

exercising any of the following powers:  

a)   Amending the Articles of Incorporation. 

b)   Adopting an agreement of merger or consolidation. 

c)   Selling, leasing or exchanging all or substantially all of the 

Corporation’s property and assets. 

d)   Dissolving of the Corporation or a revocation of dissolution. 

e)   Amending the By-laws of the Corporation. 

f)   Filling vacancies in the Board of Directors. 

g)   Fixing the compensation of the Directors for serving on the 

Board or a committee. 

h)   Canceling or terminating a member community’s membership. 

 

ARTICLE VIII 
OFFICERS 

 
 The officers of the Company shall consist of the following: 

1. The President, who shall preside at all meetings of the Corporation 

and of the Board of Directors at which he/she may be present; and shall perform 

such other duties as may be prescribed in these By-laws or assigned by the 

Corporation or by the Board of Directors; and shall coordinate the work of the 

offices of the Corporation in order that the purposes may be promoted. 



11 

2.   A Vice President or Vice Presidents, as the Board may designate 

by resolution from time to time; who shall perform the duties and exercise the 

powers of the President during the absence or disability of the President, and 

perform such other duties as shall be assigned from time to time by the President or 

by the Board of Directors. 

3.   The Secretary, who shall record the minutes of all meetings of the 

Corporation and of the Board of Directors and shall perform such other duties as 

may be delegated to him/her. 

4.   The Treasurer shall cause the executive director of the 

Corporation, or such other employee of the Corporation authorized by the Board of 

Directors, to keep a full and accurate account of receipts and expenditures 

authorized by the Board of Directors.  The Treasurer shall present a financial 

statement at every meeting of the Corporation, and at other times when requested 

by the Board of Directors.  The Treasurer shall make a full report at the annual 

meeting.  The Treasurer shall be responsible for the maintenance of such books of 

account and records, which shall be in conformance with the By-laws.  The 

Treasurer shall be responsible to make sure that all accounts of the Corporation 

require at least two (2) check signatories.  The Treasurer’s accounts may be 

examined annually by an auditor approved by the Board of Directors.       

 
 



12 

ARTICLE IX 
CORPORATE BOOKS AND RECORDS 

 
 The Corporation shall keep books and records of accounts and minutes 

of its Boards and Committees in accordance with the advice of the Corporation’s 

independent certified public accountant as to the keeping of books and records of a 

private nonprofit corporation in the State of Michigan.  Investments, funds and 

assets of the Corporation shall be invested in accordance with the laws of the State 

of Michigan. 

 
ARTICLE X 

INVESTMENTS 
 

 The funds and assets of the Corporation shall be invested in such a 

manner as to enable the Corporation to carry out its exempt purposes, and in such a 

manner so as not to cause the Corporation, or any of its officers or directors, to be 

subject to any federal penalty excise taxes imposed on private foundations under 

the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or similar penalty taxes 

under the laws of the State of Michigan). 

 

ARTICLE XI 
FISCAL YEAR 

 The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be determined by the Board of 

Directors. 



13 

ARTICLE XII 
DUTY OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS 

 
 A Director or an Officer shall discharge the duties of his/her position 

in good faith and with that degree of diligence, care and skill, which an ordinary 

prudent person would exercise under similar circumstances in a like position.  In 

discharging his/her duties, a Director or an Officer, when acting in good faith, may 

rely upon the opinion of counsel for the Corporation, or upon the report of an 

independent appraiser that is selected with reasonable care by the Board, or upon 

financial statements of the Corporation that are verified as correct by the President 

or the Officer of the Corporation that has charge of its books or account, or as 

stated in a written report by an independent public or certified public accountant 

(or firm of such accountants) which is drafted for the purpose of reflecting the 

financial condition of the Corporation. 

 

ARTICLE XIII 
INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES AND 

AGENTS 
 

 [OPEN – CURRENTLY BEING REVIEWED BY COUNSEL]1.

 Actions other than Actions be or in the Right of the Corporation. 

 The Corporation shall indemnify any person who was or is a party or 

is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, 

suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other 



14 

than an action by or in the right of the Corporation) by reason of the fact that he is 

or was a Director, Officer, Agent, or a volunteer worker of the Corporation, or is or 

was serving at the request of the Corporation, as Director, Officer, Volunteer 

worker or Agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other 

enterprise.  This indemnification covers any expenses (including attorneys’ fees), 

judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement that are actually and reasonably 

incurred in connection with such action, suit or proceeding, as long as the Director, 

Officer, Agent, or Volunteer Worker or Agent acted in good faith and in a manner 

reasonably believed to be in the best interests of the Corporation (and not opposed 

to the best interest of the Corporation).  This indemnification also covers any 

criminal action or proceeding, so long as the Director, Officer, Agent, or Volunteer 

Worker or Agent had no reasonable cause to believe the conduct was unlawful.  

The termination of any action, suit or proceeding, by judgment, order, settlement, 

conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of itself, 

create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner 

which is reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the 

Corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceedings, had 

reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was unlawful. 

 2. Actions by or in the Right of the Corporation.   The Corporation 

shall indemnify any person who is or was a party to, or is threatened to be made a 



15 

party to any threatened, pending or completed action or suit filed by or in the right 

of the Corporation to procure a judgment in its favor, by reason of the fact that he 

is or was a Director, Officer, Volunteer Worker or Agent of the Corporation, or is 

or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a Director, Officer, Volunteer 

Worker or Agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other 

enterprise.  This indemnification shall cover any expenses (including attorneys’ 

fees) that are actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with the 

defense or settlement of such action or suit, as long as the Director, Officer, 

Volunteer Worker, or Agent acted in good faith and in a manner reasonably 

believed to be in the best interest of the Corporation, or at a minimum not opposed 

to the best interests of the Corporation.  However, indemnification shall not be 

provided for any claim, issue or matter, when the person requesting 

indemnification has been adjudged negligence or committed misconduct in the 

performance of duty to the Corporation.   

 3. Indemnification Against Expenses. 

a)   To the extent that a Director, Officer, Volunteer Worker or Agent 

of the Corporation has been successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of any 

action, suit or proceeding, as referred to in Section 1 or 2 of this Article, or in 

defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, he shall be indemnified against 



16 

expenses (including attorneys fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him in 

connection therewith. 

b)   Any indemnification under Sections 1 or 2 (unless ordered by a 

court) shall be made by the Corporation after a determination that indemnification 

is proper in the circumstances, because he has met the applicable standard of 

conduct set forth in Section 1 and 2.  Such determination shall be made in either of 

the following ways: 

   (i) By a majority vote of the Board, excluding the Directors 

who were parties to such action, suit or proceeding.   

   (ii)   If a quorum of Board Members are not eligible to vote, 

since they were parties to such action, suit or proceeding, then the determination 

can be made   by independent legal counsel, retained by the Corporation.  In a 

written opinion.   

 4. Resident Agent.  The Board of Directors shall determine a 

resident agent from time to time. 

   5. Conflicts Of Interest And Nepotism.    No member of the CMN 

Board or any officer of CMN or any members of their “families”, as herein 

defined, shall be interested, directly or indirectly, in any contract, franchise, job, 

work or service where there are revenues therefrom, nor shall he or she receive any 

compensation for any work or service rendered to CMN except compensation for 



17 

services if the officer is an employee of CMN.  ”Families”, as herein defined, of 

the Executive Director or any member of the CMN Board are hereby disqualified 

from holding any appointed office of CMN or from being employed by CMN or 

serving on the CMN Board.  “Families”, for purposes of this Agreement, shall be 

defined as spouse, parents, children, siblings or in-laws at the same degree of 

relationship, stepchildren, stepparents and stepsiblings.  

 6. Noncompete.   The Corporation agrees that it will not compete 

with the ICCA governmental or educational access programming within the ICCA 

member communities.   The Corporation will be permitted, however, to bid on 

such governmental and educational services within the ICCA communities, as long 

as the ICCA has granted prior approval.   

7.  Competitive Bidding Requirements.   All supplies and contractual services, 

when the estimated costs thereof shall equal or exceed Three Thousand Dollars 

($3,000), shall be purchased by a written contract or invoice from the lowest 

responsible bidder, it being specifically understood that CMN is not obligated to 

accept the lowest bid on any contract due to the many qualitative factors which 

must be considered by CMN and which may cause a more prudent decision to be 

made by the purchase of equipment or other services which are not determined to 

be the lowest price, but by the best value offered.   



18 

 8.   Funding From Other Sources.  The Corporation shall be permitted 

to raise supplemental funds with ICCA approval. 

 



1 of 7 

July 25, 2005 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager  
 
From: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
 Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
 Gert Paraskevin, Information Technology Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item: Bid Waiver - Authorization To Purchase an Enterprise Content Management 

System 
 
Recommendation 
 
City management is requesting approval to purchase an Enterprise-wide Content Management (ECM) 
system from Liberty Information Management Solutions and Ricoh Business Systems, as well as other 
approved contracts.  The contract would allow the City to purchase the necessary software, installation, 
training and maintenance at an overall reduced price.  In return the City of Troy would act as a reference 
site for the LibertyNet product.  All the components needed for a complete solution would be purchased 
from the vendors as outlined in Appendix A for an estimated total cost of $542,000 with annual ongoing 
maintenance of approximately $59,000. 
 
Background 
 
It was identified in 1995 by the Plante Moran Computer Implementation & Utilization Strategic Plan and 
then again in 2000 by the City’s Document Management Committee, that the City is in need of an 
Enterprise Content Management solution.  See specific details in Appendix B.  The Committee’s search 
for a system again in 2005 has resulted in an offer from LibertyIMS and Ricoh Business Solutions (the 
local vendor) for the City of Troy to become a reference site for their LibertyNet software product.  
LibertyIMS is located on the west coast and is trying to expand into the eastern part of the country.  
Appendix C contains a letter from Liberty/Ricoh outlining why the City of Troy would be an attractive 
reference site.  The incentive they are offering is to provide the majority of their software licenses at no 
cost.   In addition, they are willing to initially implement the software in two pilot departments for which we 
do not pay implementation fees until acceptance.  As a result, there is virtually no risk to the City.  Should 
the City take advantage of this offer it would save approximately $223,000 in software licensing and 
$24,000 in annual maintenance.  In addition to saving money, this arrangement also creates an 
environment in which the vendor is extremely motivated to do a good job to ensure the pilot is a success, 
and continues to do a good job to ensure the city will provide positive references for them over time.   
There is no better environment for a successful software implementation. 
 
Summary 
 
The implementation of an enterprise Content Management system will not only help alleviate space 
issues and reduce labor involved in document retrieval, the city will also have the opportunity to perform 
some business process redesign.  We will be able to identify records that can be captured and retained 
electronically, records that no longer serve a purpose and can be eliminated, identify opportunities for 
automating business processes (workflow), opportunities for re-defining record keeping procedures, and 
information sharing opportunities between departments or other government entities.  Lastly, it will 
provide opportunities for improved customer service.  Examples include quicker document retrieval and 
reproduction as well as access to documents via the city website. 
 
Budget  
 
Funds are budgeted in the Information Services Capital Fund, 401258.  However, since this will be a 
multi-year project, funds will continue to be budgeted in successive years until project completion.  Total 
funding for all years is estimated to be $542,000.  Annual maintenance fees will move to the operating 
fund 258 after the first year. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-12



2 of 7 

Appendix A 
Detailed Pricing 

 
Ricoh Business Systems / Liberty Information Management Systems  

 
Description  (200 concurrent users) Cost
  Third Party Software  $11,078
  Initial implementation and training for 2 departments 35,000
  Additional implementation 15,000
  Administrator Training 8,000
  First year maintenance 51,612

Total $120,690
 
  Annual Ongoing Software Maintenance $51,612
 
Hardware 
  Bell & Howell Flatbed Truper Model production scanner $7,745
 
  Annual Ongoing Hardware Maintenance 1,110

 
REMC Contract 
Hewlett Packard 

 
Description Cost 
(2) DL380 Xeon 3.6GHz dual processor with 4GB memory 
(inc 3 years maintenance) 

$11,688 

Tape Backup Library (inc 1 year maintenance and 
installation) 

29,498 

Tape Backup Software including training 32,000 
Storage Area Network (SAN) 2TB (inc 3 years maintenance 
and installation) 

32,568 

Total $105,754 
  
Annual Ongoing Maintenance  $6,277 

 
State Contract 

EDS 
 

Description Unit Cost Quantity Total
SQL Server 2000 Standard Edition 
Processor License 

3,234 2 $6,468

Microsoft Windows Server 2003 
Standard Edition  

486 2 972

Total   $7,440
 

Graphic Sciences 
 

Description Average Cost Estimated Quantity Total 
Back file conversion .30 1,000,000 $300,000 



3 of 7 

Appendix B 
 

Detailed Background 
 
History  
 
The Information Technology Department has been investigating document management 
systems for some time.  The need for such a system was evident in June 1995 when Plante & 
Moran completed a Computer Implementation & Utilization Strategic Plan for the City of Troy.  
In their report they identified the following: 
 

Numerous departments file and retain a variety of documents, photographs, and 
forms.  Legally, maintaining hard copies of certain documents is mandated by the 
State and Federal governments.  However, for other documents, an 
imaging/document management system should be implemented to enhance 
document filing/storage and retrieval to alleviate space constraints and improve 
staff efficiency. 

 
This observation still holds true, and even documents required to be kept in a human readable 
form (one of which is hard copy), can also be imaged to benefit from the retrieval and space 
advantages.   Any paper documents that are imaged can be stored off-site to alleviate space 
constraints and then the image would allow for immediate access.  In addition, relying solely on 
paper has some drawbacks: no disaster recovery mechanism, there is always a risk of misfiles 
and lost documents, only allows for single user access, they can be voluminous, and they are 
not easily duplicated and distributed.  
 
Original Request for Proposal 
 
In 2000 a Document Management Committee was formed consisting of members from every 
department, to establish the requirements for a system and develop a request for proposal 
(RFP) document.  At that time the City invited members of the Tri-County Cooperative to 
participate in the RFP process.  Farmington Hills and Birmingham were both direct participants.  
However, a number of other communities were very interested and attended the 
demonstrations.  The RFP was sent out to 27 vendors and we received responses from the 
following: 
 

Responding Vendor Product 
Digital Paper DocQuest 
Triangle Computer Triangle TDMS/DocImager 
ImageSoft OnBase 
GA Computers OnBase 
DSS Laserfiche 
General Code Publishers Laserfiche 
Graphic Sciences OTG  
Integrity Systems/Anacom OTG 

 
After initial review of specifications and experience, several vendors were disqualified and one 
withdrew (General Code Publishers).  Demonstrations were then arranged for the following: 



4 of 7 

 
Demonstrating Vendor Product 
Graphic Sciences OTG 
Anacom OTG 
DSS Corporation Laserfiche 
GA Computers OnBase 

 
After much review and discussion the City decided not to choose a system because there was 
no combination of software and vendor that met all our needs.   
 
During this RFP process staff did, however, compile data collected from each department 
detailing the documents they store and how often they need to be accessed.  In total the 
departments detailed approximately 12.5 million documents, of which 8.1 million had to be 
available to be accessed on a daily basis, 300,000 weekly and 208,000 monthly.  The balance 
was accessed less often.  It is clear that a large percentage of documents (65%) need to be 
readily accessible.  As a result a great amount of area is being utilized to store documents in 
close proximity, and a great amount of effort is being expended to file and access these 
documents.  An interesting note is that in order to make documents more accessible some 
documents are copied multiple times and stored in multiple departments.   This exacerbates the 
space requirements and labor spent to duplicate and file these documents.   
 
Elements of a Document Management System 
 
A document management system, or more commonly referred to as an Enterprise Content 
Management (ECM) system, provides for a method to manage documents in electronic format.  
Converting documents to digital images allows for several advantages:  
 

1. Provides for a disaster recovery mechanism.  Should something happen to paper 
copies; the electronic copy would still be available.  In addition, electronic copies can 
be easily backed up. 

2. Electronic copies allow for high-density storage or in other words can be stored in a 
very small amount of space. 

3. Allows multiple user access including access via the web. 
4. Provides centralized storage control. 
5. Can be rapidly retrieved and makes complex searches simple tasks. 
6. Easily distributed.  Can easily attach to email or become part of a workflow. 
7. If allowed electronic documents can be easily updated or annotated.  In addition 

changes can be tracked. 
8. Easily duplicated.  Electronic documents can easily be printed, copied to other 

electronic media and even converted to microfilm. 
9. Allows for modifiable views such as with and without redaction and annotations, and 

at various zooms.  
10. Provides the ability to control and audit access and security rights. 
11. Improves the ability to find documents by providing multiple indexing options. 

 
Current Search 
 
Since the original request for proposal (RFP) went out for document management, City staff has 
periodically investigated software that is available on existing contracts.  Most notably FileNet 
on the State of Michigan MiDEAL Program (formerly known as the Extended Purchasing 
Program) or an Oakland County contract, and Laserfiche available via the City of Farmington 
Hills under the MITN Cooperative (formerly known as the Tri-County Cooperative). 
 
Filenet 



5 of 7 

Although Filenet was found to be a very robust product it was also very expensive.  
Quotes for the software, implementation, training and maintenance/support for 200 users 
for the first year ranged from $560,000 to $931,000.  Annual ongoing maintenance was 
approximately $80,000.   
 

Laserfiche 
Most recently the Document Management Committee reconvened in January 2005 to 
investigate the bid award by Farmington Hills to DSS Corporation for Laserfiche 
software.   The cost for software, implementation, training, and maintenance/support for 
the first year, for 200 users is approximately $344,000.  Annual ongoing maintenance 
would be approximately $76,000.   

 
 
Liberty IMS Offer 
 
While considering Laserfiche software the committee also participated in a demonstration of a 
competitive product called LibertyNet.  The committee gave positive reviews for LibertyNet.  
Liberty Information Management Solutions out of Costa Mesa, CA and Ricoh Business 
Systems, the local reseller, recognizing our interest and the advantages of having the City of 
Troy as a customer, offered the City an opportunity to become a reference site for their software 
in this area.  They have a presence on the west coast, but are just now beginning to build a 
customer base on the east coast.  Appendix C contains a letter outlining why the City of Troy is 
an attractive client for LibertyNet.  As an incentive, they offered to provide the initial software 
licenses for up to 200 concurrent users at no cost with the exception of some third party 
software that is part of their system, but they do not own rights to (Native viewers, OCR 
software and PDF plus).  In addition, they are willing to implement their software in two 
departments to prove its capability without any initial charges from them.  There would be initial 
costs to purchase the necessary hardware to set up the system, but no software or 
implementation costs.  At the end of that “pilot”, if we were satisfied with the results we would 
agree to pay the implementation fees for those two departments and the third party software 
costs.  We would then continue to roll the software out to the rest of the City, paying for any 
additional implementation assistance and training costs as we go.  Our obligation at that point 
would be to pay maintenance fees on an annual basis and be available as a reference for their 
software.  LibertyNet would also put together a case study featuring the City of Troy’s 
implementation. 
 
The potential savings as a result of this offer could not be ignored.  It was advanced to and 
supported by the Document Management Committee.  In fact some members voiced their 
preference for LibertyNet over Laserfiche including the IT department that views it as a superior 
product in terms of an enterprise solution.   
 
Due Diligence – LibertyNet 
 
There were still some questions about moving forward with LibertyNet, so as part of our due 
diligence we completed the following: 
 

1) Confirmed with LibertyNet that they comply with the State of Michigan Optical Imaging 
Rules. 

 
2) Contacted various LibertyNet local government references, and the overwhelming 

response was that LibertyNet was a very responsive company with a very good product. 
Cities contacted include City of Lakeland, FL; Volusia County, FL; City of Inglewood, CA; 
City of Olympia, WA; and City of Los Angeles, CA. 

 



6 of 7 

3) Worked with LibertyIMS and their local partner Ricoh Business Systems to develop a 
mutually acceptable proposal.  The cost for software, implementation services, training, 
and maintenance for the first year is approximately $121,000 with annual ongoing 
maintenance of approximately $52,000.  Ricoh has offered substantial savings if prepaid 
($45,000 per year for three years, or $40,000 per year for five years).  This option will be 
investigated further to determine if it is advantageous and in the city’s best interest.  The 
total cost includes 200 concurrent user licenses, and additional modules such as 
workflow, version control and auditing, web server, e-forms and database integration. 
The result is an estimated savings of $223,000 initially and $24,000 on annual 
maintenance over Laserfiche.   

 
In addition to the software costs, hardware and back file conversion are also required as 
part of a complete Enterprise Content Management System.  These costs would be incurred 
regardless of the software vendor.   
 

• Hardware, hardware related software, and installation will be an additional 
$121,000 plus approximately $7,400 annual maintenance.   

• Back file conversion is the process of scanning and indexing existing paper 
documents, currently stored in file cabinets, so they may be stored in electronic 
format.  As departments are implemented their need for back file conversion will 
be carefully assessed.   It would be cost prohibitive to convert all documents, 
therefore, as part of the implementation process each department will be 
meticulously reviewed to determine which documents to convert, and whether to 
handle them internally or send out to a conversion vendor.  A rough estimate is 
1,000,000 documents for an approximate cost of $300,000.   



7 of 7 

Appendix C 
 

Liberty Information Management Systems Correspondence 
 
 



DATE:  August 10, 2005 
 
 
 

TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Steven Vandette, City Engineer 

 Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 

   
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Proposed Revisions to  
                      Chapter 19 - Sanitary Sewer Service 
 Elimination of Connection Requirement 
  
 
Introduction: 
 
At the City Council meeting of July 18, 2005, city staff was asked to prepare revisions to 
Chapter 19, of the Troy City Code.  The revisions requested were to eliminate the 
mandatory connection to sanitary sewer within 18 months of availability.  In response, 
staff has prepared the proposed amendments to Section 19.02. 00, 19.03.00 and 
19.05.00 of the City Code for your consideration.  In reviewing the ordinance text 
regarding certain definitions we have identified revisions that we wish to make in order 
to eliminate unclear language. 
 
Revisions to Chapter 19 of Troy’s Ordinance – To Eliminate Required 
Connection: 
 
Portions of Section 19.01 should be revised to eliminate unclear language. 
 
Portions of Section 19.02 should be deleted from the Ordinance.   
 
Sections 19.02.01, 19.02.02 and 19.02.03 should be moved and renumbered to 
become Sections 19.05.03, 19.05.04, and 19.05.05 respectively. 
 
Section 19.03.01 and 19.03.02 should be revised to eliminate language mandating 
connections and coordinating with the deletions to Section 19.02. 
 
19.01.01 Available public sanitary sewer shall be construed to mean a public 

sanitary sewer system located in a right of way, easement, highway, 
street or public way which crosses, adjoins or abuts upon the property 
and passing not more than 200 feet at the nearest point from a structure 
in which sanitary sewage originates. 

 
19.01.18 Public sanitary sewer system shall be construed to mean a sanitary 

sewer or a combined sanitary and storm sewer used or intended for use 

campbellld
Text Box
F-13



by the public for collection and transportation of sanitary sewage for 
treatment or disposal. 

 
19.01.23 Sewage disposal system shall be construed to mean the City of Troy 

sewage disposal system. 
 
19.01.29 Structure in which sanitary sewage originates or structure shall be 

construed to mean a building in which toilet, kitchen, laundry, bathing or 
other facilities which generate water-carried sanitary sewage, are used or 
are available for use for household, commercial, industrial or other 
purposes. 

 
19.01.31 System shall be deemed to refer to the said sewage disposal system. 
 
USE OF PUBLIC SEWERS REQUIRED 
 
19.02 Public sanitary sewer systems are essential to the health, safety and welfare 
of the people of the State and the City of Troy. Septic tank disposal systems are 
subject to failure due to soil conditions or other reasons. Failure or potential failure of 
septic tank disposal systems poses a threat to the public health, safety and welfare; 
presents a potential for ill health, transmission of disease, mortality and potential 
economic blight and constitutes a threat to the quality of surface and subsurface 
waters of the State and the City of Troy. 
The connection to available public sanitary sewer systems at the earliest, 
reasonable date is a matter for the protection of the public health, safety and welfare 
and necessary in the public interest which is declared as a matter of legislative 
determination. 
 
19.02.01 19.05.03 Waste Deposits. It shall be unlawful for any person to place or 
deposit or permit to be deposited in an unsanitary manner upon any public or private 
property within the City of Troy, or in any area under the jurisdiction of the said City 
of Troy, any human or animal excrement, garbage, or other objectionable waste. 
 
19.02.02 19.05.04 Water Pollution. It shall be unlawful to discharge into any natural 
watercourse or any storm sewer, within the City of Troy or in any area under the 
jurisdiction of the said City, any sanitary sewage, industrial waste, or other polluted 
waters, except where suitable treatment has been provided in accordance with the 
standards established by the MDEQ and the provisions of the Federal Clean Water 
Act. 
 
19.02.03 19.05.05 Privies and Septic Tanks. Except as hereinafter provided it shall 
be unlawful to construct or maintain any privy, privy vault, septic tank, cesspool or 
other facility intended or based for the disposal of sewage. 
 
19.02.04 Structures in which sanitary sewage originates located in the City of Troy in 
the area served by the system for which there is an available public sanitary sewer 
of the system shall not be used or occupied, after the effective date hereof, unless 
said structures are connected to the sewage disposal system: Provided, that 

 2



structures within the City of Troy in which sanitary sewage is originating on the 
effective date hereof or in which sanitary sewage originates before availability of the 
system or any part thereof to service said structures shall be connected to said 
system within eighteen (18) months after publication of a notice by the City of Troy in 
a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Troy of the availability of the 
system. 
 
19.02.05 
A. When the structure in which sanitary sewage originates has not been connected 
to an available sanitary sewer system before use and occupancy or within the 
eighteen (18) month period provided in this Chapter, the City of Troy shall require 
the connection to be made forthwith after notice, which may be by first class mail or 
posting on the property, to the owner of the property on which the structure is 
located. The notice shall give the approximate location of the public sanitary sewer 
of the system, which is available for connection of the structure involved and shall 
advise the owner of the requirements and of the enforcement provisions of this 
Chapter. 
 
B. Any property from which sanitary sewage emanates which is not connected to an 
available public sewer within 90 days after the date of mailing of the written demand 
is hereby declared to be a threat to the health, safety, and welfare of the people and 
a public nuisance and the City may forthwith enter upon or in the property and 
install, construct and make such connections to abate the nuisance and to serve the 
property as are necessary or desirable, in the sole discretion of the City. The owner 
or occupant of any property who fails or refuses to connect the property to an 
available public sewer upon written demand shall forfeit a sum not exceeding 
$100.00 and shall be liable to the City for the costs incurred in making the 
 connection to the sewer, which sum, including contingencies, shall be recoverable, 
jointly and severally from the owner or occupant, in an action at law or may be 
assessed against such property and shall be collected and treated in the same 
manner as taxes. 
 
C. If the City attempts to enter onto property for the purpose of ascertaining if it is the 
property from which sanitary sewage emanates, or to install, construct, and make 
connection of the property to the sewer, and is refused such entry, the City shall 
make complaint in writing to the Judge stating the facts of the case so far as may be 
known to the complainant. The Judge may issue a warrant directed to the Police 
Chief commanding him to take sufficient aid, and being accompanied by the Building 
Inspector of the City, between the hours of sunrise and sunset, to enter upon or in 
the property to the extent and for the duration required to enforce and carry out the 
provisions of this act. 
 
19.02.06 Where any structure in which sanitary sewage originates is not connected 
to an available public sanitary sewer system within 90 days after the date of mailing 
or posting of the written notice, the provisions of this Chapter shall be enforceable 
through the bringing of appropriate action for injunction, mandamus, or otherwise, in 
any court having jurisdiction. Any violation of this Chapter is deemed to be a 
nuisance per se. 

 3



Properties upon which the structure is more than 200 feet distance from the public 
sewer will be exempt from the provisions of this section unless deemed to be a 
serious threat to the health, safety and welfare of the people by the Building 
Department Inspector. Single family homes existing in areas zoned other than 
residential may be temporarily exempt from the provisions of this section provided 
that on-site sewage systems meet the approval of the Building Department Inspector 
and continue to function in a manner which does not threaten the health, welfare, 
and safety of the community as determined through periodic inspections by the 
Building Department Inspector. 
 
19.03.01 On-site Sewage Disposal Systems.  Unless a structure in which sanitary 

sewage originates is connected to Where a public sanitary sewer or 
combined sewer is not available under the provisions of this Chapter, the 
building sewer shall be connected with a private on-site sewage disposal 
system complying with the regulations and orders of the MDEQ and the 
Oakland County Health Department, and the provisions of Chapter 79 of 
this code (Building Regulations). 

 
19.03.02 Discontinuance of System.  At such time as a public sewer becomes 

available to a property served by a private sewage disposal system, as 
provided in this Chapter, and a direct connection shall be is made to the 
public sewer in compliance with the provisions of this Chapter, and any 
septic tank, privy, privy vault, cesspool or similar private sewage disposal 
facilities shall be abandoned and filled with suitable material.

 
 
Reviewed as to form and Legality         

Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  Date 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 

 4



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 

CHAPTER 19 - SANITARY SEWER SERVICE 
 
19.01 Definitions.  In the interpretation of this chapter the following definitions shall 

apply unless the content clearly indicates otherwise: 
 

19.01.01 Available public sanitary sewer shall be construed to mean a 
public sanitary sewer system located in a right of way, easement, 
highway, street or public way which crosses, adjoins or abuts upon the 
property and passing not more than 200 feet at the nearest point from a 
structure in which sanitary sewage originates. 

 
(Rev. 01-13-03)  

 
19.01.02 Biochemical Oxygen Demand or B.O.D. shall mean the quantity 

of oxygen utilized in the biochemical oxidation of organic matter under 
standard laboratory procedure in five (5) days at twenty (20) degrees 
centigrade, expressed in parts per million by weight. 

 
(Rev. 01-13-03) 

 
19.01.03 Building Department Inspector shall mean the employee or 

employees of the City of Troy’s Building Department, who is responsible 
for the inspection of the privately owned and maintained On-site Sewage 
Disposal Systems within the City of Troy. 

 
(Rev. 01-13-03) 

 
 19.01.04 Building drain shall mean that part of the lowest horizontal piping 

of a building drainage system which receives and conveys the discharge 
from soil, waste and drainage pipes other than storm drains from within 
the walls or footings of any building to the building sewer. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 

 
19.01.05 Building sewer shall mean the extension from the building drain to 

the public sewer or other place of disposal. 
 

 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
  
 19.01.06 Combination sewer or combined sewer shall mean a sewer 

receiving both surface run-off and sewage. 
 
(Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
19.01.07 DWSD shall mean the Detroit Water and Sewerage Department. 
 
(Rev. 01-13-03) 

 1



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 

 
19.01.08 Failure shall be defined as follows: 1) the backup of sewage into a 

structure; 2) the discharge of effluent onto the ground surface; 3) the 
connection of an OSDS to a storm drain; 4) the liquid level in the septic 
tank is above the outlet invert; 5) the structural failure of a septic tank; 6) 
the discharge of sewage into any watercourse; 7) the liquid level in the 
disposal field is above the pipe of such field; or 8) the OSDS which failed 
to meet operational, effluent or discharge guidelines as set forth by the 
MDEQ, Oakland County Health Division Services, or the City of Troy. 

  
(Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
19.01.09 Fixed interval inspection shall mean the process of inspecting 

and evaluating the condition and state of the septic tank and septic system 
to cover a period of four years of operation for the On-site Sewage 
Disposal System.  This process includes observations, information 
gathering, evaluations, and the report of findings.  

  
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.10 Garbage shall mean solid wastes from the preparation, cooking 

and dispensing of food, and from the handling, storage, processing and 
sale of produce. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.11 Industrial wastes shall mean the liquid wastes, solids, or semi-

solids from industrial processes as distinct from sanitary sewage. 
 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.12 MDEQ shall mean the Michigan Department of Environmental 

Quality. 
 
 (Rev. 01-13-03)  
  
 19.01.13 Natural outlet shall mean any outlet into a watercourse, pond, 

ditch, lake, or other body of water, either surface or ground water. 
 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.14 On-site Sewage Disposal System or OSDS shall include all 

components or devices including, but not limited to all septic tanks, pipes, 
pumps, vents and absorption systems used to treat and/or dispose of all 
wastewater from a structure that is not serviced by the City of Troy 
sewage disposal system. 

  

 2



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 

19.01.15 Person shall mean any individual, firm, company, association, 
society, corporation or group. 

 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
   
 19.01.16 pH shall mean the logarithm of the reciprocal of the weight of 

hydrogen ions in grams per liter of solution. 
  
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
   
 19.01.17 Properly shredded garbage shall mean the wastes from the 

cooking, preparation and dispensing of food that has been cut or shredded 
to such a degree that all particles will be carried freely under flow 
conditions normally prevailing in public sewers, with no particle greater 
than one-half (1/2) inch in any dimension. 

  
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.18 Public sanitary sewer system shall be construed to mean a 

sanitary sewer or a combined sanitary and storm sewer used or intended 
for use by the public for collection and transportation of sanitary sewage 
for treatment or disposal. 

 
 19.01.19 Public sewer shall mean a sewer in which all owners of abutting 

property have equal rights, and is controlled by public authority. 
 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
  
 19.01.20 Sanitary sewer shall mean a sewer which carries sewage, and to 

which storm and surface waters are not intentionally admitted. 
  
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.21 Satisfactory Operation shall mean that there is minimal likelihood 

of degradation of groundwater and surface water, or risk to public health 
caused by improper construction, location or functioning of an OSDS. 

  
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.22 Sewage shall mean any combination of water-carried wastes from 

residences, business and commercial buildings, institutions, and industrial 
establishments, together with such ground, surface and storm waters as 
may be present. 

  
 (Rev. 01-13-03)  
 

 3



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 
 19.01.23 Sewage disposal system shall be construed to mean the City of 

Troy sewage disposal system. 
  
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.24 Sewage Treatment Plant shall mean any arrangement of devices 

and structures used for treating sewage. 
  
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.25 Sewage works shall mean all facilities for collecting, pumping, 

treating and disposing of sewage. 
  
 (Rev. 01-13-03)   
 
 19.01.26 Sewer shall mean any pipe, tile, tubes, or conduit for carrying 

sewage. 
   
 (Rev. 01-13-03)  
 
 19.01.27 Shall is mandatory.  May is permissive. 
  
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.28 Storm sewer or storm drain shall mean a sewer which carries 

storm and surface waters and drainage but which excludes sewage and 
polluted industrial wastes. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.29 Structure in which sanitary sewage originates or structure shall 

be construed to mean a building in which toilet, kitchen, laundry, bathing 
or other facilities which generate water-carried sanitary sewage, are used 
or are available for use for household, commercial, industrial or other 
purposes. 

  
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.30 Suspended solids shall mean the solids that either float on the 

surface of, or are suspended in water, sewage, or other liquids and which 
are removable by laboratory filtering. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.31 System shall be deemed to refer to the said sewage disposal 

system. 
 

 4



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 19.01.32 Watercourse shall mean a channel in which a flow of water occurs, 

either continuously or intermittently. 
 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
USE OF PUBLIC SEWERS REQUIRED 
 
19.02 Public sanitary sewer systems are essential to the health, safety and welfare of 
the people of the State and the City of Troy. Septic tank disposal systems are subject to 
failure due to soil conditions or other reasons. Failure or potential failure of septic tank 
disposal systems poses a threat to the public health, safety and welfare; presents a 
potential for ill health, transmission of disease, mortality and potential economic blight 
and constitutes a threat to the quality of surface and subsurface waters of the State and 
the City of Troy. 
 
The connection to available public sanitary sewer systems at the earliest, reasonable 
date is a matter for the protection of the public health, safety and welfare and necessary 
in the public interest which is declared as a matter of legislative determination. 
 
(Rev. 02-26-73) 
 
19.02.01  19.05.03  Waste Deposits.  It shall be unlawful for any person to place or 
deposit or permit to be deposited in an unsanitary manner upon any public or private 
property within the City of Troy, or in any area under the jurisdiction of the said City of 
Troy, any human or animal excrement, garbage, or other objectionable waste. 
 
(Rev. 04-01-64) 
 
19.02.02  19.05.04  Water Pollution.  It shall be unlawful to discharge into any natural 
watercourse or any storm sewer, within the City of Troy or in any area under the 
jurisdiction of the said City, any sanitary sewage, industrial waste, or other polluted 
waters, except where suitable treatment has been provided in accordance with the 
standards established by the MDEQ and the provisions of the Federal Clean Water Act. 
 
(Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
19.02.03  19.05.05  Privies and Septic Tanks.  Except as hereinafter provided it shall be 
unlawful to construct or maintain any privy, privy vault, septic tank, cesspool or other 
facility intended or based for the disposal of sewage. 
 
(Rev. 04-01-64)  
 
19.02.04 Structures in which sanitary sewage originates located in the City of Troy in 
the area served by the system for which there is an available public sanitary sewer of 
the system shall not be used or occupied, after the effective date hereof, unless said 

 5



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 
structures are connected to the sewage disposal system: Provided, that structures 
within the City of Troy in which sanitary sewage is originating on the effective date 
hereof or in which sanitary sewage originates before availability of the system or any 
part thereof to service said structures shall be connected to said system within eighteen 
(18) months after publication of a notice by the City of Troy in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the City of Troy of the availability of the system. 
 
19.02.05 
A. When the structure in which sanitary sewage originates has not been connected to 
an available sanitary sewer system before use and occupancy or within the eighteen 
(18) month period provided in this Chapter, the City of Troy shall require the connection 
to be made forthwith after notice, which may be by first class mail or posting on the 
property, to the owner of the property on which the structure is located. The notice shall 
give the approximate location of the public sanitary sewer of the system, which is 
available for connection of the structure involved and shall advise the owner of the 
requirements and of the enforcement provisions of this Chapter. 
 
B. Any property from which sanitary sewage emanates which is not connected to an 
available public sewer within 90 days after the date of mailing of the written demand is 
hereby declared to be a threat to the health, safety, and welfare of the people and a 
public nuisance and the City may forthwith enter upon or in the property and install, 
construct and make such connections to abate the nuisance and to serve the property 
as are necessary or desirable, in the sole discretion of the City. The owner or occupant 
of any property who fails or refuses to connect the property to an available public sewer 
upon written demand shall forfeit a sum not exceeding $100.00 and shall be liable to the 
City for the costs incurred in making the connection to the sewer, which sum, including 
contingencies, shall be recoverable, jointly and severally from the owner or occupant, in 
an action at law or may be assessed against such property and shall be collected and 
treated in the same manner as taxes. 
 
C. If the City attempts to enter onto property for the purpose of ascertaining if it is the 
property from which sanitary sewage emanates, or to install, construct, and make 
connection of the property to the sewer, and is refused such entry, the City shall make 
complaint in writing to the Judge stating the facts of the case so far as may be known to 
the complainant. The Judge may issue a warrant directed to the Police Chief 
commanding him to take sufficient aid, and being accompanied by the Building 
Inspector of the City, between the hours of sunrise and sunset, to enter upon or in the 
property to the extent and for the duration required to enforce and carry out the 
provisions of this act. 
 
(Rev. 06-07-93) 
 
19.02.06 Where any structure in which sanitary sewage originates is not connected to 
an available public sanitary sewer system within 90 days after the date of mailing or 
posting of the written notice, the provisions of this Chapter shall be enforceable through 
the bringing of appropriate action for injunction, mandamus, or otherwise, in any court 
having jurisdiction. Any violation of this Chapter is deemed to be a nuisance per se. 

 6



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 
Properties upon which the structure is more than 200 feet distance from the public 
sewer will be exempt from the provisions of this section unless deemed to be a serious 
threat to the health, safety and welfare of the people by the Building Department 
Inspector. Single family homes existing in areas zoned other than residential may be 
temporarily exempt from the provisions of this section provided that on-site sewage 
systems meet the approval of the Building Department Inspector and continue to 
function in a manner which does not threaten the health, welfare, and safety of the 
community as determined through periodic inspections by the Building Department 
Inspector. 
(Rev. 01-13-03)

ON-SITE SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEMS 
 
19.03.01 On-site Sewage Disposal Systems.  Unless a structure in which sanitary 

sewage originates is connected to Where a public sanitary sewer or 
combined sewer is not available under the provisions of this Chapter, the 
building sewer shall be connected with a private on-site sewage disposal 
system complying with the regulations and orders of the MDEQ and the 
Oakland County Health Department, and the provisions of Chapter 79 of 
this code (Building Regulations). 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
19.03.02 Discontinuance of System.  At such time as a public sewer becomes 

available to a property served by a private sewage disposal system, as 
provided in this Chapter, and a direct connection shall be is made to the 
public sewer in compliance with the provisions of this Chapter, and any 
septic tank, privy, privy vault, cesspool or similar private sewage disposal 
facilities shall be abandoned and filled with suitable material. 

 
 (Rev. 09-25-78) 
 
19.03.03 Maintenance of System.  The owner shall operate and maintain the OSDS 

facilities in a sanitary manner at all times at no expense to the City.  
Maintenance of the OSDS shall include: 
1. Having a fixed interval inspection and evaluation performed by 

City staff every four (4) years, which shall consist of: 
(A.) Pumping of the septic tank at the time of inspection by a 

state licensed septage hauler  
(B.) Information gathering on the maintenance, including 

frequency of pumping of the septic tank 
(C.) Visual and olfactory observations and inspections of the 

condition of the septic tank, absorption system, pumps, 
filters, and other important features of the OSDS 

(D.) Preparation of a report  
 

2. Having the septic tank pumped on an as needed basis to 
ensure a satisfactory operation of the system. 

 7



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 
 

3. Repairs.  The cost of all repairs, maintenance and replacements 
of existing On-site Sewage Disposal Systems shall be borne by 
the property owner.  The owner shall make an application to 
perform such work to the Building Department Inspector and the 
Oakland County Health Department. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
19.03.04 Inspections.  The City of Troy will notify the property owner when the 

building sewer and OSDS are required to have an inspection.  The 
Building Department Inspector shall then inspect said OSDS and 
associated appurtenances to determine if the system is operating 
satisfactorily or is failing. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
  
19.03.05 Satisfactory operation will be designated to systems with no evidence of 

an OSDS failure.  Fixed interval inspections will be required every four (4) 
years thereafter until the structure is connected to the City of Troy’s public 
sanitary sewer system. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
19.03.06 If the OSDS and associated appurtenances do not meet the requirements 

for a functioning septic system, then the system will be considered a 
failing system.  The owner of the property will be required to have the 
system repaired.  The property owner will be responsible for obtaining all 
necessary repair permits from the Oakland County Health Department.  
Once the repairs have been completed, the property owner will be 
required to have the OSDS inspected again by the Building Department 
Inspector to ensure that the system is working properly. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
19.03.07 Inspection Fee.  All OSDS inspections performed by the City of Troy’s 

Building Department Inspector shall be made only with written 
authorization and inspection reports issued by the City and with payments 
of fees as shall be established from time to time by the City Council.  The 
fees and charges shall be related to actual costs incurred directly or 
indirectly to implement the On-site Sewage Disposal System Inspection 
Program. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
19.03.08 Additional Requirements.  No statement contained in this chapter shall be 

construed to interfere with the provisions of the State of Michigan 

 8



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 

Plumbing Code or with any additional requirements that may be imposed 
by the MDEQ or the Oakland County Health Department with respect to 
on-site sewage disposal systems. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 

 
BUILDING SEWERS AND CONNECTIONS 

 
19.04.01 Permit Required.  No unauthorized person shall uncover, make any 

connections with or open into, use, alter or disturb any public sewer or any 
appurtenance thereof without first obtaining a written permit from the 
Building Inspector of the City. 

 
 (Rev. 04-01-64)            
 
19.04.02 Permit Fee.  All connections with the sanitary or combined sewers of the 

City shall be made only on written authorization and permits issued by the 
City on such forms and on payments of such fees as shall be established 
from time to time by the City Council. 

 
 (Rev. 09-25-78) 

 
19.04.03 Connection Permit.  Before either a direct or indirect connection is made 

into any interceptor sewer system of Oakland County, a connection permit 
shall be obtained by the owner or contractor from the Oakland County 
Department of Public Works. This permit shall be obtained prior to any 
work being done on the connection to the sewer.  Such permit shall be 
obtained in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Oakland 
County Department of Public Works. 

 
 (Rev. 09-08-68) 
 
19.04.04 Installation Costs.  All costs and expenses incident to the installation and 

connection of the building sewer shall be borne by the owner of said 
property.  The owner shall indemnify the City from all loss or damage that 
may directly or indirectly be occasioned by the installation of the building 
sewer. 

 
 (Rev. 04-01-64) 
 
19.04.05 Plans and Inspection of Plumbing Construction.  All applicants for sewer 

connection permits shall first allow the City Plumbing Inspection to inspect 
the premises to be connected.  The inspector shall determine whether 
present plumbing facilities are free from all safety hazards.  The property 
owner prior to connection shall make all changes and improvements in the 
system required by the Plumbing Inspector to the City sewer. 

 

 9



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 
 (Rev. 08-30-65) 
 
19.04.05 Inspection.  The applicant for a building sewer permit shall notify the 

Building Inspector when the building sewer is ready for inspection and 
connection to the public sewer.  The Building Inspector shall then inspect 
the said building and plumbing construction therein and if such 
construction meets the previous requirements as approved in the 
construction permit, a sewer connection permit shall be issued, subject to 
the applicable provisions of other sections of this chapter. 

 
 (Rev. 04-01-64) 
 
19.04.06 Repairs.  The cost of all repairs, maintenance and replacements of 

existing building sewers and their connection to public sewers shall be 
borne by the property owner.  Such owner shall make application to 
perform such work to the Building Inspector. 

 
 (Rev. 04-01-64)   
 
19.04.07 House Connections.  House connections from the lateral sewer in street or 

easement to within five feet from the house shall be in accordance with 
specifications established by the City of Troy Engineering Department.  All 
joints shall be tight and when tested for infiltration shall not exceed the 
infiltration requirements of this Chapter. 

 
 (Rev. 09-25-78) 
 
19.04.08  Temporary Covering During New Construction.  In an open excavated 

basement, it shall be the duty and responsibility of all owners, tenants, 
applicants for building permits and/or other agents and employees to 
cause the sanitary sewer pipe inside the building to be plugged.  Also, it 
shall be the duty of such persons to prevent any removal, breaking, 
cracking, loosening, hole drilling, or other damage to said plug, when 
removal, breaking, cracking, loosening, hole drilling, or other damage to 
such plug results in or causes any storm water, surface water, ground 
water, sub-surface drainage, dirt or debris to discharge or run into the 
sanitary sewer system.  At such time as the plumbing system of such 
building or improvement is carried to the first floor, the basement backfilled 
and the roof placed on the building, and approved by the Building 
Department for the City, the plug may be removed and the building 
plumbing system connected thereto. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
PROHIBITED USES 
 
19.05.01 Unpolluted Water.  No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged 

any storm water, surface water, ground water, roof runoff, subsurface 

 10



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 

drainage, cooling water or unpolluted industrial process waters into any 
sanitary sewer.  Yard drains, patio drains, catch basins, downspouts, 
weep tiles, perimeter drains or any other structures used for the collection 
and conveyance of storm water shall not be permitted to discharge either 
directly or indirectly, into any sanitary sewer except as provided in this 
Chapter.  Storm water and all other unpolluted drainage shall be 
discharged into such sewers as are specifically designated as combined 
sewers or storm sewers or to a natural outlet approved by the City 
Engineer and/or the MDEQ.  Industrial cooling water or unpolluted process 
waters may be discharged, upon approval of the Chief Building Inspector 
into a storm sewer, combined sewer or natural outlet. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
19.05.02   Except as hereinafter provided, no person shall discharge any industrial 

or commercial type wastes into the Troy sewer system, which is 
deleterious to the public health and safety of the people of the City of Troy.  
Any waste will be considered deleterious that may cause damaging effects 
as stated under General Conditions and/or does not conform to the 
limitations stated under Specific Conditions.  

 
 (Rev. 04-01-64) 
 
  (1) General Conditions: 
 
                                (A) Chemical reaction, either directly or indirectly, with the 

materials of construction to impair the strength or durability 
of sewer structures. 

 
             (B) Mechanical action that will destroy or damage the sewer 

structures. 
 
   (C) Restriction of the hydraulic capacity of sewer structures. 
 
   (D) Restriction of the normal inspection or maintenance of the 

sewer structures. 
 
   (E) Placing of unusual demands on the sewage treatment 

equipment or process. 
 
   (F) Limitation of the effectiveness of the sewage treatment 

process. 
 
   (G) Danger to public health and safety. 
 
   (H) Obnoxious conditions inimical to the public interest. 
 

 11



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 
                                 (I) Any conditions not listed above that are prohibited by the 

DWSD or are prohibited by the MDEQ and/or Federal Clean 
Water Act. 

 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
 (2) Specific Conditions: 
 
   (A) Acidity or alkalinity must be neutralized to a pH of 7.0 as a 

daily average on a volumetric basis, with a maximum 
temporary variation of pH 5.0 to 10.0. 

 
  (B) Must not contain more than 10 P.P.M. of the following gases: 

Hydrogen sulfur dioxide, oxides of nitrogen, or any of the 
halogens. 

 
  (C)  Must not contain any explosive substance. 
 
  (D) Must not contain any flammable substance with a flash point 

lower than 187 degrees F. 
 
  (E) Must have a temperature within the rage of 32 degrees to 

150 degrees F. 
 
  (F) Must not contain grease or oil or other substance that will 

solidify or become viscous at temperatures between 32 
degrees and 150 degrees F. 

 
  (G) Must not contain insoluble substance in excess of 10,000 

P.P.M. or exceeding a daily average of 500 P.P.M. 
 
  (H) Must not contain total solids (soluble and insoluble 

substance) in excess of 20,000 P.P.M., or exceeding a daily 
average of 2,000 P.P.M. 

 
  (I) Must not contain soluble substance in concentrations that 

would increase the viscosity to greater than 1.1 specific 
viscosity. 

 
  (J) Must not contain insoluble substance having a specific 

gravity greater than 2.65. 
 
  (K) Must not contain insoluble substance that will fail to pass a 

No. 8 standard sieve, or having any dimension greater than 
1/2 inch. 

 
  (L) Must not contain gases or vapors, either free or occluded, in 

concentrations toxic or dangerous to humans or animals. 

 12



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 
 
  (M) Must not have a chlorine demand greater than 15 P.P.M. 
 
  (N) Must not contain more than 100 P.P.M. of an antiseptic 

substance. 
 
  (O) Must not contain phenols in excess of .005 P.P.M.  
 
  (P) Must not contain any toxic or irritating substance, which will 

create conditions hazardous to public health and safety. 
 
  (Q) Must not contain in excess of 100 P.P.M. or exceed a daily 

average of 25 P.P.M. of any grease or oil or any oily 
substance. 

   
  (R) Must meet all requirements for discharging into the DWSD 

public sanitary sewer system. 
 
All of the preceding standards and regulations are to apply at the point where industrial 
or commercial type wastes are discharged into a public sewer and all chemical and/or  
mechanical corrective treatment must be accomplished to practical completion before 
this point is reached. 
 
 
INTERCEPTORS 
 
19.06.01 Grease, oil and sand interceptors shall be provided when in the opinion of 

the Building Inspector and/or the MDEQ they are necessary for the proper 
handling of liquid wastes containing grease in excessive amounts or any 
inflammable wastes, sand, or other harmful ingredients, except that such 
interceptors shall not be required for private living quarters or dwelling 
units.  All interceptors shall be of a type and capacity approved by the 
Building Inspector and/or the MDEQ and shall be located so as to be 
readily accessible for cleaning and inspection.  Grease and oil interceptors 
shall be constructed of impervious materials capable of withstanding 
abrupt and extreme changes in temperature.  They shall be substantially 
constructed, water-tight, and equipped with easily removable covers which 
when bolted in place shall be gas-tight and water-tight. 

 
 (Rev. 04-01-64) 
 
19.06.02 Interceptor Maintenance.  Where installed, all grease, oil and sand 
interceptors shall be maintained by the owner, at his expense, in continuously efficient 
operation at all times. 

 
(Rev. 04-01-64) 

 13



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 

PRELIMINARY TREATMENT FACILITIES 
 
19.07.01 Preliminary Treatment Facilities.  The admission into the public sewers of 
any waters or wastes having (1) a five (5) day BOD greater than 300 parts per million by 
weight, or (2) containing more than 350 parts per million by weight of suspended solids, 
or (3) containing any quantity or substance having the characteristics described in 
Section 19.05.02 or (4) having a daily average flow greater than two (2%) percent of the 
average daily sewage flow of the City of Troy, shall be subject to the review and 
approval of the City Council and/or the MDEQ or the DWSD.  Where necessary in the 
opinion of the City Council and/or the MDEQ or the DWSD, the owner shall provide, at 
his expense, such preliminary treatment as may be necessary to (1) reduce the BOD to 
300 parts per million and the suspended solids to 350 parts per million by weight, or (2) 
reduce objectionable characteristics or constituents to within the maximum limits 
provided for in Section 19.05.02, or (3) control the quantities and rates of discharge of 
such waters or wastes.  Plans, specifications and any other pertinent information 
relating to the proposed preliminary treatment facilities shall be submitted for approval 
of the City Council and/or of the MDEQ or the DWSD and no construction of such 
facilities shall be commenced until said approvals are obtained in writing. 

 
(Rev.01-13-03) 

 
19.07.02 Maintenance of Preliminary Facilities.  Where preliminary treatment 
facilities are provided for any waters or wastes, they shall be maintained in satisfactory 
and effective operation, by the owner at his expense. 
 
 (Rev. 04-01-64) 
 
19.07.03 Control Manholes.  When required by the City Council and/or the MDEQ 

or the DWSD, the owner of any property served by a building sewer 
carrying industrial wastes shall install a suitable control manhole in the 
building sewer to facilitate observation, sampling and measurement of 
wastes.  Such manhole, when required, shall be accessibly and safely 
located, and shall be constructed in accordance with plans approved by 
the City Council.  The manhole shall be installed by the owner at his 
expense and shall be maintained by him so as to be safe and accessible 
at all times.     

  
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 
 
19.07.04 Measurements and Tests.  All measurements, tests, and analyses of the 

characteristics of waters and wastes to which reference is made shall be 
determined in accordance with "Standard Methods for the Examination of 
Water and Sewage" and shall be determined at the control manhole or 
upon suitable samples being taken at said control manhole.  In the event 
that no special manhole has been required, the control manhole shall be 
considered to be the nearest down-stream manhole in the public sewer to 
the point at which the building sewer is connected. 

 14



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 
 
 (Rev. 09-25-78) 
 
19.07.08 Agreements.  No statement contained in this chapter shall be construed 

as preventing any special agreement or arrangement between the City 
and any industrial concern whereby an industrial waste of unusual 
strength or character may be accepted by the said City for treatment, 
subject to the payment by the industrial concern of the estimated cost of 
such treatment. 

 
 (Rev. 04-01-64) 
PROTECTION FROM DAMAGE 
 
19.08 No unauthorized person shall break, damage, destroy, uncover, deface or 

tamper with any structure, appurtenance or equipment, which is a part of the 
municipal sewerage system.  No person, firm or corporation shall place earth, 
debris, landscaping or other materials in a manner that will obstruct, obscure or 
prevent normal access to or operation of any manhole, siphon chamber, pumping 
station, meter chamber or other sewerage system appurtenance.  The 
Superintendent may order the removal of said materials.  The expenses incurred 
in the removal shall be a debt to the City from the responsible person, firm or 
corporation, and shall be collected as any other debt to the City. 

 
 (Rev. 09-25-78) 
 
SURFACE AND GROUND WATER DISPOSAL 
 
19.09.01 Yard drains, patio drains, catch basins, downspouts, sump pumps or any 

structures used for the collection and conveyance of storm water shall not 
be permitted to discharge into any sanitary sewer.  Any such structure 
which conveys storm water either directly or indirectly to any sanitary 
sewer shall be disconnected or altered so as to remove the possibility of 
such conveyance. 

 
19.09.02 No weep tile connection to the sanitary sewer system or below grade patio 

drain made after the original adoption of this Section, February 19, 1968, 
shall be considered legal and such connections made after that date shall 
be promptly disconnected. 

 
19.09.03 In the case of buildings with weep tiles or below grade patio drains which 

were permitted to be connected to the sanitary sewer prior to said date, 
the surface around the building shall be sloped so as to provide positive 
drainage of all roof and surface areas away from the building.  Where 
weep tiles are connected to the sanitary sewer, downspouts shall be so 
constructed or altered that they do not discharge into any flower or shrub 
bed adjacent to a building wall, nor upon the ground within five (5) feet of 
the building wall.  When the building is located less than five (5) feet from 

 15



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 

the property line or when there are other practical difficulties, the 
downspouts shall be discharged in a manner approved by the Chief 
Building Inspector. 

 
19.09.04 Downspout piping shall in all cases be permanently affixed to the building 

wall and shall be anchored at the discharge end. 
 
 (Rev. 06-21-99) 
 
19.09.05  Requirements for Bulkhead.  On all new lateral lines, a watertight 

bulkhead shall be installed to prohibit water, sand or other material from 
entering the existing sewer  system.  Such bulkhead shall be left in place 
until removal is authorized by the City Engineer. 

 
 (Rev. 09-09-68) 
 
19.09.06  Ground Water Infiltration.  A test for water infiltration into any newly 

constructed sewer system shall be performed by the owner or contractor 
in accordance with the procedures  established by the City of Troy 
Engineering Department.  When the owner or contractor has determined 
that the system meets the following requirements for maximum infiltration, 
he shall arrange for the results of such test to be verified by the 
Engineering Department. 

 
19.09.07 Ground water infiltration at any time shall not exceed 250 U.S. gallons per 

inch of pipe diameter per mile of sewer per 24 hours for the overall 
system, nor shall infiltration exceed 500 U.S. gallons per inch of diameter 
per mile of pipe per 24 hours for any individual run between manholes.  It 
shall be the responsibility of the owner or contractor to whom the permit 
was issued to make whatever corrections as may be necessary to the 
system to meet the infiltration requirement prior to using the sanitary 
sewer. 

 
 (Rev. 09-09-68) 

 
ENFORCEMENT - PENALTIES 

 
19.10.01 Inspectors.  The Building Department Inspector of the City of Troy and 

other duly authorized officials or employees of the City and agents of the 
MDEQ, Oakland County Health Department, or the DWSD bearing proper 
credentials and identification shall be permitted to enter upon all properties 
for the purpose of inspection, observation, measurement, sampling, and 
testing, in accordance with the provisions of this chapter at any time 
during reasonable or usual business hours.  Any person guilty of refusing 
or obstructing such entry shall be guilty of a violation of this code. 

 
19.10.02 Notice to Cease Violation.  Any person found to be violating any 

 16



Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Service         
 

provisions of this chapter except Section 19.04.08, 19.05.02, 
19.05.01,19.08, and 19.10.03 shall be served by the City of Troy with 
written notice stating the nature of such violation and providing a 
reasonable time limit for the satisfactory correction thereof.  The offender 
shall, within the period of the time stated in such notice, take such 
corrective action as may be necessary. 

 
 (Rev. 06-19-72) 

 
19.10.03 Continued Violation.  Any person who shall continue any violation beyond 

the time limit provided shall upon conviction thereof, be fined not less than 
Twenty-Five ($25.00) nor more than Five Hundred  ($500.00) Dollars, or 
by imprisonment for not more than ninety (90) days, or by both fine and 
imprisonment in the discretion of the court.  Each day or fraction of a day 
in which such violation shall continue shall be deemed a separate offense.  
Any officer, agent, or employee guilty of aiding or abetting such violation, 
or, being responsible therefore, refuses or neglects to take corrective 
action, shall be guilty as a principal. 

 
 (Rev. 09-25-78) 
 
19.10.04 Civil Liability.  Any person violating any of the provisions of this chapter 

shall be liable to the City of Troy for any expense, loss or damage 
occasioned to the City of Troy by reason of such violation, and recovery 
therefore may be had in an appropriate action in any court of competent 
jurisdiction. 

 
 (Rev. 04-01-64) 
 
19.10.05 Abatement in Equity.  Any continued violation, after due notice as provided 

in Section 2.91, shall be deemed a public nuisance, per se, and may be 
abated by suit in equity by the City of Troy in any court of competent 
jurisdiction.  This remedy shall be in addition to those heretofore provided. 

 
 (Rev. 09-09-69) 
 
19.10.06 Severability.  If any portion of this Chapter is for any reason held invalid or 

unenforceable, such portion shall be deemed to be a separate and 
independent provision from the remainder of this Chapter, and shall have 
no effect on the validity or enforceability of the remainder of this Chapter. 

 
 (Rev. 01-13-03) 

 

 17



TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk   
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

DATE: August 11, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: Replacement of November 2005 Ballot Proposals  
 

 
 
 In Resolution # 2005-07-346 and Resolution # 2005-08-382, the Troy City Council approved 
twelve separate ballot proposals for the November 8, 2005 General election.  These resolutions 
were then forwarded to the Governor and her legal counsel, the Attorney General, the Secretary of 
State, and the Oakland County Clerk.  However, it is the Attorney General’s Office that serves as the 
gateway to allowing ballot proposals to go forward.  Assistant Attorney General George Elworth has 
reviewed Troy’s 2005 ballot proposals, and has authorized the consolidation of the first four 
proposed ballot questions into two separate questions.  He has also offered suggested replacement 
language for the remaining proposals, which does not change the initial intent of the proposals.  City 
Administration recommends approval of the ten replacement ballot questions.      
 

In an effort to clarify the issue, a document has been prepared that sets forth the suggested 
replacement ballot language for the ten proposals (black lettering).  For each recommended 
proposal, the document also sets forth the previously approved ballot proposals, Resolutions #2005-
07-346 and #2005-08-382 (red lettering); the current charter language (green lettering); and the 
language as it would appear in the Charter if the proposal is adopted in blue lettering.   
 
 City Administration recommends approval of the replacement ballot questions, as 
recommended by the Attorney General.  If you have any questions concerning the above, please let 
us know.        
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-14



 
Charter Amendment Proposal 1 

(consolidates previous proposals A and B- after consultation with  
Michigan Attorney General’s office) 

 
AMENDMENT OF SECTIONS 3.4 (TERMS OF OFFICE) AND 7.5 (ELECTIVE 
OFFICERS AND TERMS OF OFFICE) OF THE TROY CITY CHARTER TO 
REFLECT THE CURRENT FOUR-YEAR TERMS OF THE MAYOR AND CITY 
COUNCIL MEMBERS  
 
Shall Sections 3.4 (Terms of Office) and 7.5 (Elective Officers and Terms of 
Office) of the Troy City Charter be amended by deleting section 7.5 and 
incorporating the former section 7.5 as the first sentence of section 3.4 with the 
terms of the Mayor and the Council Members being four years to reflect the 
change from three years to four years on account of the 2004 Election 
Consolidation Legislation and providing that these terms expire at 7:30 pm 
(rather than 8 pm) on the first Monday following the regular City election in the 
fourth year of these terms?  (98 words)  
 
 

Previously approved Charter Amendment Proposal A and B 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-A 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 3.4 – 
TERMS OF OFFICE – TO MOVE AND INCORPORATE SECTION 7.5 – 
ELECTIVE OFFICERS-TERMS OF OFFICE 
 

Shall Section 3.4 (Terms of Office) of the Troy Charter be amended by moving 
and incorporating Section 7.5 (Elective Officers – Terms of Office) of the Troy 
Charter in its entirety?  
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-B 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 3.4 – 
TERMS OF OFFICE – TO REVISE THE TERMS OF THE MAYOR AND 
COUNCIL MEMBERS FROM THREE (3) TO FOUR (4) YEAR TERMS TO 
IMPLEMENT ELECTION CONSOLIDATION REVISIONS TO THE MICHIGAN 
ELECTION LAW 
 

Shall Section 3.4 of the Troy Charter be amended to implement election 
consolidation revisions to Michigan Election Law, by revising the term of Troy City 
Council Members and the Mayor from the current three (3) year terms that expire 
at 8:00 PM of the third year of the term to provide for four (4) year terms that 
expire at 7:30 PM of the first Monday following the Regular Election of the fourth 
year of their term?  
 
 



 
 

Existing Charter Language 
 
Section 3.4- Terms of Office:  
City Council Members and the Mayor shall be elected for terms of three (3) 
years and shall serve until 8 o’clock p.m. on the first Monday following the 
regular election of the third year of their term.  
 
Section 7.5- Elective Officers and Terms of Office:   
The elective officers of the City shall be the six (6) members of council and 
the Mayor all of whom shall be nominated and elected from the city at large 
for the terms provided herein.  
 
 

Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal Passes) 
 
Section 3.4- Elective Officers and Terms of Office: 
The elective officers of the City shall be the six (6) members of council and the 
Mayor all of whom shall be nominated and elected from the city at large for the 
terms provided herein.  City Council Members and the Mayor shall be elected for 
terms of four (4) years and shall serve until 7:30 PM on the first Monday following 
the regular election of the fourth year of their term. 
 



Charter Amendment Proposal 2 
(consolidates previous proposals C and D- after consultation with Michigan 

Attorney General’s office) 
 
AMENDMENT TO RE-NUMBER SECTION 7.5.5 OF THE TROY CITY 
CHARTER AS SECTION 3.4.1, ADD A TITLE TO THE SECTION, AND 
CHANGE THE SECTION’S DEFINITION OF “TERM” IN ITS THIRD 
SENTENCE  
 
Shall Section 7.5.5 of the Troy City Charter be re-numbered as section 3.4.1 to 
state as follows:   
 

“3.4.1- Elective Officers Term Limitations  
Any elected member of the City Council shall not serve more than three 
terms as Councilperson.  The Mayor shall not serve more than two terms 
as Mayor.  Any service greater than two (2) years plus one (1) month shall 
constitute a term.  This amendment shall apply only to terms starting after 
passage of this amendment” ? (77 words)  

 
 

Previously approved Charter Amendment Proposal C and D 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-C 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 7.5.5 – TO 
RENUMBER SECTION 7.5.5 TO 3.4.1 AND TITLE THE NEW SECTION AS 
“ELECTIVE OFFICERS TERM LIMITATIONS” 
 

Shall Section 7.5.5 of the Troy Charter be renumbered as 3.4.1 and titled as 
Elective Officers Term Limitations?  
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-D 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 7.5.5 – TO 
REVISE THE DEFINITION OF THE TERM OF OFFICE OF THE MAYOR AND 
CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
Shall Section 7.5.5 be amended to revise the definition of a term from the current 
language that “any portion of a term served shall constitute one full term” to “Any 
service greater than two (2) years plus one (1) month shall constitute a term”? 
 
 

Existing Charter Language 
 
Section 7.5.5 
Any elected member of the City Council shall not serve more than three 
terms as Councilperson.  The Mayor shall not serve more than two terms 



as Mayor.  Any portion of a term served shall constitute one full term.  This 
amendment shall apply only to terms starting after passage of this 
amendments. 
 
 

Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal Passes) 
 
Section 3.4.1- Elective Officers Term Limitations 
 
An elected member of the City Council shall not serve more than three terms as 
Councilperson.  The Mayor shall not serve more than two terms as Mayor.  Any 
service greater than two (2) years plus one (1) month shall constitute a term.  
This amendment shall apply only to terms starting after passage of this 
amendment.  
 



 
Charter Amendment Proposal 3 

(After consultation with Michigan Attorney General’s office) 
 

PROPOSAL FOR A NEW SECTION 3.4.2 (STAGGERING TERMS OF OFFICE) 
OF THE TROY CITY CHARTER TO PROVIDE FOR THREE COUNCIL 
MEMBERS TO BE ELECTED TO FOUR-YEAR TERMS EVERY TWO YEARS  

 
In lieu of the current provision under the 2004 election consolidation 

legislation for four council members and the Mayor to be elected in 2007 and 
every four years thereafter and two council members to be elected in 2009 and 
every four years thereafter, shall section 3.4.2 be added to the Troy City Charter 
to provide for a two-year transitional term (2007-2009) for one council member, 
so that the Mayor and three members of the council will be elected in 2007 and 
every four years thereafter and three members will be elected in 2009 and every 
four years thereafter?   (98 words)  
  
 

Previously approved Charter Amendment Proposal E 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-E 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 3.4.2 – CITY 
COUNCIL MEMBER STAGGERING OF TERMS – TO RE-ESTABLISH THE 
STAGGERING OF CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS DISTRUPLTED BY THE 
IMPLEMENTATION OF ELECTION CONSOLIDATION REVISIONS TO THE 
MICHIGAN ELECTION LAW 
 
Shall Section 3.4.2 be created to implement election consolidation revisions to 
Michigan Election Law, by providing for the re-establishment of the staggering of 
City Council terms by providing for three (3) City Council Members to be elected 
in one election cycle and the remaining three (3) Council Members and the 
Mayor to be elected in a subsequent election cycle, which will be accomplished 
through an election of a one-time two (2) year City Council Member term? 
 
 

Existing Charter Language 
 
None 
 
 

Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal Passes) 
 
Section 3.4.2- Staggering Terms of Office:  
City Council Members with terms expiring April 2006 shall have their terms 
extended until November 2007; City Council Members with terms expiring April 
2007 shall have their terms extended until November 2007.  The Mayor’s term, 



expiring April 2007, shall be extended until November 2007.  The staggering of 
terms shall be established as follows:  
 

November 8, 2005- Two (2) Council Members shall be elected for four (4) 
year terms with the terms expiring on November 9, 2009;  
November 6, 2007- One (1) Council Member shall be elected for a two (2) 
year term with the term expiring on November 9, 2009;  
November 6, 2007- Three (3) Council Members shall be elected for four 
(4) year terms with the terms expiring on November 14, 2011;  
November 6, 2007- Mayor shall be elected for a four (4) year term with the 
term expiring November 14, 2011.  

 



 
Charter Amendment Proposal 4 

(After consultation with the Michigan Attorney General’s office) 
 
AMENDMENT OF SECTION 7.3 (ELECTION DATE) OF THE TROY CITY 
CHARTER TO REFLECT THE CURRENT REQUIREMENT FOR REGULAR 
ELECTIONS IN NOVEMBER OF EACH ODD- NUMBERED YEAR 
 
Shall Section 7.3 (Election Date) be amended to provide for regular City elections 
in November of each odd-numbered year to reflect the current requirements of 
the 2004 election consolidation legislation? (30 words)  
 
 

Previously approved Charter Amendment Proposal F 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-F 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 7.3 – 
ELECTION DATE - TO CHANGE THE CITY REGULAR GENERAL ELECTION 
DATE FROM APRIL TO NOVEMBER TO IMPLEMENT THE ELECTION 
CONSOLIDATION REVISION TO THE MICHIGAN ELECTION LAW 
 

Shall Section 7.3 of the Troy Charter be amended to implement election 
consolidation revisions to Michigan Election Law, by changing the election date 
from the “first Monday in April of each year” to the “first Tuesday after the first 
Monday of every odd-year November” and eliminating “if some other date in the 
months of March, April or May is fixed by law for the holding of the state biennial 
election, then the regular City election shall be held on the date so fixed”, since 
these provisions conflict with Michigan Election Law?  
  
 

Existing Charter Language 
 
Section 7.3- Election Date:  
A regular City election shall be held on the first Monday in April of each year, but 
if some other date in the months of March, April or May is fixed by law for the 
holding of the state biennial election, then the regular city election shall be held 
on the date so fixed.  
 
 

Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal Passes) 
 
Section 7.3- Election Date:  
A regular City election shall be held on the first Tuesday after the first Monday of 
every odd year November.  
 



 
Charter Amendment Proposal 5 

(After consultation with Michigan Attorney General’s office) 
 
PROPOSAL TO RE-STATE SECTION 7.6 (SPECIAL ELECTION) OF THE 
TROY CITY CHARTER   
 
Shall Section 7.6 of the Troy City Charter be re-stated by providing: “Special City 
elections shall be called in the manner and time as provided by State Statute” 
and eliminating “Special City elections shall be held when called by resolution of 
the Council at least 40 days in advance of such election, or when required by this 
charter or statute.  Any resolution calling a special election shall set forth the 
purpose of such election.  No more special city elections shall be called in any 
one year than the number permitted by statute”?  (92 words)     
 

Previously approved Charter Amendment Proposal G 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-G 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 7.6 – 
SPECIAL ELECTIONS – TO SCHEDULE SPECIAL ELECTIONS IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH MICHIGAN ELECTION LAW AS REQUIRED BY THE 
IMPLEMENTATION OF ELECTION CONSOLIDATION REVISIONS TO THE 
MICHIGAN ELECTION LAW 
 
Shall Section 7.6 of the Troy Charter be revised to implement election 
consolidation, by providing “Special City Elections shall be called as provided in 
Michigan Election Law” and eliminating “Special City elections shall be held when 
called by resolution of the Council at least 40 days in advance of such election, 
or when required by this charter or statute. Any resolution calling a special 
election shall set forth the purpose of such election. No more special City 
elections shall be called in any one year than the number permitted by statute”? 
 

Existing Charter Language 
 
Section 7.6- Special Election:  
Special city elections shall be held when called by resolution of the Council at 
least 40 days in advance of such election, or when required by this charter or 
statute.  Any resolution calling a special election shall set forth the purpose of 
such election.  No more special city elections shall be called in any one year than 
the number permitted by statute.  
 

Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal Passes) 
 
Section 7.6- Special Election:  
Special City Elections shall be called in the manner and time as provided by 
State Statute.    



 
Charter Amendment Proposal 6 

(After consultation with the Michigan Attorney General’s office) 
 
PROPOSAL TO AMEND SECTION 7.9 (NOMINATIONS) OF THE TROY CITY 
CHARTER TO DELETE A PROVISION THAT IS INCONSISTENT WITH 
MICHIGAN ELECTION LAW 

 
Shall the second and third sentences of Section 7.9 (Nominations) of the Troy 
City Charter, rejecting any signatures on nominating petitions where a voter has 
signed more nominating petitions for candidates for any city office than there are 
persons to be elected to that office, be deleted to reflect that the counting of 
some of these signatures is permitted under the provisions of section 547(a) of 
the Michigan Election Code (MCL 168.547(a))? (72 words)  
 
 

Previously approved Charter Amendment Proposal H 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-H 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 7.9 – 
NOMINATIONS - TO ELIMINATE A CONFLICT IN THE CHARTER WITH THE 
MICHIGAN ELECTION LAW 
 

Shall Section 7.9 of the Troy City Charter be revised to eliminate a conflict with 
Michigan Election Law, by eliminating “No person shall sign his name to a greater 
number of petitions for any office than there are persons to be elected to said 
office at the following City election? If the signature of any persons appears on 
more petitions than permitted by this section, such signatures shall not be 
counted on any one of the petitions so signed for that office”? 
 
 

Existing Charter Language 
 
Section 7.9- Nominations:  
The method of nomination of all candidates at city elections shall be by petition.  
Each petition may comprise one or more pages.  The petition for each candidate 
must be signed by not less than sixty registered electors of the City.  No person 
shall sign his name to a greater number of petitions for any office than there are 
persons to be elected to said office at the following City election.  If the signature 
of any persons appears on more petitions than permitted by this section, such 
signatures shall not be counted on any one of the petitions so signed for that 
office.  
 
Nomination petitions for candidates for regular city elections are to be filed with 
the Clerk on or before 4 o’clock p.m. of the one hundredth (100th) day preceding 
the City election for each election year.  



 
The Clerk shall, prior to every election, publish notice of the last day permitted for 
filing nomination petitions and of the number of persons to be elected to each 
office, at least one week and not more than three weeks before such day.   
 
 

Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal Passes) 
 
Section 7.9- Nominations:  
The method of nomination of all candidates at city elections shall be by petition.  
Each petition may comprise one or more pages.  The petition for each candidate 
must be signed by not less than sixty registered electors of the City.   
 
Nomination petitions for candidates for regular city elections are to be filed with 
the Clerk on or before 4 o’clock p.m. of the one hundredth (100th) day preceding 
the City election for each election year.  
 
The Clerk shall, prior to every election, publish notice of the last day permitted for 
filing nomination petitions and of the number of persons to be elected to each 
office, at least one week and not more than three weeks before such day. 



 
Charter Amendment Proposal 7  

(After consultation with the Michigan Attorney General’s office) 
 
PROPOSAL TO AMEND SECTION 7.10 (FORM OF PETITIONS) OF THE 
TROY CITY CHARTER TO DELET A PROVISION THAT IS INCONSISTENT 
WITH MICHIGAN LAW  
 
Shall the first sentence of Section 7.10 of the Troy City Charter be re-stated by 
striking “The Council shall approve a form of nominating petition with spaces 
thereon for address and date of signing for each signer, an affidavit form for the 
circulator to sign affirming that he and the petitioners are registered electors and 
a summary of the qualifications required of candidates and the regulations 
governing the petition” and substituting “Nominating petitions shall be in a form 
as provided by Michigan Election Law”?  (80 words)  
 

Previously approved Charter Amendment Proposal I 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-I 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 7.10 – 
FORM OF PETITIONS - TO ELIMINATE A CONFLICT IN THE CHARTER WITH 
MICHIGAN ELECTION LAW 
 

Shall Section 7.10 of the Troy City Charter be revised to eliminate a conflict with 
Michigan Election Law by striking “The Council shall approve a form of nominating 
petition with spaces thereon for address and date of signing for each signer, an 
affidavit form for the circulator to sign affirming that he and the petitioners are 
registered electors and a summary of the qualifications required of candidates 
and the regulations governing the petition” and providing that “Nominating 
petitions shall be in a form as provided by Michigan Election Law”? 
 

Existing Charter Language 
 
Section 7.10- Form of Petitions:  
The Council shall approve a form of nominating petition with spaces thereon for 
address and date of signing for each signer, an affidavit form for the circulator to 
sign affirming that he and the petitioners are registered electors and a summary 
of the qualifications required of candidates and the regulations governing the 
petition.  A supply of official petition forms shall be provided and maintained by 
the Clerk.  
 

Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal Passes) 
 
Section 7.10- Form of Petitions:  
Nominating Petitions shall be in a form as provided by State Statue.  A supply of 
official petition forms shall be provided and maintained by the Clerk.  



Charter Amendment Proposal 8 
(After consultation with the Michigan Attorney General’s office) 

 
PROPOSAL TO AMEND SECTION 5.13 (SUBMISSION OF INITIATORY AND 
REFERENDARY ORDINANCES TO ELECTORS) OF THE TROY CITY 
CHARTER, REGARDING ITS REQUIREMENTS FOR SPECIAL ELECTIONS 
FOR INITIATIVE PROPOSALS  
 
Shall section 5.13 of the Troy City Charter be amended to delete the 60 day 
deadline for the City Council to call a special election for an initiative proposal, 
where the Council declines to enact the proposal as an ordinance and no 
election is to be held in the City for any other purpose within 150 days from the 
date the proposal is presented to the Council, to provide that these special 
elections shall be scheduled in accordance with Michigan election law and to 
specify that Council decisions under this section shall be by affirmative vote of 
the members elect? (100 words)  
 

Previously approved Charter Amendment Proposal J 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-J 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 5.13 – 
SUBMISSION OF INITIATORY AND REFERENDARY ORDINANCE TO 
ELECTORS – TO SCHEDULE SPECIAL ELECTIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
MICHIGAN ELECTION LAW AS REQUIRED BY THE IMPLEMENTATION OF 
ELECTION CONSOLIDATION REVISIONS TO THE MICHIGAN ELECTION 
LAW 
 

Shall Section 5.13, Submission of Initiatory and Referendary Ordinance to 
Electors, be amended to implement election consolidation revisions to Michigan 
Election Law, by providing for the scheduling of the election in accordance with 
State Election Law and striking “within sixty days from such date of presentation 
for the submission of the initiative proposal” with the submittal to be made by an 
affirmative vote of the Council members elect?  
 

Existing Charter Language 
 
Section 5.13- Submission of Initiatory and Referendary Ordinances to 
Electors:  
Should the Council decide to submit the proposal to the electors, it shall be 
submitted at the next election held in the city for any other purpose, or, in the 
discretion of the Council, at a special election called for that specific purpose.  In 
the case of any initiatory petition, if no election is to be held in the city for any 
other purpose within one hundred fifty days from the time the petition is 
presented to the Council and the Council does not enact the ordinance, then the 
Council shall call a special election within sixty days from such date of 
presentation for the submission of the initiative proposal.  The result of all 



elections held under the provisions of this section shall be determined by a 
majority vote of the electors voting thereon, except in cases where otherwise 
required by statute or the Constitution.  
 
 

Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal Passes) 
 
Section 5.13- Submission of Initiatory and Referendary Ordinances to 
Electors:  
Should the Council, by an affirmative vote of the members elect, decide to submit 
the proposal to the electors, it shall be submitted at the next election held in the 
City for any other purpose, or, in the discretion of the Council, at a special 
election called for that specific purpose in accordance with State Election Law.  
In the case of any initiatory petition, if no election is to be held in the City for any 
other purpose within one hundred fifty days from the time the petition is 
presented to the Council and the Council does not enact the ordinance, then the 
Council shall call a special election in accordance with State Election Law.  The 
result of all elections held under the provisions of this section shall be determined 
by a majority vote of the electors voting thereon, except in cases where 
otherwise required by Statute or the Constitution.  
 



 
Charter Amendment Proposal 9 

(After consultation with the Michigan Attorney General’s office) 
 
A PROPOSAL TO ADD SECTION 7.9.5 (COUNCIL INITIATED BALLOT 
QUESTIONS) TO THE TROY CITY CHARTER TO ALLOW CITY COUNCIL TO 
PLACE ADVISORY QUESTION ON REGULAR CITY ELECTIONS BALLOTS 
 

Shall Section 7.9.5 (Council Initiated Ballot Questions) of the Troy City Charter be 
added to provide a mechanism for the City Council to place advisory ballot 
questions on the Regular City Election Ballot, by an affirmative majority vote of 
the members elect? (42 words)  
 
 

Previously approved Charter Amendment Proposal K 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-K 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 7.9.5 – 
COUNCIL INITIATED BALLOT QUESTIONS - TO ALLOW CITY COUNCIL TO 
PLACE ADVISORY QUESTION ON REGULAR CITY ELECTIONS BALLOTS 
 

Shall Section 7.9.5 – Council Initiated Ballot Questions, of the Troy City Charter 
be added to provide a mechanism for the City Council to place advisory ballot 
questions on the Regular City Election Ballot, by an affirmative majority vote of 
the members elect?  
 
 

Existing Charter Language 
 
None 
 
Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal Passes)  
 
Section 7.9.5- Submission of Council Initiated Advisory Ballot Questions to 
Electors:  
Should the Council, by an affirmative vote of the members elect, decide to submit 
an advisory ballot question to the electors, it shall be submitted at the next 
Regular City Election.  The results of all elections held under the provisions of 
this section shall be determined by a majority vote of the electors voting thereon 
except in cases where otherwise required by Statue or the Constitution.  
 
 



 
Charter Amendment Proposal 10 

(After consultation with the Michigan Attorney General’s office) 
 
PROPOSAL TO AMEND SECTION 12.3 (RESTRICTION ON POWERS TO 
LEASE PROPERTY) OF THE TROY CHARTER TO SUBJECT LONG TERM 
USE AGREEMENTS TO THE RESTRICTIONS ON LEASING AND RENTING 
CITY PROPERTY SET FORTH IN THAT SECTION  
 
Shall Section 12.3 of the Troy City Charter be amended to subject long-term 
(more than 3 years) use agreements to the restrictions in this section for the 
leasing or renting of City property, including the requirements for fair 
consideration as determined by the city council and the provision for referendum 
petitions for such agreements?  (54 words)  
 
 

Previously approved Charter Amendment Proposal L 
 
Charter Amendment Proposal 05-L 
A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 12.3 – 
RESTRICTION ON POWERS TO LEASE PROPERTY - TO INCLUDE LONG-
TERM USE AGREEMENTS AS AN ADDITIONAL TYPE OF OWNERSHIP 
 

Shall Section 12.3, Restriction on Powers to Lease Property, be amended to 
include long-term use agreements as an additional type of ownership that is 
subject to the City’s same restriction on powers to lease property procedure for 
renting or leasing of public property? 
 
 

Existing Charter Language 
 
Section 12.3- Restriction on Powers to Lease Property:  
Any agreement or contract for the renting or leasing of public property to any 
person for a period longer than three years shall be subject to the same 
referendum procedure as is provided in the case of ordinances passed by the 
Council but any petition for such referendum must be filed within thirty days after 
publication of the proceedings of the meeting of the Council at which such 
agreement or contract is authorized.  
 
The transfer or assignment of any agreement or contract for such renting or 
leasing of public property may be made only upon approval of the Council but 
approval of such transfer shall not be subject to referendum.  
 
Rentals and leases and renewals thereof shall be for a fair consideration as 
determined by the Council.   

 



Revised Charter Provision (If Proposal Passes) 
 
Section 12.3- Restriction on Powers to Lease Property:  
Any agreement or contract for the renting or leasing or long term use of public 
property to any person for a period longer than three years shall be subject to the 
same referendum procedure as is provided in the case of ordinances passed by 
the Council, but any petition for such referendum must be filed within thirty days 
after publication of the proceedings of the meeting of the Council at which such 
agreement or contract is authorized.  
 
The transfer or assignment of any agreement or contract for such renting or 
leasing or long-term use agreements exceeding three years for public property 
may be made only upon approval of the Council, but approval of such transfer 
shall not be subject to referendum.  
 
Rentals, leases, and long-term use agreements exceeding three years, and 
renewals thereof shall be for a fair consideration, as determined by the Council.   
 



 
 
DATE:   August 3, 2005 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Announcement of Public Hearing 
  Commercial Vehicle Appeal  
   2239 E. Maple Road 
  

 
On April 28, 2003, City Council approved a request from Mr. Roger Coley for approval 
to park two dump trucks and a commercial trailer on his property on East Maple Road.  
That approval was for a period of two years and has now expired.  In response to our 
contact with Mr. Coley regarding the status of the vehicles, Mr. Coley has submitted an 
application seeking Council’s approval to continue parking one of the dump trucks on 
the property.  The other dump truck and trailer are no longer parked on the property.   
 
The appeal requests that a public hearing date be held in accordance with the 
ordinance.  A public hearing has been scheduled for your meeting of September 12, 
2005. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
 
Attachments 
 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

bittnera
Text Box
G-01a



 



 
 



 





 



 



 



 



 



 



 1

DATE:  August 4, 2005 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING (SEPTEMBER 

12, 2005) – REZONING APPLICATION (Z 706) – South side of Long Lake 
Road, West of Calvert Drive, Section 14 – R-1C to CR-1 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The proposed rezoning is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan.  The application is 
compatible with abutting uses and zoning districts.  The Planning Commission 
recommended approval of the rezoning request at the July 12, 2005 Regular Meeting.  City 
Management recommends approval of the rezoning request. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owners and applicants are Maurice Gennari and Antonio Vettraino. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the south side of Long Lake Road, west of Calvert Drive in 
Section 14. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 3.07 acres in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
Three single family homes presently sit on the property. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1C One Family Residential District. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
CR-1 One Family Residential Cluster District. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to construct a 10-unit cluster development, comprised of detached 
units, on the property.  Note that it appears the applicant can only develop 9 units on the 
property, based on the parcel size and the permitted CR-1 density (3.07 acres x 3.1 units 
per acre = 9.517 units). 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01b



 2

Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Single family residential. 
South: Single family residential. 
East: Single family residential. 
West: Single family residential.  
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1C One Family Residential. 
South: R-1C One Family Residential. 
East: R-1C One Family Residential. 
West: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed CR-1 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 

PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
One-Family dwelling units (as defined in Section 04.20.43) developed according to the 
standards of the One-Family Residential (R-1A through R-1E) District in effect immediately 
prior to the application of the CR-1 District. If the previous District was other than R-1A 
through R-1E, the standards of the abutting or nearest One-Family Residential District 
shall be applicable. 
 
All other Principal Uses Permitted and as regulated in the R-1A through R-1E One-Family 
Residential Districts, as described in Section 10.20.00. 
 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 
The following uses shall be permitted, subject to the conditions hereinafter imposed for 
each use and subject further to the review and approval of the Planning Commission: 
 
All uses permitted and as regulated in R-1A through R-1E, One-Family Residential, 
Districts, as described in Section 10.30.00 of this Chapter. 
 
One-Family Residential Cluster Dwelling units developed in accordance with the 
standards of Section 11.40.00. 
 

Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on Long Lake Road. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will be required to provide on-site storm water detention.  



 3

Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map does not indicate any significant natural features located on the 
property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The property is classified as Low Density Residential on the Future Land Use Plan.  This 
designation correlates with R-1A through R-1E and CR-1 in the Future Land Use Plan.  
The application is in compliance with the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards: 
 
Article 11.40.00 of the Zoning Ordinance states that the application of the CR-1 (One Family 
Residential Cluster) District shall be based upon one of the following locational standards: 
 

(A) Transition Basis 
(B) Topographic Condition or Environmental Basis 
(C) Difficult Parcel Configuration Basis 

 
The applicant’s letter indicates that they are applying for CR-1 zoning under the Difficult 
Parcel Configuration Basis.  Under the Difficult Parcel Configuration Basis, CR-1 may be 
applied to parcels with major thoroughfare frontage, which are also physically restricted in 
such a manner as to make conventional single-family residential development physically 
unfeasible.  The parcel has relatively narrow width (244 feet) that limits its development 
potential under R-1C.   
 
The Planning Commission and the City Council must also find that the subject property 
cannot reasonably be combined with abutting properties to enable conventional single-family 
residential development and that the proposed District and development will not interfere with 
the development of the surrounding area, and will not be detrimental to the safety or 
convenience of vehicular and/or pedestrian traffic.  It appears that the applicant would not be 
able to purchase abutting property, given the single-family residential character of the abutting 
neighborhood.  Access to the property would be from Long Lake Road, a major thoroughfare; 
therefore traffic in abutting neighborhood would not be directly impacted.  
 
The application qualifies under (C) Difficult Parcel Configuration Basis and therefore meets 
the Location Standards of the CR-1 District. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Letter from petitioner, dated June 8, 2005. 
3. Potential R-1C Layout with 60-foot wide right-of-way (public street). 
4. Potential R-1C Layout with 40-foot wide easement (private road). 
5. Minutes from July 12, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 706) 
 
PREPARED BY RBS/MFM 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-706 Village of Tuscany Sec 14\Announce CC Public Hearing Z-706 08 15 05.doc 



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1C TO CR-1



E LONG LAKE

AL
TO

N
CARR

C
AL

V
E

R
T

H
U

BB
A

R
D

TY
LE

R

PIC
K

FO
R

D

D
AVIS C

T

AL
LI

S
O

N

PR
E

N
TIS

WELLING

G
A

M
B

E
R

WILMET

W
H

ITE
S

E
LL

QUEEN

HALE

W
E

S
TM

O
R

E
LA

N
D

 C
T

G
R

E
EN

D
A

LE

ALT
ON CT

TY
LE

R

±

REZONING REQUEST
PROP. VILLAGE OF TUSCANY CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT
FROM R-1C TO CR-1
SOUTH SIDE OF LONG LAKE, WEST OF CALVERT
SEC.  14  (Z-706)

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1C TO CR-1

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet

















PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 12, 2005 

REZONING REQUESTS 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 706) – Proposed Village of 
Tuscany Cluster Development, South side of Long Lake, West of Calvert, 
Section 14 – Section R-1C to CR-1 
 
Mr. Chamberlain announced that he lives next to the property that is proposed for 
rezoning.  He asked the Assistant City Attorney if it would be appropriate for him 
to abstain from discussion and voting on the request.   
 
Mr. Motzny said it appears Mr. Chamberlain’s participation in the discussion and 
voting process would not be appropriate because there is a possibility that the 
proposed rezoning could have an affect on his personal interest that could result 
in financial implications.  He recommended consideration of a motion to allow Mr. 
Chamberlain to abstain from voting on the matter.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked to be excused.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-113 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To allow Mr. Chamberlain to abstain from voting on Agenda Item 
#5, at his request, because of the proximity of his residential property to the 
development.   
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Chamberlain 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
(Mr. Chamberlain exited the meeting.) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning request.   
 
Joseph Vaglica of GES Engineering, 8155 Annsbury, Shelby Township, was 
present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Vaglica provided an explanation for the 
discrepancy in the cluster density in relation to the 60-foot easement that was 
recently sold to the City of Troy.  Mr. Vaglica said the proposed development 
would be a better fit for the property and more suitable to its environment. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 12, 2005 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-114 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to CR-1 rezoning request, located on the south side of 
Long Lake Road, west of Calvert, within Section 14, being approximately 3.07 
acres in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Chamberlain (per Resolution #PC-2005-07-113) 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
(Mr. Chamberlain returned to the meeting.) 

 



August 4, 2005 
 
 
 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Options for Remnant Parcel that is Site for Troy’s First  

Volunteer Fire Station 
 
 
 
At the Council meeting of July 11, 2005 it was resolved that the above-referenced 
parcel which is identified on the attached map as 5930 Livernois was removed from sale 
consideration until the next listing of sale of surplus parcels is presented to City Council.  
However, a table discussion at the council meeting initiated by Councilman Howyrlak 
was to look at other options for this parcel.  As such, Mr. Howrylak and I met and 
discussed the following options: 
 
1. Hold the parcel for six months and actively seek a group of individuals to “adopt” 

this site and subsequently raise money for implementing design elements.  This 
process could be similar to what we did up the street where Sergeant Major Jack 
Turner worked with other staff members and individuals to develop design 
elements for the Methodist church and parsonage known as, Heritage Park.  And 
to refresh your memory in this regard, attached is a copy of that concept drawing. 

 
2. Postpone this issue for a couple more months and ask the Parks and Recreation 

Advisory Board, Historical Commission, and Historic District Commission to 
advise on the desirability of turning 5930 Livernois into a passive or active park 
site.   

 
3. Sell the parcel to the owner of 60 Cutting Street who has expressed an interest in 

purchasing 5930 Livernois for $95,000.  A condition of the sale could be that the 
parcel be rezoned to environmental protection and that a dedication plaque 
identifying the site at the first volunteer fire station be placed thereon. 

 
Time permitting, please discuss this matter so that I may get a general direction and 
then come back with a formal resolution.  In the meantime, I’ll continue to exclude this 
parcel from a future sale consideration. 
 
 
 
JS/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2005\08.15.05 – Options for Remnant Parcel on Livernois 
 
c: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 

campbellld
Text Box
G-02a







1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE – FINAL JUNE 7, 2005 
 
This Meeting of the Troy Historic Study Committee was held Tuesday, June 7, 2005 at 
the Troy Museum & Historic Village. The meeting was called to order at 7:55 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT:  Bob Miller 
   Marjorie Biglin 
   Kevin Lindsey 
   Charlene Harris 
   Linda Rivetto 
 
  ABSENT: Kinda Hupman 
   Paul Lin 
 
  GUEST: Ann Partlan 
 
 
Resolution #HDC-2005-006-001 
Moved by Miller  
Seconded by Biglin 
 
RESOLVED, That the absences of Hupman and Lin be excused  
Yes: 5 Miller, Biglin, Lindsey, Harris, and Rivetto 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #HDC-2005-06-002 
Moved by Miller  
Seconded by Biglin 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of May 3, 2005 be approved  
Yes: 5 Miller, Biglin, Lindsey, Harris, and Rivetto 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

Ann Partlan provided committee with checklists from the Historic District 
Commission to designate and de-list historic resources. This checklist is based 
on Chapter 13 
 
Ann Partlan also discussed with the committee the HDC concept to provide 
plaques for historically designated homes.  

bittnera
Text Box
J-01a



2 

Resolution #HDC-2005-06-003 
Moved by Miller  
Seconded by Biglin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Historic District Study Committee not meet on July 5, 2005. 
Yes: 5 Miller, Biglin, Lindsey, Harris, and Rivetto 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

OLD BUSINESS  
 Status of photographic survey: 

Kevin Lindsey and Charlene Harris have finished their photo assignments. Linda 
Rivetto is working on her assignment but has not delivered completed photos to 
Loraine. 
  
2356 E. Long Lake de-listing 
Status unchanged. 

 
3864 Livernois 
Kevin sent a letter to Brian Wattles requesting a “hard” survey of the property and 
a checklist that the committee will follow to de-list Parcel B from his property. 
Kevin will draft a preliminary report for the next meeting and will send it to Brian 
Wattles with suggestions for the survey.  \ 
 
46 E. Square Lake 
No report. 

 
5875 Livernois 
No report. 
 

The Troy Historic Study Committee Meeting was adjourned at 8:35 p.m.  The next 
meeting will be held Tuesday, August 2, 2005 at 7:30 p.m. at the Troy Museum & 
Historic Village. Loraine Campbell will post the Change of Meeting Notice in the City 
Clerk’s office. 

 
 
                  
Robert Miller 
Co-Chairman 

 
 

 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JULY 6, 2005 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M. on Wednesday, July 6, 2005 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Bill Nelson 
   Tim Richnak 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Marlene Struckman, Housing & Zoning Supervisor 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JUNE 1, 2005. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of June 1, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Dziurman, Kessler, Nelson, Richnak 
Abstain: 1 – Zuazo 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  R.E. MOORHOUSE & ASSOCIATES, 2380 
MEIJER DR., for relief of Chapter 78 to install a 30 square foot ground sign with a one 
(1)-foot setback from the right of way of Meijer Drive where a ten (10)- foot setback is 
required. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Sign Ordinance to 
install a 30 square foot ground sign with a one (1)-foot setback from the right of way of 
Meijer Drive.  Section 9.01 A of the Troy Sign Ordinance requires a minimum 10’ 
setback from the City right of way in a M-1 (Light Industrial) zoned property. 
 
Mr. Moorhouse was present and explained that they were granted a variance in April 
2004 for the location of the existing sign.  Mr. Moorhouse explained that the existing 
sign is located east of the entrance.  Mr. Moorhouse’s client, Woodbridge has 
purchased two (2) additional buildings and the main office would be located up front and 
this is the reason they wish to relocate this sign.  Originally, Woodbridge, had their sign 
in the right of way, and Mr. Moorhouse is proposing to put the new sign 12’ farther back 
from the existing location.  The new sign would be the same height as the existing sign.   
 
 
 

 1

bittnera
Text Box
J-01b



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JULY 6, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that basically this request is to relocate the existing sign.  Mr. 
Moorhouse stated that trucks will not be coming in to the main entrance and the 
proposed sign will help to direct traffic. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the location of the new sign is not on the site plan submitted by 
the petitioner and asked for clarification from the petitioner.  Mr. Moorhouse said that 
they are proposing to put the sign 1’ from the easement.  Mr. Stimac said that based on 
that statement, a variance would not be required as the sign would be in compliance 
with the Ordinance.  Mr. Stimac asked that this item be postponed in order for Mr. 
Moorhouse to submit plans indicating exact placement of the sign. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of R. E. Moorhouse & Associates, 2380 Meijer Drive 
for relief of Chapter 78 to install a 30 square foot ground sign until the meeting of 
August 3, 2005. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to submit a site plan indicating the exact 
location of the proposed sign. 

• Based on location of the sign, the action to postpone will determine whether a 
variance is required or not. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF AUGUST 3, 2005 
CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST. EDMUND PROGAR, SIGN-A-RAMA, 1057-1155 E. 
LONG LAKE, for relief of Chapter 78 to erect a 200 square foot ground sign 9’ from the 
existing right of way of east Long Lake Road where a 30’ setback is required for a sign 
this size. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Sign Ordinance to 
erect a 200 square foot ground sign 9’ from the existing right of way of east Long Lake 
Road replacing an existing ground sign that was damaged.  Section 9.01 of Chapter 78 
requires that a ground sign with an area of 200 square feet, be setback a minimum of 
30’ from the existing right of way. 
 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JULY 6, 2005 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Bob Chara of Sign-a-Rama, and Ms. Elaine Yaffe, owner of Long Lake Plaza were 
present.  Mr. Chara explained that the existing sign had been damaged by an 
automobile accident and all they are asking for is to be able to replace the damaged 
sign with an identical sign.  The existing sign has been in this same location since 1975.  
If the location is changed, they will have to remove four (4) parking spaces as well as 
relocate the wiring.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) written approvals on file.  There are two (2) written objections, 
however, Mr. Chara stated that he believed these objections were to relocating the sign. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if the proposed sign would have any type of flashing light and Ms. 
Yaffe stated that it would not and the sign would comply in every other way with the 
requirements of the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the vehicle that damaged the existing sign ran off of Long Lake 
Road.  Ms. Yaffe stated that they were not present at the time of the accident and the 
Police Report was unclear, however, the sign was leaning over about 40%, so they 
believe that speed was a factor. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Nelson 
 
MOVED, to grant Edmund Progar, Sign-A-Rama, 1057-1155 E. Long Lake, relief of 
Chapter 78 to erect a 200 square foot ground sign 9’ from the existing right of way of 
east Long Lake Road where a 30’ setback is required for a sign of this size. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance would not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Relocation to a conforming location would cause significant revision to the 

circulation on the site. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  HAYSSAM BOUSSIE, DEARBORN SIGNS & 
AWNING, 36949 DEQUINDRE, for relief of Chapter 78 to expand the existing 40 
square foot ground sign to 48 square feet. 
 
 
 

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JULY 6, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Sign Ordinance to 
expand the existing 40 square foot ground sign to 48 square feet.  The existing ground 
sign is non-conforming as it has a height of 16’ and a setback of less than 20’.  Section 
9.01 states that signs setback between 10’ and 20’ cannot exceed 10’ in height.  
Section 10.02.03 of the Sign Ordinance prohibits the expansion of non-conforming 
signs. 
 
Mr. Allen of Dearborn Signs was present and stated that he also wished to add an 
additional wall sign.  His client has added a pharmacy and that is the reason they want 
to add the extra footage to the sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the Building Department did not advertise the request for an 
additional wall sign and the Board would not be able to act on that request until it was 
advertised as a Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Dziurman confirmed that the existing sign is a legal non-conforming sign and Mr. 
Stimac said that was correct.   
 
Mr. Richnak asked if a variance would be required if the sign was brought down to a 
height of 10’.  Mr. Stimac said that if the sign were 10’ in height it would be in 
compliance and would not require a variance.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked the petitioner if it would be a problem for them to lower the sign.  
Mr. Allen said that it would be too expensive, as they would have to get a new sign. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if they would still add the word “pharmacy” if the sign was lowered.  
Mr. Stimac said that the top of the existing box is at 15’ and in order to comply it would 
have to be less than 10’ in height. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that he does not believe they would require a brand new sign if they 
were to lower the height, as they would be able to use the existing posts and electrical.  
Mr. Richnak suggested that the petitioner speak with his client and propose this option.  
Mr. Richnak went on to say that there are a lot trees in this area and he believes that if 
they lower the sign it will be more visible. 
 
Mr. Kessler expressed concern that if the sign is brought down too low it could obstruct 
vision.  Mr. Richnak said that if you brought it down and started the actual signage 
above 4’, you would still have 5’ underneath.  Mr. Allen stated that presently there is 13’ 
underneath. 

 4



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JULY 6, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked why the petitioner objected to just conforming to the Ordinance.  Mr. 
Allen said that he thinks his client just wants to be higher rather than lower and he is just 
following what his client wants. 
 
Mr. Zuazo stated that he believes the petitioner’s client needs to rethink the position of 
sign and does believe that this sign could be in conformance with Chapter 78. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Nelson 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Hayssam Boussie, Dearborn Signs & Awning, 
36949 Dequindre, for relief of Chapter 78 to expand the existing 40 square foot ground 
sign to 48 square feet until the meeting of August 3, 2005. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to meet with his client to determine if 
conformance is possible. 

• To allow the Building Department to publish this petitioner’s request for an 
additional wall sign. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF AUGUST 3, 2005 
CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  KATHLEEN DEBURGHGRAEVE, 1750 
BRENTWOOD, for relief of Chapter 78 to allow the placement of 20 off-site signs, 2 
square feet in size for a 7-day period. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 78 to allow the 
placement of 20 off-site signs, 2 square feet in size, for a 7-day period, from Monday, 
August 22nd through Sunday, August 28th.  The Sign Ordinance limits the number of off-
site signs to 4. 
 
This event is held on a yearly basis and has been granted a variance by this Board 
since 1999. 
 
Ms. Deburghgraeve was present. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if there were any problems in the past and Mr. Stimac stated that 
there have not been any problems. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 

 5



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JULY 6, 2005 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
There is one (1) written objections on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked when the signs were going to be picked up, as he had seen some 
signs from a recent past special event that were not picked up when they were 
supposed to be.  Ms. Deburghgraeve stated that the signs are picked up on the last 
night of the Art Fair, after closing.   
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to grant Kathleen Deburghgraeve, 1750 Brentwood, relief of Chapter 78 to 
allow the placement of 20 off-site signs, 2 square feet in size for a 7-day period to 
advertise a the Northfield Hills Art in the Park special event. 
 

• Signs will be displayed from August 22nd – August 28, 2005. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  PAUL DIETER, METRO DETROIT SIGNS, 1755 
MAPLELAWN, for relief of Chapter 78 to erect a 66 square foot wall sign at the above 
location.  
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 78 to erect a 66 
square foot wall sign at the above location.  The wall sign exceeds the permitted 20 
square feet area as stated in section 9.02.05 D (2) of the Sign Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Dieter was present and stated that this property is unusual in that it also sells 
Bentley and Rolls Royce brand vehicles.  Other brands of vehicles are located in other 
areas of this building.  This proposed sign would be considered a primary wall sign and 
Mr. Dieter stated that he believes the size of the sign is within the scale of the building 
and is consistent with other primary signs along Maplelawn. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked what would be on the sign and Mr. Dieters stated it would say 
“Hummer”.  Mr. Dziurman asked if there was a ground sign at this location and Mr. 
Dieters said that there was.   

 6



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JULY 6, 2005 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that there are other signs in this location as this building is 
intended to house four (4) dealerships when it is completed and occupied.  Presently 
there is an 85 square foot ground sign that says “Hummer” and a 4 2/3’ wall sign that 
identifies the Service Department.  The Bentley dealership has a 60 square foot ground 
sign that says “Bentley”, an 8.8 square foot wall sign with their logo and a 9.8 square 
foot wall sign that says “Bentley Troy”.  The Rolls Royce dealership has a 6 square foot 
ground sign that says “Rolls Royce”, a 19 square foot wall sign that says “Rolls-Royce 
Motor Cars Michigan” and a 12 square foot wall sign that says “Rolls-Royce” with the 
logo.  At the present time the fourth space is vacant, however, it would be permitted one 
ground sign as well as two (2) walls signs that would be 20 square feet each. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked why they are asking for this additional wall sign and Mr. Dieters 
stated that it will help customers identify that this is the Hummer location.  This is the 
only sign that faces Maplelawn. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the size of the proposed sign was the reason for this variance 
request.  Mr. Stimac said that they are allowed two (2) wall signs that would be 20 
square feet each and this proposed sign is 66 square feet.  Mr. Zuazo confirmed that 
they are asking for a 26 square foot variance.  Mr. Richnak said that one of the 
conditions of the variance could be that they would give up the second wall sign.   
 
Mr. Nelson asked what would happen when the fourth tenant came in.  Mr. Stimac 
explained that the fourth tenant would be allowed one ground sign and two additional 
wall signs that would not exceed 20 square feet in area.  The current tenants other than 
the Hummer Dealership front the parking lot to the west. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked if this space was larger than the other dealerships and Mr. Dieters 
said that have quite a bit more frontage. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Paul Dieter, Metro Detroit Signs, 1755 Maplelawn, relief of Chapter 78 
to erect a 66 square foot wall sign at the Hummer dealership. 
 

• This sign will take the place of the second 20 square foot wall sign allowed by the 
Ordinance. 

• No other wall signs will be put up. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 

 7



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JULY 6, 2005 

ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  THOMAS WIGGINS, 2286 COLUMBIA, for relief of 
Chapter 83 to install a 6’ high privacy fence in a front yard location. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 
fence at 2286 Columbia.  This property is a double front corner lot.  It has front yard 
requirements along both Columbia and Rhode Island Drive.  Chapter 83 limits the 
height of fences in front setbacks to 30”.  The site plan submitted indicates a 6’ high 
privacy fence adjacent to the west property line along Rhode Island. 
 
Mr. Wiggins was present and stated that when he purchased this property Rhode Island 
Drive was not developed and the property was not considered a double front corner lot.  
Mr. Wiggins stated that a lot of the neighbor children play in his yard and he wants to be 
able to provide a safe environment for them.  There is also considerable landscaping in 
this area and he plans to put this fence behind the line of evergreens. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if Mr. Wiggins had spoken to the neighbor on Rhode Island that 
would be the most affected by this fence.  Mr. Wiggins said that he had talked to him 
although there was a language barrier.  Mr. Wiggins said he did not think his neighbor 
objected to this fence.  Mr. Kessler then asked if Mr. Wiggins had looked into the 
possibility of putting up a 4’ high fence rather that a 6’ high fence.  Mr. Wiggins said he 
did not have any objection to that suggestion but did not know this was an option for him 
and the only information given to him was that he had to appear before this Board.    Mr. 
Kessler stated that if he received a variance for a 6’ high fence it would run the entire 
length of the neighbor’s front yard and he felt the 4’ high fence would not be as 
intrusive.  Mr. Wiggins said that he did not see a problem with that.  
 
Mr. Richnak explained to Mr. Wiggins that it is not the City’s responsibility to give all of 
the options that are available.  It is up to the petitioner to make a request to the City, 
and if not in compliance they are directed to appear before whichever Board is 
applicable.  Mr. Stimac explained that anything other than a 30” high fence in the front 
yard along Rhode Island would require the petitioner to appear before this Board. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked if Mr. Wiggins was proposing to put the fence on the outside of the 
evergreens and Mr. Wiggins stated that they would be put on the inside of the 
evergreens.  Mr. Richnak asked how tall these shrubs were and Mr. Wiggins said that 
they were about 6 to 8’ high. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if the petitioner was planning on bringing the fence from the shrub line 
to the house and if he would also be willing to add more landscaping in this area.  Mr. 
Wiggins said that he would. 
 

 8



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JULY 6, 2005 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Thomas Wiggins, 2286 Columbia, relief of Chapter 83 to install a 4’ 
high privacy fence in the front yard along Rhode Island. 
 

• Fence would be 4’ high and placed inside the row of hedges. 
• Additional landscaping is to be added where the fence is installed between the 

shrub line and the house. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  SCOTT GARDNER OF GARDNER SIGNS, 2600 
W. BIG BEAVER, for relief of Chapter 78 to install an additional 80 square foot wall 
sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 78 to install an 
additional 80 square foot wall sign on an existing building.  Section 9.02.03 of the Sign 
Ordinance limits each building one major wall sign.  An 80 square foot wall sign has 
already been approved for this building.  This proposal exceeds the number of signs 
permitted. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that basically the petitioner wished to replace two (2) existing wall 
signs with two (2) wall signs that will be smaller than the existing signs.  Mr. Stimac said 
that on June 9, 2004 this Board granted a variance for two (2) wall signs that were 99 
square feet in size.  The new signs will be 80 square feet in size. 
 
Mr. Scott Gardner of Gardner Signs and Mr. Thomas Darling of 2600 W. Big Beaver 
were present.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written objection on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Nelson 
 
 
 
 

 9



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JULY 6, 2005 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Scott Gardner of Gardner Signs, 2600 W. Big Beaver, relief of 
Chapter 78 to install an additional 80 square foot wall sign. 
 

• New signs will be smaller than existing signs. 
• Variance will not be contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #9 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JEFFREY EISCHEN, JR. 3140 KILMER, for relief 
of Chapter 83 to install a 6’ high privacy fence in a front yard location. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 6’ 
high privacy fence.  This property is a double front corner lot.  It has front yard 
requirements along both Kilmer and Hartland.  Chapter 83 limits the height of fences in 
front yard setbacks to 30 inches.  The site plan submitted indicates a 6’ high wood 
privacy fence adjacent to the north property line along Hartland. 
 
Mr. Eischen was present and stated basically that he wants to make his yard look nicer 
and the fence will help to block traffic and noise. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are five (5) approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked Mr. Stimac if the approvals received were from neighbors that were 
adjacent to this property.  Mr. Stimac said there was one approval from the next block, 
one from the property two lots south, one from the property two lots east, one from the 
property directly across the street and one from the property immediately to the south. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked the petitioner why he needed a fence and Mr. Eischen said that he 
wants more privacy.  Mr. Zuazo asked if he was planning to add landscaping and Mr. 
Eischen said that eventually he would.  Mr. Zuazo then asked if he would settle for a 4’ 
high fence rather than a 6’ high fence and the petitioner indicated that he would rather 
have a 6’ high fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the previous owner had put up a fence without a permit and 
had been cited so he took the fence down.   
 
Mr. Kessler said that driving down Hartland there are no privacy fences and the area is 
pretty much open.  He would hate to set a precedent for privacy fences on corner lots. 

 10



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JULY 6, 2005 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Eischen said that there is a 6’ high privacy fence behind him and he thinks a 4’ high 
fence would not look right next to the 6’ high fence.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the petitioner could install a 6’ high fence at the back of the 
property and Mr. Stimac said that the only place he cannot put up a 6’ high fence is 
north of the house.   
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Jeffrey Eischen, Jr., 3140 Kilmer, relief of Chapter 83 to install a 6’ 
high privacy fence in the front property line along Hartland. 
 

• Fence must be placed 10’ back from the property line. 
• Chain link fence must be removed. 
• Additional landscaping must be added between the fence and Hartland. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE WITH STIPULATIONS CARRIED 
 
The petitioner indicated that moving the fence back would make the yard smaller. 
 
ITEM #10 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JEFF CLEMENTS, 5505 CORPORATE, for relief 
of Chapter 78 to install a 192 square foot ground sign 19’ from the City right of way. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 78 to install a 192 
square foot ground sign 19’ from the Corporate Drive and New King City right of way.  
Paragraph B of Section 9.02.03 of Chapter 78 requires that a ground sign of this size be 
placed a minimum of 30’ from the City right of way line. 
 
The petitioner was not present. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Jeff Clements, 5505 Corporate, for relief of Chapter 
78 to install a 192 square foot ground sign 19’ from the City right of way. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
 

 11



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                      JULY 6, 2005 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF AUGUST 3, 2005 
CARRIED 
 
ITEM #11 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JEFF CLEMENTS, 700 TOWER, for relief of 
Chapter 78 to install a 192 square foot ground sign 16’ from the City right of way lines. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 78 to install a 192 
square foot ground sign 16’ from the City right of way line along Tower Drive and 16’ 
from the right of way line along Long Lake Road.  Paragraph B of Section 9.02.03 of 
Chapter 78 requires that a ground sign of this size be placed a minimum of 30’ from the 
City right of way lines. 
 
The petitioner was not present. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Jeff Clements, 700 Tower, for relief of Chapter 78 
to install a 192 square foot ground sign 16’ from the City right of way lines. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF AUGUST 3, 2005 
CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:50 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
     Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
     Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 

 12



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:30 p.m. on July 12, 2005, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Mark J. Vleck 
Lynn Drake-Batts David T. Waller 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Christopher Kulesza, Student Representative 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-109 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Vleck and Waller are excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Christopher Kulesza was introduced and welcomed as the new student 
representative.  Mr. Kulesza is a student at Notre Dame Prep School in Pontiac. 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Chair Strat asked that the June 14, 2005 Regular Meeting minutes reflect the following 
change:  Agenda Item #4, ZOTA 215-A, page 4, 2nd paragraph -- The sentence should 
read “…and a so-called monster garage still could be built under either scenario in 
terms of the massing and size of the door.”   

bittnera
Text Box
J-01c



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-07-110 
Moved by:  Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the June 14, 2005 Regular Meeting minutes as amended. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Strat asked that the June 28, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes reflect the 
following change:  Agenda Item #7, ZOTA 214, page 4, 2nd paragraph -- The last 
sentence should read:  “Chair Strat said that the seniors and disability residents 
seeking home care are not doing it for profit from their caregivers commencing in their 
homes.” 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-111 
Moved by:  Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the June 28, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
amended. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat 
No: None 
Abstain: Wright 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Strat announced that five (5) affirmative votes are required for approval of 
agenda items, and the petitioner has the option to postpone his/her agenda item prior 
to the Planning Commission’s proceedings on that particular item.  Chair Strat noted 
agenda items postponed at tonight’s meeting would not be considered until the 
September Regular Meeting because the August Regular Meeting agenda is full. 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

TABLED AND POSTPONED ITEM 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 1) – Proposed 

Amendment to Woodside Bible Church/Northwyck Condominium P.U.D., East side 
of Rochester and South of South Blvd., Section 2 – PUD 1 
 
Mr. Miller presented a review of the requested amendments to PUD 1.  Mr. Miller 
confirmed that the petitioner provided the required screening for the rooftop 
mechanical equipment on top of the church.  He noted the EVA (Emergency Vehicle 
Access) connecting the church and the condominiums was constructed.  He said 
the City’s Fire Chief informed him that this is the City’s first EVA.  The Planning 
Department met with the petitioner to discuss the signage and proposed 
landscaping, but to date no plans have been received.  Mr. Miller reported the 
petitioner requested a postponement of the matter to the August 9, 2005 Regular 
Meeting.   
 
The members discussed the length of time [approximately six months] the petitioner 
has taken to submit the appropriate documentation to the Planning Department and 
the number of postponements requested by the petitioner.   
 
Wayne Chubb, project architect from of Hobbs & Black, 100 N. State Street, Ann 
Arbor, was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Chubb said they have 
continuously discussed the matter and met three or four times with the Planning 
Department since the inception of the proposed amendments.  He said an 
appropriate resolution to the matter would most likely be ready for the August 
Regular Meeting, and preliminary thoughts have been shared with the Planning 
Department.   
 
The Public Hearing was not opened.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-112 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
WHEREAS, The Final Plan and Agreement for a Planned Unit Development, 
pursuant to Section 35.60.01 and Section 35.80.00, for the Woodside Bible 
Church/Northwyck Planned Unit Development, known as PUD-1, located on the 
east side of Rochester Road and south of South Boulevard, located in Section 2, 
within the R-1D zoning district, being 89.83 acres in size, be postponed to the 
October 11, 2005 Regular Meeting.   
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Schultz, Strat 
No: Littman, Wright 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Wright said the petitioner has had plenty of time to bring the matter to 
resolution.  He is tired of postponing the item and would recommend denial of the 
proposed amendments at this time.   
 
Mr. Littman said it seems the petitioner is having trouble producing the drawings for 
the sign, and it might be advantageous to the petitioner to resubmit the request 
when the drawings are complete.  Mr. Littman said it is very hard to believe there is 
some technical reason that the drawings could not be completed by now, and it 
would be his recommendation to deny the proposed amendments at this time. 
 
 

REZONING REQUESTS 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 706) – Proposed Village of 
Tuscany Cluster Development, South side of Long Lake, West of Calvert, Section 
14 – Section R-1C to CR-1 
 
Mr. Chamberlain announced that he lives next to the property that is proposed for 
rezoning.  He asked the Assistant City Attorney if it would be appropriate for him to 
abstain from discussion and voting on the request.   
 
Mr. Motzny said it appears Mr. Chamberlain’s participation in the discussion and 
voting process would not be appropriate because there is a possibility that the 
proposed rezoning could have an affect on his personal interest that could result in 
financial implications.  He recommended consideration of a motion to allow Mr. 
Chamberlain to abstain from voting on the matter.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked to be excused.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-113 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To allow Mr. Chamberlain to abstain from voting on Agenda Item #5, 
at his request, because of the proximity of his residential property to the 
development.   
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Chamberlain 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
(Mr. Chamberlain exited the meeting.) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the rezoning request.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Joseph Vaglica of GES Engineering, 8155 Annsbury, Shelby Township, was 
present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Vaglica provided an explanation for the 
discrepancy in the cluster density in relation to the 60-foot easement that was 
recently sold to the City of Troy.  Mr. Vaglica said the proposed development would 
be a better fit for the property and more suitable to its environment. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-114 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to CR-1 rezoning request, located on the south side of Long 
Lake Road, west of Calvert, within Section 14, being approximately 3.07 acres in 
size, be granted.   
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Chamberlain (per Resolution #PC-2005-07-113) 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
(Mr. Chamberlain returned to the meeting.) 
 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 707) – Proposed Cambridge 
Square Office Development, West side of Dequindre, North of Long Lake, Section 
12, - From R-1C to O-1 and E-P 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the rezoning request. 
 
The petitioner, Frank D’Anna of PDI Enterprise LLC, 42500 Hayes, Clinton 
Township, was present.  Mr. D’Anna said the subject property is the remaining 
vacant lot abutting the commercial zoning, and the property would be least 
desirable for a single family home with respect to transition between commercial 
and single family.  He said the proposed landscaped buffer would retain the value of 
the existing neighboring homes.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Pam Prewitt of 41203 Dequindre, Troy, was present.  Ms. Prewitt’s home is directly 
next to the proposed development.  She spoke in favor of the proposed rezoning and 
development.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Chair Strat stated the proposed site plan submitted with the rezoning request would 
not be a consideration in the Commission’s recommendation of the rezoning 
request.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-115 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to O-1 and E-P rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Dequindre, north of Long Lake, within Section 12, being approximately 1.12 acres in 
size, be granted, for the following reason:  
 
1. The E-P zoning on the north side of the property will allow for proper 

transition into the residential to the north. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Schultz said at the time that the site plan is considered, he would like to see the 
petitioner continue the E-P zoning for the homes to the west.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUESTS 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 110-B) – Existing 
Bharatiya Temple Addition, East side of Adams, South side of South Blvd., Section 
6, Zoned R-1A (One Family Residential) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
special use and site plan.  He confirmed the site plan is inclusive of the required 8-
foot sidewalks on both major roads, and that the landbanked parking spaces are by 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

right and are shown on the site plan.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the 
recommendation of the Planning Department to approve the special use request 
and site plan as submitted.   
 
Ramarao Cherukuri of 5448 Crispinway, West Bloomfield, was present to represent 
the Bharatiya Temple.  Mr. Cherukuri provided a history of the Temple, the reason 
for the expansion request, and a description of the architectural design, a first of its 
kind in Michigan.  He informed the members that an open house was held for 
neighbors to share the expansion plan, and extended an invitation to everyone to 
visit the Temple.   
 
Doug Necci, project architect from Metco Services, 23917 Cass, Farmington, was 
present.  Mr. Necci addressed the plan’s special environmental features, wetlands, 
and comments received at the open house.  A brief PowerPoint presentation 
displayed the plan’s rendering, elevations, site amenities and architectural design.  
 
Mr. Chamberlain questioned how the 8-foot sidewalks would be installed around the 
lake / wetlands.   
 
Mr. Necci said it is his understanding that the sidewalk variances obtained with the 
original site plan would be continued for the expansion request.  He said he would 
be more than happy to build sidewalks where it is possible. 
 
Mr. Miller stated the authoritative body to grant sidewalk waivers is the Traffic 
Committee.  Mr. Miller reminded the members that they have discretion in the 
Special Use approval process. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain said his preference is sidewalks on the development but should 
that not be possible, a bridge made of timber could be constructed and it should be 
made a part of the special use approval.   
 
Mr. Littman asked if acceleration/deceleration lanes are planned for the two major 
roads.   
 
George Ferraro, project civil engineer from Metco Services, Inc., 23917 Cass, 
Farmington, provided information with respect to acceleration/deceleration lanes.  
He said there is a deceleration lane for the entrance off of Adams, the site’s 
secondary entrance.  The main entrance off of South Boulevard is planned to have 
a bypass and deceleration lane that would connect to the 3-lane portion east of the 
site.  Mr. Ferraro said there have been discussions with the Oakland County Road 
Commission.  It is understood that plans would have to be re-submitted as detailed 
engineering plans approach.  Mr. Ferraro indicated he would be willing to work with 
the City’s Environmental Specialist during the design phase with respect to 
stormwater management.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-05-116 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Special Use Approval and Site Plan Approval, pursuant to 
Section 10.30.04 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Bharatiya 
Temple Addition, located on the east side of Adams Road, south of South 
Boulevard, Section 6, within the R-1A Zoning District, be granted, subject to the site 
plan.   
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Khan confirmed the motion is to approve the site plan as submitted to the 
Planning Department with the 8-foot sidewalks as shown on the site plan. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked that the 8-foot sidewalks as noted on the plan be approved 
as part of the special use approval, not the site plan approval.  He indicated he 
would compromise with 5-foot sidewalks.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said the subdivision behind the subject property does not have 
sidewalks because it is an area that would prefer to not have sidewalks.  She said 
constructing a bridge would increase the cost of the project.  Ms. Drake-Batts said 
she does not see a need to put in sidewalks based on the composition of the 
adjoining neighborhood.   
 
Mr. Necci suggested an alternate sidewalk layout that would bypass the wetlands 
and any problem areas and extend onto the subject property.   
 
Mr. Littman said there is not one foot of sidewalk in the approximate mile area from 
Square Lake to South Boulevard.  He addressed the cost factor.   
 
Mr. Miller said the petitioner could offer the use of their property through an 
easement that would allow people to walk through the property. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain said a resident would not know that is a public easement and he 
would not agree to an internal sidewalk.   
 
Mr. Cherukuri noted a sidewalk could not be placed at the corner of South 
Boulevard and Adams where the historical home is located.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

Mr. Kulesza commented on the cost factor of sidewalks or bridges.  
 
There were comments on the beauty and preservation of the wetlands.   
 
Mr. Wright said there is no way a sidewalk could go around the historical house on 
the corner.  He does not see a need to impose on the petitioner the requirement to 
construct a sidewalk or bridge the wetlands area.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he would not insist that the petitioner bridge the wetlands, but there 
should be sidewalks where they can be installed.  Mr. Schultz expressed concern 
for the safety of pedestrians attending functions at the Temple.  He said functions at 
the Temple could attract up to 500 people who would be parked along South 
Boulevard and Adams Road.   
 
Mr. Khan confirmed the motion is for approval of the site plan and special use 
approval as submitted, and that a sidewalk waiver could be requested by the 
petitioner should he so desire.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: Chamberlain 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Chamberlain said he wanted the requirement for sidewalks to be approved as 
part of a special use approval because he thinks the Traffic Committee would not 
have authority to change the special use approval verbiage.   
 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:45 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:50 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 328) – Existing 
Clark Station, Northeast corner of Maple and Livernois, Section 27, Zoned H-S 
(Highway Service) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
special use request.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of the 
Planning Department to approve the special use request and site plan as submitted.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

Mr. Chamberlain addressed the comments of the City’s Environmental Specialist 
with respect to the release of gasoline in 1993.  He said it appears that action 
should not be taken on the request until a remedy has been filed with the State.   
 
Mr. Miller said the Planning Commission has the discretionary authority to place a 
condition on the special use approval.   
 
The petitioner, Michael Kozlowski of Caeruleum Environmental Design, 5603 S. 
Telegraph, Dearborn Heights, was present.  Mr. Kozlowski said he would find the 
on-site remediation activity and report his findings to the Planning Department.  He 
assumes there is ongoing remediation.  Mr. Kozlowski requested consideration to 
approve the site plan and special use request with the condition of remediation filed 
with the MDEQ.   
 
Mr. Littman addressed the comments of the City’s Environmental Specialist related 
to the proposed tanks appearing to be in the middle of the future right-of-way.   
 
Mr. Kozlowski assured the members that there would be no tanks in the future right 
of way. 
 
Mr. Miller said it is his opinion that the Environmental Specialist’s comments are 
inaccurate. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-05-    
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Special Use Approval and Site Plan Approval, pursuant to 
Section 22.30.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Clark 
Station improvements, located on the northeast corner of Maple and Livernois, 
Section 27, within the H-S Zoning District, be tabled until such time as the petitioner 
comes forward with remediation plans on the environmental problems that started in 
1993.   
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said the remediation could be the continuous monitoring of the tank 
and might never be resolved.  She said, as the motion reads, the petitioner might be 
restricted from ever renovating the gas station. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Mr. Schultz said it would be prudent to get the remediation documentation as part of 
the site plan and special use approval.   
 
Mr. Littman suggested the tabling motion stipulate a specific date.  He indicated he 
would like finalization on the location of the tanks.  
 
Resolution # PC-2005-05-117 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Special Use Approval and Site Plan Approval, pursuant to 
Section 22.30.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Clark 
Station improvements, located on the northeast corner of Maple and Livernois, 
Section 27, within the H-S Zoning District, be tabled to the September 13, 2005 
Regular Meeting.  
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said it is most likely the gasoline leak has been taken care of and the 
petitioner is coming back for no reason.   
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

9. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 917) – Proposed Fifth Third Bank, East side of Rochester 
Road, North side of Bishop, Section 23, Zoned B-3 (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
Fifth Third Bank.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of the Planning 
Department to approve the site plan as submitted.   
 
Mr. Schultz addressed the existing fence that would be replaced with a screen wall.  
He asked if the existing fence surrounds the backyard of a neighboring home and if 
contact has been made with the homeowner. 
 
Mr. Miller responded that the fence might have been put up in the wrong location, 
which is a common occurrence.  Mr. Miller said the matter would be reviewed. 
 
The petitioner, Marcos Makohon of KR Architecture, LLC, 26899 Northwestern Hwy, 
Southfield, was present.  Mr. Makohon said the neighbor has not been contacted.  
Upon their review, it was found that the existing fence follows a fence line of many 
years ago and the property was not surveyed.  Mr. Makohon said a vacant 
commercial building, a former Robert Hall store and real estate firm, is being 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

removed to erect what they hope to be an extremely active banking center.  He 
stated that the impact to the neighbors was minimized, and noted that it is an 
ordinance requirement to put up a masonry wall.  Mr. Makohon said it would be in 
their best interest to contact the neighbor.   
 
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-118 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz  
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the Proposed 
Fifth Third Bank, located on the east side of Rochester Road, north of Bishop, 
located in Section 23, on approximately 1.71 acres, within the B-3 zoning district, is 
hereby granted.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

10. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 918) – Proposed Addition Motion Industries, Northeast 
corner of Brinston and Bellingham, Section 26, Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District  
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
building addition to Motion Industries.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the 
recommendation of the Planning Department to approve the site plan as submitted.   
 
The petitioner, Bob Paciocco of The Paciocco Companies, 1330 Goldsmith, 
Plymouth, was present.  Mr. Paciocco said Motion Industries has been an excellent, 
long-term tenant who is requesting additional warehouse space.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-05-119 
Moved by: Schultz  
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the 
total number of required parking spaces to thirty-six (36) when a total of forty-three 
(43) spaces are required on the site based on the off-street parking space 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

requirements for general industrial, as per Article XL in the event of a change of use 
in the future as required by Section 40.21.82 of the Zoning Ordinance.  
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the 
Proposed Motion Industries Addition, located on the northeast corner of Brinston and 
Bellingham, located in Section 26, on approximately 1.35 acres, within the M-1 
zoning district, is hereby granted.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

11. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 919) – Proposed Buscemi Party Shoppe, North of 
Hartland, East of Rochester, Section 23 – Zoned B-1 (Local Business) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
Buscemi Party Shoppe.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of the 
Planning Department to approve the site plan as submitted with the condition that 
the sidewalks be extended across the entry drives on both Rochester and Hartland.   
 
Patrick Westerlund of Design Group Architects, 637 E. Big Beaver, Troy, was 
present to represent the owner and petitioner. 
 
The petitioner, Paul Buscemi of 3296 Rochester Road, Troy, was also present.   
 
Mr. Westerlund said Buscemi Party Shoppe is relocating from their current tenant 
space to this location.  Mr. Westerlund said he and the Planning Department staff 
worked on the site plan.  He indicated the new location would be a great asset for 
the Buscemi family and Buscemi customers. 
 
Mr. Schultz said he hopes the petitioner works closely with the property owner to 
the east so that the screen wall is of an attractive appearance and color, since the 
development is directly on the property line and next to the neighbor’s home.   
 
Chair Strat commended the Planning Department staff in their involvement in 
getting the cross access easement.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-120 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
Buscemi Party Shoppe, located on the east side of Rochester Road, north of 
Hartland, located in Section 23, on approximately 16,505 square feet, within the B-1 
zoning district, is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Extend the sidewalks across the entry drives on both Rochester and Hartland.   
2. Register the proposed cross access easement with the County. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts is not in favor of the development because it intrudes into 
neighborhood behind it.   
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 
 

12. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 201) – 
Article 28.30.00  Arts and Dance Schools (Commercial Recreation) in Light 
Industrial Zoning Districts 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
relating to arts and dance schools in the light industrial zoning districts.  Mr. Miller 
reported that City Management recommends approval of ZOTA 201 as printed on 
the draft ZOTA dated June 24, 2005.   
 
There was a brief discussion relating to commercial recreation in the RC zoning 
districts.  It was determined to discuss this at a future study meeting.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-121 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 28.30.09, pertaining to indoor commercial recreation facilities in 
the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District, and related additional definitions, be 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

amended as printed on the Proposed Planning Commission Public Hearing Draft 
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

13. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 216) – 
Article 28.00.00 Additional Retail Along Major Thoroughfares in the M-1 (Light 
Industrial) Zoning District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
relating to additional retail along major thoroughfares in the M-1 zoning district.  Mr. 
Miller reported that City Management recommends approval of ZOTA 216 as 
printed on the draft ZOTA dated June 27, 2005.   
 
Mr. Wright pointed out a typographical error in Section 28.30.09 (A).  The word “is” 
should be deleted.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Arie Leibovitz of Ari-El Enterprises, 29548 Southfield Road, Southfield, was present.  
Mr. Leibovitz identified himself as the interested party who brought the matter to the 
attention of the City as a desire and need to accommodate flexibility in properties 
along the major arteries.  Mr. Leibovitz, owner of numerous buildings along the Maple 
Road corridor, encouraged the members to support the text amendment that would 
revitalize some of the buildings that are becoming dysfunctional for the industrial use 
along the corridor.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-122 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 28.30.09, pertaining to additional retail uses along major 
thoroughfares in the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District, be amended as printed on 
the Proposed Planning Commission Public Hearing Draft Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment, subject to the correction of one typographical error in item A of the 
proposed text. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 16 - 
 

Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts 
Absent: Vleck, Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said the proposed amendment is too restrictive and should not be 
limited to major thoroughfares.   
 
 

14. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Schultz addressed the recent Supreme Court decision with respect to the taking of 
land as relates to its impact in the long-term.   
 
Mr. Littman addressed the proposed PUD in Rochester Hills [Historic Lorna Stone Village].  
He suggested it might be helpful if Troy and Rochester Hills worked together with respect 
to the Bharatiya Temple Addition with respect to curb cuts, acceleration/deceleration lanes, 
etc.   
 
Mr. Wright complimented the Chair on dispensing a cumbersome agenda in a relatively 
short period of time.   
 
Mr. Kulesza said tonight was fun and he was looking forward to working with the members.   
 
Mr. Motzny provided an explanation to his memorandum that addresses the public hearing 
for the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating to group daycare in residential 
districts.   
 
Mr. Miller announced he would not be at the July 26, 2005 Study/Special Meeting.   
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 12, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 17 - 
 

 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 9:38 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Draft\07-12-05 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft July 13, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, July 13, 2005, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 12:08 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: Mark Calice  
 Michael Geise 
 Thomas Houghton, Chair 
 John M. Lamerato 
 William R. Need 
 Steven A. Pallotta 
 Louise E. Schilling 
 John Szerlag  
 
 
ABSENT:   
  
   
ALSO PRESENT: Laura Fitzpatrick 
 Doug Smith 
 Matthew J. Farrell, Friedman Real Estate Group 
 Joseph M. Polito, Friedman Real Estate Group 
 
 
MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 07 - 024  
Moved by Calice 
Seconded by Szerlag 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the June 8, 2005 meeting be approved.  
 
Yeas:  All  7 
Absent:  
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS –FORD & EARL PROPERTY UPDATE 
 
Doug Smith, Matthew Farrell and Joseph Polito of Friedman Real Estate Group, reviewed 
with the Board various options for the Ford & Earl property.  The Board will study the 
proposal from Friedman Real Estate Group to market the property and make a 
recommendation at their August Meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01d



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft July 13, 2005 
 
 

 2

OTHER BUSINESS – PART –TIME SERVICE CREDIT
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 07 - 025 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Szerlag 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board approve the part-time service credit of: 
Gisela Beier   8.75 years 
Ardath Labriola  8.50 years 
Marilyn Miller  7.25 years  
 
Yeas:  All  7 
Absent:  
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – RETIREMENT REQUESTS
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 07 - 026 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Pallotta 
 
RESOLVED, That the retirement requests of the following employees be approved: 
Catherine T. McFarland, DC, 7/21/05, 20 years, 7 months 
David S. Beekman, DB, 8/2/05, 25 years 
Patricia A. Petitto, DB, 8/20/05, 36 years, 10 months 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
Absent:  
 
 
INVESTMENTS
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 07- 027 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Pallotta 
 
RESOLVED, That the following investments be purchased and sold: 
 
Purchase:    
$500,000 Washington Mutual, 4.00% due 1/15/09; $500,000 HSBC Internotes, 4.375% 
due 7/15/08; $500,000 Bear Sterns, 4.00% due 1/31/08; $500,000 HSBC Finance, 4.15% 
due 7/15/07; and 5,000 shares Roper Ind. 
 
Sell:  NOKIA 
 
Yeas:  All 7 
Absent:  
 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft July 13, 2005 
 
 

 3

The next meeting is August 10, 2005 at 12:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:50 p.m.  
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2005\7-13-05 Minutes_Draft.doc 



RETIREE HEALTH CARE BENEFITS PLAN & TRUST MINUTES –Draft July 13, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, July 13, 2005, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 1:50 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: Mark Calice  
 Michael Geise 
 Thomas Houghton, Chair 
 John M. Lamerato 
 William R. Need 
 Steven A. Pallotta 
 Louise E. Schilling 
 John Szerlag  
 
 
ABSENT:   
  
   
ALSO PRESENT: Laura Fitzpatrick 
  
 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – ELECTION OF CHAIRPERSON AND VICE CHAIRPERSON
 
Resolution # RH – 2005 – 07 - 001 
Moved by Lamerato 
Seconded by Szerlag 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board elect Thomas Houghton as Chairperson and Steven A. 
Pallotta as Vice Chairperson. 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
Absent:  
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – 2005 MEETING SCHEDULE
 
Resolution # RH – 2005 – 07 - 002 
Moved by Houghton 
Seconded by Pallotta 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board will meet on September 14, 2005 and December 14, 2005 at 
1:00 p.m. 
 
Yeas:  All  7 
Absent:  
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01e



RETIREE HEALTH CARE BENEFITS PLAN & TRUST MINUTES –Draft July 13, 2005 
 
 

 2

The next meeting is September 14, 2005 at 1:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:58 p.m.  
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust\2005\7-13-05 Minutes_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 26, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on July 26, 2005 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Lawrence Littman 
Lynn Drake-Batts Mark J. Vleck 
Fazal Khan 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Christopher Kulesza, Student Representative 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-123 
Moved by: Wright  
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Littman and Vleck are excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

3. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Wright reported on two items that appeared before the BZA.  Both items were 
tabled due to not having a full board present. 
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01f



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 26, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported that PUD 4 - “The Monarch” - North side of Big Beaver Road, 
east of Alpine and west of McClure, Section 20 – Received Preliminary PUD 
Approval by City Council on July 18, 2005. 
  
Mr. Waller asked if the design of The Monarch that received a recommendation from 
the Planning Commission was the same design that was before City Council.  Mr. 
Savidant responded in the affirmative. 
 
 

5. PRESENTATION BY LORI GRIGG BLUHM, CITY ATTORNEY – OPEN 
MEETINGS ACT AND RELATED ITEMS 
 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney, made a presentation on the Open Meetings Act 
and other related items.  General discussion followed. 
 
The members thanked Ms. Bluhm for her time and excellent presentation.   
 

___________ 
 

 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:45 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:50 p.m. 
 

___________ 
 

 
6. PRESENTATION BY U.S. GREEN BUILDING COUNCIL, DETROIT REGIONAL 

CHAPTER, ADVOCACY COMMITTEE 
 
Paul H. Goldsmith and Mark Hieber of Harley Ellis and Detroit Regional Chapter of 
U. S. Green Building Council (USGBC) made a presentation on sustainable design, 
entitled “Sustainable Planning for the Future”.  General discussion followed. 
 
The third and final presentation entitled “Bringing It All Together” is scheduled for 
the August 2, 2005 Special/Study Meeting.   
 
The members thanked Mr. Goldsmith and Mr. Hieber for their time and excellent 
presentations.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 26, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

7. RESCHEDULE NOVEMBER 8, 2005 REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING (GENERAL ELECTION) 
 
Mr. Savidant reported that Troy Council Chambers is not available for the 
November 8, 2005, Planning Commission Regular Meeting because of the General 
Election. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-124 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission reschedules the November 8, 2005 
Regular Meeting to November 29, 2005, to be held in Council Chambers, as 
requested by the Planning Department. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
8. DAYCARE CENTERS LOCATED IN SCHOOLS, R-1A - R-1E ZONING DISTRICTS 

– POTENTIAL ZOTA 
 

Mr. Savidant explained that there is a Montessori school in the R-1C district that 
wishes to add a child care center.  Child care centers are permitted by special use 
approval in the R-1A through R-1E districts, provided the center is “located adjacent 
to a multiple family residential, office or commercial District, or within a previously 
established church complex” (Article 10.30.03.B).  Given that child care services are 
provided in all elementary schools within the Troy School District, it seems 
reasonable to amend the Zoning Ordinance to formally permit these uses in all 
schools. 

 
Mr. Chamberlain stated that child care centers were appropriate uses in schools. 
 
Mr. Schultz asked if child care centers in schools would be approved by Special 
Use Approval.   
 
Mr. Savidant replied in the affirmative. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-07-125 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, that a Public Hearing be held for this item, which permits child care 
centers in school complexes by Special Use Permit in the R-1A through R-1E 
districts, at the September 13, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 26, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
9. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Chamberlain requested that Planning Commissioner motions should be stated clearly 
so that they are understood by all members and so the public record is clear.  Reasons for 
negative votes should also be stated clearly.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain also requested that the Planning Department compile a list of Planning 
Commissioners who plan to attend the MAP 2005 Annual Conference at the Grand Hotel 
on Mackinac Island.  Further, the Planning Department should pay registration fees up 
front so that Planning Commissioners do not have to wait for reimbursement. 
 
Planning Commissioners who indicated they are attending the 2005 MAP Conference 
included:  Mr. Chamberlain, Ms. Drake-Batts, Mr. Khan, Mr. Strat and Mr. Waller.   
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:00 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Draft\07-26-05 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



DATE:        August 1, 2005
TO:            John Szerlag, City Manager
FROM:       Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of July 2005

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 3 $115,000.00 $1,115.00

Sub Total 3 $115,000.00 $1,115.00

COMMERCIAL
Completion Less Tenant 1 $121,000.00 $992.00
Tenant Completion 1 $195,000.00 $1,085.00
Add/Alter 16 $1,711,708.00 $13,575.00
Fire Repair 1 $60,000.00 $565.00

Sub Total 19 $2,087,708.00 $16,217.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 15 $2,610,929.00 $19,401.00
Add/Alter 34 $652,369.00 $7,523.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 11 $82,822.00 $1,509.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 8 $83,500.00 $1,177.00
Repair 1 $166,700.00 $1,314.00
Fire Repair 1 $121,421.00 $999.00
Wreck 3 $0.00 $170.00
Fnd./Slab/Rat Wall 1 $775.00 $35.00

Sub Total 74 $3,718,516.00 $32,128.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 6 $900,000.00 $7,170.00
Add/Alter 6 $42,103.00 $781.00

Sub Total 12 $942,103.00 $7,951.00

MULTIPLE
Add/Alter 2 $77,000.00 $829.00

Sub Total 2 $77,000.00 $829.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 2 $550,000.00 $4,140.00

Sub Total 2 $550,000.00 $4,140.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 48 $0.00 $5,230.00
Fences 16 $0.00 $260.00

Sub Total 64 $0.00 $5,490.00

TOTAL 176 $7,490,327.00 $67,870.00

Page 1

bittnera
Text Box
J-02a



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JULY 2005
NO. PERMIT FEE

Cert. of Occupancy 43 $2,360.75
Plan Review 154 $6,465.00
Microfilm 25 $207.00
Building Permits 176 $67,870.00
Electrical Permits 262 $15,578.00
Heating Permits 159 $9,640.00
Air Cond. Permits 112 $4,965.00
Refrigeration Permits 1 $120.00
Plumbing Permits 131 $11,456.00
Storm Sewer Permits 17 $681.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 23 $825.00
Sewer Taps 19 $5,332.00

TOTAL 1122 $125,499.75

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JULY 2005
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 26 $130.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 28 $420.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 28 $28.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 4 $200.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 8 $80.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 3 $45.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 2 $20.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 23 $230.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 2 $30.00

TOTAL 124 $1,183.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2004 2004 2005 2005

JANUARY 100 $5,235,481.00 93 $6,617,765.00

FEBRUARY 130 $21,354,496.00 133 $8,586,755.00

MARCH 158 $9,372,242.00 143 $19,405,253.00

APRIL 178 $14,158,227.00 234 $16,039,899.00

MAY 232 $11,511,644.00 229 $8,974,377.00

JUNE 232 $16,224,865.00 207 $14,432,280.00

JULY 178 $19,788,711.00 176 $7,490,327.00

AUGUST 224 $11,179,780.00 0 $0.00

SEPTEMBER 198 $13,582,037.00 0 $0.00

OCTOBER 197 $11,540,976.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 161 $6,232,506.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 148 $7,316,487.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 2136 $147,497,452.00 1215 $81,546,656.00



2004 2004

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2005

3

22

38

53

9 11 15

0
10
20
30
40
50
60

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Aug 1, 2005 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JULY 2005Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter 2901 W BIG BEAVER  125,000.00HEALY CONSTRUCTION
Commercial, Add/Alter 2801 W BIG BEAVER C-149  250,000.00RICHTNER AND RATNER
Commercial, Add/Alter 1775 RESEARCH  300,000.00DAVE DIESON
Commercial, Add/Alter 5700 CROOKS 100  122,000.00ROBERT TERNES
Commercial, Add/Alter 1960 TECHNOLOGY 300  156,880.00GLENN JOSEPH
Commercial, Add/Alter 201 W BIG BEAVER 125  250,000.00KIRCO CONSTRUCTION LLC
Commercial, Add/Alter 308 W FOURTEEN MILE  147,328.00WARWICK CONSTRUCTION
Commercial, Add/Alter 44199 DEQUINDRE 302  150,000.00BEAUMONT SERVICES COMPANY LLC

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  1,501,208.00

Commercial, Compl. less Tenant 1800 W BIG BEAVER 2ND FL  121,000.00VARADY ASSOCIATES

Commercial, Compl. less TenantTotal  121,000.00

Commercial, Tenant Completion 1800 W BIG BEAVER 200  195,000.00HUNTINGTON CONSTRUCTION

Commercial, Tenant CompletionTotal  195,000.00

Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter 44201 DEQUINDRE LOCKER  250,000.00SCOTT KREUTZER
Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter 44201 DEQUINDRE ANGIO  300,000.00BARTON MALOW COMPANY

Inst./Hosp., Add/AlterTotal  550,000.00

Total Valuation:  2,367,208.00Records  13



July 26, 2005 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 

Wendell Moore, Research & Technology Administrator 
 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - 2005 Year-To-Date Crime and Calls for Service Report 
 
Attached is a spreadsheet detailing and comparing 2005 calls for service, criminal 
offenses, clearance rates, traffic crashes and citations issued through June 2005, with 
the same time period of 2004.  This report’s format complies with the National Incident 
Based Reporting System.  All offenses within an incident are reported.   
 
Group A Crime decreased 10.5% (192 reported incidents).  Categories showing notable 
statistical changes are as follows:  

• Assault Offenses: Down 19.8% (72 incidents). 
• Destruction/Damage to Property/Vandalism: Down 17.0% (32 incidents). 
• Drug/Narcotic Offenses: Down 18.0% (16 incidents). 
• Fraud Offenses: Down 43.3% (36 incidents). 
• Motor Vehicle Theft: Down 24.1% (14 incidents). 
• Sex Offenses/Forcible: Down 44.4% (8 incidents). 

 
Group B crime decreased 16.7% (181incidents).  Categories showing notable statistical 
changes are as follows:  

• Disorderly Conduct: Down 22.9% (30 incidents). 
• Driving Under the Influence: Up 24.5% (48 incidents). 
• Liquor Law Violations: Up 30.6% (11 incidents). 

 
Total incidents of crime (Group A & B) decreased 12.8% (373 incidents). 
 
Group C (non-criminal) calls for service showed a 7.6% increase (1209 incidents).  
Within Group C, alarm responses decreased 4.0% (90 alarm responses).  
 
Clearance rates (the percentage of offenses for which a perpetrator has been 
prosecuted, or positively identified but not prosecuted) continue to be high; 37.1% for 
Group A Crime and 68.7% for Group B Crime.  Arrests decreased 14.6% (103 arrests) 
for Group A Crime, and increased 8.9% (56 arrests) for group B Crime.  Overall, arrests 
are down 3.5% (47 arrests).  In total, the department made 1284 arrests for Group A 
and B crime during the first six-months of 2005.   
 
Property damage traffic crashes are up 4.8% (63 crashes) while injury traffic crashes 
are down 5.8% (21 crashes).  The number of traffic citations issued for hazardous traffic 
violations decreased 5.0%, while non-hazardous and license/title/registration violations 
increased 3.9% and 25.1% respectively.     
 
Overall, crimes and calls for service are up 4.5% (840 incidents).   
 
Please feel free to contact Chief Craft or Wendell Moore if you require additional 
information. 

bittnera
Text Box
J-02b



Troy Police Department
Midyear 2005/2004 Comparison
INCIDENTS OFFENSES ARRESTS CLEARANCES

Percent Percent Percent
Group A Crime Categories 2005 2004 Change 2005 2004 Change 2005 2004 Change 2005 Percent
Arson 1 2 -50.0% 2 2        NC 2 0         + 1 50.0%
Assault Offenses 291 363 -19.8% 291 363 -19.8% 87 86 1.2% 158 54.3%
Bribery 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0.0%
Breaking and Entering 123 124 -0.8% 123 124 -0.8% 6 11 -45.5% 9 7.3%
Counterfeiting/Forgery 57 50 14.0% 59 51 15.7% 9 12 -8.1% 7 11.9%
Destruction/Damage/Vandalism 156 188 -17.0% 167 194 -13.9% 12 4 200.0% 18 10.8%
Drug/Narcotic Offenses 73 89 -18.0% 124 130 -4.6% 88 123 -28.5% 120 96.8%
Embezzlement 35 46 -23.9% 36 46 -21.7% 24 30 -20.0% 16 44.4%
Extortion/Blackmail 1 0         + 1 0         + 0 0        NC 0 0.0%
Fraud Offenses 47 83 -43.4% 51 88 -42.0% 18 22 -18.2% 19 37.3%
Gambling Offenses 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0.0%
Homicide Offenses 1 0         + 1 0         + 1 0         + 1 100.0%
Kidnapping/Abduction 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0.0%
Larceny/Theft Offenses 784 779 0.6% 794 780 1.8% 331 360 -8.1% 268 33.8%
Motor Vehicle Theft 44 58 -24.1% 49 59 -16.9% 6 2 200.0% 5 10.2%
Pornography/Obscene Material 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0.0%
Prostitution Offenses 0 10         - 0 10         - 0 26         - 0 0.0%
Robbery 10 14 -28.6% 10 14 -28.6% 5 9 -44.4% 5 50.0%
Sex Offenses, Forcible 10 18 -44.4% 9 18 -50.0% 4 7 -42.9% 4 44.4%
Sex Offenses, Nonforcible 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0.0%
Stolen Property Offenses 2 8 -75.0% 3 9 -66.7% 1 7 -85.7% 2 66.7%
Weapon Law Violations 9 4 125.0% 11 6 83.3% 7 5 40.0% 9 81.8%

Group A Total 1,644 1,836 -10.5% 1,731 1,894 -8.6% 601 704 -14.6% 642 37.1%

Group B Crime Categories
Bad Checks 0 11         - 0 11         - 0 0        NC 0 0.0%
Curfew/Loitering/Vagrancy 0 1         - 0 1         - 0 1         - 0 0.0%
Disorderly Conduct 101 131 -22.9% 107 143 -25.2% 8 12 -33.3% 12 11.2%
Driving Under the Influence 244 196 24.5% 257 213 20.7% 234 180 30.0% 244 94.9%
Drunkenness 3 2 50.0% 4 3 33.3% 1 0         + 2 50.0%
Family Offenses, Nonviolent 8 13 -38.5% 8 13 -38.5% 0 1         - 1 12.5%
Liquor Law Violations 47 36 30.6% 78 63 23.8% 104 95 9.5% 77 98.7%
Peeping Tom 1 1        NC 1 1        NC 0 1         - 0 0.0%
Runaway (Under 18) 18 18        NC 18 18        NC 0 0        NC 17 94.4%
Trespass of Real Property 2 7 -71.4% 6 8 -25.0% 0 5         - 4 66.7%
All Other 480 669 -28.3% 539 707 -23.8% 336 332 1.2% 342 63.5%

Group B Total 904 1,085 -16.7% 1,018 1,181 -13.8% 683 627 8.9% 699 68.7%

Group A and B Total 2,548 2,921 -12.8% 2,749 3,075 -10.6% 1,284 1,331 -3.5% 1,341 48.8%
Above data includes both completed and attempted offenses.

Y-T-DY-T-D Y-T-D Y-T-D



Troy Police Department
Midyear 2005/2004 Comparison
INCIDENTS OFFENSES ARRESTS CLEARANCES

Percent Percent Percent
Description 2005 2004 Change 2005 2004 Change 2005 2004 Change 2005 Percent
Alarms 2,160 2,250 -4.0% 2,160 2,250 -4.0% NA NA NA NA NA
All Other 14,859 13,560 9.6% 15,061 13,743 9.6% 380 256 48.4% NA NA

Group C Miscellaneous Total 17,019 15,810 7.6% 17,221 15,993 7.7% 380 256 48.4% NA NA

Group E Fire Total 26 22 18.2% 26 20 30.0% NA NA NA NA NA

Grand Totals 19,593 18,753 4.5% 19,996 19,088 4.8% 1,664 1,587 4.9% 1,341 48.8%

Traffic Crashes and Citations

Reportable Traffic Crashes 2005 Alcohol Involved Crashes
Personal Injury 339 360 -5.8% 15 Incidents--4.4% involved alcohol.

Property Damage 1,375 1,312 4.8% 27 Incidents--2.0% involved alcohol.
Fatal 5 2 150.0% 2 Incidents--100.0% involved alcohol.

Total Reportable 1,719 1,674 2.7% 44 Incidents--2.6% of all reportable crashes involved alcohol.

Private Property Crashes 552 578 -4.5%

Crashes Grand Total 2,271 2,252 0.8%

Traffic Citations
Hazardous 5,645 5,939 -5.0%

Non-hazardous 843 811 3.9%
License, Title, Registration 1,877 1,500 25.1%

Parking 550 335 64.2%
Traffic Citations Total 8,915 8,585 3.8%

Y-T-D Y-T-D Y-T-D Y-T-D



 
 
 
 
Date:  August 5, 2005 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Doug Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development 

Mark Miller, Planning Director 
 
Subject: AGENDA ITEM - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 

(ZOTA 214) – Article XXVIII, Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A 
through R-1E Districts  

 
 
A public hearing has been scheduled on this item for the August 9, 2005 
Planning Commission meeting.  The intent of the meeting is to solicit input on 
Group Day Care Homes and discuss the proposed ZOTA.  All licensed Group 
Day Care Home providers were mailed notice of the public hearing, as were all 
residents within 300 feet of the 19 licensed Group Day Care Homes in Troy.   
 
Currently the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance does not permit Group Day Care 
Homes (in-home daycare for between 7 to 12 children).  The State of Michigan 
issues licenses for GDCH, however does not require applicants to meet local 
zoning.  Consequently there are presently 19 licensed Group Day Care Homes in 
Troy that are in violation of the Zoning Ordinance.  Note that Family Day Care 
Homes (in-home day care for up to 6 children) and Child Care Centers are 
permitted uses in Troy. 
 
Attached is a list illustrating how nearby communities regulate Group Day Care 
Homes in their zoning ordinances. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Table – Regulation of Group Day Care Homes in Nearby Communities 
 
 
cc: File/ZOTA 214 
 Sharon Schafer 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 214 Group Day Care Homes\Group Day Care Homes CC Memo 08 15 05.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02C



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department      August 4, 2005 

REGULATION OF GROUP DAY CARE HOMES (GDCH) IN NEARBY COMMUNITIES 
(Based on regulation of GDCH in local Zoning Ordinance) 

 
LICENSED GDCH 

(STATE OF MI) 
COMMUNITY REGULATION OF GDCH 

11 Auburn Hills Not permitted 
1 Birmingham Permitted by right in MX (Mixed Use) District, with special conditions 
6 Bloomfield Hills Not permitted 
2 Bloomfield Township Permitted by Special Use Permit 
17 Farmington Hills 

 
 

Accessory uses permitted subject to special conditions in RA-1A, RA-1B, 
RA-1, RA-2, RA-3 and RA-4 

17 Livonia Existing GDCH permitted by right in R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4, R-5 and R-U-F 
districts; new GDCH require ZBA approval  

9 Novi Permitted subject to Special Conditions in R-1 through R-4 
16 Rochester Hills Not permitted 
4 Shelby Township Special land use with standards in all residential districts 
17 West Bloomfield 

Township 
Permitted by right in R-10, R-12.5 and R-30 

19 Sterling Heights Permitted by Special Use Permit 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 214 Group Day Care Homes\REGULATION OF FAMILY DAY CARE HOMES TABLE.doc 



 
 
 

July 27, 2005 
 

TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 

FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
 Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager \ Services 
 Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director  
 Charles Craft, Police Chief 
 Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
 

SUBJECT:    Agenda Item –Auction (Off Site & On-line)– Vehicle Sale in Port Huron, Michigan 
and an On-Line Auction for a Diamond Bracelet on BidNet. 

 

SUMMARY 
In compliance with Resolution #2002-12-644-E-9 which requires that final auction reporting be 
submitted to City Council, miscellaneous Motor Pool vehicles were taken by the awarded City 
auctioneer, Mid-Thumb Auctioneering Service, LLC, to an auction held at Don’s American Towing, 
2547 Connor Street, Port Huron, Michigan.  The auction was scheduled for Saturday, June 11, 
2005.  A list of the vehicles auctioned and the amount received is attached.  The contract contains a 
provision that the auctioneer produces final accounting and the funds settlement within 30 days after 
the auction takes place.  He has met the criteria.   
 

In compliance with Resolution #2004-02-075, final reporting is being presented for (1) one Diamond 
Bracelet, which was auctioned on-line through BidNet.  The on-line auction was placed on July 11, 
2005 and closed on July 24, 2005.  As a point of information, the bracelet was found at Somerset 
Mall.  It was advertised and auctioned in compliance with the Ordinance: Chapter 3, Sections 1.77 
and 1.78 (copy attached). Final sale amount and fees are listed below along with an attachment:     
 

The income from the sales is as follows: 
 (3) Three Motor Pool Vehicles (6% auction fee) $10,250.00 

(1) One Diamond Bracelet    (LOT #482)                              710.00 
 

Sales Tax (plus 6% on winning amount – LOT #482):  42.60 
 

Costs:   Auction Fee   
    (6% for cleaned Motor Pool vehicles)                (-)  615.00 
   BidNet Auction Fee  (-5% Fee)                          (-)    35.50 
 

 Net Income                            $10,352.10 
  

BACKGROUND  
Included in the specifications for the auction contract is the ability of our auctioneer to take the City’s 
auction items to other auction locations.  Mid-Thumb Auctioneering, LLC has been successful at the 
Port Huron location.  All transportation, reporting, and advertising is included in the auction fee.   
 

Resolution #2004-02-075 established the auction fee of 5% and provided approval to use BidNet 
with the provision that other on-line auction service options would be considered.  Bidnet is 
already implementing an on-line auction service for MITN (Michigan Inter-governmental Trade 
Network) and is operational with access through the City of Troy home web page.  MITN is 
Purchasing’s official e-procurement website used for posting bids, tabulations, quotations, and 
award information. It was a Purchasing goal that one e-procurement site would be operational for 
all functions. 
 
JB/lb 
G://Bid Award 05-06//Report and Communication – Auction Report – Port Huron 6-05.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02d













 
 
DATE:   August 10, 2005 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT: Additional Information on Examples of Allowable Accessory 

Structures Based Upon Final Action on ZOTA 215A 
 
 
 
 
At the City Council Meeting of July 18, 2005, staff provided analysis of the effects of the 
final action of City Council on the Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment 215A relating to 
the allowable sizes of accessory buildings.  That analysis was in the form of five 
examples of the allowable areas for both attached and detached accessory buildings 
using existing homes and parcels in the City of Troy.  A copy of that report is attached 
for your reference. 
 
To further help facilitate the analysis of that information, staff has prepared the attached 
chart showing in data format the information that was included in paragraph format in 
the previous memorandum.  We will be happy to provide any additional information that 
you require in this matter. 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
 
 
Note to Mayor/Council: 
 
This matrix was developed to indicate the difference in garage sizes using a formula 
with, and without basements constructed as living area. 
 
John Szerlag 
City Manager 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02e



Application of New Accessory Building Standards
Example 1 2 3 4 5

Lot Size 21,258 65,555 36,000 14,070 20,691
30% Lot Coverage Maximum 6,377 19,667 10,800 4,221 6,207

Basement Area 2,027 3,450

1st Floor Area 2,044 3,450 2,270 1,310 2,787
2nd Floor Area 1,733 2,793 1,320 1,074

Living Area w/ Basement 5,804 9,693 3,590 2,384 2,787

75% Living Area w/ Basement 4,353 7,270 2,693 1,788 2,090

Maximum Attached Garage w/ Basement 4,333 7,270 2,693 1,788 2,090

Maximum detached garage w/ Basement 0 1,721 1,170 731 864
Maximum Accessory Buildings w/ Basement 4,333 8,991 3,863 2,519 2,954

Living Area w/o Basement 3,777 6,243 3,590 2,384 2,787

75% Living Area w/o Basement 2,833 4,682 2,693 1,788 2,090

Maximum Attached Garage w/o Basement 2,833 4,682 2,693 1,788 2,090

Maximum Detached Garage w/o Basement 875 1,721 1,170 731 864
Maximum Accessory Buildings w/o Basement 3,708 6,403 3,863 2,519 2,954
75% of First Floor Living Area 1,533 2,588 1,703 983 2,090



 
 
DATE:   July 12, 2005 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Miller, Planning Director 

Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Example of Allowable Accessory Structures 
   Based upon Final Action on ZOTA 215A 
 
 
 
 
Attached is the text of the Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment regarding the provisions 
of the Zoning Ordinance relating to accessory building standards.  This text incorporates 
the text as proposed by the Planning Commission as well as the revisions that were 
made and approved by City Council at their meeting of July 11, 2005.  The Council 
changes are shown shaded to help differentiate them from the other proposed revisions.  
The only difference between the attached text and the one that was distributed on the 
evening of July 11th, is that the effective date in Paragraph B and C of Section 
40.56.01has been corrected to show July 21, 2005. 
 
Also enclosed are some examples of the new language applied to some residential lots 
within the City.  The first example is a new home that is under construction in Pulte’s 
Wyngate subdivision.  The example uses one of the larger lots within the R-1B 
subdivision.  Lot 21 has an area of 21,258 square feet.  The home that Pulte is currently 
constructing on the lot has a first floor area of 2,044 square feet and a second floor of 
1,733 square feet.  This lot also uses a walk out basement with another 2,027 square 
feet of potential living space in the basement.  This brings the total living space on this 
house to 5,804 square feet.  The 75% limitation for attached garages would limit the 
size of an attached garage to no more than 4,353 square feet.  However, when we add 
this garage area to the first floor area we get 6,397 square feet of building footprint that 
exceeds the 30% lot coverage limit of 6,377 square feet.  Therefore the size of the 
attached garage would be limited to 4,333 square feet.  In this scenario it would leave 
no available space for detached accessory buildings on the site because of the 30% lot 
coverage limit.  Without counting the living space in the basement they could only build 
3,344 square feet of attached garage.  This would limit the house/garage footprint to 
5,388 square feet but would free up the 875 square feet for the allowable detached 
accessory buildings.  Under the Planning Commission/Staff proposed language the 
attached garage would have been limited to 1,533 square feet. 
 



The next example is for a typical lot in the Charnwood Hills Subdivision.  There is a new 
home that has been built on Lot 95 on Anslow Lane.  This lot is 63,555 square feet in 
area.  The home that is built there has a first floor area of 3,450 and a second floor area 
of 2,793 square feet.  This home also has a finished basement that is 3,450 square feet, 
bringing the total living area of the home to 9,693 square feet.  With the 75% limitation a 
7,270 square foot attached garage could be constructed.  In this case the 30% lot 
coverage limitation would allow 19,066 square feet of building on the site.  As such the 
allowable 1,721 square foot detached garage could be constructed as well.  This would 
mean that the total lot coverage of all buildings would be 12,441 square feet.  If the 
basement area of this home were not countable as living space then the total building 
area footprint would be limited to 9,853 square feet.  Under the Planning 
Commission/Staff proposed language the attached garage would have been limited to 
2,588 square feet. 
 
Another example is a new home under construction on Banmoor.  This home has a 
2,270 square foot first floor and a 1,320 square foot second floor on a 36,000 square 
foot lot.  An attached garage of 2,692 square foot could be constructed as well as 1,170 
square feet of detached accessory building on this parcel.  Under the Planning 
Commission/Staff proposed language the attached garage would have been limited to 
1,702 square feet. 
 
Another example is an existing home on Lakewood in the Raintree Village Subdivision.  
It has a home that has a 1,310 square foot ground floor and a 1,074 square foot second 
floor on a 14,070 square foot lot.  This property would be permitted to have a 1,788 
square foot attached garage as well as 731 square feet of detached garage while still 
staying under the 30% lot coverage limit of 4,221 square feet.  Under the Planning 
Commission/Staff proposed language the attached garage would have been limited to 
982 square feet. 
 
Lastly, is an example of a ranch home located on Bolingbroke.  This home has a first 
floor area of 2,787 square feet on a lot that is 20,691 square feet.  A total of 2,090 
square foot of attached garage can be constructed with another 864 square feet of 
detached building permitted.  Under the Planning Commission/Staff proposed language 
the allowable area of attached garage would not change. 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 



bittnera
Text Box
J-03a



bittnera
Text Box
J-03b



bittnera
Text Box
J-03c



bittnera
Text Box
J-03d



bittnera
Text Box
J-03e



bittnera
Text Box
J-03f



bittnera
Text Box
J-03g



bittnera
Text Box
J-03h



bittnera
Text Box
J-04a



bittnera
Text Box
J-04b



campbellld
Text Box
J-04c





mccombca
Text Box
J-05







bittnera
Text Box
J-06

















TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
DATE: July 26, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: Municipal Sign Regulations v. the First Amendment  
 

 
 

 
 
 Enclosed please find a feature article titled Municipal Sign Regulations v. the First 
Amendment.  I was asked to write this article for the 2005 Municipal Law Issue of Laches, 
which is the publication of the Oakland County Bar Association.  Since proposed revisions to 
Troy’s sign ordinance appear as a City Council agenda item, I thought that the article was 
timely and may be helpful.     
 
 As always, if you have any questions concerning the above, please let me know.   
   
 
 
 
  

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
J-07













TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
DATE: August 9, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: Cable Franchise Lawsuit Against the City of Troy  
 

 
 
 
 
 The City of Troy was one of thirteen defendants served with a lawsuit challenging the cable 
franchise fees as an illegal tax.  The other municipalities include Ann Arbor, Canton Township, 
Grand Rapids, Kalamazoo, Livonia, Midland, Muskegon, Plymouth Township, Royal Oak, St. Clair 
Shores, Warren and Westland.  Eight of the individual circuit court judges dismissed the lawsuit in 
against the following jurisdictions:  Ann Arbor, Canton Township, Grand Rapids, Livonia, Muskegon, 
St. Clair Shores, and Westland.  The Plaintiffs voluntarily dismissed the Plymouth Township case, 
and Warren settled their case.  Although the remaining three jurisdictions (Troy, Royal Oak, and 
Midland), had filed motions for dismissal, the circuit court judges stayed these cases to wait for a 
decision in the Michigan Court of Appeals, since the Plaintiffs appealed each of the eight dismissals.  
These three cases will now likely be dismissed, based on the recent decisions of the Michigan Court 
of Appeals.     
 
 The eight cases were not consolidated at the Court of Appeals, but were heard on the same 
day.  Although the circuit court judges based their dismissals on different reasons, the Michigan 
Court of Appeals affirmed the dismissal of all eight cases on two separate grounds.  Extensive briefs 
were filed in all of the cases, and the Michigan Municipal League filed an amicus brief in support of 
the municipal position. Although the briefs raised several justifications for dismissal, the Court 
affirmed the dismissal based on the statute of limitations preclusion in seven of the cases.  The 
Court held that the lawsuit was not filed within one year of the execution of the cable franchise 
agreements, as required by MCL 600.308(a)(3). The statute of limitations defense was not available 
in the eighth case, since Livonia followed a different procedure in the circuit court.  However, the 
Court of Appeals was consistent in relying on the one- year limitation, when it held that Livonia’s 
revenue from the franchise fee in the one- year prior to the filing of the lawsuit was not 
disproportionate to the expenses for cable in that same year, and therefore the cable franchise fee 
was not a tax.     
  
 It is likely that the Plaintiffs will ask the Michigan Supreme Court to review the Court of 
Appeals decisions.  I will keep you updated as to any applications for leave to appeal that are filed 
on behalf of the municipalities.  If you have any questions, please let me know.  
 
 
CC:  Cable Advisory Board  

campbellld
Text Box
J-08



August 10, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager – Services 
  Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
SUBJECT: Memo from the Friends of the Troy Public Library Book Shop  
  Management Committee 
 
 
 
 
Attached is a copy of a letter from the Friends of the Troy Public Library Book 
Shop Management Committee requesting to locate the Friends Used Book Shop 
on the main floor of the library on a permanent basis.  City staff is forwarding a 
copy of the request to the Library Advisory Board for review and comment.  City 
staff will report on the Board’s remarks and will provide additional information, 
most likely in September. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-09



MEMO 
FTPL BOOK SHOP 

 
TO: Brian Stoutenburg(Library Director) and TPL Board of Directors 
CC: John Szerlag (City Manager), Brian Murphy (Assistant City ManagerServices), John 

Lamerato (Assistant City Manager - Finance), Louise Schilling (Mayor), Troy City Council, 
Tammy Duszynski (FTPL Board of Directors) 

 
FROM: FTPL Book Shop Management Committee 
 
DATE: August 1st, 2005 
 
SUBJECT: Friends of the TPL Book Shop Future 
 
In March 2005, due to the HVAC replacement project at the TPL, the Friends Book Shop was 
temporarily relocated from its space on the lower level to the meeting room on the main level. 
 
In the last five months, Troy Community members have consistently expressed their delight at the Book 
Shop's upstairs location. Simultaneously, the Book Shop customer traffic and income have increased 
substantially - 35% each month versus same time last year (see Pg. 2). As of July 31st the Book Shop 
has brought in $50,000 in income. We estimate to make an unprecedented $95100,000 in calendar 
year 2005 if the current trend is allowed to continue. 

On May 1st, 2005 the Friends organization, together with TPL Management, conducted a "Visioning 
Session" so that the Troy Community could have an opportunity to give input and ideas regarding of the 
"Library of the Future" (see Pg. 4). Facilitated by Joe Joseph (Director of GM Knowledge Center and 
Dean of GMU Engineering College) the session's objective was two fold; 
 a) to compile and prioritize a list of specific needs and improvements to be incorporated in the 

future library expansion and, 
 b) to determine the Friends' role in future fund raising activities.  
 
With the Book Shop's move to the ain Level, a unique opportunity has presented itself; one with little (if 
any) risk, yet one that has potential to immediately respond to our community's needs and to offer a 
high return on the community's investment in its future. Therefore, the current location of the Book 
Shop needs to be reassessed quickly by Library and City leadership before its scheduled move back to 
the lower level in September. 
 
The attached information and proposal outlines a forward thinkinG. fiscally responsible way to; 
§ respond to the positive feedback received from various Troy Community members 
§ make the best use of current facilities, 
§ continue current sales levels at Book Shop, and 
§ embark on fundraising activities immediately and thus minimize the future cost of library 

expansion to the taxpayers of Troy. 
 
Success breeds success. By allowing the Book Shop high visibility and linking its tangible, positive 
image to the fundraising campaign, TPL and the Friends will be able to more easily attract the attention 
and support of Troy's private as well as business sector and best serve the Community as a whole.
 . 
 
Respectfully, 
FTPL Book Shop Management Committee (Nancy Booth, Judith Hamlin, Kathy Laskowski, and Eve 
Parsons) 
 
 



Friends of the TPL Book Shop 
 

FACT SHEET 
 
Ø Book Shop 2004-5 income was $81.000. Projected 2005-6 income is $95,000 to $100,000 (based 

on current 6 mo. run rates). 
Ø Book Shop's expenses are minimal-less than 1 % of revenues. Shop is run entirely by volunteers.  
Ø Book Shop consistently contributes approximately 85% of FTPL's total income which supports 

various TPL activities (see Pg. 2).  
Ø New Book Shop management implemented a business plan, operating policies, inventory 

management process, and proactive  volunteer recruiting/training which drove income up 32% 
in 24 months (see pg. 2).  

Ø A Marketing Plan is being created which focuses on building stronger links with the Troy business 
and educational communities, synchronizing PR efforts with TPL activities, implementing proactive 
donation solicitation plus other initiatives to further grow customer base and to solidify entire Troy 
Community's support.  

Ø FTPL income funds hundreds of quality programs annually that are FREE to the entire Troy 
Community.  

Ø Programs create jobs for instructors, musicians, etc., hired for events as well as for those librarians 
who coordinate and  administer the programs.  

Ø Book sales create tax revenue at Book Shop and subsequently when resold by dealers (core group 
of regular, profitable customers).  

Ø Book Shop offers low cost reading and educational materials (95% of inventory <$1.00) to 
community and its neighbors.  

Ø Book Shop gives select donated materials directly to TPL book stacks (ex: DVD's, paperback 
fiction).  

Ø Book Shop provides volunteer opportunities for all members of the diverse Troy Community - 
including high school  students, seniors and mentally challenged adults.  

Ø Book Shop supports a diverse group of organizations by giving surplus inventory for free to Troy 
Senior Center, schools  (Detroit, Pontiac & other underprivileged neighbors) convalescent homes, 
hospice, prisons, etc..  

Ø Book Shop activities are closely aligned with and support TPL's;  
• Vision by delivering quality service through funding hundreds of free programs. 
• Mission by providing materials for lifelong learning and personal enrichment at a very low cost. 
• Values by providing a “welcoming and culturally stimulating setting" at free programs and 

through volunteer opportunities. (see Pg. 5) 
Ø Book Shop's activities are aligned with and support the City of Troy's:  

• Vision by focusing on the Troy Community - the customers. Book Shop is aggressive in its 
efforts to improve service delivery via ongoing initiatives. Book Shop actively supports TPL staff 
via funding of various professional development programs.  

• Mission by providing a public service in a friendly and professional manner.  
• Value of lifelong learning and diversity. This is reflected in Book Shop's clientele as well as 

volunteer ranks; parents, children, students, seniors, educators, business people, mentally 
challenged adults - all members of the Troy Community. (see Pg. 6) 

 
 
 
 
08-01-05 Page 1 



Friends of the TPL Book Shop 
 

CURRENT STATUS 
 
Over the last 5 months (Mar - Jul) or virtually half of 2005, the Book Shop has been temporarily located 
in the TPL Meeting Room on the main floor. During this time frame: 
 
Ø Sales averaged nearly $2,000 per weekend - or 35% more each month than sales on lower level 

during same time last year (see Financial Snapshot below). January 1 to July 31 sales total $52.568. 
July 2005 sales totaled $10.159 - an all time record in Book Shop history.  

Ø Book Shop customer traffic increased with many new customers.  
Ø Upstairs location is more accessible to handicapped, senior citizens and mothers with young 

children & strollers.  
Ø Public awareness of the Book Shop and entire FTPL organization increased.  
Ø Book Shop attracted an unprecedented 8 new volunteers resulting in an all time high of 57 

volunteers on board.  
Ø Attendance at various programs held off-site has increased.  
Ø Library attendance has not declined.  
Ø Community has given freQuent, very positive feedback regarding the temporary location to Book 

Shop Volunteers as well as Library Staff. Requests that Book Shop remains upstairs are 
frequent & ongoing.  

Ø Community has not voiced any negative comments to Book Shop Volunteers regarding programs 
being moved to locations other than the Meeting Room.  

 
 
FINANCIAL SNAPSHOT    
    24 Month 

Fiscal Year 2004-5 2003-4 2002-3 Change 
Book Shop Income $81,198 75,676 61,547 32% 
Total Friends Income 96,269 88,276 85,862 12% 

% Book Shop/FTPL 84% 86% 72%  
 

Monthly Book Shop 
Sales 2005 2004 % Change 

March $8,160 6,030 +2,130 +35% 
April 9,124 6,778 +2,346 +35% 
May 5,822 4,474 +1,348 +30% 
June 4,427 *a 5,921 -1,494 - 25%*a 
July 10,159 7,473 +2,686 +36% 

Total 5 Months $37,692 $30,676 $ 7,016 +23% 
 
*a Book Shop closed for 2 weekends in June due to HVAC delay resulting in approximately $4,000 in 

lost income.  If adjusted for 2-week loss (by doubling June 2 week actual), June '05 sales would be 
$8,854 or 50% higher than June '04. 

 
 
 
08-01-05 Page2 



Friends of the TPL Book Shop 
 

PROPOSAL 
 
In response to the extremely positive feedback received from various Troy Community members; 
Participants at the May Visioning Session, Library Patrons. Book Shop Customers, Library Staff 
and Friends' Volunteers, and the substantial growth in sales, the current location of the Friends Book 
Shop needs to be reassessed quickly. Serious consideration should be given to keeping the Book Shop 
in the Meeting Room on the main level given the multifold benefits to the entire Troy Community 
and very few, if any, risks. 
 
Opportunities -- value added to the Troy Community and TPL: 
Ø Greater Book Shop visibility which translates into...  

• more customers 
• more donations 
• more volunteers (flexibility for future weeknight & lor more business hours) and thus increased 

income and continued support of programs, the TPL and the Troy Community.  

Ø Option to hold programs at TPL, the Community Center and Troy Museum. This would add flexibility 
to open programs to larger groups on an ongoing basis thus, increase participation in TPL programs 
and make better use of existing Trov facilities.  

Ø Add space by converting lower level Book Shop facility into a mid size meeting room (could be 
funded by the FTPL). As half of the lower level is already being used for computer classes, this is a 
natural extension of the TPL's meeting and training facilities.  

Ø Use the Book Shop as a vehicle (a tangible, highly visible, successful operation) to attract Troy 
Community's attention to fund raising efforts for future library expansion as outlined at Visioning 
Meeting in May.  

Ø Synchronize the timing of Book Shop's grand opening on main floor with Troy Daze and 50th 
Anniversary celebrations to reinforce fund raising efforts.  

 

Risks: 
 
No significant risks have been identified to date. Some portion (but not all) of the TPL programs would 
need to be held off site like they already have been during the 5+ months of the HV AC project. This 
may mean a small increase in the cost of the programs to pay for space at Community Center facility. 
However, these costs would be included in the total program cost thus, be covered by the FTPL (see 
Pg. 7) 
 

CONCLUSION 
 
The above are all compelling - business based and fiscally sound -- reasons which serve the Troy 
Community and are in the Community's best interest. The Book Shop is a proven and consistent 
performer - even in less than optimal economic times. The value added contribution to the Troy 
Community is quite significant: 

• rich program schedule accessible to all for FREE 
• low cost materials for students, educators, seniors, & community at large 
• volunteer opportunities open to all members of the community 
• ability to supporting less privileged neighbors 

Locating the Book Shop on the main level of the TPL will expand on the above contributions and reap 
even greater rewards. It will show the City's Leadership hears its constituency and is quick to respond 
to needs voiced by the Troy Community. 
 
08-01-05 Page 3 



TROY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
SPACE NEEDS IDEAS 

 
 
 

Main floor location for Friends bookstore and gift shop 
 
Drive through service window - returns and pick-up 
 
Quiet study rooms 
 
Group study rooms 
 
Teen services area 
 
Meeting rooms/program rooms/conference rooms 
 
Audio-visual area 
 
International language/culture area 
 
Enlarged lobby 
 
Staff work space 
 
Materials merchandising (browsing) space 
 
Better cafe space 
 
First floor computer training lab 
 
Children's story program area 
 
Enlarged stack space for book collections 
 
Additional parking 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Brian Stoutenburg / May 17,2005      Troy Library Space Needs 
 
 
08-01-05 Page 4 
 





 
 



 


	AGENDA:  August 15, 2005
	GOALS
	AGENDA:  Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET:  Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	a\) Recognition of the City of Troy’s 50�


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Parking Variance – 701-705 Minnesota
	C-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 212) – Articles IV
	C-3 Rezoning Application (Z 705) – West Side of Rochester Ro

	POSTPONED ITEMS:  No Postponed Items
	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation
	Proclamation Celebrating 85 Years – American Legion Charles 

	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option –
	Standard Purchasing Resolution 6: Grant Approval and Authori
	Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and 

	E-5 Application to Transfer Location of a Class C Liquor Lic
	E-6 Fireworks Permit – Troy Daze
	E-7 Private Agreement for Hidden Creek Site Condominiums – P
	E-8 Request for Approval of Increased Interest Differential 
	E-9 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Stat
	E-10 Gerback et. al v. City of Troy
	E-11 Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement

	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No Appointments Scheduled; b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advi
	F-2 Local Match for a Michigan Economic Growth Authority (ME
	F-3 Traffic Committee Recommendations – July 20, 2005
	F-4 2006 City Calendar Contract Extension
	F-5 Authority to Initiate Lawsuit to Abate Public Nuisance –
	F-6 Bid Waiver – Troy Daze Large Tents
	F-7 Resolution Supporting the Legislative Correction of the 
	F-8 Authority to Initiate Lawsuit to Abate Public Nuisance –
	F-9 Proposed Revision of Troy’s Sign Ordinances
	F-10 Public Benefit Requirement to Satisfy Preliminary Appro
	F-11 Intergovernmental  Cable Communications Authority (ICCA
	F-12 Bid Waiver – Authorization to Purchase an Enterprise Co
	F-13 Proposed Revisions to Chapter 19 – Sanitary Sewer Servi
	F-14 Replacement of November 2005 Ballot Proposals

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2239 East Maple Road – September
	Rezoning Application – South Side of Long Lake Road, West of

	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	a\) Options for Remnant Parcel – Site fo�


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  No Council Referrals

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Troy Historic District Study Committee/Final – June 7, 2005
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – July 6, 2005
	Planning Commission Regular/Draft – July 12, 2005
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – July 
	Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust Minutes/Draft – Ju
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – July 26, 2005

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of Jul
	Police Department – 2005 Year-to-Date Crime and Calls for Se
	Planning Department – Zoning Ordinance Test Amendment  (ZOTA
	Purchasing Department – Auction (Off Site and On-line) – Veh
	Building Department – Additional Information on Examples of 

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Thanks to Mayor Schilling from Paul Marcus, Barton
	Letter of Thanks to John Szerlag from Harriet Barnard, Thank
	Letter of Thanks to Carol Anderson from Stacy Pilut, Thankin
	Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Clive D. Mattice, Jr., 
	Letter of Thanks to Carol Anderson from Lynn and Brian Coury
	Letter to Chief Nelson from Vicki Barnett, Mayor, and Richar
	Letter to Troy Fire Department from Mothers & More, in Appre
	Letter of Appreciation to Steve Vandette from Richard Bury f

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	Resolution from the City of Ferndale Extending Appreciation 
	Resolution from Charter Township of White Lake Regarding Loc
	Resolution from the City of Ferndale – I-75 Final Environmen

	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Standard & Poor’s Annual Review of “AAA” United States 
	J-7  Municipal Sign Regulations v. the First Amendment
	J-8  Cable Franchise Lawsuit Against the City of Troy
	J-9  Memo from the Friends of the Troy Public Library Book S

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT



